
Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 2

akerc
Typewritten Text



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 3



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Meeting Date: August 7,2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Norman McRee/854-4821 II<..-
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, County at cr 
Executive, Planning & Budget 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health 
Care for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund 
for payment of $877,981.66, for the period of July 20 to July 26,2012. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

See attached. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Director or Risk Manager has reviewed the reimbursement submitted and concurs 
with the findings of the audits by the Financial Analyst and the Benefits Contract 
Administrator and therefore recommends reimbursement of $877,981.66. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

See attached. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

Employee Health Benefit Fund (8956) - $877,981.66 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

John Rabb, 854-2742 
Diane Blankenship, 854-9170 
Jessica Rio, 854-9106 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 4



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Meeting Date: 8/7/2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Cynthia Lam-Roldan, 854-4822 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, 854-9106 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on the following items for Human 
Resources Management Department: 

A. Proposed routine personnel amendments; and 

B. Non-routine reque'st from Facilities Management Department for a 
variance to Travis County Code § 10.03008, Promotion Policy. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Attached are Personnel Amendments for Commissioners Court approval. 

A. Routine Personnel Actions - Pages 2 - 4. 

B. Non-Routine Personnel Action - Pages 5 - 8. 
Facilities Management requests approval for a promotion that is 
above midpoint and greater than a 5% increase in salary. Travis 
County Code § 10.03008, Slot 149, Building Security Guard Supv, 
PG 11. HRMD has reviewed supporting documentation and 
recommends approval; PBO has confirmed sufficient funds. 

If you have any questions or comments, please contact Diane Poirot at 
854-9170 or Todd L. Osburn at 854-2744. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
NIA 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
NIA 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
None. 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 5



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:   August  7, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Yolanda Reyes, 854-9106 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Leslie Browder, County 
Executive, Planning and Budget 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE:   Receive Presentation of Fiscal Year 2013 
Preliminary Budget. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  
Please see attached documentation 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Please see attached documentation. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  Please see attached documentation. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  Please see attached 
documentation. 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
Leslie Browder, Planning and Budget Office (512) 854-9106 
Leroy Nellis, Planning and Budget Office, (512) 854-9106 
Jessica Rio, Planning and Budget Office, (512) 854-9106 
Cheryl Aker,  County Judge’s Office, (512) 854-9555 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 6



 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY 

Fiscal Year 2013 Preliminary 

Budget 

 

 
     August 7, 2012 

 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



2013 Preliminary Budget Highlights 

 The Preliminary Budget is a sound, balanced financial 

plan. 

 Based on policy direction for 2013 budget development 

approved by the Commissioners Court in February 2012 

 Maintains healthy reserve levels to address any 

unforeseen requirements 

 Includes new funding to respond to service needs of 

Travis County residents 

 Reflects modest growth in the property tax rate 

 1.45 cent increase, from $0.4855 to $0.4979 

2 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Today’s Presentation 

 Summary of All County Funds 

 General Fund 

 Summary and Highlights 

 Major Funding Priorities 

 Investments in the Workforce 

 Reserves 

 Capital Recommendations 

 Property Tax Information 

 Budget Calendar and Next Steps 

3 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



All Funds – $796.6 million 

General 
Government

19%

Justice System
16%

Corrections & 
Rehabilitation

13%Public Safety
8%

Health & Human 
Services

6%

Infrastructure & 
Environmental

4%

Community & 
Economic 

Development

1%

Allocated 
Reserves

15%

Unallocated 
Reserves

8%

Debt Service
10%

4 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



All Funds Summary (in Millions of Dollars) 

FY 2012 FY 2013 

General Fund $541.2 $574.2 

Road & Bridge Fund 18.9 18.7 

Debt Service Funds 85.8 89.2 

Risk Management 16.1 16.2 

Employee Insurance 69.2 73.5 

Other Funds and Transfers 25.8 24.8 

Total $757.0 $796.6 

5 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



General Fund – $574.2 million 

General 
Government

15%

Justice System
21%

Corrections & 
Rehabilitation

18%
Public Safety

11%

Health & Human 
Services

8%

Infrastructure & 
Environmental

2%

Community & 
Economic 

Development

2%

Allocated & 
Unallocated 

Reserves

21%

Transfers Out
2%

6 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



General Fund Summary 

 Based on County Auditor’s 3rd revenue estimate 

 Property tax revenue of $399.8 million 

 Estimated collection rate of 97.5% 

 Net of economic incentive rebates of $11.9 million 

 Focus on maintaining current County service levels while 

responding to growing demand and workload 

 Provides funding for employee compensation and benefits 

 Full-year funding for market salary adjustments in April 2012 

 Compensation reserve for employees on Peace Officers Pay Scale 

 Reflects insurance rates and plan design changes approved in June 2012 

 Funding for pension program maintained at current benefit levels and includes 

retiree health care contributions 

 

 

 

7 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



General Fund Summary (in Millions of Dollars) 

FY 2012 FY 2013 

General Government $  81.1 $  87.4 

Justice System 115.5 119.5 

Corrections & Rehabilitation 99.5 103.4 

Public Safety 59.1 61.8 

Health & Human Services 45.5 47.0 

Infrastructure & Environment 12.2 11.5 

Community & Economic Dev. 7.7 9.0 

Reserves 107.1 120.8 

Transfers Out 13.5 13.8 

Total $541.2 $574.2 

8 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Major Funding Priorities 

Maintenance of Current Effort $4,485,326 

Road & Bridge Shortfall 1,370,114 

Pilot Programs & Social Service 1,003,063 

Integrated Justice System Replacement 708,775 

Planning and Assessment Studies 690,000 

Balcones Canyonlands Preserve  655,322 

New Financial System (BEFIT) 648,361 

Parks 634,493 

Other Additions (Net) 604,041 

 

 

 

 

 

9 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Major Funding Priorities (continued) 

Title IV-E Expense to Gen Fund $525,877 

Mid-year Court Approvals 504,065 

Interlocal Agreements 262,767 

Medical Examiner Doctor & Staff 242,610 

Waller Creek Project (increase) 235,112 

County Attorney Mental Health Team 139,552 

DA Family Violence Prosecutor 116,701 

 

 

 

10 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Summary of Personnel Changes 

Proposed General Fund Position Changes 

Description Net Change 

Approved by the Commissioners Court in Mid-Year 2012 7.75 

Proposed New Positions 61.08 

Transfers to/from Other Funds 7.08 

Other 3.10 

Total General Fund Net FTE Changes 79.01 

11 

 Travis County experienced several lean years recently when the local 

economy slowed. 

 Many of these requests for new positions are associated with built-up need 

that occurs when funding is constrained over a period of time. 

 Intended to respond to increased demand for services and to help 

manage rising workload requirements 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Investments in the Workforce 

 Annualized amounts for Market Salary Survey 
Adjustments that were effective 4/1/2012 

 Approximate increase of 3.5% 
 

 3.5% for Auditor’s Office and Purchasing Office 
 

 3.5% reserved for Elected Officials Salaries 

 Commissioners Court scheduled to take final action on 
8/7/2012 

 

 3.5% reserved for Peace Officer Pay Scale 

 Final amount and implementation date TBD by Court 

 

 

 

12 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Investments in the Workforce 

 Preliminary Budget includes $14.3 million in 
additional funding for the County’s workforce. 

 

 $9.5 million is included for compensation and $4.8 
million to maintain health and retirement benefits at 
current levels. 

 

 Compensation is based on the annualized costs of 
actions approved in 2012, as well as items that 
require additional action from Commissioners Court. 

 

13 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Investments in the Workforce 
14 

Market Salary Survey Adjustments (MSS) $5,632,933 

MSS Overtime, Temp & Reclassifications 240,809 

3.5% Auditor’s Office 284,495 

3.5% Purchasing Office 96,320 

   Total Budgeted in Offices and Departments $6,254,557 

3.5% Elected Officials 96,646 

Associate Judges/Magistrates  65,724 

3.5% for Peace Officers Pay Scale 3,115,070 

   Total in Compensation Reserve $3,277,440 

   Total Compensation $9,531,997 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Investments in the Workforce 

 Increased Funding for Benefits - $4.8 million 

 Employee and Retiree Healthcare 

 $3.6 million estimated increase in County costs 

 Only second increase in last six years 

 Recommendations include minor plan design changes to limit 

cost increases to the County, employees and retirees. 

 Texas County and District Retirement System 

 Additional $1.5 million needed to maintain required 

funding. 

 Does not include COLA for retirees 

 

15 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



General Reserves 

 Unallocated Reserve $56,257,402 
 Maintained at 11% of General Fund, 

 Road & Bridge, and Debt Service 

 Budgets 

 

 Allocated Reserve 6,743,084 

 

 Emergency Reserve 4,950,000 

 

 Capital Acquisition Resources Reserve 2,857,770 

 
 

 

                                          

16 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

Special Purpose Reserves 
 Civil & Family Court House Planning $5,496,000 

 Interlocal Agreements 2,605,866 

 IJS Replacement  2,164,795 

 Sheriff’s Office Pay Cycle 1,500,000  

 StarFlight Maintenance 1,035,000 

 1115 Waiver Participation 1,000,000 

 Fuel and Utilities 1,000,000 

 Security 903,905 

 Retirement Transition 750,000 

 Future Grants Requirements 503,193 

17 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

Special Purpose Reserves (continued) 
 Potential State Cuts $500,000 

 Salary Savings 500,000 

 Juvenile Justice 418,959 

 Smart Building 160,778 

 Annualization 65,768 

18 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Capital Budget Recommendations 

 Long-Term Bonds authorized in 2011 $41,940,000 

 Capital Acquisition Resources (CAR)               30,952,312 

 Short-Term Certificates of Obligation           20,970,000 

 Other Funds     291,504 

 

Total Preliminary Capital Budget               $94,153,816 

19 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Capital Acquisition Resources (CAR) 

 

 Information Technology Projects                                                     $6,858,734 

 Centrally Budgeted Computers 2,859,862 

 Transportation & Natural Resources Projects                                      4,913,670 

 Road & Bridge Projects 2,200,000 

 Centrally Budgeted Vehicles                                                  4,476,960 

 Facilities Management Projects  2,063,301  

 Sheriff’s Office Projects 1,934,158 

 Other Offices and Departments 2,787,857 

 Reserve 2,857,770 

 Total Capital Acquisition Resources $30,952,312                                       

20 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Certificates of Obligation 

 Granger Building Projects $4,489,208 

 Executive Office Building Projects 4,281,200 

 700 Lavaca Projects 1,041,465 

 Hot Mix Asphaltic Concrete 3,900,000 

 Vehicles and Heavy Equipment 1,753,000 

 Sheriff’s Office Projects 2,810,000 

 Information Technology Projects 2,591,500 

 Estimated Issuance Costs 103,627 

 

Total Certificates of Obligation $20,970,000 

21 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



2011 Voter Approved Bonds 

Proposed for Issuance in FY 2013 

 Proposition 1: Roads, Drainage,  

   Bridge & Bike/Pedestrian Projects $30,520,000 

 Proposition 2: Parks & Land 

   Conservation Projects 11,420,000 

 

Total Voter Approved Bonds $41,940,000 

22 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Property Tax Base 

Preliminary Budget: 

 Total taxable value estimated to increase from $97.1 

billion to $100.6 billion 

 Overall increase of 3.7% compared to last year’s certified roll 

 Includes $3.56 billion in new value 

 Proposed tax rate of 49.79 cents per $100 of taxable 

value 

Certified Tax Roll (Update): 

 Total taxable value certified at $101.3 billion 

 Overall increase of 4.4% compared to last year 

 Includes $3.54 billion in new value 

23 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



5-Year Property Tax Base History 

  TOTAL NEW   TOTAL 

FISCAL TAXABLE CONSTRUCTION APPRECIATION CHANGE IN 

YEAR VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE 

2009    95,071,022,975        3,971,894,250         6,002,755,578      9,974,649,828  
2010    98,355,097,325        2,926,977,219             357,097,131      3,284,074,350  
2011    94,389,607,881        1,881,549,946        (5,847,039,390)    (3,965,489,444) 
2012    97,054,517,458       3,544,836,553       (879,926,976)    2,664,909,577 

2013 
   100,597,795,060 
(Preliminary Budget) 

      
 3,563,804,964       (20,527,362)    3,543,277,602 

2013 
 

   101,328,056,027 
(Certified Tax Roll) 

      
 3,549,742,494 

 

      723,796,075 
 

   4,273,538,569 
 

24 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Property Tax Rate 

 Tax rate in Preliminary Budget calculated based on TCAD estimates prior to 

tax roll certification 

 3% above effective tax rate included in Preliminary Budget consistent with Court 

direction in February 2012 

 Certification of 2012 appraised values received in late July 

 Certified values will be used in Fourth Revenue Estimate and tax ads. 

 Updated information will be available for Mark-Up of 2013 Preliminary Budget. 

 

25 

Tax rate 
Adopted 

2012 
Tax Rate 

 
2013 

Preliminary 
Budget 

 
Effective 
Tax Rate  

 
2013 

Preliminary 
Budget 

 
Proposed 
Tax Rate 

 
2013 

Preliminary 
Budget 

 

Minus 
Effective 

 
 
 
 
 

Percent 
Difference 

Maintenance 
& Operations  $0.4085 $0.4044 $0.4189 $0.0145 3.6% 

Debt Service  $0.0770 $0.0790 $0.0790 $0.0000 0.0% 

Total  $0.4855 $0.4834 $0.4979 $0.0145 3.0% 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Estimated 2013 Average Tax Bill 

PRELIMINARY BUDGET FY 2012 FY 2013 Difference 

Average Appraised Value of All 

Homesteads 

$272,931 $270,677 ($2,254) 

Taxable Value of Average Homestead 

(includes only 20% homestead exemption) 

$218,345 $216,542 ($1,803) 

Tax Rate $0.4855 $0.4979 $0.0124 

Average Tax  Bill $1,060  $1,078  $18 

26 

 Travis County gives a 20% homestead exemption. 

 Exemption represents the difference noted above between the average appraised value 

of $270,677 and $216,542 (a difference of $54,135). 

 Travis County’s Tax Office estimates that this 20% exemption represents $57 million in 

foregone tax revenue for the General Fund (M&O only). 

 Homestead exemption represents annual tax savings to the average homestead of $270. 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Public Hearings and Input 

 Statutory requirement to hold two public hearings on 

Proposed Tax Rate 

 Required if Proposed Tax Rate is above Effective Tax Rate 

 Tuesday, September 11th - first public hearing (9 AM) 

 Friday, September 14th - second public hearing (9 AM) 

 Tuesday, September 25th - public hearing on the Fiscal Year 

2013 Proposed Budget 

 Travis County residents invited to provide input on the 

proposed budget each Tuesday during “Citizens 

Communication” 

27 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Departmental Budget Analysis 

 Each Court member has received the “Black Book” that 
contains analysis of departmental budget submissions 
by Planning & Budget Office.  

 This information covers departmental base budgets, as 
well as requests for new funding. 

461 separate budget requests for 2013 

 Planning & Budget Office has provided departments 
with analysis and current status of 2013 funding 
requests. 

 Commissioners Court received departmental 
information and analysis one week prior to each 
scheduled hearing. 

28 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Next Steps 

 Budget hearings scheduled on August 8th, 9th, and 10th 

 Commissioner Court to receive revised Budget Agenda 

Worksheet on Tuesday, August 14th 

 Court to complete Budget Agenda Worksheet by 

Tuesday, August 21st 

 Budget Mark-Up scheduled for Wednesday, August 29th, 

Thursday, August 30th, and Friday, August 31st 

 Tax rate needs to be set by noon on August 30th.  

 Adopt the Budget on Tuesday, September 25th 

29 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY 

Fiscal Year 2013 Preliminary 

Budget 

 

 
   Discussion/Questions 

 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Meeting Date: August 7, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Diane Poi rot, 854-9170 ~ 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, 854-9106 0' 0 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action to set the Fiscal Year 2013 salaries of Elected 
Officials. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
The Human Resources Management Department (HRMD) surveyed Bexar, Dallas, 
Harris, Tarrant, and Williamson Counties for relevant market data for the Elected 
Officials. The data shows that, overall, Travis County is moderately behind the market 
in the base compensation rates for elected officials. 

Travis County implemented the results of a Market Salary Survey in April of 2012 for the 
classified employees. The overall result of the implementation of this market study was 
an approximate 3.5% increase in the total compensation of the employees whose 
positions were included in the study. In addition, a 3.5% increase has been included in 
the preliminary budget for FY2013 for those departments and offices that were not 
included in the 2011-2012 Market Salary Survey. 

As the Elected Officials are currently behind market overall, HRMD recommends a 3.5% 
increase in base salary for those officials whose salary is not restricted by a state
mandated salary cap. This is in line with the overall market increases for classified 
employees. 

On July 3, 2012, the Commissioners Court drew names from the Grand Jury Pool for 
the Elected Officials' Salary Grievance Committee as required by Section 152.015 of 
the Local Government Code, under the supervision of the Travis County Clerk. 

As required by state law, the County placed an advertisement in the Austin Chronicle 
that was published on July 19, 2012, which provided notice of the public hearing to be 
held on July 31, 2012, as well as this agenda item. 

On July 31, 2012, the public hearing was held and the Commissioners Court heard 
comments from one individual. The Court also approved a revised calendar for the 
salary setting process. 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
single pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, ChervI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 
p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 7



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Meeting Date: August 7,2012 

Prepared By/Phone Number: Belinda Powell, Strategic Planning Manager 
(512) 854-9506 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. H~SI!: Browder, County 
Executive, PBO, (512) 854-9106 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
RECEIVE PRESENTATION FROM THE CIVIL AND FAMILY 
COURTHOUSE RECOMMENDATION COMMITTEE AND TAKE 
APPROPRIATE ACTION. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
The members of the Travis County Civil and Family Courthouse Recommendation 
Committee were appointed by the Commissioners Court in May 2012 to assist with the 
selection of a delivery method for a new Travis County Civil and Family Court House. 
The Committee was asked to return to the Commissioners Court with a 
recommendation in mid-June or as soon as the completion of their deliberations would 
allow. 

The Committee completed their work in July and has prepared the attached report for 
the Commissioner Courts consideration and deliberation. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Please see attachment. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Please see attachment. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
N/A 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 8



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a pdf 
to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the 
next week's meeting. 

 
 
Meeting Date:  8/7/2012, 9:00 AM, Voting Session 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  John E. Pena, CTPM; Marvin Brice, CPPB, 
Purchasing Office, 512-854-9700 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge, Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: APPROVE CONTRACT AWARD FOR PROFESSIONAL 
MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, AND PLUMBING (MEP) ENGINEERING DESIGN 
SERVICES FOR THE TCJ EXTENDED LIFE PROJECTS – PHASE IIa, 
CONTRACT NO. 4400000992, TO THE HIGHEST QUALIFIED FIRM, HALFF 
ASSOCIATES, INC.  
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs with 
department and recommends approval of requested action.  This procurement 
action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 

 On October 20, 2009, the Commissioners Court approved a pre-qualified list 
of Professional MEP Engineering; Structural Engineering and Landscape 
Architectural Firms for utilization on small projects in Travis County, through a 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ) No. Q090290-JT.  The pre-qualified list has 
since been utilized for various small projects countywide. 

 On August 10, 2010, the Commissioners Court approved the TCJ Extended 
Life Project as part of a three-year renovation plan that addresses the most 
critical issues and adds 10-15 years to the TCJ’s useful life.  This 10-year life 
span provides the Commissioner’s Court the time it needs to make a decision 
about the future of the TCJ including whether the general housing beds, 
currently a part of the TCJ, stay downtown or are relocated to the Travis 
County Correctional Complex (TCCC) at Del Valle. 

 As part of the overall TCJ Extended Life Project, Travis County Sheriff’s Office 
(TCSO) currently requires professional MEP Engineering Services to develop 
drawings and specifications for the Travis County Jail (TCJ) Extended Life 
Projects – Phase IIa.  The work will require developing specifications and 
construction drawings for the upgrade of the Kitchen Exhaust System and the 
General Building Exhaust System of the Travis County Jail, 500 W. 10th 
Street, Austin, Texas 78701. This will be the second contract associated with 
this requirement. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 9



 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a pdf 
to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the 
next week's meeting. 

 TCSO reviewed the 10 MEP Consultants from the pre-qualifying list and 
determined that Halff Associates, Inc. to be the most qualified firm due to their 
extensive familiarity with the Correction’s secure environment, the number of 
qualified personnel available to address the unique problems presented by 
this project; i.e., investigation into older buildings needing retrofitting in tight 
spaces as well as addressing older design inadequacies, and having TCSO 
cleared personnel on staff. 

 Negotiations were conducted, and as a result, TCSO is recommending, with 
Purchasing’s concurrence, contract award to Halff Associates in the amount 
of $179,810.00.    

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $0.00has been spent 
against this requirement. 

 Contract-Related Information: 
Award Amount: $179,810.00 
Contract Type: Professional Services 
Contract Period: Through Completion 

 Contract Modification Information:  N/A 
Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information:  N/A 

Solicitations Sent:    Responses Received:    
HUB Information:    % HUB Subcontractor:    

 Special Contract Considerations:  N/A 

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP:  1000001265 
  Comments:  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



JAMESN.SYLVESTER GREG HAMILTON WN9
Chie Deputy

TRAVIS COUNTY SHERIFF
ajor - orrecuons

P.O. Box 1748 PHYLLIS CLAIR
Major - Law Enforcement

Austin, Texas 78767
(512) 854-9770 MARK SAWA

www.tcsheriff.org Major - Administration & Support

MEMORANDUM

TO: Marvin Brice, CPPB,

FROM: MarkStefanov,P.E. RECEIVED

DATE: April 9, 2012 9 2O2
TRAVIS COUNTY

SUBJECT: Engineer Selection TO Extended Life Projects - Phase ha PURCH,SG OFFICE
This is the follow up to the March 13, 2012 request for buyer assignment and purchasing action for a Drawing
and Specification Consultant for two more of the Construction projects at the Travis County Jail. Please note that
I have attached an updated Scope of Work modified since March 13, 2012 that is available as MSWord. The
projects are funded by Fiscal Year 2010 Co money. The D&S project title above supports and continues the
efforts started in FY2O1O, TO Roof Walls Weatherization Project, a name used to identify a different construction
effort. These D&Ss will provide for the construction contracts to upgrade the:

3. “Kitchen Exhaust System”. and
4. “General Bldg Exhaust Systems”.

These projects do address the problem that initiated the TO Roof Walls Weatherization Project, and the overall
solution is a subset of it. However the roof and wall weatherization efforts are complete.

After reviewing the ten available MEP Consultants from the Qualifying list provided to me by Purchasing, I have
determined the most qualified Professional. It is HALFF ASSOCIATES. INC. Although they have an Austin address
in the RFQ, their MEP is handled out of Dallas. That does not cause me any concern, but I thought that the buyer
might want to be aware of the fact.

Selection was determined by several areas of setting them above the others. HaIff has extensive Correction’s
environment experience. They have the most qualified personnel to address the unique problems presented by
these projects. Some of these include investigation into older building needing retrofitting in tight spaces as well
as addressing older design inadequacies. In addition, they are familiar with the facility and the current cad
backgrounds, as well as having Travis County Sheriff’s Office cleared personnel on staff.

The TCSO Finance Department has previously loaded requisition 554936 into HTE. When this request is
approved, please notify me as well as Ron Rizzato so that he may modify the Vendor to Half and re-release for
the buyer’s use.

Please contact me with any questions at 45321. Your assistance in obtaining a relatively quick Professional
Services Agreement with HaIff will be greatly appreciated.

CC: Sheriff’s Office Engineer’s File
Ron Rizzato
Major Long

\\tcso_dv\VOL1\Users\StefanM\Projects\201 1\T’c4d General Bldg - Kitchen Exhaust Systems\TCJ Exhaust
Engineer Selection 120409.doc

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



APPENDIX A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

TCJ Exhaust System - General Building Renewal 238693, and
TCJ Exhaust System - Kitchen - Commercial Renewal 244270

1.1. Project Identification TCJ Exhaust System - General Building Renewal 238693, and
TCJ Exhaust System - Kitchen - Commercial Renewal 244270

1.2. Project Location Travis County Jail
500 W. 10th Street
Austin, TX 78701

1.3. Project Location Operators (subject to change):
Major Darren Long, Corrections Bureau Administrator
Captain Jerry Kovar, TCJ Administrator
Lieutenant Elizabeth Jurica, TCJ Manager
Sergeants, Corrections Officers

1.4. Abbreviations:
1.4.3 ASHRAE, American Society of Heating and Air-Conditioning Engineers.
1.4.4 BAS, Building Automation System.
1.4.5 TCJ, Travis County Jail.
1.4.6 TCSO, Travis County Sheriff’s Office.
1.4.7 TCSOE, Travis County Sheriff’s Office Engineer.
1.4.8 TCSO PM, Travis County Sheriffs Office Project Manager.

1.5. Occupancy — Occupancy of the area is 24 hours per day, seven days per week without the ability to
relocate the occupants except by area confinement.

1.6. Schedule — See Attachment 3.

1.7. Description — The Projects include:

1.7.1. Providing all exhaust equipment, ductwork, building modifications, and other necessary
items to upgrade the existing exhaust systems in order to comply with current engineering
standards for a jail environment. Providing electronic monitoring and control by the TCSO
BAS, Computrols, for the new equipment and as considered appropriate for continued
balanced operation of the new systems.

1.7.2. The upgraded exhaust is being undertaken to correct humidity problems leading to
excessive biological growth by:
1.7.2.1. Upgrading the north and south side cell exhaust routes to facilitate the proper

building general ventilation;
1.7.2.2. Upgrading the north and south side cell exhaust fans to meet the ASHRAE

Building Exhaust Standards;
1.7.2.3. Renewing and adding fire dampers and associated devices to meet the current Fire

Codes;
1.7.2.4. Correcting duct penetrations and ductwork to direct the airflow so as to flow

effectively for all cell exhaust and the central core exhausted areas;
1.7.2.5. Replacing items, duct, equipment, in the kitchen exhaust system that cannot be

refurbished to a like new condition;

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



1.7.2.6. Facilitating the repair to, and the resealing of, the building envelope where the
above items penetrate to the outside, which may involve roof or wall penetrations;
and

1.7.2.7. Adding make up air in an engineered method to address the new exhaust
requirements and provide a positive building envelope.

1.7.3. Upgrading the four cells located in the basement Medical area to the Center for Disease
Control recommended negative-pressure, operation, and control for airborne infection
isolation. (This is part of TCJ Exhaust System - General Building Renewal 238693. Where
considered appropriate by current engineering practices, sub tasks in paragraph 1.7.2 above
may apply to this paragraph.)

1.7.4. Upgrading the basement Kitchen hood exhausts and make up air to the current operational
standards of the applicable codes and correcting items needing repair. (Where considered
appropriate by current engineering practices, sub tasks in paragraph 1.7.2 above may apply
to this paragraph.)

1.7.5. Working in the very confining and space restricted areas of the jail outside of the normal
housing areas in ceilings and crawl spaces.

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES

2.1. The CONSULTANT’S “Basic Services” shall include all tasks and deliverables required to
provide a complete, functional, and usable biddable drawings and specification’s package, D&Ss.
CONSULTANT’S Basic Services includes:
2.1.1. Review existing drawings and conditions.
2.1.2. Develop new drawings as needed to adequately define a Project planned to be bid by the

County.
2.1.3. New drawings shall be 1 1x17 and comply with the Travis County Sheriff’s Office

Engineer’s specific requirements listed in Attachment 8.
2.1.4. Select, engineer, and design a suitable exhaustlmake up air system for building expected to

be kept in service for a plan of another 25 years.
2.1.5. Investigating the kitchen exhaust for proper flows and heat rejection based on the

operations, then engineering and designing the upgrades or equipment replacements with a
Return on Investment of less than ten years.

2.1.6. Address the desired Project items as listed in the Project’s Description above.
2.1.7. Provide and submit with the 100% D&Ss, a construction cost estimate.
2.1.8. Investigate the applicability of permits for the construction process and require Contractor

to provide in the D&Ss.
2.1.9. Provide a point matrix, drawing information and specifications, and written control

sequence for the addition of Computrols to monitor and control all items that will be
considered necessary for effective operation.

2.1.10. Segregate the two projects distinctly while combining common construction areas and
specifications with the possibility that one of the projects may be bid as an optional part.

2.1.11. Provide technical assistance during the bidding process.
2.1.12. Provide all new work in an AutoCAD format, model space only, for incorporation into the

TCSO’s master drawings per Attachment 8. These shall be separated from the TCSO
supplied master backgrounds, but appropriately located, using AutoCAD Xref technology.
Each discipline shall also be separated into different drawing files (.dwg)

2.1.13. Provide the prior to final specifications in an MSWord compatible format for use by the
Travis County for review and suggested changes. This may be modified by multiple Travis
County departments using the MSWord document change tracking tool.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



2.1.14. Provide the prior to final drawings in a .dwg format for the TCSOE’s review and Adobe
Acrobat format for the TCSO PM’s review.

2.1.15. Provide sealed D&Ss in an Adobe Acrobat format, or other format approved in writing by
the Travis County Purchasing Office, for posting on the bidding site.

2.2. CONSULTANT will perform Basic Services in accordance with all governing codes and
regulations, using the standard of care and skill ordinarily used by members of the design
profession on projects of similar size, nature and complexity, practicing under similar conditions at
the same time and locality as the Project.

3. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

3.1. The CONSULTANT will be responsible for Construction Contract Administration to the extent the
CONSULTANT determines is necessary to verify that the Work is being constructed according to
the intent of the construction documents. The CONSULTANT will make periodic observations of
the Work, as part of Basic Services. A final punch list will be required and one (1) follow-up
inspection to review completion of the punch list items by the Contractor.

3.2. The CONSULTANT will render interpretations necessary for the proper execution of the work
with reasonable promptness upon notification by the COUNTY. Render decisions, in writing,
within a time no greater than five (5) calendar days for clarifications, interpretations, submittals,
claims, disputes, and other matters in question between the County and the Contractor relating to
the execution or progress of the Work or the interpretation of the Construction Contract
Documents. The CONSULTANT will notify the County immediately, within 24 hours of receipt of
the above items, if more time is required for reasonable cause.

3.3. The CONSULTANT will not have control or charge of, and will not be responsible for
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures nor safety precautions and
programs in connection with the Construction Work nor acts or omissions of the Contractor or
Subcontractors of any tier; or any other persons performing any of the Construction Work, nor
failure of any of the aforementioned to carry out the Construction Work in accordance with the
Construction Contract Documents.

3.4. The CONSULTANT will at all times have access to the Work.

3.5. Interpretations and decisions of the CONSULTANT will be consistent with the intent of, and
reasonably inferable, from the Construction Documents and will be in written and/or graphic form.

4. MEETINGS

4.1. The CONSULTANT will attend meetings with the COUNTY only as required for development of
the design and construction documents and as necessary during the Construction Contract
Administration Phase.

4.2. Attendance and participation at such meetings will be part of the Basic Services. Any meetings not
required by this agreement will be compensated at the hourly rate for the appropriate
CONSULTANT staff indicated in the Professional Services Agreement. If required, the TCSO
Maintenance Engineer will authorize these meetings by advance written notice.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



EXHIBIT 3
PROJECT SCHEDULE

SCHEDULE MILESTONES

The CONSULTANT’S delivery of the Work Product will conform to the following durations which
will commence upon receipt of a written Notice-to-Proceed from the COUNTY. Durations are in
calendar days.

Phase Precedent Duration
50% Design Documents Notice to Proceed 30 days
100% Design Documents 50% Design Documents TCSO Comments 60 days

Lccnstruction Administration 100% Design Documents N/A

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



EXHIBIT 8

Travis County Sheriffs Office Engineer Drawing Requirements

The drawing requirements of the Travis County Sheriffs Office Engineer (TCSOE) shall be incorporated into the
CONSULTANT’S Work Product. These include, without limitation, the following:

1.1 All construction document drawings shall be set up in an 1 lxi 7 layout fonnat.
1.2 Text shall generally be a minimum of 1/8” or larger on an 1 lxi 7 printout, with 3/32” being the minimum

allowed except for border and title text containing non-project specific information.
1.3 Externally referenced drawing data in model space, e.g. as built, TCSO masters, and CONSULTANT’ S design

data shall be used for all information that is not Consultant specific information or layout data, such as contained
in borders and title information on drawing layout space.

1.4 Drawing and Layout Naming for work performed by the CONSULTANT shall have file names using the formats
below:
1.4.1 External Referenced Drawing Naming X-xxxx-###-######, where-

1.4.1.1 The first X, A-FPO3- 140-238693, is the AlA discipline code, such as A for Architecture;
1.4.1.2 The next two characters, A-03-140-238693 indicate the AlA general type of drawing, such as FP

for floor plan, SP for site plane, etc.;
1.4.1.3 The next two characters, A-FP-140-238693 indicate the floor with the basement of a building

being 0, and A-FPO3- 140-238693 indicating the data for the roof as it is the 3rd level for the building
in this Project;

1.4.1.4 The next three digits, A-FP03-j.4-238693, indicate the TCSO three digit building number; and
1.4.1.5 The fmal six digits indicate the TCSO CONSTRUCTION Project numbers A-FPO3-140-238693 (the

first listed may be used for common data).
1.4.2 Layout Space and Drawing Naming X-###-238693, where -

1.4.2.1 The X character is the AlA discipline code, such as A for Architecture, A-i30-23 8693;
1.4.2.2 The first digit, A-!30-23 8693, is the AlA layout designator code number, such as 0-general, i-plan

views, 2-elevations, 3-sections, 4-large scale, 5-details, 6-schedules, and 9-photos;
1.4.2.3 The second digit, A-130-23 8693 is to reflect the floor with the basement of a building being 0, and 3

indicating the architectural layout for the roof as it is the 3rd level for this project.
1.4.2.4 The third digit, A-13-238693 is a sequence drawing number;
1.4.2.5 The next six digits, A-i30-238693, indicate the TCSO CONSTRUCTION Project number;
1.4.2.6 Layout names inside a layout drawing file would be A-130, A-131, A-530, leaving off the project

number; and
1.4.2.7 A multi discipline drawing containing many layouts referring to a single project may be combined

into one drawing named G-000-23 8693;
1.5 Layer Naming for work performed by the CONSULTANT shall have layer names using the format, X-xxx-xxx,

where:
1.5.1 All layer names in the new work data drawings shall exactly match the layer name in the drawings that

depict current conditions, which may not look like the format X-xxx-xxx;
1.5.2 New layers shall generally follow the AlA requirements, except when complying with the paragraph

above, starting with the first character indicating the discipline code, “-wall-int” for architectural walls
interior, etc.;

1.5.3 The modifiers A--may be longer than three as in the paragraph above;
1.6 Demolition work data shall be indicated on a specific layer and only be done in the drawings that depict current

conditions by moving demo entities to a new layer that follows this naming format, D-i201 17LP, where:
1.6.1 D indicates demo, D-l2xxxxxx-xxx;
1.6.2 The characters, D-PSxxxxxx, indicate the Travis County Professional Service Agreement’s Purchasing

contract number, “PSl2xxxxxx” under which the data is proposed to be deleted;
1.6.3 The modifiers, D- l2xxxxxx-, may be specifically requested by the TCSOE after design begins or

utilized as desired by the CONSULTANT similar to the modifiers in paragraphs 1.5.2 and 1.5.3 above.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

TRAVIS COUNTY

AND

HALFF ASSOCIATES, INC.

FOR

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES :
IN SUPPORT OF THE TCJ EXTENDED LIFE PROJECTS-PHASE ha

(TCJ EXHAUST SYSTEM-GENERAL BUILDING RENEWAL
AND TCJ EXHAUST SYSTEM KITCHEN/COMMERCIAL RENEWAL)

CONTRACT NO.: 4400000992

(TCSO PROJECT NO.: 238693 and 244270)

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AQREEMENT (PSA)

TABLE OF CONTENTS
SECTION:

1 EMPLOYMENT OF THE CONSULTANT
2 BASIC SERVICES OF THE CONSULTANT
3 CONSTRUCTION COST
4 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE
5 PERIOD OF SERVICE
6 COORDINATION WITH COUNTY
7 WORK PRODUCT
8 REVISION TO WORK PRODUCT
9 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
10 SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT
11 CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY
12 OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS
13 MAINTENANCE OF AND RIGHT OF ACCESS TO RECORDS
14 MISCELLANEOUS:

14.1 VENUE
14.2 SEVERABILITY
14.3 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT
14.4 CERTIFICATE OF CONSULTANT
14.5 BIDDING EXEMPTION
14.6 NOTICE
14.7 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
14.8 FORFEITURE OF CONTRACT
14.9 PURCHASE ORDER
14.10 PAYMENTS
14.11 INTEREST ON OVERDUE PAYMENTS
14.12 PROPERTY TAXES
14.13 TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION
14.14 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
14.15 HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS (HUB) PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS
14.16 FUNDING OUT
14.17 FUNDING
14.18 NON-WAIVER OF DEFAULT
14.19 MEDIATION
14.20 OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT
14.21 CONSULTANT CERTIFICATIONS
14.22 CIVIL RIGHTS/ADA COMPLIANCE
14.23 GRATUITIES
14.24 MONITORING
14.25 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS AND ATTACHMENTS
14.26 ENTIRE AGREEMENT
14.27 TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT
14.28 ENTITY STATUS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND SIGNATURE PAGE

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

EXHIBIT 1 COMPENSATION FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS
EXHIBIT 2 HOURLY RATES
EXHIBIT 3 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT
EXHIBIT 4 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
EXHIBIT 5 ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

ATTACHMENT 1 KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS LIST
ATTACHMENT 2 DISCLOSURE

EXHIBIT 6 HUB DECLARATION AND LIST OF CERTIFIED HUB SUBCONTRACTORS
EXHIBIT 7 NOTICE OF INTENT TO SUBCONTRACT WITH HUB
EXHIBIT 8 HUB SUBCONSULTANT PAYMENT REPORT
EXHIBIT 9 HUB SUBCONSULTANT CHANGE FORM
EXHIBIT 10 SCOPE OF SERVICES
EXHIBIT 11 PROJECT SCHEDULE

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (PSA)

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between Travis County, Texas, a political subdivision of
the State of Texas (the “COUNTY”) and HALFF ASSOCIATES INC. (the “CONSULTANT”) (this
“Agreement”).

WHEREAS, the COUNTY desires to obtain professional engineering services in support of the TCJ
Extended Life Projects titled TCJ Exhaust System-General Building Renewal 238693, and TCJ Exhaust System
— Kitchen-Commercial Renewal 244270, for the Travis County Jail located at 500 W. 10th Street, Austin, Texas
78701 (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT has the professional ability and expertise to fulfill the requirements of the
Project, and;

WHEREAS, this Agreement is exempted from the bidding requirements of the County Purchasing Act
pursuant to Section 262.024(a)(4) of the Local Government Code as this is a contract for professional services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein, the amount and
sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the COUNTY and the CONSULTANT agree as follows:

SECTION 1
EMPLOYMENT OF THE CONSULTANT

1.1 The COUNTY agrees to contract with the CONSULTANT as an independent contractor and the
CONSULTANT agrees to perform professional engineering design services as described herein. As a
condition to this contractual obligation, it is specifically agreed that any disputes arising hereunder shall
be submitted to the Travis County Sheriff’s Office Facilities Maintenance Engineer (the “PROJECT
MANAGER”). Disputes pertaining to non-technical matters shall be handled in accordance with
Paragraph 11.9 of this Agreement. The PROJECT MANAGER shall have complete authority for the
purpose of resolving technical matters. In all other cases, the decision of the Travis County
Commissioners Court (the “Commissioners Court”) shall be fmal and binding.

1.2 The COUNTY shall provide the CONSULTANT convenient access to all existing plans, maps, studies,
reports, field notes, statistics, computations, and other data in its possession relative to existing facilities
and to the Project. The CONSULTANT shall make copies of needed information and promptly return
all originals. Cost of such copies will be a reimbursable expense. The CONSULTANT’s copies of the
foregoing material shall be returned to the COUNTY upon completion of the Project, if the PROJECT
MANAGER so instructs the CONSULTANT.

1.3 The COUNTY cannot guarantee the accuracy of all information which it provides to the
CONSULTANT. The CONSULTANT may rely on professional sealed documents to the extent that the
original professional would have been held liable for the information contained therein, in accordance
with industry standard practice. Information provided in record or as-built documents that are critical to
the cuent design work should be field verified by the CONSULTANT in accordance with his
professional judgment. The CONSULTANT may rely on other project information provided by the
COUNTY, such as program data or design criteria, in accordance with industry standards, except as
otherwise modified herein.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

1.4 If the PROJECT MANAGER observes or otherwise becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Work
Product, as defined herein, the PROJECT MANAGER shall give prompt written notice thereof to the
CONSULTANT. The CONSULTANT shall correct any such fault or defect at no cost to the COUNTY.

SECTION 2
BASIC SERVICES OF THE CONSULTANT

2.1 The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for the complete design and documentation of the work
described herein, and shall prepare the Work Product, as defmed herein, which shall be acceptable to the
PROJECT MANAGER. The CONSULTANT shall also serve as the COUNTY’S professional
consultant in those phases of the Project to which this Agreement applies and shall consult with and give
advice to the COUNTY during the performance of the Project.

2.2 The CONSULTANT shall perform the “Basic Services,” which shall mean:

2.2.1 all elements of labor, materials and equipment required for the Project, which shall be rendered
to the satisfaction of the PROJECT MANAGER and the Commissioners Court and in
accordance with the requirements, policies, and standard practices of Travis County;

2.2.2 the detailed Scope of Services for the Project, set forth in Exhibit 10, attached hereto and made a
part hereof (the “Scope of Services”);

2.2.3 the Work Product, as defined herein, which the CONSULTANT shall submit to the COUNTY
for review and acceptance.

2.2.4 the Work Product, as defined herein, which the CONSULTANT shall submit to the COUNTY
for review at regular intervals, as specified in the Project Schedule to be provided by the
CONSULTANT, attached hereto as Exhibit 12 and made a part hereof.

2.3 The CONSULTANT shall use all applicable codes as adopted by authority having jurisdiction in
performing the Basic Services for the Project.

SECTION 3
CONSTRUCTION COST

3.1 The construction cost is the total cost to the COUNTY of all elements of the Project designed or
specified by the CONSULTANT (the “Construction Cost”).

3.2 The Construction Cost includes the cost at current market rates, including a reasonable allowance for
overhead and profit, (i) of labor and materials and any equipment which has been designed, specified,
selected, or specially provided for by the CONSULTANT and (ii) of permitting fees and other fees and
charges required by the City of Austin or other governmental authorities. The Construction Cost does
not include the compensation of the CONSULTANT and other consultants.

3.3 Detailed estimates of the Construction Cost prepared by the CONSULTANT represent the
CONSULTANT’S best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. The
CONSULTANT MAY RELY ON RS MEANS CURRENT EDITION FOR UNIT PRICES. It is
recognized, however, that neither the CONSULTANT nor the COUNTY has control over the cost of
labor, materials, or equipment, over contractor’s methods of determining bid prices, or over competitive
bidding, market, or negotiating conditions.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

3.4 The CONSULTANT may include contingencies for design, bidding, and price escalation to determine
what materials, equipment, component systems, and types of construction are to be included in the Work
Product (as defmed in Section VII), and may include in the Work Product alternate bids to adjust the
Construction Cost to the fixed limit.

3.5 If the Project budget or fixed limit of Construction Cost is exceeded by the lowest responsible bid, the
COUNTY may:

(1) give written approval of an increase in the Project budget or fixed limit,
(2) authorize rebidding of the Project within a reasonable time,
(3) if the Project is abandoned, terminate this Agreement, or
(4) revise the scope of the Project to reduce the Construction Cost.

3.6 If the COUNTY chooses to proceed under clause 3.5 (4) above, the CONSULTANT, without additional
compensation, shall modify the documents that the CONSULTANT is responsible for preparing under
the Basic Services portion of this Professional Services Agreement, as necessary to comply with the
fixed limit.

3.7 The CONSULTANT shall estimate the portion of the project budget for the portions of the construction
designed or specified by the CONSULTANT, including reimbursables, contingency, permit fees and
agency fees. The budget shall not include (1) hazardous material testing and removal if any is required
or (ii) any costs for furniture, fixtures and equipment. As part of the services, the CONSULTANT shall
report any suspected occurrence of hazardous materials in the areas of proposed remodeling to the
County. Hazardous materials abatement work will be provided by the County under separate contract.

SECTION 4
COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE

4.1 In consideration of the CONSULTANT’s performance of the Basic Services, the CONSULTANT shall
receive the Basic Services compensation described in Exhibit 1, attached hereto and made a part hereof.
The Basic Services compensation shall be paid in accordance with the payment schedule set forth in
Exhibit 1.

4.2 For the performance of services not specifically described in the Basic Services (the “Additional
Services”), the CONSULTANT shall receive the Additional Services compensation described in Exhibit
1.

4.3 In the event of any dispute over the classification of the CONSULTANT’s services as “Basic” or
“Additional” services under this Agreement, the decision of the PROJECT MANAGER shall be fmal
and binding on the CONSULTANT.

SECTION 5
PERIOD OF SERVICE

5.1 The CONSULTANT shall perform the professional services described herein, whether “Basic” or
“Additional” services, in accordance with the Project Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 12 and made
a part hereof.

5.2 This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date, as defined herein, and shall remain in full
force and effect for the period required for the complete design of, construction contract award for, and

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

construction of the Project, including warranty periods and any extensions of time as provided herein
(the “Project Completion Date”), unless sooner terminated as provided for herein.

5.3 If the performance by CONSULTANT or the COUNTY of either party’s obligations hereunder is
interrupted or delayed by any occurrence not occasioned by its own conduct, whether such occurrence
be an act of God or the result of war, riot, fire, civil commotion, sovereign conduct, or the act or conduct
of any person or persons not a party hereto, then it shall be excused from such performance for such
period of time as is reasonably necessary after such occurrence to remedy the effects thereof. Upon the
discovery of such an event, the party whose performance is affected under this section shall notify the
other party, and a special meeting shall be called by the PROJECT MANAGER to propose a program
for a solution to the problem, and if necessary, to establish an estimated period of time of suspension or
extension of the Project Completion Date. A written request for an extension of time, when properly
documented and justified by the circumstances, may be granted by the PROJECT MANAGER.

SECTION 6
COORDINATION WITH COUNTY

6.1 The PROJECT MANAGER shall act on behalf of the COUNTY with respect to any and all services to
be performed under this Agreement. The PROJECT MANAGER shall have complete authority to
interpret and define the COUNTY’s policies and decisions with respect to the CONSULTANT’s
services. The PROJECT MANAGER may designate representatives to transmit instructions and receive
information.

6.2 The CONSULTANT shall not commence work until the CONSULTANT has been thoroughly briefed
on the scope of the Project by the PROJECT MANAGER. The CONSULTANT shall not commence
work on the Project until receipt of a written notice to proceed issued by the Travis County Purchasing
Agent upon the recommendation of the PROJECT MANAGER (the “Notice to Proceed”). The
CONSULTANT shall not commence work on any phase of the Project, as such phases are described in
the Scope of Services, until receipt of written authorization to proceed, which shall be issued by the
PROJECT MANAGER.

6.3 The CONSULTANT shall furnish all available data and reasonable assistance necessary to comply with
established application, review, and approval processes for any permits, grants, or planning advances
required for the Project. The CONSULTANT shall familiarize himself with and comply with
established application, review, and approval processes as necessary to assure that reasonable
compliance will cause no delay to the Project Schedule.

6.4 The CONSULTANT shall have the responsibility at all times under the terms of this Agreement for
advising the COUNTY whether in the CONSULTANT’s judgment it is feasible to proceed with the
Project given any constraints affecting the Project.

6.5 The CONSULTANT shall cooperate and coordinate with the COUNTY’s staff and other consultants and
contractors as reasonable and necessary in performance of this Agreement and as required by the
PROJECT MANAGER.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

SECTION 7
WORK PRODUCT

7.1 The term “Work Product” shall mean any reports, plans, specifications and other documents created,
obtained or assembled in connection with performance of this Agreement and with the services rendered
in connection with the Project, including but not limited to any and all deliverables for each phase of the
Project as described in the Scope of Services.

7.2 The Work Product shall be submitted by the CONSULTANT for each phase of the Project on or before
the dates specified in the Project Schedule provided by the CONSULTANT. Upon receipt of the Work
Product, the submission shall be checked for completion. A “Complete” submission shall mean that all
items listed, referenced and otherwise described in this Agreement relating to that phase of the Project
have been included.

7.3 If the submission is Complete, the COUNTY shall notify the CONSULTANT and the COUNTY’s
Technical Review Process, as defined herein, will begin. If the submission is incomplete, the COUNTY
shall notify the CONSULTANT, who shall perform such professional services as are required to
complete the Work Product for that phase and shall resubmit it to the COUNTY.

7.4 COUNTY’s “Technical Review Process” shall mean County’s review of the Complete Work Product
for substantial compliance with the technical specifications and requirements included in the Basic
Services. If necessaty, the Complete Work Product shall be returned to the CONSULTANT, who shall
perform any professional services required for such compliance and resubmit the Complete Work
Product to the COUNTY.

7.5 The process described in paragraph 7.3 shall be repeated until County accepts the Work Product.
“Acceptance” shall mean that in the PROJECT MANAGER’s opinion substantial compliance with the
technical specifications and requirements has been achieved.

7.6 After Acceptance, the CONSULTANT shall perform any required modifications, corrections, redesigns,
and additional work as requested by the COUNTY and any other governmental entities having
jurisdiction over the Project and as necessary to receive final approval by the PROJECT MANAGER.
“Approval” shall mean formal written recognition that the Work Product for that phase is Complete and
that compliance with the technical specifications and requirements has been fully achieved.

7.7 In the event of any dispute over the classification of the CONSULTANT’s Work Product as “Complete”,
“Accepted”, or “Approved” under this Agreement, the decision of the PROJECT MANAGER shall be
final and binding on the CONSULTANT.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

SECTION 8
REVISION TO WORK PRODUCT

8.1 After Approval by County of the Work Product for each Project phase, the CONSULTANT shall,
without additional compensation, perform any professional services required as a result of the
CONSULTANT’s development of the Work Product which are found to be in error or omission. In
addition, if it is necessary to revise the Work Product in order to make the Project constructable, the
CONSULTANT shall do so without additional compensation. However, after Approval by County, any
revisions, additions, or other modifications made at the COUNTY’s request for the convenience of
County, which involve extra services and expenses to the CONSULTANT, shall entitle the
CONSULTANT to additional compensation for such extra services and expenses and shall be paid as
Additional Services in accordance with Exhibits 1 and 2. Written authorization for Additional Services
must be obtained in advance in accordance with Exhibit 1.

SECTION 9
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

9.1 “Reimbursable Expenses” shall mean expenses in addition to the compensation for Basic Services or
Additional Services set forth in Exhibits 1 and 2, and shall include actual expenditures made by the
CONSULTANT in the interest of the Project for the items listed below:

9.1.1 Expense of reproductions, renderings and plotting of drawings, specifications and other
documents for other than the in-house use of the CONSULTANT or his subconsultants, as well
as postage and delivery expenses for the Work Product; and

9.1.2 Expense of review and permitting fees as required by governmental authorities having
jurisdiction over the Project.

9.2 Unless this Agreement has been amended or modified as provided herein, at no time shall the payments
made for each of the above-listed categories of Reimbursable Expenses exceed the amount shown in
Exhibit 1.

9.3 Payment of Reimbursable Expenses shall be made monthly upon presentation of the CONSULTANT’s
statement of expenses incurred. Receipts for all reimbursable expenses shall be submitted with each
invoice. The COUNTY does not reimburse for sales taxes paid by the CONSULTANT. The
CONSULTANT may obtain a Tax Exempt Certificate from the Travis County Purchasing Office.

SECTION 10
SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

10.1 SUSPENSION. The COUNTY may suspend performance of this Agreement at any time for any reason
without terminating this Agreement by giving CONSULTANT written Notice of Suspension (a “Notice
of Suspension”). The “Effective Date of Suspension” shall be the date on which CONSULTANT
receives the Notice of Suspension, and this date shall begin the Suspension Period. Performance may be
reinstated and this Agreement resumed in full force and effect within sixty (60) days of receipt by the
CONSULTANT of written notice of reinstatement from the COUNTY. Upon the Effective Date of
Suspension, the CONSULTANT shall follow the procedures described below:

10.1.1 Upon receipt of a Notice of Suspension, the CONSULTANT shall, unless the Notice otherwise
directs, immediately begin to phase out and discontinue all services in connection with the
performance of this Agreement and shall prepare a statement detailing the services performed

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

under this Agreement prior to the Effective Date of Suspension. Copies of all completed or
partially completed designs, plans, and specifications prepared under this Agreement prior to the
Effective Date of Suspension, including but not limited to the Work Product, shall be prepared
for possible delivery to the COUNTY upon COUNTY’s request.

10.1.2 During the Suspension Period, the CONSULTANT may submit the above-referenced statement
to the COUNTY for payment of the approved services actually performed under this Agreement,
less previous payments.

10.2 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE. The COUNTY reserves the right to terminate this Agreement
for reasons other than default by the CONSULTANT, including for any reason deemed by
Commissioners Court to serve the public interest, or resulting from any governmental law, ordinance,
regulation, or court order, by delivering to the CONSULTANT a written notice (a “Notice of
Termination”), which shall take effect on the tenth day following receipt by the CONSULTANT
(“Termination for Convenience”). Termination for Convenience shall not be made when termination is
authorized under any other provisions of this Agreement and Termination for Convenience shall not be
taken with the intention of awarding the same or similar contract requirements to another source.

10.2.1 Upon receipt of a Notice of Termination and prior to the effective date of termination, the
CONSULTANT shall, unless the Notice of Termination otherwise directs, immediately begin to
phase out and discontinue all services in connection with the performance of this Agreement and
shall proceed to promptly cancel all existing orders and contracts insofar as such orders and
contracts are chargeable to this Agreement. Within thirty (30) days after receipt of a Notice of
Termination, the CONSULTANT shall submit a statement showing in detail the services
performed under this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination.

10.2.2 Copies of all completed or partially completed designs, plans, specifications and other work
product prepared under this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination shall be
delivered to the COUNTY as a precondition to any fmal payment due under this Agreement.

10.2.3 Upon the above conditions being met, the COUNTY shall pay the CONSULTANT for approved
services actually performed under this Agreement prior to termination, less previous payments.

10.2.4 Failure by the CONSULTANT to submit the required statement described in paragraph 10.2.1
and to comply with the above stated conditions shall constitute a waiver by the CONSULTANT
of any and all rights or claims to collect the fee that CONSULTANT may rightfully be entitled to
for services performed under this Agreement.

10.3 TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT. Either party may terminate this Agreement for the failure of the
other party to perform any provisions of this Agreement, through no fault of the terminating party
(“Termination for Default”) by delivering written notice of termination (a “Notice of Termination for
Default”) to the defaulting party.

The Notice of Termination for Default shall take effect on the tenth day following receipt by the
defaulting party. In the event of Termination for Default, the COUNTY and its officials, agents and
representatives shall not be liable for loss of any profits.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

10.4 Termination by CONSULTANT:

10.4.1 In the event the CONSULTANT exercises its right to terminate for default by the COUNTY,
within thirty (30) days after receipt by the COUNTY of the CONSULTANT’s Notice of
Termination for Default, the CONSULTANT shall submit a statement detailing the services
performed under this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination.

10.4.2 Copies of all completed or partially completed designs, plans, specifications and other work
product prepared under this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination shall be
delivered to the COUNTY as a precondition to any fmal payment due under this Agreement.

10.4.3 Upon the above conditions being met, the COUNTY shall pay the CONSULTANT for approved
services actually performed under this Agreement prior to termination, less previous payments.

10.4.4 Failure by the CONSULTANT to submit the required statement described in paragraph 10.4.1
and to comply with the above stated conditions shall constitute a waiver by the CONSULTANT
of any and all rights or claims to collect the fee that CONSULTANT may rightfully be entitled to
for services performed under this Agreement.

10.5 Termination by COUNTY:

10.5.1 Upon receipt by the CONSULTANT of a Notice of Termination for Default and prior to the
effective date of termination, the CONSULTANT shall, unless the Notice of Termination
otherwise directs, immediately begin to phase out and discontinue all services in connection with
the performance of this Agreement and shall proceed to promptly cancel all existing orders and
contracts insofar as such orders and contracts are chargeable to this Agreement. Within thirty
(30) days after receipt of a Notice of Termination for Default, the CONSULTANT shall submit a
statement showing in detail the services performed under this Agreement prior to the effective
date of termination.

10.5.2 Copies of all completed or partially completed designs, plans, specifications and other work
product prepared under this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination shall be
delivered to the COUNTY as a precondition to any final payment due under this Agreement.

10.5.3 Upon the above conditions being met, the COUNTY shall pay the CONSULTANT for approved
services actually performed under this Agreement prior to termination, less previous payments.

10.5.4 Failure by the CONSULTANT to submit the required statement described in paragraph 10.5.1
and to comply with the above stated conditions shall constitute a waiver by the CONSULTANT
of any and all rights or claims to collect the fee that CONSULTANT may rightfully be entitled to
for services performed under this Agreement.

10.6 All references to time in this Agreement shall be measured in calendar days unless otherwise specified.

SECTION 11
CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY

11.1 The CONSULTANT covenants to undertake no task in which a professional license or certificate is
required unless CONSULTANT or someone under CONSULTANT’s direction is appropriately
licensed. In the event such licensed individual’s license expires, is revoked, or is canceled, the
CONSULTANT shall inform the COUNTY of such event within five (5) working days.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

11.2 The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for conformance with applicable federal and state laws,
COUNTY permitting requirements, and city ordinances currently in effect.

11.3 Acceptance and Approval of the Work Product by the COUNTY shall not release the CONSULTANT
of any responsibility or liability for the accuracy and competency of CONSULTANT’s designs, working
drawings, specifications, or other documents or work performed under this Agreement. Neither
Acceptance nor Approval by the COUNTY shall be an assumption of responsibility or liability by the
COUNTY for any defect, error, or omission in the designs, working drawings, specifications, or other
documents prepared by the CONSULTANT.

11.4 Notwithstanding anything in this AGREEMENT to the contrary, the CONSULTANT shall perform all
services and responsibilities required of the CONSULTANT under this Agreement using at least that
standard of care which a reasonably prudent CONSULTANT in Travis County, Texas, would use in
similar circumstances. The CONSULTANT shall perform the duties set forth in this Agreement in a
good and workmanlike manner and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to relieve the
CONSULTANT of this duty.

11.5 Any employee of the CONSULTANT, who in the opinion of the COUNTY is incompetent or whose
conduct becomes detrimental to the work or coordination with the COUNTY, shall upon the
COUNTY’s request be immediately removed from association with the Project.

11.6 The CONSULTANT shall place his Texas Professional CONSULTANT’s seal of endorsement on all
documents and Engineering data furnished to the COUNTY, as required by law.

11.7 CONSULTANT is an independent contractor under this Agreement. Neither CONSULTANT nor any
officer, agent, servant or employee of CONSULTANT shall be classified as an employee or servant of
COUNTY.

11.8 INDEMNIFICATION. THE CONSULTANT AGREES TO AND SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD
HARMLESS COUNTY AND ITS OFFICIALS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND
AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, ACTIONS, SUITS, AND LIABILITY
OF ANY KIND WHETHER MERITORIOUS OR NOT, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ALL
EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY’S FEES, FOR INJURY TO OR
DEATH OF ANY PERSON, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, ARISING IN WHOLE OR
IN PART FROM ANY NEGLIGENT ACT, NEGLIGENT ERROR OR NEGLIGENT OMISSION OF
THE CONSULTANT OR ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES OR
SUBCONTRACTORS ON ACCOUNT OF, ARISING OR RESULTING FROM , DIRECTLY OR
INDIRECTLY, THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT.

11.8.1 If any claim, or other action, that relates to the CONSULTANT’s performance under this
Agreement, including proceedings before an administrative agency, is made or brought by any
person, firm, corporation, or other entity against the CONSULTANT, the CONSULTANT shall
give written notice to County of the following information:

(i) the existence of the claim, or other action, within ten (10) working days after
being notified of it;

(ii) the name and address of the person, firm, corporation, or other entity that made a
claim, or that instituted any type of action or proceeding;

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

(iii) the alleged basis of the claim, action or proceeding;

(iv) the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the claim, action or proceeding
was instituted; and

(v) the name or names of any person against whom this claim is being made.

11.8.2 Except as otherwise directed, the CONSULTANT shall furnish to County copies of all pertinent
papers received by the CONSULTANT with respect to making these claims or actions and all
court pleadings related to the defense of these claims or actions.

11.9 DISPUTES AND APPEALS (OCT ‘03): The Purchasing Agent acts as the County representative in
the issuance and administration of this contract in relation to disputes. Any document, notice, or
correspondence not issued by or to the Purchasing Agent in relation to disputes is void unless otherwise
stated in this contract. If the Consultant does not agree with any document, notice, or correspondence
issued by the Purchasing Agent, or other authorized County person, the Consultant must submit a
written notice to the Purchasing Agent within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document,
notice, or correspondence, outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail. If the matter is not
resolved to the Consultant’s satisfaction, Consultant may submit a written Notice of Appeal to the
Commissioners Court, through the Purchasing Agent, if the Notice is submitted within ten (10) calendar
days after receipt of the unsatisfactory reply. Consultant then has the right to be heard by
Commissioners Court.

11.10 CONFLICT OF INTEREST OUESTIONNAIRE

If required by Chapter 176, Texas Local Government Code, the Consultant shall complete and file a
Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk, Elections Division, 5501 Airport Blvd.,
Austin, Texas 78751. The Consultant shall update this Questionnaire by September 1 of each year for
the duration of this Contract, as required by Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code. In addition, if
any statement on a submitted Questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate, the Consultant shall
submit an updated Questionnaire. The Consultant should note that the law requires the County to
provide access to a filed Questionnaire on the official Travis County Internet website.

SECTION 12
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

12.1 The Consultant shall furnish the County with Work Product as requested, whether or not they are complete
at the end of the Project, or upon suspension or termination of this Agreement, as provided herein. The
Consultant shall have the right to retain copies of the Work Product for its records.

12.2 The Work Product, and any other documents, including estimates, computer tapes, graphic files,
tracings, calculations, analyses, reports, specifications, field notes, and data prepared by the
CONSULTANT in performance of this Agreement, together with all intellectual property and
proprietary rights in and to all such documents, shall upon creation become the sole and exclusive
property of the COUNTY and upon completion of the Project shall be delivered to the COUNTY in an
organized fashion with the CONSULTANT retaining a copy.

12.3 Any reuse by the CONSULTANT of any such documents described in paragraphs 12.1 and 12.2 without
the specific and prior written consent of the COUNTY shall be at the CONSULTANVs sole risk and
without liability or legal exposure to the COUNTY. Should this Agreement be terminated prior to

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

completion of the Project, the CONSULTANT shall not be liable for the COUNTY’s use of partially
completed designs, plans, or specifications on this Project or any other Project.

12.4 The CONSULTANT shall not be responsible for any use or any modifications to the documents
described in paragraphs 12.1 and 12.2 performed by any other entity without the specific written consent
of the CONSULTANT.

SECTION 13
MAINTENANCE OF AND RIGHT OF ACCESS TO RECORDS

13.1 The CONSULTANT agrees to maintain appropriate accounting records of costs, expenses, and payrolls
of employees working on the Project, together with documentation of evaluations and study results for a
period of five years after final payment for completed services and all other pending matters concerning
this Agreement have been closed.

13.2 The CONSULTANT further agrees that the COUNTY or its duly authorized representatives shall have
access to any and all books, documents, papers and records of the CONSULTANT, which are directly
pertinent to the services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits,
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.

SECTION 14
MISCELLANEOUS

14.1 VENUE. This Agreement is governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the
United States of America and the State of Texas, and all obligations under this Agreement are
performable in Travis County, Texas. Venue for any dispute arising out of this Agreement will lie in the
appropriate court of Travis County, Texas.

14.2 SEVERABILITY. If any portion or portions of this Agreement are ruled invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable in any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of it shall remain valid
and binding.

14.3 EOUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT. The CONSULTANT agrees, during the performance of
the services under this Agreement, to comply with the equal opportunity in employment provisions cited
in Exhibit 3, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

14.4 CERTIFICATE OF CONSULTANT. The CONSULTANT certifies that neither the CONSULTANT nor
any members of the CONSULTANT’s firm has:

14.4.1 Employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingency fee, or other
consideration, any firm or person (other than a bonafide employee working solely for the
CONSULTANT) to solicit or secure the services provided by this Agreement.

14.4.2 Agreed, as an expressed or implied condition for obtaining this Agreement, to employ or retain
the services of any firm or person other than in connection with carrying out the services to be
performed under this Agreement.

14.4.3 Paid or agreed to pay to any firm, organization, or person (other than bonafide employees
working solely for the CONSULTANT) any fee, contribution, donation, or consideration of any
kind for, or in connection with, procuring or carrying out the services provided under this
Agreement.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

14.4.4 The CONSULTANT further agrees that this certification may be furnished to any local, state or
federal governmental agencies in connection with this Agreement and for those portions of the
Project involving participation of agency grant funds and is subject to all applicable state and
federal, criminal and civil laws.

14.5 BIDDiNG EXEMPTION. This Agreement is exempted from the bidding requirements of the COUNTY
Purchasing Act pursuant to Section 262.024(a)(4) of the Local Government Code as this is a contract for
professional services.

14.6 NOTICE. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by one party to the other
shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been given immediately if delivered in person
to the address set forth in this section for the party to whom the notice is given, or on the third day
following mailing if placed in the United States mail, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail
with return receipt requested, addressed to the party at the address set forth in this section.

The address of the COUNTY for all purposes under this Agreement, unless such notice is specifically
directed otherwise, shall be:

COUNTY: Cyd V. Grimes (or successor)
Travis County Purchasing Agent
P.O. Box 1748
Austin. Texas. 78767

with copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required):

Mark Stefanov, P.E. (or successor)
Travis County Sheriff’s Office Maintenance Engineer
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

The address of the CONSULTANT for all purposes under this Agreement, unless such notice is
specifically directed otherwise, shall be:

Halff Associates, Inc.
1201 North Bowser Road
Richardson, Texas 75081

14.7 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. The CONSULTANT agrees during the performance of the services
under this Agreement to comply with the insurance requirements set forth in Exhibit 4, attached hereto
and made a part hereof.

14.8 FORFEITURE OF AGREEMENT. The CONSULTANT shall forfeit all benefits of this Agreement and
the COUNTY shall retain all performance by the CONSULTANT and recover all consideration or the
value of all consideration, paid to the CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement if:

(i) The CONSULTANT was doing business at the time of execution of this Agreement or
had done business during the 365-day period immediately prior to the date of execution
of this Agreement with one or more Key Contracting Persons; or

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

(ii) The CONSULTANT does business with a Key Contracting Person after the date of
execution of this Agreement and prior to full performance of this Agreement.

“Is doing business” and “has done business” mean:

paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth more than $250 in
the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for the purchase of any property or property interest,
either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or,

loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or having in existence any legal
obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a calendar year;

but does not include

any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a posted, published, or
marked price available to the public,

any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal, family or household
purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to similarly situated individuals with similar
risks as determined by Contractor in the ordinary course of its business; and

a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of Contractor if Contractor is
a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee or other representative of Contractor who
does not know and is not in a position that he or she should have known about the Contract.

“Key Contracting Person” shall mean any person or business listed in Attachment 1 to Exhibit 5,
attached hereto and made a part hereof.

14.9 PURCHASE ORDER. The CONSULTANT and its contractors, subcontractors and vendors shall
provide goods and services using the purchase order method. A purchase order number will be assigned
by the designated representative of the Travis County Purchasing Office. The CONSULTANT and its
contractors, subcontractors and vendors shall reference the Agreement number and the purchase order
number on all invoices to the Travis County Sheriffs Office Department.

The terms and conditions contained elsewhere in this Agreement shall prevail over different or contrary
terms in any purchase order. All invoices submitted by the CONSULTANT and its contractors,
subcontractors and vendors shall reference the purchase order number on the invoice. The COUNTY
will not pay invoices that are in excess of the amount authorized by the purchase order.

14.10 PAYMENTS. Payment shall be made by check or warrant by upon satisfactory delivery and acceptance
of items and submission of invoice to the address below for orders placed by the Purchasing Agent, or as
indicated on Purchase Orders placed by other authorized COUNTY offices and/or departments.

Travis County Sheriffs Office Department
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

As a minimum, a “Correct and Complete” invoice shall include: (i) Name, address, and telephone
number of the CONSULTANT and similar information in the event payment is to be made to a different
address, (ii) COUNTY Agreement, Purchase Order, or Delivery Order number, (iii) identification of
items or service as outlined in the Agreement, (iv) quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

prices, and total amount, and (v) any additional payment information which may be called for by this
Agreement.

14.11 iNTEREST ON OVERDUE PAYMENTS. Accrual and payment of interest on overdue payments shall
be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.

14.12 PROPERTY TAXES. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if the CONSULTANT is
delinquent in the payment of property taxes at the time of providing the services rendered under this
Agreement, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns any payments to be made for services rendered
hereunder to the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of said delinquent taxes.

14.13 TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION. The CONSULTANT shall provide the COUNTY with an Internal
Revenue Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is completed in
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of entity status in
a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any funds are payable under this Agreement.

14.14 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
COUNTY and the CONSULTANT and their respective successors, executors, administrators, and
assigns. Neither the COUNTY nor the CONSULTANT may assign, sublet, or transfer their interest in or
obligations under this Agreement without the written consent of the other party hereto. IT IS
EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGED THAT NO OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, AGENT, OR
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESS OR
IMPLWD, TO AMEND THIS AGREEMENT EXCEPT PURSUANT TO SUCH EXPRESS
AUTHORITY AS MAY BE GRANTED BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT.

14.15 HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSiNESSES (HUB) PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS.

14.15.1 In consideration of award of this Agreement to the CONSULTANT, the CONSULTANT
agrees to maintain a subconsultant relationship with any HUB Subconsultants identified on the
HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSiNESS (HUB) DECLARATION Form which was
provided with the CONSULTANT’s Qualifications Statement. Identification of this
relationship should be accomplished through completion of a NOTICE OF INTENT (NOl) TO
SUBCONTRACT WITH HUBs Form, attached hereto as Exhibit 7 and made a part hereof.
The NOT form should be signed by both the CONSULTANT and HUB Subconsultant, with a
separate form submitted for each Subconsultant, and provided to the Purchasing Agent within
five (5) working days after Notification of Contract Award.

14.15.2 During the performance of this Agreement, the CONSULTANT is requested to provide
payment information on each HUB Subconsultant using the attached HUB
SUBCONTRACTOR/SUBCONSULTANT PAYMENT REPORT Form, attached hereto as
Exhibit 8 and made a part hereof. This form should be submitted with each invoice from
which a HUB Subconsultant will be paid. For additional information, refer to the completion
instructions on the form.

14.15.3 No changes or substitutions shall be made for the HUB Subconsultants unless such substitution
is also a HUB. Any substitution or changes must have prior approval of the Travis County
Purchasing Agent or HUB Coordinator. To request a change the HUB
SIJBCONTRACTORJSUBCONSULTANT CHANGE Form, attached hereto as Exhibit 9 must
be completed and submitted to the HUB Office. Should there not be a HUB firm available as a
replacement, CONSULTANT may request an exemption from this requirement from the
Purchasing Agent or HUB Coordinator.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

14.16 FUNDING OUT. The COUNTY shall make reasonable efforts within its power to obtain, maintain and
properly request and appropriate funds from which the payments provided for in connection with this
Agreement may be paid. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Agreement, in the event
that either no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated for any payments due under this Agreement
for the period covered by such budget or appropriation, this Agreement shall terminate without penalty
to the COUNTY.

14.17 FUNDING. Funds for payment on this Agreement have been provided through the COUNTY budget
approved by Commissioners Court for this fiscal year only. State of Texas statutes prohibit the
obligations and expenditure of public funds beyond the fiscal year for which a budget has been
approved. However, the cost of items or services covered by this Agreement is considered a recurring
requirement and is included as a standard and routine expense of the COUNTY to be included in each
proposed budget within the foreseeable future. County Commissioners expect this to be an integral part
of future budgets to be approved during the period of this Agreement except for unanticipated needs or
events which may prevent such payments against this Agreement. However, the COUNTY cannot
guarantee the availability of funds, and enters into this Agreement only to the extent such funds are
made available. The Fiscal Year for the COUNTY extends from October 1st of each calendar year to
September 30th of the next calendar year.

14.18 NON-WAIVER OF DEFAULT. No payment, act or omission by the COUNTY may constitute or be
construed as a waiver of any breach or default of the CONSULTANT which then exists or may
subsequently exist. All rights of the COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically reserved and any
payment, act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or title to the COUNTY under it.
Any right or remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy
under this Agreement or under any law, except as expressly provided herein, nor shall any action taken
in the exercise of any right or remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies.

14.19 MEDIATION. When mediation is acceptable to both parties in resolving a dispute arising under this
Agreement, the parties agree to use a mutually agreed upon mediator, or person appointed by a court of
competent jurisdiction for mediation as described in the Tex. Civ. Prac. and Rem. Code, 154.023.
Unless both parties are satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final
and binding resolution of the dispute. All communications within the scope of the mediation must
remain confidential as described in Tex. Civ. Prac. and Rem Code 154.073, unless both parties agree, in
writing, to waive the confidentiality.

14.20 OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT. If a member of the Commissioners Court belongs to a cooperative
association, the COUNTY may purchase equipment or supplies from the association only if no member
of the Commissioners Court will receive a pecuniary benefit from the purchase, other than as reflected
in an increase in dividends distributed generally to members of the association.

14.21 CONSULTANT CERTIFICATIONS:

14.21.1 CONSULTANT certifies that CONSULTANT (i) is a duly qualified, capable and otherwise
bondable business entity, (ii) is not in receivership and does not contemplate same, (iii) has
not filed for bankruptcy, and is not currently delinquent with respect to payment of property
taxes within Travis County, and (iv) is duly licensed in the State of Texas to perform the
Engineering work described in this Agreement.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

14.2 1.2 CONSULTANT further represents and warrants that (i) all applicable copyrights, patents and
Licenses and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on materials
used in this Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the COUNTY shall not be liable for any
infringement of those rights and any rights granted to the COUNTY shall apply for the
duration of this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall indemnify the COUNTY, its officers,
agents and employees from all claims, losses, damages, causes of action and liability of every
kind including expenses of litigation, and court costs and attorney fees for damages to any
person or property arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of existing
patents, licenses of copyrights applicable to materials used in this Agreement.

14.22 CIVIL RIGHTS/ADA COMPLIANCE. The CONSULTANT shall provide all services and activities
required in a manner that would comply with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans
With Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 10 1-336 [S.933] as if the CONSULTANT were an entity
bound to comply with these laws. The CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee or
applicant for employment based on race, religion, color, sex, national origin, age or handicapped
condition.

14.23 GRATUITIES. The COUNTY may terminate this Agreement if it is found that gratuities of any kind,
including entertainment, or gifts were offered or given by the CONSULTANT or any agent or
representative of the CONSULTANT, to any County Official or employee with a view toward securing
favorable treatment with respect to this Agreement. If this Agreement is terminated by the COUNTY
pursuant to this provision, the COUNTY shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies,
to recover from the CONSULTANT at least three times the cost incurred by CONSULTANT in
providing the gratuities.

14.24 MONITORING. The COUNTY reserves the right to perform periodic on-site monitoring of the
CONSULTANT’s compliance with the terms of this Agreement and of the adequacy and timeliness of
the CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement. After each monitoring visit, the COUNTY
shall provide the CONSULTANT with a written report of the monitor’s fmdings. If the report notes
deficiencies in the CONSULTANT’s performances under the terms of this Agreement, it shall include
requirements and deadlines for the correction of those deficiencies by the CONSULTANT. The
CONSULTANT shall take action specified in the monitoring report prior to the deadlines specified.

14.25 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS AND ATTACHMENTS. All of the exhibits, attachments, and
appendices referred to in this Agreement are incorporated by reference as if set forth verbatim herein.

14.26 ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the
COUNTY and the CONSULTANT and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either oral or written.

14.27 TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, disclosure of any information obtained by County or any of its officials, employees, agents or
representatives in connection with this Agreement shall be subject to the provisions of the Texas Public
Information Act and all legal authorities relating thereto, including but not limited to opinions, decisions
and letter rulings issued by the State Attorney’s General Office.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

14.28 AMENDMENT

14.28.1 This Agreement may not be altered, amended or modified except by instrument in writing
signed by both parties. It is acknowledged by CONSULTANT that NO OFFICIAL,
EMPLOYEE, AGENT OR REPRESENTATIVE OF TRAVIS COUNTY HAS ANY
AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO MODIFY OR AMEND THIS
AGREEMENT, EXCEPT PURSUANT TO SUCH EXPRESS AUTHORITY AS MAY BE
GRANTED BY THE TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT.

14.28.2 CONSULTANT shall submit all requests for changes to this Agreement, or any attachment(s)
hereto, to the Travis County Purchasing Agent. The Purchasing Agent shall present
CONSULTANT’S requests to the Travis County Commissioners Court for consideration.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

14.29 ENTITY STATUS. By my signature below, I certify that the CONSULTANT is a Texas corporation,
duly incorporated under Texas law and doing business in the State of Texas.

As a duly authorized representative of the CONSULTANT, I acknowledge by my signature below that I
have read and understand the above paragraphs and that the CONSULTANT has the obligation to
ensure compliance with its provisions by itself and its employees, agents, and representatives.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement effective as of the later date
set forth below (the “Effective Date”).

HALFF ASS C ATES, INC.

By:

________________________

Printed Name: PMl-1/ ,4ppl97

Title: \/1

Date: 7 /7 2/-z

The Texas Board of Architectural Examiners, 333 Guadalupe St., Ste. 2-350, Austin, TX 78701, phone: (512)
305-9000, has jurisdiction over complaints regarding the professional practices of persons registered as
architects in Texas. Chapter 1051, Texas Occupations Code.

TRAVIS COUNTY:

By:

________________________

Samuel T. Biscoe
Travis County Judge

Date:

_________________________________

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS CONFIRMED:

By:

_______________________

Susan Spataro
Travis County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:

_______________________

Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Travis County Purchasing Agent

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:

________________________

Assistant County Attorney

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

EXHIBIT 1
COMPENSATION FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS

(ACTUAL COST OF SERVICES METHOD)

SECTION 1- COMPENSATION FOR BASIC SERVICES

1.1 The fixed fee for the performance of the Basis Services shall be the sum of $178150.00

1.1.1 Unless this Agreement has been amended or modified as provided herein, the payments for the
phases described below shall be:

(i) Site Observation and 50% Design Phase $ 77,228.00

(ii) Construction Documents (CD) Phase $ 61,051.00

(iii) Bid and Award Phase $ 5,504.00

(iv) Construction Administration (CA) Phase $ 34,367.00

BASIC SERVICES TOTAL: $178.15O.00

SECTION 2- FIXED FEE

2.1 The CONSULTANT and the COUNTY acknowledge the fact that the fixed fee, shown above, is the
total cost of the Basic Services to be rendered under this Agreement. This fixed fee is based upon the
labor and non-labor costs, set forth in Exhibit 2 and described above, required in the performance of the
various phases of work provided for under this Agreement. -

2.2 In the event of any dispute over the classification of the CONSULTANT’s services as either “Basic” or
“Additional” services, the decision of the PROJECT MANAGER shall be final and binding on the
CONSULTANT.

SECTION 3- COMPENSATION FOR ADDITIONAL SERVICES

3.1 “Additional Services” are defined as any services performed by CONSULTANT not specifically
described in the Basic Services (Section 2 of this Agreement).

3.2 For the performance of the Additional Services, the COUNTY shall pay the CONSULTANT under a
written amendment to this Agreement; provided, however, that the performance of any Additional
Services shall be authorized in advance in writing by the Travis County Purchasing Agent upon the
recommendation of the PROJECT MANAGER.

3.3 For the performance of the Additional Services, the COUNTY shall pay the CONSULTANT under a
written amendment to this Agreement; provided, however, that the performance of any Additional
services shall be authorized in advance in writing by the Travis County Purchasing Agent upon the
recommendation of the PROJECT MANAGER.

3.4 The basis of compensation for the services of principals and employees engaged in the performance of
the Additional Services shall be the hourly rates set forth in Exhibit 2.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

3.5 The CONSULTANT shall be compensated for the Additional Services; provided, however, that the
CONSULTANT shall not be compensated for work made necessary by the CONSULTANT’s errors or
omissions.

SECTION 4- REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

4.1 The CONSULTANT shall be reimbursed for non-labor and subcontract expenses incurred in the
performance of the Basic Services under this Agreement at invoice cost plus a ten percent (10%) fee.
Detailed requirements for Reimbursable Expenses are outlined in Section 9, Reimbursable Expenses.

REIMBURSABLES TOTAL NOT TO EXCEED: $1,660.00

SECTION 5-TOTAL AGREEMENT SUM

5.1 The Total Professional Services Agreement Sum, consisting of the Basic Services of $178,150.00, plus
the Not-to-Exceed Reimbursable Expenses (as listed in paragraph 4.1 above) of $1,660.00, shall not
exceed $179810.00.

SECTION 6 —SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS

6.1 Payments shall be made on a monthly basis for work performed, as described in detail in the Scope of
Services, within thirty (30) days of receipt of a Correct and Complete invoice, as defined in paragraph
14.10.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

EXHIBIT 2
HOURLY RATES

A. BASIC SERVICES SCHEDULE OF RATES (HouRLy):

Principal $ 215.00

MEP Senior Engineer $ 190.00

MEP Project Engineer $ 140.00

MEP Engineer / EIT $ 108.00

Sr. Architect $ 187.00

Architect $ 124.00

Sr. Structural Engineer $ 166.00

Structural Engineer $ 138.00

Sr. CADD $ 99.00

CADD $ 85.00

Clerical $ 65.00

B. ADDITIONAL SERVICES SCHEDULE OF RATES (HouRLY):

Same As Above

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

EXHIBIT 3
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT

A. The CONSULTANT will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because
of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The CONSULTANT will take affirmative action to
ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard
to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the
following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; termination; rates of pay or other forms of
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The CONSULTANT agrees to post
in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided
setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

B. The CONSULTANT will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of
the CONSULTANT, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

C. The CONSULTANT will send to the labor union representative or workers with which he has a
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by the
Contract Compliance Officer advising the said labor union or worker’s representatives of the
CONSULTANT’S obligations under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous
places available to employees and applicants for employment.

D. The CONSULTANT will comply with the Regulations of the Department of Transportation (49 CFR 21
and 23 CFR 7 10.405) and all provision of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended
by Executive Order 11375 (41 CFR 60) and of the rules, regulations and relevant order of the Secretary
of Labor.

E. The CONSULTANT will furnish, upon written request, all information and reports required by
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations and orders of the Secretary of
Labor, or pursuant thereto; and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the Department
and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules,
regulations and orders.

F. In the event of the CONSULTANT’S non-compliance with the non-discrimination clauses of this
contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated,
or suspended in whole or in part and the CONSULTANT may be declared ineligible for further
Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of
September 24, 1965, as amended by Executive Order 11375 (41 CFR 60) or by rule, regulation, or order
of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

G. The CONSULTANT will include the provisions of paragraph (A.) through (F.) in every subcontract or
purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued
pursuant to Section 204 or Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended by Executive
Order 11375 (41 CFR 60) so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.
The CONSULTANT will take such action with respect to any subcontractor purchase order as the
Department may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for non
compliance; provided, however, that in the event the CONSULTANT becomes involved in, or is
threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the COUNTY
or Federal Agency the CONSULTANT may request the COUNTY and United States to enter into such
litigation to protect the interest of the United States.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

EXHIBIT 4

INSURANCE REOUIREMENTS

During the life of this Agreement, the CONSULTANT agrees to provide and maintain the following insurance:

A. Worker’s Compensation in accordance with statutory requirements.

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a combined minimum Bodily Injury and Property Damage
limits of $400,000 per occurrence and $1,000,000 in the aggregate, including coverage on the same for
independent subcontractor(s). TRAVIS COUNTY SHALL BE NAMED AS AN ADDITIONAL
iNSURED UNDER THIS COVERAGE.

C. Automobile Liability Insurance for all owned non-owned, and hired vehicles with combined minimum
limits for Bodily Injury and Property Damage limits of $400,000 per occurrence and $1,000,000 in the
aggregate. CONSULTANT shall require any subcontractor(s) to provide Automobile Liability Insurance
in the same minimum amounts.

D. Professional Liability Errors and Omissions Insurance in the amount of $500,000.00.

The CONSULTANT shall not commence any field work under this Agreement until he has obtained all
required insurance and such insurance has been approved by the COUNTY. The CONSULTANT shall
not allow any subcontractor(s) to commence work to be performed in connection with this Agreement
until all required insurance has been obtained. Approval of the insurance by the COUNTY shall not
relieve or decrease the liability of the CONSULTANT hereunder.

The required insurance must be written by a company approved to do business in the State of Texas at
the time the policy is issued. The CONSULTANT shall furnish the COUNTY with a certification of
coverage issued by the insurer. The insurance company shall be subject to the approval of the
COUNTY. The CONSULTANT shall not cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit any insurance
to lapse. ALL INSURANCE CERTIFICATES SHALL iNCLUDE A CLAUSE TO THE EFFECT
THAT THE POLICY SHALL NOT BE CANCELED OR REDUCED, RESTRICTED OR LIMITED
UNTIL TEN (10) DAYS AFTER THE COUNTY HAS RECEIVED WRITTEN NOTICE AS
EVIDENCED BY RETURN RECEIPT OF REGISTERED OR CERTIFIED LETTER.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

EXHIBIT S
STATE OF TEXAS }
COUTNY OF TRAVIS }

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

Date: 7.t1.-j&tz
Name of Affiant: 14tiL,t’

Title of Affiant: V( LQs.rr
Business Name of CONSULTANT: j-be 1sJ

County of CONSULTANT:

_________________

Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true:

1. Affiant is authorized by CONSULTANT to make this affidavit for CONSULTANT.

2. Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.

3. Affiant can read the English language.

4. CONSULTANT has received the list of Key Contracting Persons associated with this Agreement, which is
attached to this affidavit as Attachment 1.

5. Affiant has personally read Attachment 1 to this Affidavit.

6. Af ant as no knowledge of any Key Contracting Person on Attachment 1 with whom CONSULTANT is
do g siness or has done business during the 365 day period immediately before the date of this affidavit.

Signat re Affiant

j2o sJotn,’ &-4c6o.

Ric*,ø.,-*,ij, 7
Address

12ttLLP rJ

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by i&?LAJIion /17, 2OJ

Notary Public, State of

fl\
Typed or prhited name of notary

My commission expires: LLt-rrJcav c9 c-L (Lt

TANZY WILSON IBANEZ
Notary Pub$c, State of Texas

My Cornmssion Expires
December 29, 2014

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

ATTACHMENT 1 TO EXHIBIT 5
EXHIBIT A

LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS
June 1, 2012

CURRENT
Name of Individual Name of Business

Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual is Associated

County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge (Spouse) Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe
Executive Assistant Cheryl Brown
Executive Assistant Melissa Velasquez
Executive Assistant Josie Z. Zavala
Executive Assistant Cheryl Aker
Conunissioner, Precinct 1 Ron Davis
Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) Annie Davis Seton Hospital
Executive Assistant Deone Wilhite
Executive Assistant Felicitas Chavez
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Sarah Eckhardt
Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) Kurt Sauer Daffer McDaniel, LLP
Executive Assistant Loretta Farb
Executive Assistant Joe Hon
Executive Assistant Peter Einhorn
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Karen Huber
Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) Leonard Huber Retired
Executive Assistant Garry Brown
Executive Assistant Lori Duarte
Executive Assistant Jacob Cottingham
Commissioner, Precinct 4 Margaret Gomez
Executive Assistant Edith Moreida
Executive Assistant Norma Guerra
County Treasurer Dolores Ortega-Carter
County Auditor Susan Spataro, CPA
County Executive, Administrative Vacant
County Executive, Planning & Budget Leslie Browder*
County Executive, Emergency Services Danny Hobby
County Executive, Health/Human Services Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive, TNR Steven M. Manilla, P.E.*
County Executive, Justice & Public Safety Roger Jefferies
Director, Facilities Management Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E.
Chief Information Officer Joe Harlow
Director, Records Mgment & Communications Steven Broberg
Travis County Attorney David Escamilla
First Assistant County Attorney Steve Capelle
Executive Assistant, County Attorney James Collins
Director, Land Use Division Tom Nuckols
Attorney, Land Use Division Julie Joe
Attorney, Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore
Director, Transactions Division John Hille
Attorney, Transactions Division Tamara Armstrong
Attorney, Transactions Division Daniel Bradford
Attorney, Transactions Division Mary Etta Gerhardt
Attorney, Transactions Division Barbara Wilson
Attorney, Transactions Division Jim Connolly
Attorney, Transactions Division Tenley Aidredge
Director, Health Services Division Vacant
Attorney, Health Services Division Prema Gregerson
Purchasing Agent Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Assistant Purchasing Agent Marvin Brice, CPPB

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

Assistant Purchasing Agent Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Vacant
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lee Perry
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jason Walker
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Richard Villareal
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Patrick Strittniatter*
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Scott Wilson, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV George R. Monnat, C.P.M., A.P.P.
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV John E. Pena, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Shannon Pleasant, CTPM*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III David Walch
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Michael Long, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Loren Breland, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Nancy Barchus, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III C.W. Bruner, CTP
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Jayne Rybak, CTP*
HUB Coordinator Sylvia Lopez
HUB Specialist Betty Chapa
HUB Specialist Jerome Guerrero
Purchasing Business Analyst Scott Worthington
Purchasing Business Analyst Jennifer Francis
Senior Engineer Mark Stefanov
Finance Ron Rizzato
Major — Corrections Darren Long

FORMER EMPLOYEES

Name of Individual
Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Oralia Jones, CPPB 07/31/12
County Executive, Planning & Budget Rodney Rhoades 08/19/12
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Diana Gonzalez 12/16/12
Director, Health Services Division Beth Devery 03/09/13
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Elizabeth Corey, C.P.M 03/14/13

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

EXHIBIT 6
HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS (HUB) DECLARATION

The primary objective of the Travis County HUB Program is to ensure Historically Underutilized Businesses receive a fair and equal opportunity for
participation in the County’s procurement process. This fact holds true for Services (Professional & Non-professional), Commodities, and
Construction contracts and any subcontracts thereto. The program strongly encourages Prime Contractors to provide subcontracting opportunities to
Certified HUB Contractors/Vendors.

It is the policy of the Travis County Purchasing Office to ensure a good faith effort is made to assist Certified HUB vendors and contractors in
receiving contracts in accordance with the HUB Program policies and the Minority and Woman-Owned Business goals adopted by the Travis
County Commissioners Court. Our goals for HUB contractor/vendor participation, as well as HUB subcontractor participation, in the area of
SERVICES are as follows:

Overall MBE Goal: 14.1%; Sub-goals: 2.5% African-American, 9.9% Hispanic, 1.7% Native/Asian American Overall WBE Goal: 15.0%

To be considered as a Certified HUB ContractorNendor” the contractor/vendor must have been certified by, and hold a current and
valid certification, with any of the three agencies listed below. Please attach copy of certificate.

Vendor/Contractor: /J1czLFF Asscc/,17ss /
Certified as a HUB or an MBE/WBEIDBE source:_Yes7No HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):

If yes, by whom: _State of Texas Building and Procurement Commission _City of Austin _Texas Unified Certification
Program

SUGGESTED DATABASE DIRECTORIES TO VIEW WHEN SOLICITING HUB SUBCONTRACTORS
State: www.tbpc.state.tx.us/cmbl; City: wwwci.austin.tx.us/purchasing; TUCP: www.tucp.org

Y4F/ /5 fEic .PFAzai1sT OF CERTIFIED HUB SUBCONTRACTORS
(DUPLICATE AS NECESSARY)

f’L1 777)’5
What percentage of the Bid or Proposal is to be subcontracted with Certified HUB sources: % (List HUB Subcontractor information below).

HUB Subcontractor Name:__________________________________ HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable): __Texas Building and Procurement Commission __City of Austin __Texas Unified Certification Program

Address:__________________________________________________ City:____________________________ State:____________ Zip:

____________

Contact Person:_____________________________________ Title:____________________________ Phone No.:

_______________________________

Subcontract Amount: $u_____________ Description of Work to be Performed:

_________________________________________________________

HUB Subcontractor Name:__________________________________ HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable): Building and Procurement Commission of Austin Unified Certification Program

Address:________________________________________________ City:___________________________ State:___________ Zip:

Contact Person:_____________________________________ Title:____________________________ Phone No.: C

Subcontract Amount: $u_____________ Description of Work to be Performed:

HUB Subcontractor Name:__________________________________ HUB Status (Gender & Etimicity):

____________________________________

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable): _Texas Building and Procurement Commission ...........City of Austin Texas Unified Certification Program

Address:________________________________________________ City:___________________________ State:___________ Zip:

Contact Person:_____________________________________ Title:____________________________ Phone No.:

_______________________________

Subcontract Amount: $u______________ Description of Work to be Performed:

____________________________________________________________

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

EXHIBIT 7

NOTICE OF INTENT (NOl)

To SUBCONTRACT WITH

HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS (HUB)

Please submit this form for each HUB Subcontractor utilized, with proper signatures, per the terms and
conditions of your contract.

Prime Contractors/Consultants are requested to complete this form and provide it to the Purchasing Agent Representative after
contract award, but prior to beginning performance of the contract.

uF-p. o a4p..n1s
Contractor Name:

__________________HUB:

Yes L No r’
,&u_ A.rcvrrI5

Address:___________________________________
Street City State Zip

Phone No.: () Fax No.: ( )

Project Title & No.:____________________________

Prime Contract Amount: $

HUB Subcontractor Name:_________________________

HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):

_____________________

Certifying Agency: Tx. Bldg. & Procurement Comm. LI City of Austin LI Tx. Unified Certification Pgm.

Address:___________________________________
Street City State Zip

Phone No.: () Fax No.: ( )

Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

________________

Printed Name of Contractor Representative Signature of Representative Date

Printed Name of HUB Representative Signature of Representative Date

Note: Nothing on this Notice of Intent Form is intended to confer any rights, expressed or implied, to any third parties.
PRE-APPROVAL FOR SUBCONTRACTOR SUBSTITUTIONS MUST BE OBTAINED FROM THE TRAVIS
COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT REPRESENTATIVE. THE “HUB SUBCONTRACTOR/SUBCONSULTANT
CHANGE FORW’ MUST BE COMPLETED AND SUBMITTED TO THE HUB OFFICE, VIA FAX 512.854.9185.

Rev. 3/04

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

EXHIBIT 8
TRAVIS COUNTY

HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS (HUB) - SUBCONTRACTOR PAYMENT REPORT

PRIME CONTRACTORJCONSULTANT NAME:•

PROJECT TITLE/No.:

________________ __________AMOUNT

OF PRIME CONTRACT:___________

AMOUNT OF ALL SUBCONTRACTS:____________

TOTAL CONTRACT PERIOD: From:_________ To: PAYMENTS REPORTED FOR THE MONTH OF:

______20_

Instructions for completing this form:
SECTION A: Name all HUB Subcontractors performing on this project.
SECTION B: State the work being performed by the HUB Subcontractors.
SECTION C: State the original HUB Subcontractor amount.
SECTION D: State any increases or decrease, as a result of contract modifications or change orders, to the original HUB Subcontract (Section C) amount.
SECTION E: State the amended HUB Subcontract amount, to the Initial HUB Subcontract amount, as a result of any increase and/or decrease (Section D).
SECTION F: State the amount paid to each HUB Subcontractor during this reporting period.
SECTION G: State the total amount of payments made to-date (including amount from Section F) to the HUB Subcontractor.

I certify that the information listed on this report is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I fully understand that intentionally falsifying information on this
document may result in TERMINATION OF MY CONTRACT.

Printed Name of Contractor Representative Signature of Contractor Representative Date Report Number

PLEASE SUBMIT THIS FORM WITH YOUR MONTHLY INVOICES, PER THE TERMS OF YOUR CONTRACT.

NAME OF HUB SUBCONTRACTOR* DEscIuI’TIoN OF WORK

A B C I..D E F G
ORIGINAL

Sus- CONTRACT

AMOUNT

INCREASE OR

DFCREASF.

ATION)

REVISED
SUB-CONTRACI’

AMOUNT

PAYMENT THIS
PERIOD

CUMULATIVE
PAYMENTS

Rev. 3/04

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CONTRACT#:_____

CONTRACT
DESCRIPTION:

PRIME CONTRACTOR:

REQUESTED BY:_________

DATE:

Contract No. 4400000992

• OBTAIN PRE-APPROVAL FROM THE TRA VIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT AND/OR THE HUB COORDINATOR OF
ALL CHANGES INVOL VING CERTIFIED HUB SUBCONTRACTORS.

• IF BIDDER HAS DIFFICULTY IN LOCATING CERTIFIED HUB SUBCONTRACTORS CONTACT THE TRAVIS
COUNTY HUB COORDINATOR AT (512) 845-4561 OR HUB SPECIALIST AT (512) 854-9914, FOR ASSISTANCE.

Check reason: Addition Substitution Deletion _Reduction _Increase

REASON FOR ACTION:

Unavailable after receipt of reasonable notice to proceed.
Failure of performance.
Financial capacity.
Refusal by the subcontractor to honor the bid of proposal price.
Mistake of fact or law about the elements of the scope of work of a solicitation where a reasonable price cannot be agreed

upon.
Failure of the subcontractor to meet insurance, licensing, or bonding requirements.
The subs withdrawal of his bid or proposal.

_____

Please provide me with a HUB Subcontractor listing.

_____

I have already selected a potential HUB Subcontractor for this project. (List below)

SUB TO BE REPLACED: —

REPLACEMENT:

_______

REPLACEMENT’S STATUS:

Certified: HUB M/WBE_ DBE Non-HUB_ Unknown

INCREASED/DECREASED AMOUNT: Original Amt. $____ New Amt. $_____

OTHER COMMENTS:

FAX TO: 512.854.9185 ATTN: HUB OFFICE

EXHIBIT 9
HUB SUBCONTRACTORJSUBCONSULTANT CHANGE FORM

(ADDITION,SU flI6DELET”

CONTACT #

_______

REVIEWED BY HUB PROGRAM OFFICE: Initials:

______

Date:

___________

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

EXifiBIT 10
SCOPE OF SERVICES

TCJ Exhaust System - General Building Renewal 238693, and
TCJ Exhaust System - Kitchen - Commercial Renewal 244270

1. PROJECT INFORMATION

1.1. Project Identification: TCJ Exhaust System - General Building Renewal 238693, and
TCJ Exhaust System - Kitchen - Commercial Renewal 244270

1.2. Project Location: Travis County Jail
500 W. 10th Street
Austin, TX 78701

1.3. Project Location Operators (subject to change):
Major Darren Long, Corrections Bureau Administrator
Captain Jerry Kovar, TCJ Administrator
Lieutenant Elizabeth Jurica, TCJ Manager
Sergeants, Corrections Officers

1.4. Abbreviations: permitting
1.4.3 ASHRAE, American Society of Heating and Air-Conditioning Engineers.
1.4.4 BAS, Building Automation System.
1.4.5 TCJ, Travis County Jail.
1.4.6 TCSO, Travis County Sheriff’s Office.
1.4.7 TCSOE, Travis County Sheriff’s Office Engineer.
1.4.8 TCSO PM, Travis County Sheriff’s Office Project Manager.

1.5. Occupancy — Occupancy of the area is 24 hours per day, seven days per week without the ability to
relocate the occupants except by area confinement.

1.6. Schedule — See Attachment 8.

1.7. Description — The Project includes:

1.7.1. Providing all exhaust equipment, ductwork, building modifications, and other necessary items to
upgrade the existing exhaust systems in order to comply with current engineering standards for a
jail environment. Providing electronic monitoring and control by the TCSO BAS, Computrols,
for the new equipment and as considered appropriate for continued balanced operation of the
new systems.

1.7.2. The upgraded exhaust is being undertaken to correct humidity problems leading to excessive
biological growth by:

1.7.2.1. Upgrading the north and south side cell exhaust routes to facilitate the proper building
general ventilation;

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

1.7.2.2. Upgrading the north and south side cell exhaust fans to meet the ASHRAE Building
Exhaust Standards;

1.7.2.3. Renewing and adding fire dampers and associated devices to meet the current Fire Codes;

1.7.2.4 Correcting duct penetrations and ductwork to direct the airflow so as to flow effectively
for all cell exhaust and the central core exhausted areas;

1.7.2.5. Replacing items, duct, equipment, in the kitchen exhaust system that cannot be refurbished to
a “like new” condition;

1.7.2.6. Facilitating the repair to, and the resealing of, the building envelope where the above
items penetrate to the outside, which may involve roof or wall penetrations; and

1.7.2.7. Adding make up air in an engineered method to address the new exhaust requirements and
provide a positive building envelope.

1.7.3. Upgrading the four cells located in the basement medical area to the Center for Disease Control-
recommended negative-pressure, operation, and control for airborne infection isolation. (This is
part of the TCJ Exhaust System - General Building Renewal 238693 Project. Where considered
appropriate by current engineering practices, sub tasks in paragraph 1.7.2. above may apply to
the work described in this paragraph.)

1.7.4. Upgrading the basement kitchen hood exhausts and make up air to the current operation
standards of the applicable codes and correcting items needing repair. (Where considered

appropriate by current engineering practices, sub tasks in paragraph 1.7.2. above may apply to
the work described in this paragraph.)

1.7.5. Working in the very confining and space-restricted areas of the jail outside of the normal
housing areas in ceilings and crawl spaces.

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES

2.1. The CONSULTANT’S “Basic Services” shall include all tasks and deliverables required to provide a
complete, functional, and usable biddable drawings and specifications package and D&Ss.

CONSULTANT’S Basic Services include:

2.1.1. Review existing drawings and conditions.

2.1.2. Develop new drawings as needed to adequately define a construction project that the County
plans to bid.

2.1.3. New drawings shall be 1 1x17 and comply with the Travis County Sheriffs Office Engineer’s
specific requirements listed in Exhibit 11.

2.1.4. Select, engineer, and design a suitable exhaustJmake up air system for building expected to be
kept in service for another 25 years.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

2.1.5. Investigating the kitchen exhaust for proper flows and heat rejection based on the operations,
then engineering and designing the upgrades or equipment replacements with a Return on
Investment of less than ten years.

2.1.6. Address the desired Project items as listed in the Project description, above.

2.1.7. Provide and submit with the 100% D&Ss, a construction cost estimate.

2.1.8. Investigate the applicability of permits for the construction process and require Contractor to
provide written results of such investigation in the D&Ss.

2.1.9. Provide a point matrix, drawing information and specifications, and written control sequence for
the addition of Computrols to monitor and control all items that will be considered necessary for
effective operation.

2.1.10. Segregate the Projects into two distinct tasks while combining common construction areas and
specifications; perform all services to facilitate the possibility that one of the Project tasks may
be bid as an alternate.

2.1.11. Provide technical assistance during the bidding process.

2.1.12. Provide all new work in an AutoCAD format, model space only, for incorporation into the
TCSO’s master drawings per Exhibit 11. These shall be separated from the TCSO-supplied
master backgrounds, but appropriately located, using AutoCAD Xref technology. Each
discipline shall also be separated into different drawing files (.dwg)

2.1.13. Provide the work prior to fmal specifications in an MSWord compatible format for use by the
Travis County for review and suggested changes. This may be modified by multiple Travis
County departments using the MSWord document change tracking tool.

2.1.14. Provide the work prior to final drawings in a .dwg format for the TCSOE’s review and Adobe
Acrobat format for the TCSO PM’s review.

2.1.15. Provide sealed D&Ss in an Adobe Acrobat format, or other format approved in writing by the
Travis County Purchasing Office, for posting on the bidding site.

2.2. CONSULTANT will perform Basic Services in accordance with all governing codes and regulations,
using the standard of care and skill ordinarily used by members of the engineering design profession
on projects of similar size, nature and complexity, practicing under similar conditions at the same time
and locality as the Project.

3. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMIMSTRATION

3.1. The CONSULTANT will be responsible for Construction Contract Administration to the extent the
CONSULTANT determines is necessary to verify that the work is being constructed according to the
intent of the construction documents. The CONSULTANT will make periodic observations of the
work as part of Basic Services. A final punch list will be required and one (1) follow-up inspection
to review completion of the punch list items by the Contractor.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

3.2. The CONSULTANT will render interpretations necessary for the proper execution of the work with
reasonable promptness upon notification by the COUNTY. Render decisions, in writing, within a time
no greater than five (5) calendar days for clarifications, interpretations, submittals, claims, disputes,
and other matters in question between the County and the Contractor relating to the execution or
progress of the work or the interpretation of the Construction Documents. The CONSULTANT will
notify the County immediately, within 24 hours of receipt of the above items, if more time is required
for reasonable cause.

3.3. The CONSULTANT will not have control or charge of, and will not be responsible for: (i)
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures or safety precautions and programs
in connection with the construction work; (ii) acts or omissions of the Contractor or subcontractors of
any tier, or any other persons performing any of the construction work; or (iii) failure of any of the
aforementioned to carry out the construction work in accordance with the Construction Documents.

3.4. The CONSULTANT will at all times have access to the work.

3.5. Interpretations and decisions of the CONSULTANT will be consistent with the intent of, and
reasonably inferable, from the Construction Documents and will be in written and/or graphic form.

4. MEETINGS

4.1. The CONSULTANT will attend meetings with the COUNTY only as required for development of the
design and Construction. Documents and as necessary during the Construction Contract Administration
Phase.

4.2. Attendance and participation at such meetings will be part of the Basic Services. Any meetings not
required by this agreement will be compensated at the hourly rate for the appropriate CONSULTANT
staff indicated in the Professional Services Agreement. If required, the TCSO Maintenance Engineer
will authorize these meetings by advance written notice.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

EXHIBIT 11
TRAVIS COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE ENGINEERII4G DRAWING REOUIREMENTS

The drawing requirements of the Travis County Sheriffs Office Engineer (TCSOE) shall be incorporated into the
CONSULTANT’S Work Product. These include, without limitation, the following:

1.1 All construction document drawings shall be set up in an 1 lxi 7 layout format.
1.2 Text shall generally be a minimum of 1/8” or larger on an 1 1x17 printout, with 3/3 2” being the minimum

allowed except for border and title text containing non-project specific information.
1.3 Externally referenced drawing data in model space, e.g. as built, TCSO masters, and CONSULTANT’S design

data shall be used for all information that is not Consultant specific information or layout data, such as
contained n borders and title information on drawing layout space.

1.4 Drawing and Layout Naming for work performed by the CONSULTANT shall have file names using the
formats below:

1.4.1 External Referenced Drawing Naming X-xxxx-###-111111111111 , where-
1.4.1.1 The first X, A-FPO3- 140-23 8693, is the AlA discipline code, such as A for Architecture;
1.4.1.2 The next two characters, A-FPO3-140-238693 indicate the AlA general type of drawing, such as FP

for floor plan, SP for site plane, etc.;
1.4.1.3 The next two characters, A-FPO3- 140-23 8693 indicate the floor with the basement of a building being

0, and A-FPO3- 140-238693 indicating the data for the roof as it is the 3rd level for the building in this
Project;

1.4.1.4 The next three digits, A-FPO3-140-23 8693, indicate the TCSO three digit building number; and
1.4.1.5 The fmal six digits indicate the TCSO CONSTRUCTION Project numbers A-FPO3- 140-238693 (the

first listed may be used for common data).
1.4.2 Layout Space and Drawing Naming X-###-23 8693, where -

1.4.2.1 The X character is the AlA discipline code, such as A for Architecture, A- 130-238693;
1.4.2.2 The first digit, A-130-23 8693, is the MA layout designator code number, such as 0-general, 1-plan

views, 2-elevations, 3-sections, 4-large scale, 5-details, 6-schedules, and 9-photos;
1.4.2.3 The second digit, A- 130-238693 is to reflect the floor with the basement of a building being , and ,

indicating the architectural layout for the roof as it is the 3rd level for this project.
1.4.2.4 The third digit, A- 130-238693 is a sequence drawing number;
1.4.2.5 The next six digits, A-130-238693, indicate the TCSO CONSTRUCTION Project number;
1.4.2.6 Layout names inside a layout drawing file would be A-130, A-131, A-530, leaving off the project

number; and
1.4.2.7 A multi discipline drawing containing many layouts referring to a single project may be combined

into one drawing named G-000-238693;
1.5 Layer Naming for work performed by the CONSULTANT shall have layer names using the format, X-xxx-xxx,

where:
1.5.1 All layer names in the new work data drawings shall exactly match the layer name in the drawings that

depict current conditions, which may not look like the format X-xxx-xxx;
1.5.2 New layers shall generally follow the AlA requirements, except when complying with the paragraph

above, starting with the first character indicating the discipline code, “A-wall-int” for architectural walls
interior, etc.;

1.5.3 The modifiers A-rn-rn may be longer than three as in the paragraph above;
1.6 Demolition work data shall be indicated on a specific layer and only be done in the drawings that depict current

conditions by moving demo entities to a new layer that follows this naming format, D-PS 1201 97JE, where:
1.6.1 D indicates demo, D-PSxxxxxxxx-xxx;
1.6.2 The characters, D-PSxxxxxxxx, indicate the Travis County Professional Service Agreement’s Purchasing

contract number, “PSxxxxxxxx” under which the data is proposed to be deleted;
1.6.3 The modifiers, D-PSxxxxxxxx-, may be specifically requested by the TCSOE after design begins or

utilized as desired by the CONSULTANT similar to the modifiers in paragraphs 1.5.2 and 1.5.3 above.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Contract No. 4400000992

EXHIBIT 12
PROJECT SCHEDULE

SCHEDULE MILESTONES

The CONSULTANT’S delivery of the Work Product shall conform to the following durations, which will
conmience upon receipt of a written Notice-to-Proceed from the COUNTY. Durations are in calendar days.

Phase Precedent Duration

Kick-off Meeting and on-site Notice to Proceed 2 Weeks
data collection

50% Submittal Kick-off Meeting and on-site 6 Weeks
data collection

Travis County Review and 50% Submittal 2 Weeks
Meetings

100% Submittal Travis County Review and 6 Weeks
Meetings

Travis County Review and 100% Submittal 2 Weeks
Meetings

Final Construction Documents Travis County Review and 2 weeks
out to Purchasing Department Meetings

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: 8/7/2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Ronald Dube 854-6458 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language: Pursuant to section 263.151, declare certain items 
surplus property and sell at public auction.  
 
 

Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
and recommends approval of requested action. This procurement action 
meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 

 
The Court will note that some of the items listed are not tracked in   the 
SAP System. These items are non-trackable assets. 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 10



LOT # Asset Class AQ Type Cap Date Inventory # Description Serial Number Cost Responsible Cost Center Asset # Status
#1 Low Value Assets SA KIE 06/13/2003 105986 ICE MACHINE  ICE-O-MATIC A21008059Z 1,400.00 1150010001 1009123 ACT
#2 Low Value Assets SS PRT 09/01/2001 97885 PRINTER  HP DESIGNJET 500 SG1582206V 4,072.00 1150010001 1007014 ACT

#3 Electronic Eqp PO EEE 1/30/2001 103095
680-44-01150-7  73100 ISD-
INTERNATIONAL SECURITY 17465 13,486.00 1450330001 1000541 ACT

#3 Low Value Assets PO EEE 01/30/2001 103095 "15""  COMPUTER MONITOR TD8360878 - 1150010001 1034920 ACT

#4 Low Value Assets PO YGA 09/09/2004 123023
LAWN VACUUM  BLOWER  
GIANTVAC 50239775 824.25 1150010001 1011867 ACT

#5 Aircraft & Boatg Eqp PO ABE 06/13/1995 128351 BOAT MOTOR  YAMAHA 150HP UNKNOWN 8,210.00 1370750001 1000194 ACT

#6 Aircraft & Boatg Eqp PO ABE 2/12/1997 128353
MARINE OUTBOARD MOTOR 
YAMAHA S150 TXRV  (STD). GG4UL501975 8,640.00 1370750001 1000272 ACT

#7 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(14) SETS OF WOOD RAFTERS 
28FT LONG 4/12 SLOPE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

#7 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(15) SETS OF WOOD RAFTERS 
32 FT LONG 4/12 SLOPE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

#7 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
9 USED PCS OF 11 1/4 X 2" X 
20FT WOOD N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

#8 Low Value Assets PO KIE 10/20/2006 128242
ICE MAKER-CUBE STYLE; 
SCOTTS 6.10132E+11 2,762.00 1490220001 1015890 ACT

#9 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A (30) USED OFFICE CHAIRS N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
#10 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A (25) USED FILING CABINETS N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
#11 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 300 # LP TANK N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
#12 Low Value Assets PO KIE 09/01/1991 68470 SERVOLIFT  STEAM TABLE # 1,600.00 1370440001 1004366 ACT
#12 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A EXHAUST HOOD N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
#12 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A EXHAUST HOOD N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
#12 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A STEAM TABLE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
#12 Low Value Assets PO KIE 6/25/1996 80853 DISHWASHER,HOBART NEED 2,800.00 1370440001 1005077 ACT

#13 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(2) PALLETS OF VARIOUS SIZED 
WINDOWS N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

#14 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(8) PALLETS OF OLD MISC 
MODULAR   FURNITURE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

#15 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A HAMMOND ORGAN N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
#18 Low Value Assets PO KIE 9/1/1991 68476 WARMER STAINLESS STEEL NEED 1,600.00 1370440001 1004368 ACT
#19 Low Value Assets PO KIE 9/1/1991 68475 WARMER STAINLESS STEEL NEED 1,600.00 1370440001 1004367 ACT

Data Warehouse Last Refresh: 07/16/2012 011:25:26 PM

Asset Master Record Detail Report

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: August 7, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Walch, 46663; Marvin Brice CPPB 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 3 to Contract No. 
4400000768 (H.T.E. PS090266VR), Neuro Institute of Austin LP., to 
provide inpatient residential treatment services. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This contract is for the provision of residential treatment services for 
juveniles residing in Travis County. Travis County maintains an active 
network of Residential Treatment Service Contracts with different 
counties and community providers throughout Central Texas, which are 
used on an as needed basis according to the specific needs of the 
youths being placed.  This contract was requested by the Triad Program 
administered by Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans 
Services. 

This Modification No. 3 revises “Attachment G, Fee Schedule” to include 
additional services and to establish a contract rate for each of the new 
services. 

Modification No. 2 revised “Attachment G, Fee Schedule” to bring this 
agreement’s fee structure current following a review of current rates of 
equitable service.   

Modification No. 1 incorporated the addition of The Achievement 
Program scope of services and fee structure.  This program is an 
intensive psychiatric services program.   

This is a fee for service/As-needed basis contract.   
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 11



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $137,570.00 has 
been spent against this contract/requirement. 

 
 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: As needed agreement   
Contract Type: Professional Services  
Contract Period: 07/21/09—09/30/09 (auto renewal)  

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount:   As needed agreement unchanged 
Modification Type:    Bilateral 
Modification Period:  08/07/12 – until terminated 

 
 Funding Information: 

  Purchase Requisition in H.T.E.:  N/A – as needed agreement 
  Funding Account(s):  001-5869-611-6205 
  Comments: 

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 4400000768 (H.T.E. PS090266VR) - INPATIENT
RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

PAGE 1 OF 2ISSUED BY: TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT ASST: David Welch DATE PREPARED:PURCHASING OFFICE TEL NO: (512) 854-9700
July 13, 2012700 Lsvaca Street, Suite 800 FAX NO: (512) 854-9185AUSTIN, ‘DC 78701

ISSUED TO: ‘ MODIFICATION NO,: EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINALNeuro Institute of Austin, L.P. dba 3 CONTRACT:Texas Neuro Rehab Center July 27, 20091106 West Dittinar Road
Austin, TX 78745
Attn.: Beth Cathcart

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: 07/21/09 - 09/30/09 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: Until Terminated b either oy
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:
Original Contract Amount S_As Needed Basis_ Ciurent Modified Amount S As Needed Basis

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES: The above referenced contract is modified to reflect the changes as set forthbelow:

1. Pursuant to Section 6.0 AMENDMENTS I MODIFICATIONS, this agreement is herebymodified to delete “Attachment G, Fee Schedule,” dated August 31, 2011 in its entirety andreplace it with “Attachment G, Fee Schedule: The Ranch Achievement Program”, dated July 13,2012 attached hereto, and made a part hereof.

Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in fullforce and effect.

Note to Vendor:

I IC I Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return cli signed copies to Travis CountyI I DO NOT execute and return to Travis County Retain for your records

0 DBALEGAL BUSINESS N : Neuro Institute of AustIn. L.P. dba Texas Nenro Rehab Center

BY: 2Zj44ZEt1’ : RATION

BY

SIGNA1RE <J/
DATE

PRINT NAME

TITLE:_____________________ f. /9. /D’S DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT
TRAVIS UNTY, TEXAS

DATE:
BY: 43

CYD GRIMES, C.P.M., CPPO, TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS
DATE:

BY:_________________________________________________SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



4400000768 (H.T.E. PS090266VR) — Inpatient Residential
Modification 3

Page 2 of 2
July 13, 2012

Attachment G
July 13, 2012

Fee Schedule: The Ranch Achievement Pro2ram

5.b Psychiatric/Physician
Weekly Medication

Management
Code 96118: Neuropsych

Assessment

Program Rate NTE — if applies

1- Residential $250 per day N/A

2- Intensive RTC $325 per day N/A

3- Partial Hospitalization $264.50 per N/A
day

4- Intensive Outpatient $172.50 per N/A
Program day

5-Psychiatric/Physician $100 p/hour Not to exceed 2 Y2 hours or
Initial Psychiatric Evaluation $250.00 for New Admits

This is a one-time fee per child
5.a $100 p/hour Not to exceed 2 hours or

Psychiatric/Physician Initial $200.00 for Transitional Admits
Psychiatric Evaluation This is a one-time fee per child

r.

Frj..

$100 p/hour N/A

$1,500.00 EA N/A

Code90801 0r90802: $135.OOea N/A
— Diagnostic Interview

Code 97003: Occupational $148.00 p/hour N/A
Therapy Evaluation

Code 97001: Physical $140.00 p/hour N/A
Therapy Evaluation

Code 92506: Speech Therapy $291.00 p/hour N/A
Evaluation

2

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: August 7, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Bonnie Floyd 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Commissioners Eckhardt and Huber 
 
Receive update on Placement Services for an Interim CIO, RFS No. 
06032012, and take appropriate action, including: 

a. Schedule interview with top candidate; 
b. Direct HR to begin recruitment for a Permanent County Executive 

for Information Technology Services; and/or 
c. Authorize the Purchasing Agent to finalize contract negotiations 

with The Lucas Group for Interim CIO and IT assessment services.  
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

On June 5, 2012, the Commissioners Court exempted the procurement 
of a recruitment firm to hire an Interim Chief Information Officer.  RFS 
No. 06032012, Placement Services for an Interim CIO, was issued on 
June 13, 2012.  Responses from three firms were received on June 27, 
2012.  Interviews were held with the top three candidates on July 18, 
2012.  The committee chose one candidate from The Lucas Group as 
the highest qualified, and based on the interview, directed the 
Purchasing Agent to negotiate with the chosen candidate to also 
perform an IT assessment. 

The Purchasing office negotiated with The Lucas Group to provide the 
IT Assessment and CIO Transition Services, including evaluation of the 
current state of the ITS Department, performing an assessment of the 
ITS Department, assisting in the search for a new County Executive, 
and development of a Transition Roadmap to new IT County Executive; 
for a cost of $39,500 per month, plus travel and living expenses, with a 
not-to-exceed cost of $375,000 for up to nine months. At the direction of 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 14



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

the court, the Purchasing Office will schedule the top candidate for an 
interview with the court on August 14.   

Additionally, it is recommended that the Court authorize HR to begin the 
recruitment process for a permanent County Executive for Information 
Technology Services, and complete revisions to the job position 
description.  If the court decides to begin recruitment for a permanent 
County Executive for Information Technology Services, they should also 
address how an IT Assessment will be conducted, either with internal or 
external (contracted firm) resources. 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: August 7, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Lori Clyde/854-4205 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Contract Award for a Courtroom Docket 
Management System, Contract No. 4400001067, to the Highest 
Qualified Respondent, Mentis Technology Solutions, LLC. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 
 
A Request for Proposal was issued October 11, 2011 for a Courtroom 
Docket Management System for the Travis County Civil and Criminal 
Courts.  Three proposals were received November 22, 2011.  After 
evaluating the proposals and receiving Best and Final Offers, the 
committee recommends awarding to Mentis Technology Solutions, LLC 
as the highest qualified respondent for the County.   
 
The Travis County Civil and Criminal Courts recommend the purchase 
of the Mentis aiSmartBench software solution that will provide Civil and 
Criminal Courts Judges an electronic interface to case files from the 
District Clerk.  Access to electronic files is a top priority for both the 
judges and the district clerk.  For the Criminal Courts, electronic access 
to case files will reduce the costs of maintaining paper files and increase 
overall court efficiency.  For the Civil Courts, this will replace the current 
eDocket application as it reaches end of life.  Additionally included are 
professional services related to training and support.   
 
Implementation will be completed in phases as funds become available.  
For FY12, for the Civil Courts, three courts will be implemented for a 
cost of $61,131.00, including first year’s maintenance.  For the Criminal 
Courts, seven District Courts and one Magistrate Court will be 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 15



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

implemented for a cost of $205,416.00, including first year’s 
maintenance.  After the initial year, the maintenance fees will be 
approximately $3,282 per court dependent on the number of additional 
user licenses needed per court.  There is also a 3% cap on increases 
annually.  As additional funds become available, other courts will be 
implemented per costs referenced in the Contract.   
 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $266,547.00   
Contract Type: Purchase/Maintenance  
Contract Period: August 7, 2012 – August 6, 2013  

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Viewed:  58  Responses Received:  3  
HUB Information: N/A  % HUB Subcontractor: N/A  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  Fund Reservation Number: 300000207 and 300000202  
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: August 7, 2012 
Prepared By: Tim Pautsch Phone #: 854-7689 Prf3; 
Division Director/Manager: Anb!Kalin - Division Director Development Bo 
Services ~ ... 

Department Head: Stev~--XWManilla, P.., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Huber, Precinct Three 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on a Cash Security 
Agreement with Highland Homes, LTD-Austin., for sidewalk fiscal for West Cypress 
Hills Phase 1 Section 4A for Lot 26 Block C, in Precinct Three. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
The form of the Cash Security Agreement is from the Standards for Construction of 
Streets and Drainage in Subdivisions that were in place before August 28, 1997. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Highland Homes, LTD-Austin., proposed to use this Cash Security Agreement, as 
follows: Phase 1 Section 4A for Lot 26 Block C, $720.00, to post sidewalk fiscal 
where the sidewalks have not been completed in this subdivision. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
None 


FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

There are no budgetary and/or fiscal impacts as this IS fiscal posted for a 

development. 


ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Cash Security Agreement, Map of lot. 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin Division Director 

Development Services 
TNR 854-7561 

Stacey Scheffel Permits Program 
Manager 
Floodplain 
Administrator 

TNR 854-7565 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 16



CC: 

Tim Pautsch Engineering Specialist TNR 854-7689 

TP:AB:tp 
1101 - Development Services - West Cypress Hills Ph 1 Sec 4A 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



§ EXHIBIT 82.401 (C) 

CASH SECURITY AGREEMENT - SIDEWALKS 

TO: 	 Travis County, Texas 

DEVELOPERJBUILDER: 	 Highland Homes, Ltd. - Austin 

ESCROW AGENT: 	 Travis County Treasurer 

AMOUNT OF SECURITY: 	 $7?-.O,<:O ADDRESS 4(7 LW"r& ~(~ 
SUBDIVISION: 	 West Cypress Hills /' J I /1 

LOT:dC,p BLOCK: -C:.~=-_SECT. :":1..11
DATE OF POSTING: 'f; 	~- I ~ 

EXPIRATION DATE: 	 Three Years, or more from Date of Posting 

The ESCROW AGENT shall duly honor all drafts drawn and presented in accordance with this 
Agreement. Travis County may draw on the account of the DEVELOPERJBUILDER up to the 
aggregate AMOUNT OF SECURITY upon presentation of a draft signed by the County Judge 
that the following condition exists: 

The county considers such a drawing on this Security necessary to complete all or part of the 
SUBDIVISION Sidewalks to ADA and Texas Accessibility Standards. No further substantiation 
of the necessity of the draw is required by this Agreement. 

This Agreement is conditioned on the performance of the duties of the DEVELOPER! BUILDER 
to provide for the construction and completion of the Sidewalk Improvements in the 
SUBDIVISION to current Travis County Standards for Construction of Streets and Drainage in 
Subdivisions (the "Standards"), so that the Sidewalk Improvements are performing to the 
Standards upon the approval of the construction of the Sidewalk Improvements, and the 
acceptance of the Sidewalk Improvements by the Executive Manager of TNR or his designated 
representative. The DEVELOPER! BUILDER shall prove that the sidewalk is built to Texas 
Accessibility Standards by submitting an approved inspection letter from a Registered 
Accessibility Specialist. 

If this document needs to be renewed, it will be renewed at the then current rate for Sidewalks 
required by Travis County. In no case shall the amount of Security be less that the amount it 
would cost the County to complete the work if it becomes necessary. 

Partial drafts and reductions in the amount of Security are permitted. Drafts will be honored 
within five calendar days of presentment. In lieu of drawing on the Security, the County, in its 
discretion, may accept a substitute Security in the then current amount of the estimated cost of 
constructing the Improvements. This Agreement may be revoked only by written consent of the 
DEVELOPERJBUILDER and the County. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Cash Security Agreement - Sidewalks 
Page 2 

COMPANY NAME & ADDRESS 

Highland Homes Ltd. - Austin 

PRLNT: ____~C~y=m=h=ia~H=ic=o=ck~________ 4201 W.Parmer Ln.,Bldg B, Ste, 180 

TITLE: ____~O~ffi~lc=e'_!.A..!.::d~m~i~n~is~tr.!:!:at=o"__r_____ Austin, Texas 78727 

PHONE: __~51~2~-8=3~4-~8~42=9=x~10=8~____ 

APPROVED BY THE TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT: _____________ 
Date 

COUNTY JUDGE, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

Date 

2 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



.6 

c:r 
• 

*• 
o 

S.t. 
P.U.(. 
V.w.S.E. 
OPRTCT 

\ 
CIlY Of AUSTlN ~D IllFOOW.TiON SER'¥1CES 

AIlOI1ES5EDBY~ DAlE~ 
GR1D~ PIAT'~ 
ADDRESS QlJEsnOtlS. CAI151~ 

_ _ ::::=J 

0' 150' 100' 200" 
~1""W 

" 

~ 

I 

41 
lI11UTY. DRAINAGE. WATER 

QUAIJT'( BMP & 
AMeNnYLOT 

>4J~0I'r&r 
~~i 

" r ~ II ~4.~ 

29 
lII1.ITY. DI'IAIIIAGE 

WATER QUAIJT'( lIMP 
,AMENITY LOT 

BLOCKC 

'":£; 

~ 

.'" 

\ 

,------'..... 

,," "" , " I 'I. 
I 'I. 
I \ 
I \ 

I \ 

I I 

\ I 

\ I 

\ I 

\ I 

'I. I 

'I. A 
" I' "" ' " ",-----,~~', " 

" " " " DETAIL " " " "
" , 

~~~ 
I~h 
~I:~ 

~p 

LEGEND 
CONCRETE IKlNUWOO sa 

IRON ROO FOUNO (AS HOTEO) 

IRON ROO WITH CN' fOUND (AS IOEHl1F'lED) 


catiON SPINOLE rotJNO 

IRON AOO WITH C» STAMPED ~ASt" set 

~ClJLATm POINT 


,$IO£WAlJ( LOrCAT'lON 
SLOPE WOiEf.lT 
PUBUC unllT'f EASEWEHT 
VAAIASl£ WIDTH St...DP( EASE).lrur 

Omcw... pueuc AECoAOS 'TAAVIS COUNTY, f"£XAS 

_..-rSCf'tI'OfllCONTWaM'TION 

.. 

-Tl!XI.a SHEET 2WEST CYPRESS HILLS-.uno.. OF
PHASE ONE, SECTION 4A.. 3 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http:WOiEf.lT


Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Steve Su 
, 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2012 

Prepared By: Steve Sun Phone #: 854-4660 

Division Director/Manager: ,P.E., Engineering Division Manager 


Department HeadlTitle: Ste nil ,P.E., County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Davis, Precinct One 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests: 

A) Approve an Advance Funding Agreement with Texas Department of 

Transportation for intersection improvements at FM 973 and Braker Lane Extension; 

and 

B) Approve a Resolution supporting the Advance Funding Agreement with Texas 

Department of Transportation for intersection improvements at FM 973 and Braker 

Lane Extension, in Precinct One. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Braker Lane Extension is a public-private-public partnership project approved by the 

voters in the 2005 Bond election. The project consists of extending Braker Lane from 

FM 973 eastward to Taylor Lane. This extension is approximately 2 miles long and 

will ul,timately be a 4-lane divided arterial with bike lanes and sidewalks. A 

Participation Agreement was entered into by Travis County and the developer, Club 

Deal 120 Whisper Valley L.P., in November 2007. Per the Participation Agreement, 

the developer will donate right-of-way (ROW) needed for the road extension and will 

share eligible engineering and construction costs equally with the county. 


Since the Braker Lane Extension will tie to FM 973, a construction permit is required 

by TxDOT. Under the permit review, TxDOT requries left and right turn lanes to be 

built on FM 973 at this new intersection. 


This Advance Funding Agreement is required by TxDOT to allow for the construction 

of those turn lanes within the FM 973 ROW. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

TNR recommends approval of this AFA in order to obtain TxDOT permit for tying in 

the Braker Lane Extension to FM 973. 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 


Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 17



This AFA allows county and/or its engineering consultants and contractors to 
perform engineering and construction work for improvements within state ROW at 
this new intersection. The engineer will have to perform the design work in 
accordance with TxDOT's Standard Specifications for Construction and Maintenance 
of Highways, Streets, and Bridges. The engineer will also have to perform an 
environmental assessment and mitigation in accordance with the National 
Environmental Policy Act and the National Historic Preservation Act. The contractor 
performing the work will have to provide a certificate of insurance verifying the 
coverage in certain amounts and types for all persons and entities working within the 
state ROW. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
Total estimated cost for the intersection improvements is $756,793.46. TxDOT will 
provide assistance for environmental study, engineering, ROW, utility and 
construction administration at an estimated cost of $65,480.46. The developer and 
county will share the engineering and construction costs per the Participation 
Agreement for an estimated amount of $691 ,313. The county's share of the costs in 
the amount of $345,656.50 is available from 2005 bond funds. The funds are 
encumbered as follows: 

Fund Center 1490190000 
Fund - 4058 
GL Account - 521040 
WBS Element - RDCN.149.000006 
Fund Reservation - To be provided as soon as WBS and BA are processed in SAP 

EXHIBITS/ATTACHMENTS: 
Advance Funding Agreement 
Resolution 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 
Christopher Gilmore Attorney County Attorney's 854-9455 

Office 

cc: 

Steve Sun 
Tony Valdez 
Donna Williams-Jones 

TNR 
TNR 
TNR 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http:345,656.50
http:65,480.46
http:756,793.46


3101 - Public Works/CIP

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



I 
CODE:~~_ 


Texas Department of Transportation 
P.O. DRAWER 15426· AUSTIN, TEXAS 78761-5426· (512) 832-7000 RECEIVE 

July11,2012 JUL 162012 

Travis County TN R 
CSJ: 1200-03-054 
FM 973 at Braker Lane 
Intersection Improvements 

Steven Manilla, P.E. 
Executive Manager 
Transportation and Natural Resources 
County of Travis 
P. O. Box 1748 
Austin, TX 78767-1748 

Dear Mr. Manilla: 

Enclosed for partial execution are two copies of an Advance Funding Agreement 
for the above project. The project consists of the construction of intersection 
improvements on FM 973 at proposed Braker Lane. 

Please return the two signed and dated documents to this office for full execution. 
An executed copy will be returned for your records. 

If you have any questions, please contact me at (512) 832-7050. 

Patricia L. Crews-Weight, P.E. 
Director of Design - AUS 

Attachments 

cc: 	 John R. Wagner, P.E., Georgetown/N. Travis Area Engineer 
Bobby Ramthun, P.E., N. Travis Area Office 
Mike Walker, District Environmental Coordinator 

THE TEXAS PLAN 


REDUCE CONGESTION· ENHANCE SAFETY • EXPAND ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY' IMPROVE AIR QUALITY 

PRESERVE THE VALUE OF TRANSPORTATION ASSETS 


Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin ORIGI A 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

ADVANCE FUNDING AGREEMENT 
ForA 

Local Construction Project 

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the State of Texas, acting by and through the Texas 
Department of Transportation called the "State", and the County of Travis, acting by and through 
its duly authorized officials, called the "Local Government." 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, federal law establishes federally funded programs for transportation improvements to 
irnplement its public purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Code, Sections 201.103 and 222.052 establish that the 
State shall design, construct and operate a system of highways in cooperation with local 
governments; and 

WHEREAS, federal and state laws require local governments to meet certain contract standards 
relating to the management and administration of State and federal funds; and 

WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Commission passed Minute Order Number 113074, 
authorizing the State to undertake and complete a highway improvement generally described as 
construct turn lanes, called the "Project"; and, 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Local Government has approved entering into this 
agreement by resolution or ordinance dated , 20_, which is attached to and 
made a part of this agreement as Attachment "A" for the improvement covered by this agreement. 
A map showing the Project location appears in Attachment "B," which is attached to and made a 
part of this agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants and 
agreements of the parties, to be by them respectively kept and performed as set forth in this 
agreement, it is agreed as follows: 

AFA-AFA_LongGen Page 1 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

AGREEMENT 

1. 	 Period of the Agreement 
This agreement becomes effective when signed by the last party whose signing makes the 
agreement fully executed. This agreement shall remain in effect until the Project is completed 
or unless terminated as provided below. 

2. 	 Scope of Work 
Construct one left and one right turn lane on FM 973 at Braker Lane, as shown on Attachment 
"8". 

3. 	 Local Project Sources and Uses of Funds 
A. The total estimated cost of the Project is shown in the Project Budget - Attachment "C", 

which is attached to and made a part of this agreement. The expected cash contributions 
from the Federal or State government, the Local Governments, or other parties is shown in 
Attachment "C". The State will pay for only those project costs that have been approved by 
the Texas Transportation Commission. The State and the Federal Government will not 
reimburse the Local Government for any work performed before the federal spending 
authority is formally obligated to the Project by the Federal Highway Administration. After 
federal funds have been obligated, the State will send to the Local Government a copy of 
the formal documentation showing the obligation of funds including federal award 
information. The Local Government is responsible for 100% of the cost of any work 
performed under its direction or control before the federal spending authority is formally 
obligated. 

B. If the Local Government will perform any work under this contract for which reimbursement 
will be provided by or through the State, the Local Government must complete training 
before federal spending authority is obligated. Training is complete when at least one 
individual who is working actively and directly on the Project successfully completes and 
receives a certificate for the course entitled Local Government Project Procedures 
Qualification for the Texas Department of Transportation. The Local Government shall 
provide the certificate of qualification to the State. The individual who receives the training 
certificate may be an employee of the Local Government or an employee of a firm that has 
been contracted by the Local Government to perform oversight of the Project. The State in 
its discretion may deny reimbursement if the Local Government has not designated a 
qualified individual to oversee the Project. 

c. 	This Project cost estimate shows how necessary resources for completing the Project will 
be provided by major cost categories. These categories may include but are not limited to: 
(1) costs of real property; (2) costs of utility work; (3) costs of environmental assessment 
and remediation; (4) cost of preliminary engineering and design; (5) cost of construction 
and construction management; and (6) any other local project costs. 

D. 	The State will be responsible for securing the Federal and State share of the funding 
required for the development and construction of the local Project. If the Local Government 
is due funds for expenses incurred, these funds will be reimbursed to the Local 
Government on a cost basis. 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 2 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

E. 	 The Local Government will be responsible for all non-federal or non-state participation 
costs associated with the Project, including any overruns in excess of the approved local 
project budget unless otherwise provided for in this agreement or approved otherwise in an 
amendment to this agreement. 

F. 	 Prior to the performance of any engineering review work by the State, the Local 
Government will pay to the State the amount specified in Attachment C. At a minimum, this 
amount shall equal the Local Government's funding share for the estimated cost of 
preliminary engineering for the Project. At least sixty (60) days prior to the date set for 
receipt of the construction bids, the Local Government shall remit its remaining financial 
share for the State's estimated construction oversight and construction cost. 

G. 	In the event that the State determines that additional funding by the Local Government is 
required at any time during the Project, the State will notify the Local Government in writing. 
The Local Government shall make payment to the State within thirty (30) days from receipt 
of the State's written notification. 

H. 	Whenever funds are paid by the Local Government to the State under this agreement, the 
Local Government shall remit a check or warrant made payable to the "Texas Department 
of Transportation Trust Fund." The check or warrant shall be deposited by the State in an 
escrow account to be managed by the State. Funds in the escrow account may only be 
applied to the State Project. 

I. 	 Upon completion of the Project, the State will perform an audit of the Project costs. Any 
funds due by the Local Government, the State, or the Federal government will be promptly 
paid by the owing party. If, after final Project accounting, excess funds remain in the escrow 
account, those funds may be applied by the State to the Local Government's contractual 
obligations to the State under another advance funding agreement with approval by 
appropriate personnel of the Local Government. 

J. 	 The State will not pay interest on any funds provided by the Local Government. 
K. 	 If a waiver has been granted, the State will not charge the Local Government for the 

indirect costs the State incurs on the local Project, unless this agreement is terminated at 
the request of the Local Government prior to completion of the Project. 

L. 	 If the Project has been approved for a "fixed price" or an "incremental payment" non
standard funding or payment arrangement under 43 T AC §15.52, the budget in Attachment 
C will clearly state the amount of the fixed price or the incremental payment schedule. 

M. 	If the Local government is an Economically Disadvantaged County and if the State has 
approved adjustments to the standard financing arrangement, this agreement reflects those 
adjustments. 

N. 	The state auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of any entity receiving funds from 
the State directly under this contract or indirectly through a subcontract under this contract. 
Acceptance of funds directly under this contract or indirectly through a subcontract under 
this contract acts as acceptance of the authority of the state auditor, under the direction of 
the legislative audit committee, to conduct an audit or investigation in connection with those 
funds. An entity that is the subject of an audit or investigation must provide the state 
auditor with access to any information the state auditor considers relevant to the 
investigation or audit. 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 3 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

O. 	Payment under this contract beyond the end of the current fiscal biennium is subject to 
availability of appropriated funds. If funds are not appropriated, this contract shall be 
terminated immediately with no liability to either party. 

P. 	 The Local Government is authorized to submit requests for reimbursement by submitting 
the original of an itemized invoice in a form and containing all items required by the State 
no more frequently than monthly, and no later than ninety (90) days after costs are 
incurred. If the Local Government submits invoices more than ninety (90) days after the 
costs are incurred, and if federal funding is reduced as a result, the State shall have no 
responsibility to reimburse the Local Government for those costs. 

Q. 	The State will not execute the contract for the construction of the Project until the required 
funding has been made available by the Local Government in accordance with this 
agreement. 

4. 	 Termination of this Agreement 
This agreement shall remain in effect until the project is completed and accepted by all parties, 
unless: 
A. The agreement is terminated in writing with the mutual consent of the parties; 
B. 	The agreement is terminated by one party because of a breach, in which case any cost 

incurred because of the breach shall be paid by the breaching party; 
C. 	The Local Government elects not to provide funding after the completion of preliminary 

engineering, specifications, and estimates (PS&E) and the Project does not proceed 
because of insufficient funds, in which case the Local Government agrees to reimburse the 
State for its reasonable actual costs incurred during the Project; or 

D. 	The Project is inactive for thirty-six (36) months or longer and no expenditures have been 
charged against federal funds, in which case the State may in its discretion terminate this 
agreement. 

5. 	 Amendments 
Amendments to this agreement due to changes in the character of the work, terms of the 
agreement, or responsibilities of the parties relating to the Project may be enacted through a 
mutually agreed upon, written amendment. 

6. 	 Remedies 
This agreement shall not be considered as specifying the exclusive remedy for any agreement 
default, but all remedies existing at law and in equity may be availed of by either party to this 
agreement and shall be cumulative. 

7. 	 Utilities 
The Local Government shall be responsible for the adjustment, removal, or relocation of utility 
facilities in accordance with applicable State laws, regulations, rules, policies, and procedures, 
including any cost to the State of a delay resulting from the Local Government's failure to 
ensure that utility facilities are adjusted, removed, or relocated before the scheduled beginning 
of construction. The Local Government will not be reimbursed with federal or state funds for 
the cost of required utility work. The Local Government must obtain advance approval for any 
variance from established procedures. Before a construction contract is let, the Local 
Government shall provide, at the State's request, a certification stating that the Local 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 4 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

Government has completed the adjustment of all utilities that must be adjusted before 
construction is completed. 

8. 	 Environmental Assessment and Mitigation 
Development of a transportation project must comply with the National Environmental Policy 
Act and the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, which require environmental clearance 
of federal-aid projects. 
A. The Local Government is responsible for the identification and assessment of any 

environmental problems associated with the development of a local project governed by 
this agreement. 

B. 	The Local Government is responsible for the cost of any environmental problem's 

mitigation and remediation. 


C. 	The Local Government is responsible for providing any public meetings or public hearings 
required for development of the environmental assessment. Public hearings will not be 
held prior to the approval of project schematic. 

D. 	 The Local Government is responsible for the preparation of the NEPA documents required 
for the environmental clearance of this Project. 

E. 	 Before the advertisement for bids, the Local Government shall provide to the State written 
documentation from the appropriate regulatory agency or agencies that all environmental 
clearances have been obtained. 

9. 	 Compliance with Texas Accessibility Standards and ADA 
All parties to this agreement shall ensure that the plans for and the construction of all projects 
subject to this agreement are in compliance with the Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS) 
issued by the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation, under the Architectural Barriers 
Act, Article 9102, Texas Civil Statutes. The TAS establishes minimum accessibility 
requirements to be consistent with minimum accessibility requirements of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (P.L. 101-336) (ADA). 

10. 	Architectural and Engineering Services 
The Local Government has responsibility for the performance of architectural and engineering 
services. The engineering plans shall be developed in accordance with the applicable State's 
Standard Specifications for Construction and Maintenance of Highways, Streets and Bridges 
and the special specifications and special provisions related to it. For projects on the state 
highway system, the design shall, at a minimum conform to applicable State manuals. For 
projects not on the state highway system, the design shall, at a minimum, conform to 
applicable American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials design 
standards. In procuring professional services, the parties to this agreement must comply with 
federal requirements cited in 23 CFR Part 172 if the project is federally funded and with Texas 
Government Code 2254, Subchapter A, in all cases. Professional contracts for federally 
funded projects must conform to federal requirements, specifically including the provision for 
participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs), ADA, and environmental 
matters. 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 5 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

11. Construction Responsibilities 
A. The Local Government shall advertise for construction bids, issue bid proposals, receive 

and tabulate the bids, and award and administer the contract for construction of the Project. 
Administration of the contract includes the responsibility for construction engineering and 
for issuance of any change orders, supplemental agreements, amendments, or additional 
work orders that may become necessary subsequent to the award of the construction 
contract. In order to ensure federal funding eligibility, projects must be authorized by the 
State prior to advertising for construction. 

B. The Local Government will use its approved contract letting and award procedures to let 
and award the construction contract. 

C. Prior to their execution, the State will be given the opportunity to review and approve 
contract change orders. 

D. 	 Upon completion of the Project, the party constructing the Project will issue and sign a 
"Notification of Completion" acknowledging the Project's construction completion. 

E. 	 For federally funded contracts, the parties to this agreement will comply with federal 
construction requirements cited in 23 CFR Part 635 and with requirements cited in 23 CFR 
Part 633, and shall include the latest version of Form "FHWA-1273" in the contract bidding 
documents. If force account work will be performed, a finding of cost effectiveness shall be 
made in compliance with 23 CFR 635, Subpart B. 

12. Project Maintenance 
The Local Government shall be responsible for maintenance of locally owned roads after 
completion of the work and the State shall be responsible for maintenance of state highway 
system after completion of the work if the work was on the state highway system, unless 
otherwise provided for in existing maintenance agreements with the Local Government. 

13. Right of Way and Real Property - This Article is Not Applicable 
The State is responsible for the provision and acquisition of any needed right of way or real 
property. 

14. Notices 
All notices to either party shall be delivered personally or sent by certified or U.S. mail, postage 
prepaid, addressed to that party at the following address: 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 6 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

Local Government: State: 

County of Travis Director of Contract Services 

Attn: County Judge Texas Department of Transportation 

P.O. Box 1748 125 E. 11 th Street 

Austin, TX 78767-1748 Austin, Texas 78701 

All notices shall be deemed given on the date delivered in person or deposited in the mail, 
unless otherwise provided by this agreement. Either party may change the above address by 
sending written notice of the change to the other party. Either party may request in writing that 
notices shall be delivered personally or by certified U.S. mail, and that request shall be carried 
out by the other party. 

15. Legall Construction 
If one or more of the provisions contained in this agreement shall for any reason be held 
inva'lid, iUegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability 
shall not affect any other provisions and this agreement shall be construed as if it did not 
contain the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision. 

16. Responsibilities of the Parties 
The State and the Local Government agree that neither party is an agent, servant, or 
employee of the other party and each party agrees it is responsible for its individual acts and 
deeds as well as the acts and deeds of its contractors, employees, representatives, and 
agents. 

17. Ownership of Documents 
Upon completion or termination of this agreement, all documents prepared by the State shall 
remain the property of the State. All data prepared under this agreement shall be made 
availlable to the State without restriction or limitation on their further use. All documents 
produced or approved or otherwise created by the Local Government shall be transmitted to 
the State in the form of photocopy reproduction on a monthly basis as required by the State. 
The originals shall remain the property of the Local Government. At the request of the State, 
the Loca'i Government shall submit any information required by the State in the format directed 
by the State. 

18. Compliance with Laws 
The parties s'hall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and 
regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or tribunals in 
any manner affecting the performance of this agreement. When required, the Local 
Government shall furnish the State with satisfactory proof of this compliance. 

AFA-AFA_LongGen Page 7 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

19. Sole Agreement 
This agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement between the parties and supersedes 
any prior understandings or written or oral agreements respecting the agreement's subject 
matter. 

20. 	Cost Principles 
In order to be reimbursed with federal funds, the parties shall comply with the Cost Principles 
established in OMB Circular A-87 that specify that all reimbursed costs are allowable, 
reasonable, and allocable to the Project. 

21. Procurement and Property Management Standards 
The parties shall adhere to the procurement standards established in Title 49 CFR §18.36 and 
with the property management standard established in Title 49 CFR §18.32. 

22. Inspection of Books and Records 
The parties to this agreement shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records, 
and other documentation relating to costs incurred under this agreement and shall make such 
materials available to the State, the Local Government, and, if federally funded, the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA), and the U.S. Office of the Inspector General, or their duly 
authorized representatives for review and inspection at its office during the contract period and 
for four (4) years from the date of completion of work defined under this contract or until any 
impending litigation, or claims are resolved. Additionally, the State, the Local Government, 
and the FHWA and their duly authorized representatives shall have access to all the 
governmental records that are directly applicable to this agreement for the purpose of making 
audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. 

23. 	Civi'l Rights Compliance 
The Local Government shall comply with the regulations of the United States Department of 
Transportation as they relate to non-discrimination (49 CFR Part 21 and 23 CFR Part 200), 
and Executive Order 11246 titled "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive 
Order 11375 and supplemented in the Department of Labor Regulations (41 CFR Part 60). 

24. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program Requirements 
A. The parties shall comply with the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program 


requirements established in 49 CFR Part 26. 

B. 	The Local Government shall adopt, in its totality, the State's federally approved DBE 

program. 
C. 	The Local Government shall set an appropriate DBE goal consistent with the State's DBE 

guidelines and in consideration of the local market, project size, and nature of the goods or 
services to be acquired. The Local Government shall have final decision-making authority 
regarding the DBE goal and shall be responsible for documenting its actions. 

D. The Local Government shall follow all other parts of the State's DBE program referenced in 
TxDOT Form 2395, Memorandum of Understanding Regarding the Adoption of the Texas 
Department of Transportation's Federally-Approved Disadvantaged Business Enterprise by 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 8 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

Entity, and attachments found at web address 
http://txdot.gov/business/businessoutreach/mou.htm . 

E. 	 The Local Government shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or 
sex in the award and performance of any U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT)
assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE program or the requirements of 49 CFR 
Part 26. The Local Government shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 
CFR Part 26 to ensure non-discrimination in award and administration of DOT-assisted 
contracts. The State's DBE program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as approved by 
DOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation of this program is a 
legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this 
agreement. Upon notification to the Local Government of its failure to carry out its 
approved program, the State may impose sanctions as provided for under 49 CFR Part 26 
and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 
the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.). 

F. 	 Each contract the Local Government signs with a contractor (and each subcontract the 
prime contractor signs with a sub-contractor) must include the following assurance: The 
contractor, sub-recipient, or sub-contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out 
applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT
assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material 
breach of this agreement, which may result in the termination of this agreement or such 
other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate. 

25. 	Debarment Certifications 
The parties are prohibited from making any award at any tier to any party that is debarred or 
suspended or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal Assistance 
Programs under Executive Order 12549, "Debarment and Suspension." By executing this 
agreement, the Local Government certifies that it is not currently debarred, suspended, or 
otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal Programs under Executive 
Order 12549 and further certifies that it will not do business with any party that is currently 
debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal 
Assistance Programs under Executive Order 12549. The parties to this contract shall require 
any party to a subcontract or purchase order awarded under this contract to certify its eligibility 
to receive federal funds and, when requested by the State, to furnish a copy of the certification. 

26. 	Lobbying Certification 
In executing this agreement, each signatory certifies to the best of that signatory's knowledge 
and belief, that: 
A. 	No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the parties 

to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal 
contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 9 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://txdot.gov/business/businessoutreach/mou.htm


CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

B. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with federal contracts, grants, loans, or cooperative agreements, 
the signatory for the Local Government shall complete and submit the Federal Standard 
Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 

C. The parties shall require thalt the language of this certification shall be included in the award 
documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts 
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and all sUb-recipients shall certify and 
disclose accordingly. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or 
entering into this transaction imposed by Title 31 U.S.C. §1352. Any person who fails to file 
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not 
more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

27. Insurance 
If this agreement authorizes the Local Government or its contractor to perform any work on 
State right of way, before beginning work the entity performing the work shall provide the State 
with a fully executed copy of the State's Form 15BO Certificate of Insurance verifying the 
existence of coverage in the amounts and types speCified on the Certificate of Insurance for all 
persons and entities working on State r'ight of way. This coverage shall be maintained until all 
wor,k on the State right of way is complete. If coverage is not maintained, all work on State 
right of way shall cease immediately, and the State may recover damages and all costs of 
completing the work. 

28. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Requirements 
A. 	Any recipient of funds under this agreement agrees to comply with the Federal Funding 

Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) and implementing regulations at 2 CFR Part 
170, including Appendix A. This agreement is subject to the following award terms: 
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/2010-22705.pdf and 
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/201 0/pdf/201 0-2270B.pdf. 

B. The Local Government agrees that it shall: 
1. 	 Obtain and provide to the State, a Central Contracting Registry (CCR) number 

(Federal Acquisition Regulation, Part 4, Sub-part 4.1100) id this award provides more 
than $25,000 in Federal funding. The CCR number may be obtained by visiting the 
CCR website whose address is: https:llwww.bpn.gov/ccr/default.aspx; 

2. 	 Obtain and provide to the State a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number, a 
unique nine-character number that allows Federal government to track the distribution 
of federal money. The DUNS may be requested free of charge for all businesses and 
entities required to do so by visiting the Dun & Bradstreet (D&B) on-line registration 
website http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform; and 

3. 	 Report the total compensation and names of its top five (5) executives to the State if: 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 10 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform
https:llwww.bpn.gov/ccr/default.aspx
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/201
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/2010-22705.pdf


CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

i. 	 More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and 
those revenues are greater than $25,000,000; and 

ii. 	The compensation information is not already available through reporting to the U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission. 

29. Single Audit Report 
A. 	The parties shall comply with the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984, P.L. 98-502, 

ensuring that the single audit report includes the coverage stipulated in OMB Circular A
133. 

B. 	 If threshold expenditures of $500,000 or more are met during the Local Government's fiscal 
year, the Local Government must submit a Single Audit Report and Management Letter (if 
applicable) to TxDOT's Audit Office, 125 E. 11 th Street, Austin, TX 78701 or contact 
TxDOT's Audit Office at http://www.txdot.qov/contactus/audit.htm. 

C. 	 If expenditures are less than $500,000 during the Local Government's fiscal year, the Local 
Government must submit a statement to TxDOT's Audit Office as follows: "We did not meet 
the $500,000 expenditure threshold and therefore, are not required to have a single audit 
performed for FY " 

D. 	 For each year the project remains open for federal funding expenditures, the Local 
Government will be responsible for filing a report or statement as described above. The 
required annual filing shall extend throughout the life of the agreement, unless otherwise 
amended or the project has been formally closed out and no charges have been incurred 
within the current fiscal year. 

30. Signatory Warranty 
Each signatory warrants that the signatory has necessary authority to execute this agreement 
on behalf of the entity represented. 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 11 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://www.txdot.qov/contactus/audit.htm


CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

THIS AGREEMENT IS EXECUTED by the State and the Local Government in duplicate. 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

Signature 

Typed or Printed Name 

Title 

Date 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

Janice Mullenix 
Director of Contract Services 
Texas Department of Transportation 

Date 

AFA-AFA_LongGen Page 12 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

ATTACHMENT A 
RESOLUTION OR ORDINANCE 

AFA-AFA_LongGen Page 1 of 1 Attachment A 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austi n 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Developm ent 

ATTACHMENT B - LOCATION MAP SHOWING PROJECT 

BRAKER LANE 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

N 

• 
• 

. . 
W· E. . . , 

s 

LOCATION 
MAP 

Page 1 of 1 Attachment B 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



·. 

CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

ATTACHMENT C 

PROJECT BUDGET 


The Local Government will be responsible for 100% of the costs, except for Direct and Indirect State 
Costs. 

Description rrotal 
Estimated 
~ost 

Federal 
Participation 

State Participation Local Participation 

% ~ost % ~ost % ~ost 
Engineering 
by Local Government) 

~ 90,000.00 0% ~O 0% ~O 100% ~ 90,000.00 

Environmental 
by Local Government) 

$ 10,000.00 0% $0 0% ~O 100% ~ 10,000.00 

Construction 
I by Local Government) 

~ 591 ,313.00 0% ~O 0% ~O 100% ~ 591,313.00 

SUbtotal $ 691,313.00 $0 $0 $ 691,313.00 

1 

Preliminary 
Engineering 
Direct State 

Costs = 
$10,033 

Environ. 
Direct State 
Costs (20%) 

$ 2,007.00 0% $0 100% ~ 2,007.00 0% ~O 

Right of Way 
Direct State 
Costs (20%) 

$ 2,007.00 0% $0 100% ~ 2,007.00 0% ~O 

Engineering 
Direct State 
Costs (40%) 

$ 4,012.00 0% $0 100% ~ 4,012.00 0% ~O 

Utility Direct 
~tate Costs 
1/20%) 

$ 2,007.00 0% $0 100% $ 2,007.00 0% ~O 

Fonstruction Direct State 
Costs 

$ 5,189.00 0% $0 100% $ 5,189.00 0% ~O 

Indirect State Costs 
7.27%) 

$ 50,258.46 0% ~O 100% $ 50,258.46 0% $0 

Subtotal $ 65,480.46 $0 $ 65,480.46 $0 
rrOTAL $ 756,793.46 $0 ~ 65,480.46 $ 691,313.00 

Initial payment by the Local Government to the State: $0. 

Payment by the Local Government to the State before construction: $0. 

Estimated total payment by the Local Government to the State $0. This is an estimate. 

The final amount of Local Government participation will be based on actual costs. 


AFA-AFA_LongGen Page 1 of 1 Attachment C 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



ORIGINALCSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COU NTY OF TRAVIS § 

ADVANCE FUNDING AGREEMENT 
ForA 

Local Construction Project 

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the State of Texas, acting by and through the Texas 
Department of Transportation called the "State", and the County of Travis, acting by and through 
its duly authorized officials, called the "Local Government." 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, federal law establishes federally funded programs for transportation improvements to 
implement its public purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Code, Sections 201 .103 and 222.052 establish that the 
State shall design, construct and operate a system of highways in cooperation with local 
governments; and 

WHEREAS, federal and state laws require local governments to meet certain contract standards 
relating to the management and administration of State and federal funds ; and 

WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Commission passed Minute Order Number 113074, 
authorizing the State to undertake and complete a highway improvement generally described as 
construct turn lanes, called the "Project"; and, 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Local Government has approved entering into this 
agreement by resolution or ordinance dated , 20_, which is attached to and 
made a part of this agreement as Attachment "A" for the improvement covered by this agreement. 
A map showing the Project location appears in Attachment "B," whic~1 is attached to and made a 
part of this agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants and 
agreements of the parties, to be by them respectively kept and performed as set forth in this 
agreement, it is agreed as follows : 

AFA-AFA_LongGen Page 1 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

AGREEMENT 

1. 	 Period of the Agreement 
This agreement becomes effective when signed by the last party whose signing makes the 
agreement fully executed. This agreement shall remain in effect until the Project is completed 
or unless terminated as provided below. 

2. 	 Scope of Work 
Construct one left and one right turn lane on FM 973 at Braker Lane, as shown on Attachment 
"8", 

3. 	 Local Project Sources and Uses of Funds 
A. The total estimated cost of the Project is shown in the Project Budget - Attachment "C", 

which is attached to and made a part of this agreement. The expected cash contributions 
from the Federal or State government, the Local Governments, or other parties is shown in 
Attachment "C". The State will pay for only those project costs that have been approved by 
the Texas Transportation Commission. The State and the Federal Government will not 
reimburse the Local Government for any work performed before the federal spending 
authority is formally obligated to the Project by the Federal Highway Administration. After 
federal funds have been obligated, the State will send to the Local Government a copy of 
the formal documentation showing the obligation of funds including federal award 
information. The Local Government is responsible for 100% of the cost of any work 
performed under its direction or control before the federal spending authority is formally 
obligated. 

B. 	If the Local Government will perform any work under this contract for which reimbursement 
will be provided by or through the State, the Local Government must complete training 
before federal spending authority is obligated. Training is complete when at least one 
individual who is working actively and directly on the Project successfully completes and 
receives a certificate for the course entitled Local Government Project Procedures 
Qualification for the Texas Department of Transportation. The Local Government shall 
provide the certificate of qualification to the State. The individual who receives the training 
certificate may be an employee of the Local Government or an employee of a firm that has 
been contracted by the Local Government to perform oversight of the Project. The State in 
its discretion may deny reimbursement if the Local Government has not deSignated a 
qualified individual to oversee the Project. 

C. This Project cost estimate shows how necessary resources for completing the Project will 
be provided by major cost categories. These categories may include but are not limited to: 
(1) costs of real property; (2) costs of utility work; (3) costs of environmental assessment 
and remediation; (4) cost of preliminary engineering and design; (5) cost of construction 
and construction management; and (6) any other local project costs. 

D. The State will be responsible for securing the Federal and State share of the funding 
required for the development and construction of the local Project. If the Local Government 
is due funds for expenses incurred, these funds will be reimbursed to the Local 
Government on a cost basis. 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 2 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

E. 	 The Local Government will be responsible for all non-federal or non-state participation 
costs associated with the Project, including any overruns in excess of the approved local 
project budget unless otherwise provided for in this agreement or approved otherwise in an 
amendment to this agreement. 

F. 	 Prior to the performance of any engineering review work by the State, the Local 
Government will pay to the State the amount specified in Attachment C. At a minimum, this 
amount shall equal the Local Government's funding share for the estimated cost of 
preliminary engineering for the Project. At least sixty (60) days prior to the date set for 
receipt of the construction bids, the Local Government shall remit its remaining financial 
share for the State's estimated construction oversight and construction cost. 

G. 	In the event that the State determines that additional funding by the Local Government is 
required at any time during the Project, the State will notify the Local Government in writing. 
The Local Government shall make payment to the State within thirty (30) days from receipt 
of the State's written notification. 

H. 	Whenever funds are paid by the Local Government to the State under this agreement, the 
Local Government shall remit a check or warrant made payable to the "Texas Department 
of Transportation Trust Fund." The check or warrant shall be deposited by the State in an 
escrow account to be managed by the State. Funds in the escrow account may only be 
applied to the State Project. 

I. 	 Upon completion of the Project, the State will perform an audit of the Project costs. Any 
funds due by the Local Government, the State, or the Federal government will be promptly 
paid by the owing party. If, after final Project accounting, excess funds remain in the escrow 
account, those funds may be applied by the State to the Local Government's contractual 
obligations to the State under another advance funding agreement with approval by 
appropriate personnel of the Local Government. 

J. 	The State will not pay interest on any funds provided by the Local Government. 
K. 	 If a waiver has been granted, the State will not charge the Local Government for the 

indirect costs the State incurs on the local Project, unless this agreement is terminated at 
the request of the Local Government prior to completion of the Project. 

L. 	 If the Project has been approved for a "fixed price" or an "incremental payment" non
standard funding or payment arrangement under 43 TAC §15.52, the budget in Attachment 
C will clearly state the amount of the fixed price or the incremental payment schedule. 

M. If the Local government is an Economically Disadvantaged County and if the State has 
approved adjustments to the standard financing arrangement, this agreement reflects those 
adjustments . 

N. 	The state auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of any entity receiving funds from 
the State directly under this contract or indirectly through a subcontract under this contract. 
Acceptance of funds directly under this contract or indirectly through a subcontract under 
this contract acts as acceptance of the authority of the state auditor, under the direction of 
the legislative audit committee, to conduct an audit or investigation in connection with those 
funds. An entity that is the subject of an audit or investigation must provide the state 
auditor with access to any information the state auditor considers relevant to the 
investigation or audit. 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 3 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

o. 	Payment under this contract beyond the end of the current fiscal biennium is subject to 
availability of appropriated funds. If funds are not appropriated, this contract shall be 
terminated immediately with no liability to either party. 

P. 	 The Local Government is authorized to submit requests for reimbursement by submitting 
the original of an itemized invoice in a form and containing all items required by the State 
no more frequently than monthly, and no later than ninety (90) days after costs are 
incurred. If the Local Government submits invoices more than ninety (90) days after the 
costs are incurred, and if federal funding is reduced as a result, the State shall have no 
responsibility to reimburse the Local Government for those costs. 

Q. 	The State will not execute the contract for the construction of the Project until the required 
funding has been made available by the Local Government in accordance with this 
agreement. 

4. 	 Termination of this Agreement 
This agreement shall remain in effect until the project is completed and accepted by all parties, 
unless: 
A. The agreement is terminated in writing with the mutual consent of the parties; 
B. The agreement is terminated by one party because of a breach, in which case any cost 

incurred because of the breach shall be paid by the breaching party; 
C. 	The Local Government elects not to provide funding after the completion of preliminary 

engineering, specifications, and estimates (PS&E) and the Project does not proceed 
because of insufficient funds, in which case the Local Government agrees to reimburse the 
State for its reasonable actual costs incurred during the Project; or 

D. 	The Project is inactive for thirty-six (36) months or longer and no expenditures have been 
charged against federal funds, in which case the State may in its discretion terminate this 
agreement. 

5. 	 Amendments 
Amendments to this agreement due to changes in the character of the work, terms of the 
agreement, or responsibilities of the parties relating to the Project may be enacted through a 
mutually agreed upon, written amendment. 

6. 	 Remedies 
This agreement shall not be considered as specifying the exclusive remedy for any agreement 
default, but all remedies existing at law and in equity may be availed of by either party to this 
agreement and shall be cumulative. 

7. 	 Utilities 
The Local Government shall be responsible for the adjustment, removal , or relocation of utility 
facilities in accordance with applicable State Ilaws, regulations, rules, poliCies, and procedures, 
including any cost to the State of a delay resulting from the Local Government's failure to 
ensure that utility facilities are adjusted, removed, or relocated before the scheduled beginning 
of construction. The Local Government will not be reimbursed with federal or state funds for 
the cost of required utility work. The l ocal Government must obtain advance approval for any 
variance from established procedures. Before a construction contract is let, the Local 
Government shall provide, at the State's request, a certification stating that the Local 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 4 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

Government has completed the adjustment of all utilities that must be adjusted before 
construction is completed . 

8. 	 Environmental Assessment and Mitigation 
Development of a transportation project must comply with the National Environmental Policy 
Act and the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, which require environmental clearance 
of federal-aid projects. 
A. The Local Government is responsible for the identification and assessment of any 

environmental problems associated with the development of a local project governed by 
this agreement. 

B. 	The Local Government is responsible for the cost of any environmental problem's 

mitigation and remediation. 


C. The Local Government is responsible for providing any public meetings or public hearings 
required for development of the environmental assessment. Public hearings will not be 
held prior to the approval of project schematic. 

D. 	The Local Government is responsible for the preparation of the NEPA documents required 
for the environmental clearance of this Project. 

E. 	 Before the advertisement for bids, the Local Government shall provide to the State written 
documentation from the appropriate regulatory agency or agencies that all environmental 
clearances have been obtained. 

9. 	 Compliance with Texas Accessibility Standards and ADA 
All parties to this agreement shall ensure that the plans for and the construction of all projects 
subject to this agreement are in compliance with the Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS) 
issued by the Texas Department of Ucensing and Regulation, under the Architectural Barriers 
Act, Article 9102, Texas Civil Statutes. The TAS establishes minimum accessibility 
requirements to be consistent with minimum accessibility requirements of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (P.L. 101-336) (ADA). 

10. 	Architectural and Engineering Services 
The Local Government has responsibility for the performance of architectural and engineering 
services. The engineering plans shall be developed in accordance with the applicable State's 
Standard Specifications for Construction and Maintenance of Highways, Streets and Bridges 
and the special speCifications and special provisions related to it. For projects on the state 
highway system, the design shall, at a minimum conform to applicable State manuals. For 
projects not on the state highway system, the design shall, at a minimum, conform to 
applicable American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials design 
standards. In procuring professional services, the parties to this agreement must comply with 
federal requirements cited in 23 CFR Part 172 if the project is federally funded and with Texas 
Government Code 2254, Subchapter A, in all cases. Professional contracts for federally 
funded projects must conform to federal requirements, speCifically including the provision for 
partiCipation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs), ADA, and environmental 
matters. 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 5 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Au_stin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

11. 	Construction Responsibilities 
A. The Local Government shall advertise for construction bids, issue bid proposals, receive 

and tabulate the bids, and award and administer the contract for construction of the Project. 
Administration of the contract includes the responsibility for construction engineering and 
for issuance of any change orders, supplemental agreements, amendments, or additional 
work orders that may become necessary subsequent to the award of the construction 
contract. In order to ensure federal funding eligibility, projects must be authorized by the 
State prior to advertising for construction. 

B. The Local Government will use its approved contract letting and award procedures to let 
and award the construction contract. 

C. Prior to their execution, the State will be given the opportunity to review and approve 
contract change orders. 

D. 	 Upon completion of the Project, the party constructing the Project will issue and sign a 
"Notification of Completion" acknowledging the Project's construction completion. 

E. 	 For federally funded contracts, the parties to this agreement will comply with federal 
construction requirements cited in 23 CFR Part 635 and with requirements cited in 23 CFR 
Part 633, and shall include the latest version of Form "FHWA-1273" in the contract bidding 
documents. If force account work will be performed, a finding of cost effectiveness shall be 
made in compliance with 23 CFR 635, Subpart B. 

12. 	Project Maintenance 
The Local Government shall be responsible for maintenance of locally owned roads after 
completion of the work and the State shall be responsible for maintenance of state highway 
system after completion of the work if the work was on the state highway system, unless 
otherwise provided for in existing maintenance agreements with the Local Government. 

13. 	Right of Way and Real Property - This Article is Not Applicable 
The State is responsible for the provision and acquisition of any needed right of way or real 
property. 

14. Notices 
All notices to either party shall be delivered personally or sent by certified or U.S. mail, postage 
prepaid, addressed to that party at the following address: 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 6 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

Local Government: State: 

County of Travis Director of Contract Services 

Attn: County Judge Texas Department of Transportation 

P.O. Box 1748 125 E. 11th Street 

Austin, TX 78767-1748 Austin, Texas 78701 

All notices shall be deemed given on the date delivered in person or deposited in the mail, 
unless otherwise provided by this agreement. Either party may change the above address by 
sending written notice of the change to the other party. Either party may request in writing that 
notices shall be delivered personally or by certified U.S. mail, and that request shall be carried 
out by the other party. 

15. Legal Constructi,on 
If one or more of the provisions contained in this agreement shall for any reason be held 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability 
shalli not affect any other provisions and this agreement shall be construed as if it did not 
contain the ,invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision. 

16. Responsibilities of the Parties 
The State and the Local Government agree that neither party is an agent, servant, or 
employee of the other party and each party agrees it is responsible for its individual acts and 
deeds as well as the acts and deeds of its contractors, employees, representatives, and 
agents. 

17. Ownership of Documents 
Upon completion or termination of this agreement, all documents prepared by the State shall 
remain the property of the State. All data prepared under this agreement shall be made 
available to the State without restriction or llimitation on their further use. All documents 
produced or approved or otherwise created by the Local Government shall be transmitted to 
the State in the form of photocopy reproduction on a monthly basis as required by the State. 
The originals shall remain the property of the Local Government. At the request of the State, 
the Local Government shall submit any information required by the State in the format directed 
by the State. 

18. Compliance with Laws 
The parties shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and 
regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or tribunals in 
any manner affecting the performance of this agreement. When required, the Local 
Government shall furnish the State with satisfactory proof of this compliance. 

AFA-AFA_LongGen Page 7 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

19. Sole Agreement 
This agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement between the parties and supersedes 
any prior understandings or written or oral agreements respecting the agreement's subject 
matter. 

20. 	Cost Principles 
In order to be reimbursed with federal funds, the parties shall comply with the Cost Principles 
established in OMB Circular A-87 that specify that all reimbursed costs are allowable, 
reasonable, and allocable to the Project. 

21. Procurement and Property Management Standards 
The parties shall adhere to the procurement standards established in Title 49 CFR §18.36 and 
with the property management standard established in Title 49 CFR §18.32. 

22. Inspection of Books and Records 
The parties to this agreement shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records, 
and other documentation relating to costs incurred under this agreement and shall make such 
materials available to the State, the Local Government, and, if federally funded, the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA), and the U.S. Office of the Inspector General, or their duly 
authorized representatives for review and inspection at its office during the contract period and 
for four (4) years from the date of completion of work defined under this contract or until any 
impending litigation, or claims are resolved. Additionally, the State, the Local Government, 
and the FHWA and their duly authorized representatives shall have access to all the 
governmental records that are directly applicable to this agreement for the purpose of making 
audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. 

23. 	Civil Rights Compliance 
The Local Government shall comply with the regulations of the United States Department of 
Transportation as they relate to non-discrimination (49 CFR Part 21 and 23 CFR Part 200), 
and Executive Order 11246 titled "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive 
Order 11375 and supplemented in the Department of Labor Regulations (41 CFR Part 60). 

24. 	Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program Requirements 
A. The parties shall comply with the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program 


requirements established in 49 CFR Part 26. 

B. The Local Government shall adopt, in its totality, the State's federally approved DBE 

program. 
C. 	The Local Government shall set an appropriate DBE goal consistent with the State's DBE 

guidelines and in consideration of the local market, project size, and nature of the goods or 
services to be acquired . The Local Government shall have final decision-making authority 
regarding the DBE goal and shall be responsible for documenting its actions. 

D. 	The Local Government shall follow all other parts of the State's DBE program referenced in 
TxDOT Form 2395, Memorandum of Understanding Regarding the Adoption of the Texas 
Department of Transportation's Federally-Approved Disadvantaged Business Enterprise by 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 8 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

Entity, and attachments found at web address 

http://txdot.gov/business/businessoutreach/mou.htm. 


E. 	 The Local Government shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or 
sex in the award and performance of any U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT)
assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE program or the requirements of 49 CFR 
Part 26. The Local Government shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 
CFR Part 26 to ensure non-discrimination in award and administration of DOT-assisted 
contracts. The State's DBE program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as approved by 
DOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation of this program is a 
legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this 
agreement. Upon notification to the Local Government of its failure to carry out its 
approved program, the State may impose sanctions as provided for under 49 CFR Part 26 
and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 
the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.). 

F. 	 Each contract the Local Government signs with a contractor (and each subcontract the 
prime contractor signs with a sUb-contractor) must include the following assurance: The 
contractor, sub-recipient, or sub-contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out 
applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT
assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material 
breach of this agreement, which may result in the termination of this agreement or such 
other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate. 

25. 	Debarment Certifications 
The parties are prohibited from making any award at any tier to any party that is debarred or 
suspended or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal Assistance 
Programs under Executive Order 12549, "Debarment and Suspension." By executing this 
agreement, the Local Government certifies that it is not currently debarred, suspended, or 
otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal Programs under Executive 
Order 12549 and further certifies that it will not do business with any party that is currently 
debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal 
Assistance Programs under Executive Order 12549. The parties to this contract shall require 
any party to a subcontract or purchase order awarded under this contract to certify its eligibility 
to receive federal funds and, when requested by the State, to furnish a copy of the certification. 

26. 	Lobbying Certification 
In executing this agreement, each signatory certifies to the best of that signatory's knowledge 
and belief, that: 
A. 	No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the parties 

to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal 
contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 9 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://txdot.gov/business/businessoutreach/mou.htm


CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

B. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with federal contracts, grants, loans, or cooperative agreements, 
the signatory for the Local Government shall complete and submit the Federal Standard 
Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Heport Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 

C. 	The parties shall require that the language of this certification shall be included in the award 
documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts 
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and all sub-recipients shall certify and 
disclose accordingly. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or 
entering into this transaction imposed by Title 31 U.S.C. §1352. Any person who fails to file 
the required certification shaH be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not 
more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

27. 	Insurance 
If this agreement authorizes the Local Government or its contractor to perform any work on 
State right of way, before beginning work the entity performing the work shall provide the State 
with a fully executed copy of the State's Form 1560 Certificate of Insurance verifying the 
existence of coverage in the amounts and types specified on the Certificate of Insurance for all 
persons and entities working on State right of way. This coverage shall be maintained until all 
work on the State right of way is complete. If coverage is not maintained, all work on State 
right of way shall cease immediately, and the State may recover damages and all costs of 
completing the work. 

28. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Requirements 
A. Any recipient of funds under this agreement agrees to comply with the Federal Funding 

Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) and implementing regulations at 2 CFR Part 
170, including Appendix A. This agreement is subject to the following award terms: 
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/2010-22705.pdf and 
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/201 0/pdf/20 10-22706. pdf. 

B. The Local Government agrees that it shall : 
1. 	 Obtain and provide to the State , a Central Contracting Registry (CCR) number 

(Federal Acquisition Regulation, Part 4, Sub-part 4.1100) id this award provides more 
than $25,000 in Federal funding. The CCR number may be obtained by visiting the 
CCR website whose address is: https://www.bpn.gov/ccr/default.aspx; 

2. 	 Obtain and provide to the State a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number, a 
unique nine-character number that allows Federal government to track the distribution 
of federal money. The DUNS may be requested free of charge for all businesses and 
entities required to do so by visiting the Dun & Bradstreet (D&B) on-line registration 
website http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform; and 

3. 	 Report the total compensation and names of its top five (5) executives to the State if: 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 10 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform
https://www.bpn.gov/ccr/default.aspx
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/201
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/2010-22705.pdf


CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

i. 	 More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and 
those revenues are greater than $25,000,000; and 

ii . The compensation information is not already available through reporting to the U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission. 

29. Single Audit Report 
A. The parties shall comply with the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984, P.L. 98-502, 

ensuring that the single audit report includes the coverage stipulated in OMB Circular A
133. 

B. If threshold expenditures of $500,000 or more are met during the Local Government's fiscal 
year, the Local Government must submit a Single Audit Report and Management Letter (if 
applicable) to TxDOT's Audit Office, 125 E. 11 th Street, Austin, TX 78701 or contact 
TxDOT's Audit Office at http://www.txdot.gov/contactus/audit.htm. 

C. 	If expenditures are less than $500,000 during the Local Government's fiscal year, the Local 
Government must submit a statement to TxDOT's Audit Office as follows: "We did not meet 
the $500,000 expenditure threshold and therefore, are not required to have a single audit 
performed for FY " 

D. 	 For each year the project remains open for federal funding expenditures, the Local 
Government will be responsible for filing a report or statement as described above. The 
required annual filing shall extend throughout the life of the agreement, unless otherwise 
amended or the project has been formally closed out and no charges have been incurred 
within the current fiscal year. 

30. Signatory Warranty 
Each signatory warrants that the signatory has necessary authority to execute this agreement 
on behalf of the entity represented. 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 11 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://www.txdot.gov/contactus/audit.htm


CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

THIS AGREEMENT IS EXECUTED by the State and the Local Government in duplicate. 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

Signature 

Typed or Printed Name 

Title 

Date 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

Janice Mullenix 
Director of Contract Services 
Texas Department of Transportation 

Date 

AFA-AFA_LongGen Page 12 of 12 Revised 05/04/2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

ATTACHMENT A 
RESOLUTION OR ORDINANCE 

AFA-AFA_LongGen Page 1 of 1 Attachment A 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austi n 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn Lanes on FM 973 

at Braker Lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Developm ent 

ATTACHMENT B - LOCATION MAP SHOWING PROJECT 

BRAKER LANE EXTENSION 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

N

• ' 
. . 

W E. . 
s 

LOCATION 
MAP 

Page 1 of 1 Attachment B 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



·. 

CSJ # 1200-03-054 
District # 14 - Austin 
Code Chart 64 # 50227 
Project: Construct Turn lanes on FM 973 

at Braker lane 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA # 20.205 
Not Research and Development 

ATTACHMENT C 

PROJECT BUDGET 


The Local Government will be responsible for 100% of the costs, except for Direct and Indirect State 
Costs. 

Description [Total Federal State Participation Local Participation 
Estimated Participation 
~ost % Cost % ~ost Vo ~ost 

Engineering ~ 90,000.00 0% $0 0% $0 100% ~ 90,000.00 
by Local Government) 

Environmental ~ 10,000.00 0% $0 0% ~O 100% ~ 10,000.00 
by local Government) 

Construction ~ 591,313.00 0% $0 0% ~O 100% ~ 591,313.00 
by local Government) 

Subtotal ~ 691,313.00 $0 $0 $ 691,313.00 

Environ. $ 2,007.00 0% $0 100% $ 2,00tOO 0% $0 
Direct State 
Costs (20%) 

Preliminary Right of Way $ 2,007.00 0% $0 100% $ 2,007.00 0% ~O 
Engineering Direct State 
Direct State Costs (20%) 

Costs = Engineering $ 4,012.00 0% $0 100% $ 4,012.00 0% $0 
$10,033 Direct State 

Costs (40%) 
Utility Direct $ 2,007.00 0% $0 100% $ 2,007.00 0% $0 
State Costs 
20%) 

Construction Direct State $ 5,189.00 0% $0 100% $ 5,189.00 0% $0 
Costs 
Indirect State Costs $ 50,258.46 0% $0 100% $ 50,258.46 0% $0 
7.27%) I 

~ubtotal $ 65,480.46 $0 $ 65,480.46 $0 
!fOTAl $ 756,793.46 $0 ~ 65,480.46 $ 691,313.00 

Initial payment by the Local Government to the State: $0. 
Payment by the Local Government to the State before construction: $0. 
Estimated total payment by the Local Government to the State $0. This is an estimate. 
The final amount of Local Government participation will be based on actual costs. 

AFA-AFA_longGen Page 1 of 1 Attachment C 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: August 7,2012 
Prepared By: Michael Hettenhausen Phone #: 854-7563 
Division Director/Manager: Anna Bowl~n, ~ivision Director, Development Services 

Department HeadlTitle: Ste\h n . vl~ihhr~:ip.E ., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Huber, Precinct Three 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests: 
A) A plat for recording: Rocky Creek Ranch Section 2 Final Plat (Long Form Final 
Plat - 107 total lots - Rocky Creek Boulevard - No ET J); and 
B) A Travis County Subdivision Construction Agreement between Travis County 
and R.C. Travis, L.P. in Precinct Three. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
A) This final plat consists of 107 total lots (100 single family, 4 drainage and water 
quality easement lots, and 3 landscape lots) on 66.436 acres. There are 6,308 linear 
feet of public streets proposed with this final plat. Water service will be provided by 
LCRA, wastewater service will be provided by Travis County Municipal Utility District 
No. 16, and parkland fees in lieu of dedication have been paid to Travis County in 
the amount of $5,950.00. 

The applicant is currently utilizing the county's alternative fiscal agreement and the 
plat is being held in abeyance until the remaining fiscal has been posted. Fiscal 
surety in the amount of $159,677.00 was previously posted with Travis County and 
recently $516,056.38 has been posted with the county. In addition to the street and 
drainage facilities the developer has constructed on the site , the full fiscal amount of 
$675,733.38 has been satisfied. 

B) The applicant, R.C. Travis , L.P. , wishes to enter into a standard subdivision 
construction agreement with Travis County. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
As this plat was approved on Januay 31 , 2012, for alternative fiscal by the 
Commissioners Court, staff recommends approval of the final plat and the 
subdivision construction agreement. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 18



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2012 

Prepared By/Phone Number: David A. Salazar 854-4107 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Sherri E. Fleming, 
County Executive for Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Memorandum of Understanding 
between Health Families Travis County and Any Baby Can for the Provision of 
Home-Based Counseling Services. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
In 2011, the Court approved the initial Memorandum of Understanding with Any 
Baby Can to provide home-based Counseling Services to participants of Travis 
County's Healthy Families program. Since its implementation in 1997, Healthy 
Families Travis County has provided home-based parenting and child 
development education to first-time parents linking them to community resources 
following the Healthy Families America model. This successful, research-based 
and voluntary approach has proven to be effective in preventing child 
maltreatment. The current MOU was set to expire on June 30, 2012; the term of 
this proposed MOU is July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Memorandum of Understanding 
continuing the Court's commitment to Healthy Families program's linking families 
to community resources, like Any Baby Can, in connection with home-based 
parenting and child development education. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Please see attached memo. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
Approving this request will not increase the County Budget. 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 19



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  August 7, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Christy Moffett, 854-3460 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Sherri E. Fleming, County Executive of Travis County Health and Human Services & 
Veterans Service  
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on the following items related to the Program Year 
2012 Action Plan and substantial amendments to the Program Year 2011-2013 
Consolidated Plan and Program Year 2006-2010 Action Plans available through 
Community Development Block Grant funds from HUD: 
 

A. Overview of comments received during the 30-day public comment period;  
B.  Approve the final draft of the PY 2012 Action Plan including final edits, 

comments and responses;  
C. Approve the final draft of the substantial amendments to the Program Year 

2011- 2013 Consolidated Plan and Program Year 2006-2010 Action Plans; and  
D. Authorize submission to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development, San Antonio Field Office, Region VI. 
 

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

A. As required by HUD regulation identified in 24 Code of Federal Regulations Part 
91 and the Travis County Citizen Participation Plan, a 30-day comment period 
and two public hearings were held on the draft documents prior to submission.  
The public hearings were held to receive comment on June 26, and July 10, 
2012 at the Travis County Commissioners Court.  Advertisements and 
information dissemination regarding the public comment period and public 
hearing dates were sent out during the week of May 28th.  During the comment 
period, held from June 18, 2012 through July 17, 2012, staff received nine public 
comments – eight during the public hearings held at Commissioners Court and 
one received in writing through U.S. mail.  For a summary of comments received, 
see Exhibit A.  
 

B. Travis County’s CDBG allocation for Program Year 2012 is $896,341. The 
required Action Plan to inform HUD on how Travis County intends to spend its 
allocation is due August 15, 2012. A minimum of 65% ($582,622) of the 
allocation must be spent on Housing and Community Development projects.  
Funds for Administration and Planning projects are capped at 20% ($179,268) 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us
akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 20



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

and Public Services at 15% ($134,451).  On June 5th, the Travis County 
Commissioners Court approved the proposed projects and alternate projects for 
Program Year 2012 which spans from October 1, 2012 through September 30, 
2013.  On June 12th, the Travis County Commissioner’s Court approved the draft 
for public review.   

  
  

C. The PY 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan compiles a large set of research and data 
to provide a snap shot of the conditions which exist in the unincorporated areas 
of the county.  The Plan analyzes the needs and public engagement regarding 
housing, social services, infrastructure, parks, hazard mitigation, transportation, 
public health – just to name a few.  It also includes a community profile and 
strategic plan for the next three years. 
 
Every three years, urban counties receiving CDBG funds must re-affirm their 
urban county entitlement status. In PY10, Travis County renewed its status for 
2012-2014.  As part of the renewal process, Travis County chose to invite non-
entitlement cities and villages to participate in the Travis County CDBG program.  
The Village of Webberville elected to join the Urban County, and a Cooperative 
Agreement was approved by TCCC in July, 2011. Beginning in PY2012 the 
Village of Webberville will be part of the CDBG Program service area. The PY 
2011 – 2013 Consolidated Plan is therefore being amended to reflect this.  
 
Furthermore, over the last four years, several projects have had cost savings 
which need to be reallocated for alternate purposes.  CDBG staff must analyze 
whether or not a substantial amendment should occur.  According to Travis 
County’s Citizen Participation Plan as required by HUD rules, a substantial 
amendment is required if any of the changes represent 1) a change in the 
location or beneficiaries of a project proposed under the Consolidated Plan or 
Action Plan; 2) a change in the scope of the project by more than 25%; or 3) a 
change in the funding of a new project that was not originally subject to public 
comment. 

 
This year Travis County is proposing to substantially amend project years PY06, 
PY08, PY09, and PY10, to allow for project cost savings to be reallocated to 
other projects.  Project savings over the four identified years total over $190,000.  
Additionally, the PY09 Action Plan is being amended, due to staff’s 
recommendation, to delete the Youth and Family Assessment Center Flex Fund 
Expansion Project.  This deletion would allow the reallocation of $32,100.  
 
On June 5th, the Travis County Commissioners Court approved the 
reprogramming of project savings to home rehabilitation, the deletion of the PY09 
Youth and Family Assessment Center and to make the changes to the PY11-13 
ConPlan to add the Village of Webberville. On June 12th, the Travis County 
Commissioners Court approved the draft for public review.   

 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends the approval of the final draft of Travis County’s PY 12 Action Plan 
and substantial amendments to the Program Year 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan and 
Program Year 2006-2010 Action Plans, including the final edits completed by staff. 
From the last draft presented to the Court on June 12, 2012, staff made several 
changes including the addition of: 
 

 grammatical and wording changes to improve clarity and readability, 
 the public comments received,   
 appendices not previously included in the Draft, and 
 some minor content revision.  

 
For a full list of content revision and public comments received, please refer to Exhibits 
A and B.   
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
The CDBG grant brings dollars to the County that provides the ability to augment 
existing or develop new programming that supports the mutual goals of HUD and Travis 
County.  For Program Year 2012, the total allocation of federal dollars available is 
$896,341.  The amendments allows the County to deomonstrate the change to the 
Urban County make up and reprogram funds for alternate uses.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
The funding of recommended projects for Program Year 2012 follows the allocation 
guidelines established by HUD.  No matching funds are required, however the County 
has elected to fund part of CDBG personnel costs with Travis County General funds 
dollars.  Staff anticipates that the grant funds will be available by mid-October 2012.  
The annual contract period is from October 1st through September 30th.  
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
County Auditor 
PBO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

EXHIBIT A: PUBLIC COMMENT RESULTS  
 
After presentation to Travis County Commissioners Court, the draft PY12 Action Plan 
and substantial amendments were posted for written comment for thirty days prior to the 
final approval by the Travis County Commissioners Court.  Comments for both drafts 
were received simultaneously and could be received in writing via email or regular mail 
to the Travis County Health and Human Services and Veterans’ Service CDBG staff.  
The drafts were posted on the Travis County website and copies were located at the 
seven Travis County Community Centers for public review. 
 
The public comment period began on June 18, 2012 and ended on July 17, 2012.  The 
public hearings were held at the Travis County Commissioners Courtroom at 9 am on 
Tuesday, June 26, 2012 and Tuesday, July 10, 2012.  
 
Summary of Public Comments Received for Draft of PY12 Action Plan 
 
Public Hearing: June 26, 2012 

• A total of 8 people presented testimony at the public hearing on June 26, 2012. 
• One individual made general comments about excessive taxation and 

governmental waste. 
• One individual made comments about a lack of responsiveness and waste within 

agencies not related to CDBG.  
• One individual asked for clarification about the amount of funds being dedicated 

to the home repair project, and for additional information on the Fair Housing 
Counseling project.  

• Four residents of the Las Lomitas community expressed thanks for the work 
being done around the neighborhood’s water connection issues, and for 
consideration as a CDBG alternate project. 

• One Las Lomitas resident requested that the TNR service station extend hours to 
accommodate people whose work schedules currently do not permit them to get 
water from the station.  

 
Public Hearing July 10, 2012 

• No comments were received at the public hearing on July 10, 2012.  
 
Other Comments Received 

• One written comment was received through U.S. mail from a neighborhood 
association located within the City of Austin requesting services.   

Responses to Comment Received and Comments Not Accepted 
 
During the public hearings, most of the questions were addressed at the time of the 
public hearing.  Staff provided clarification on the funding for the home repair project 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

and the fair housing activity, and Commissioner Gomez’s office indicated they would 
work with the neighborhood and TNR to discuss the extension of hours.  One person 
stated that the CDBG Program was spending 40% of CDBG funds on administration, 
but that is not accurate.  The Program has planned to spend the allowable 20% on 
administration and planning activities as indicated throughout this Action Plan.   
 
The comments regarding governmental waste and travel to London were not associated 
with the CDBG program, and therefore, will not be accepted for this Plan.    
 
The neighborhood association was informed in a letter that the Travis County CDBG 
Program cannot use funds within incorporated areas, and referred to the City of Austin 
for assistance.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
EXHIBIT B: SUMMARY OF CHANGES MADE DURING COMMENT 
PERIOD 
 
1. Revisions to the PY12 Action Plan Public Comment Draft 

 
Below is a summary of major changes made to the Action Plan draft during the 
public comment period.  These changes do not include small changes to spelling, 
grammar, formatting, clarity, readability, etc. 

 
Change Reason 

 
 
Dollar amounts in the CDBG carry over chart were updated. 

More current financials 
were available, allowing 
for more accurate 
estimate of funds 
available for carry-over.  

Proposed 2012 Project and Alternate Project locations were 
added to the Low to Moderate Income and Race and 
Ethnicity Maps. 

Provides more 
information about project 
locations. 

Public comments and responses were added to Public 
Engagement Section of draft and as an appendix.  

Comments were 
received during the 
public comment period 

Lake Oak Estates Primary Survey results were added as an 
appendix. 

Required for final draft. 

Certifications were added as an appendix.  Required for final draft.  
 
2. Revisions to the Substantial Amendments Public Comment Draft 

 
Below is a summary of major changes made to the Substantial Amendment draft 
during the public comment period.  These changes do not include small changes to 
spelling, grammar, formatting, clarity, readability, etc. 

 

Change Reason 

Public comments and responses were added to the Public 
Comment Section of draft.  

Comments were 
received during the 
public comment period 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


 

  

PY 2012 

TRAVIS COUNTY 

CDBG  

ANNUAL 

ACTION PLAN 

10.1.2012 TO 9.30.2013 

 

 
APPROVED BY TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT AUGUST 7, 2012 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Prepared by: 
Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service 

CDBG Office 

County Executive 
Sherri E. Fleming 
 
CDBG Staff 
Christy Copeland Moffett 
Martha Brown 
Morgan Chee 
 

 

 

 

 

Contributing Writers 
 
HHS/VS Research & Planning Division  

Blanca Tapia Leahy, Division Director             

Lawrence Lyman 

Courtney Bissonnet Lucas 

Rachel Coff 

Koren Darling 
Anna Lisa Fahrenthold 

Sandra Valenzuela 
Elizabeth Vela 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Questions or Comments?  
 
For questions or for more information, please contact the CDBG Office at cdbg@co.travis.tx.us.

TRAVIS COUNTY, TX  
ACTION PLAN 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

 

 
 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TX 
COMMISSIONERS COURT 

 
Samuel T. Biscoe 

Travis County Judge 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Sarah Eckhardt 
County Commissioner, 

Precinct Two 
 

Ron Davis 
County Commissioner, 

Precinct One 
 

Karen Huber 
County Commissioner, 

Precinct Three 

Margaret Gomez 
County Commissioner, 

Precinct Four 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
STANDARD FORM 424 .............................................................................................................................................. 1 

ACRONYMS .............................................................................................................................................................. 4 

 
INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................................................................... 5 

 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................................................ 7 

 

SECTION I: GENERAL QUESTIONS ............................................................................................................................. 11 

 ACTIVITIES TO BE UNDERTAKEN .................................................................................................................. 11 

 ALTERNATE PROJECTS................................................................................................................................. 25 

 CDBG CARRY OVER CHART .......................................................................................................................... 26 

 PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS ............................................................................................................... 27 

 GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS .................................................................................................. 29 

 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PROCESS ................................................................................................................ 37 

 SUMMARY OF PARTICIPATION PROCESS ..................................................................................................... 37 

 PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ......................................................................................................................... 40 

 PROJECT SELECTION PROCESS ..................................................................................................................... 42 

 MANAGING THE PROCESS AND INSTITUTIONAL STRUCTURE ....................................................................... 43 

 

SECTION II: HOUSING AND HOMELESS SERVICES ..................................................................................................... 47 

 OVERVIEW OF HOUSING CONDITIONS ........................................................................................................ 47 

 CDBG HOUSING INVESTMENTS ................................................................................................................... 53 

 OVERVIEW OF HOUSING SERVICES SUPPORTED BY TRAVIS COUNTY............................................................ 56 

 BARRIERS TO AFFORDABLE HOUSING ......................................................................................................... 58 

 IMPEDIMENTS TO FAIR HOUSING CHOICE ................................................................................................... 60 

 OVERVIEW OF HOMELESS CONDITIONS ...................................................................................................... 63 

 HOME/AMERICAN DREAM DOWN PAYMENT INITIATIVE ............................................................................. 67 

 EMERGENCY SHELTER GRANT (ESG) ............................................................................................................ 67 

 

SECTION III: NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER ACTIONS.................................................... 68 

 OVERVIEW OF NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT NEEDS ........................................................... 68 

 OVERVIEW OF NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACTIVIES SUPPORTED BY TRAVIS COUNTY ...... 69 

 NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENTS ...................................................................... 70 

 ANTI-POVERTY STRATEGY ........................................................................................................................... 72 

 POPULATIONS WITH SPECIALIZED NEEDS .................................................................................................... 75 

 LEAD-BASED PAINT ..................................................................................................................................... 76 

 SPECIFIC HOPWA OBJECTIVES ..................................................................................................................... 77 

 

APPENDICES ............................................................................................................................................................ 78 

APPENDIX A: ALTERNATE PROJECTS .......................................................................................................................... 78 

APPENDIX B: PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AND COMMUNITY NEEDS IDENTIFIED FOR PY12 .............................................. 85 

APPENDIX C: LAKE OAK ESTATES PRIMARY SURVEY RESULTS ..................................................................................... 126 

APPENDIX D: CERTIFICATIONS .................................................................................................................................. 128 

 
 

 

 
  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

 
 
Travis County, TX      Page    |   1 

 
 
 
 

ACTION PLAN  

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

STANDARD FORM 424 

 
Date Submitted  08/09/12 Applicant Identifier Type of Submission 

Date Received by state n/a State Identifier Application  Pre-application  

Date Received by HUD 
 08/09/12 

Federal Identifier 
746000192  Construction  Construction 

   Non Construction  Non Construction 

Applicant Information 

Name:                                      Travis County UOG Code:                                       TX489453 

Address:                     P.O. Box 1748 DUNS Number:                       030908842 

 
Travis County                                   
Commissioners Court 

City:     Austin State: Texas Health and Human Services 

Zip Code:      78767  Executive Manager’s Office 

Employer Identification Number (EIN): County:  Travis 

74-6000192 
 

Grant Start Date: 10/01/12 

Applicant Type: Specify Other Type if necessary: 

Local Government: County  

Program Funding 
U.S. Department of  

Housing and Urban Development 

Catalogue of Federal Domestic Assistance Numbers; Descriptive Title of Applicant Project(s); Areas 
Affected by Project(s) (cities, Counties, localities etc.); Estimated Funding 

Community Development Block Grant 14.218 Entitlement Grant 

CDBG Project Titles : Lake Oak Estates Street 
Improvements, Home Repair, Public Services Social 
Work Expansion, Public Services Fair Housing 
Counseling, and Grant Administration & Planning. 

Description of Areas Affected by CDBG 
Project(s) 
Unincorporated areas of Travis County and 
the Village of Webberville 

$CDBG Grant Amount 
$ 896,341 

$Additional HUD Grant(s) 
Leveraged 
 

Describe 
  

$Additional Federal Funds Leveraged 
 

$Additional State Funds Leveraged 
0 

$Locally Leveraged Funds 
 

$Grantee Funds Leveraged 
 

$Anticipated Program Income 
0 

Other (Describe) 
 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

 
 
Travis County, TX      Page    |   2 

Total Funds Leveraged for CDBG-based Project(s)   
 

 
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 HOME 

HOME Project Titles  N/A Description of Areas Affected by HOME 
Project(s) 

$HOME Grant Amount $Additional HUD Grant(s) 
Leveraged 

Describe 

$Additional Federal Funds Leveraged $Additional State Funds Leveraged 

$Locally Leveraged Funds $Grantee Funds Leveraged 

$Anticipated Program Income Other (Describe) 

 

 
Housing Opportunities for People with AIDS 14.241 HOPWA 

HOPWA Project Titles  N/A Description of Areas Affected by HOPWA 
Project(s) 

$HOPWA Grant Amount $Additional HUD Grant(s) 
Leveraged 

Describe 

$Additional Federal Funds Leveraged $Additional State Funds Leveraged 

$Locally Leveraged Funds $Grantee Funds Leveraged 

$Anticipated Program Income Other (Describe) 

Total Funds Leveraged for HOPWA-based Project(s) 

 
Emergency Shelter Grants Program 14.231 ESG 

ESG Project Titles  N/A Description of Areas Affected by ESG Project(s) 

$ESG Grant Amount $Additional HUD Grant(s) Leveraged Describe 

$Additional Federal Funds Leveraged $Additional State Funds Leveraged 

$Locally Leveraged Funds $Grantee Funds Leveraged 

$Anticipated Program Income Other (Describe) 

Total Funds Leveraged for ESG-based Project(s) 

 
Congressional Districts of: Is application subject to review by state Executive 

Order 12372 Process?  Applicant Districts 
10, 21 and 25 

Project Districts 
 10, 21 and 25 

Is the applicant delinquent on any federal 
debt? If “Yes” please include an additional 
document explaining the situation. 

 Yes This application was made available to 
the state EO 12372 process for review 
on  

  No Program is not covered by EO 12372 

 Yes   No 
 

 N/A Program has not been selected by the 
state for review 

 
Person to be contacted regarding this application 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

 
 
Travis County, TX      Page    |   3 

First Name: Samuel Middle Initial: T Last Name: Biscoe 

 Title: County Judge Phone:  512/854-9555 Fax:  512/854-9535 

Email:  
Sam.Biscoe@co.travis.tx.us 

Website: 
www.traviscountytx.gov/cdbg 

Other Contacts: 
Sherri E. Fleming and  
Christy Moffett  
P: 512/854-4100 
F: 512/854-4115 

Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

Date Signed 
 
08/07/12 

   

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                               Acronyms 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX      Page    |   4 

 

ACRONYMS 
 
Throughout this report, the reader will note the following acronyms: 
 

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act 

AI Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice 

AP Action Plan 

CAPER Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report  

CDBG   Community Development Block Grant 

CFR Code of Federal Regulation 

Con-Plan Consolidated Plan (governs CDBG Programs) 

CPD Community Planning and Development (part of HUD) 

CPP Citizen Participation Plan 

EA Environmental Assessment 

ESG  Emergency Shelter Grant 

FHA Federal Housing Administration (part of HUD) 

FSS Family Support Services (a Travis County Social Service Program) 

HACT Housing Authority of Travis County 

HHS/VS Travis County Department of Health & Human Service and Veteran Services 

HOME  HOME Investment Partnership Program (HUD’s Program) 

HOPWA Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HUD’s Program) 

the Accounting Software used by Travis County 

HUD United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 

IDIS Integrated Disbursement Information System  
(HUD's Financial Management System) 

LMI Low- and Moderate-Income (80% or below median household income) 

MFI Median Family Income 

OMB Office of Management and Budget 

PY Program Year 

PY10 Program Year 2010 

RFP Request for Proposals 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

TC Travis County 

TCHFC Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 

TxDOT Texas Department of Transportation  

TNR Travis County Department of Transportation and Natural Resources 

URA Uniform Relocation Act 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                       Introduction 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX      Page    |   5 

 

 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) initiative is a federal grant program administered by 

the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  It provides annual grants to cities and 

counties to carry out community development activities aimed at revitalizing neighborhoods, 

improving affordable housing options, and providing improved community facilities and services.  

 

Based on its population, in 2006, Travis County qualified as an urban county, a federal designation 

which afforded the County the opportunity to apply for CDBG funds. That year, Travis County applied 

and received CDBG funds for the first time and has continued to receive funding for the past six years. 

The County’s annual allocation is based on a HUD-designed formula that takes into account the 

county’s population size, poverty rate, housing overcrowding, and age of housing.  

 

Usage of CDBG funds must meet a number of parameters set nationally by HUD and locally by the 

County. Federal regulation requires that a minimum of 70% of the CDBG funds focus on projects for 

low- to moderate- income residents. Additionally, Travis County’s allocation specifically targets 

residents living in the unincorporated areas of the county and beginning in PY12, the Village of 

Webberville. To be eligible, the activities must meet one of the following HUD’s national objectives: 

 

 Benefit low- and moderate-income persons; 

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums and blight; or 

 Address other community development needs that present a serious and immediate threat to 

the health and welfare of the community.  

 

The administration of the CDBG program follows a cycle that includes the drafting of a Consolidated 

Plan, an Action Plan, and an annual evaluation. The Consolidated Plan (Con-Plan) identifies the 

County’s community and housing needs and outlines the strategies to address those needs over a 

three year period. The Annual Action Plan (AP) defines the specific activities to be undertaken during 

each program year (PY) to address the priorities established in the Con-Plan. An evaluation is 

conducted annually to assess yearly accomplishments. The evaluation is called the Consolidated 

Annual Performance Report (CAPER). 

 

 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                       Introduction 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX      Page    |   6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The figure above is a simplified visual representation of the CDBG planning cycle. As shown, citizens 

have a central role in setting the priorities to be addressed and defining projects to tackle identified 

needs. 

 

The Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department (HHS/VS) serves as the 

lead agency designated by the County to administer the CDBG grant and the single point of contact 

with HUD. 
 

 

  

Figure 1: CDBG Cycle 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                       Introduction 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX      Page    |   7 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

The Travis County Program Year 2012 (PY12) Action Plan lists the projects and activities the County will 

undertake beginning October 1, 2012 to meet the goals and objectives outlined in the PY 2011-2013 

Consolidated Plan. The Action Plan details how the County will use the CDBG funds and describes other 

available resources to address the County’s housing and non-housing community development needs. 

 

Public Input 

 

The Action Plan highlights different opportunities the public had to provide input on the usage of the 

CDBG funds for PY12, different mechanisms used to outreach to the public as well as the results from 

the information gathered.  The PY12 Action Plan marks the second year of the Travis County CDBG 

Program’s second Consolidated Plan. 

 

During the months of February and March, the County held public hearings and solicited proposals for 

CDBG projects. Notice of the public hearings was provided in newspapers of general circulation, 

through postal and electronic mailings, and postings on the County’s website, Facebook, Twitter and at 

the seven Travis County Community Centers. Due to a lack of newspaper coverage in the Del Valle and 

Manor areas, special outreach efforts were made to Del Valle ISD and Manor ISD, which included the 

announcement of the hearings on their website and distribution of the flyers to schools.  The 

announcements and all the participation materials were available in English and Spanish. 

 

Two public hearings at Travis County Commissioners Court were held on June 26 and July 10, 2012 and 

a 30-day public comment period occurred from June 18, 2012 to July 17, 2012 to solicit final comment 

on the proposed uses of CDBG funds.   

 

Proposed Activities for Program Year 2012 

 Travis County was awarded $896,341 in grant funds for PY12. These funds will be used for the 

following activities:  

 

1. Street Improvements:  Lake Oak Estates: $326,598 

The project will improve several sections of substandard roads in the neighborhood.  The 

improvements impact 126 people, of which, 85.7% are considered low to moderate income 

based on the primary survey.    The first phase of the project was funded with PY11 funds, and  

included: design and related servicese. The second phase of the project, funded with PY12 

grant funds, will fund construction of improvements for about half the roadways in the 

subdivision and includes funding for a TNR Senior Engineer who acts as a project manager.   

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                       Introduction 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX      Page    |   8 

Construction will be completed in the third phase of the project.   

 

2. Home Rehabilitation: $256,024 

This project will fund minor home repair services for low and moderate income homeowners in 

the CDBG service area to move homes towards Housing Quality Standards.  The program seeks 

to improve the energy efficiency, physical living conditions, and safety in owner-occupied 

homes. A 0% interest, forgivable 5-year loan up to $24,999 with no required annual or monthly 

payments is available.  The impact will be 10 homes.  

 

3. Public Services, Social Work Services Expansion: $106,000 

This project entails the expansion of an internal HHS/VS program through the Family Support 

Services Division to extend social work services within the unincorporated areas. A total of the 

equivalent of 1.5 FTEs and related operating expenses are targeted for this project which will be 

administered by the Travis County HHS/VS, Family Support Services Division.  The Impact will be 

assistance to 400 individuals. 

 

4. Public Services, Fair Housing Counseling: $28,451 

This program will expand existing fair housing services in the CDBG service area, and proposes 

to serve approximately 35 people of which 51% must be at or below 80% MFI.  Fair housing 

services include: fair housing counseling, fair housing complaint processing and testing in 

support of an individual complainant.  Additionally, part of the funds will be used for allowable 

program delivery costs such as marketing materials and office supplies.   Furthermore, $15,000 

from the Administration & Planning budget (below) will pay for training of up to 250 people 

plus advertisements targeting the service area. 

 

5. Administration & Planning: $179,268 

The funds allocated for administration will pay for the operating expenses associated with the 

grant including offices supplies, training, contracted services, interpreting, and other business 

related expenses.  Additionally, the funds will pay for a portion of the salary for two CDBG 

Planners and the TNR Senior Engineer who acts as a project manager for CDBG-funded street 

and water supply improvement projects.   

 

The following figure summarizes the proposed projects and allocations for program year 2012, and the 

categories under which each project falls.  

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                       Introduction 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX      Page    |   9 

Figure 2: Detailed Project Recommendations for PY12 

Community Development (must be at least 65 % of Total Allocation) 
1. Street Improvements:  Lake Oak Estates 
The project will improve several substandard roads in the neighborhood.  The first phase of 
the project, funded with PY11 funds, included design, environmental and related services.  
For PY 12, the second phase of the project, construction of improvements for about half the 
roadways in the subdivision:  Cavalier Canyon, Bowling Lane and related cross streets and 
any related acquisition of easements needed to complete the entire project will be funded.  
Since the design phase is underway, it is possible that the phasing may change to include 
different streets in Phase 2 and 3, but by the end of the project in PY13, all streets will be 
completed.  The project includes funds for a TNR Senior Engineer to act as a project 
manager.  The improvements impact 126 people, of which, 86% are considered low to 
moderate income based on the primary survey.     

$326,598 

2.  Owner Occupied:  Home Rehabilitation This project will fund minor home repair services 
to move homes towards Housing Quality Standards to low and moderate income 
homeowners in the CDBG service area.  The program seeks to improve the energy 
efficiency, physical living conditions, and safety in owner-occupied homes. A 0% interest, 
forgivable 5-year loan up to $24,999 with no required annual or monthly payments is 
available.  The impact will be 10 homes owned by households at or below 80% MFI. 

$256,024 

Housing and Community Development total (65 %): $582,622 
Public Services (capped at 15 % of Total Allocation) 
3. Social Work Expansion: 
This project funds the equivalent of 1.5 FTE social work positions and related operating 
expenses to expand services to clients in the CDBG service area.  Social Work services 
include case management, information and referral, non-clinical counseling, crisis 
intervention and outreach.  This project will be administered by the Travis County HHS/VS, 
Family Support Services Division.  The impact will be assistance to 400 individuals living at or 
below 80% MFI.   

$106,000 

4.  Fair Housing Counseling  
This program will expand existing fair housing services in the CDBG service area, and 
proposes to serve approximately 35 people of which 51% must be at or below 80% MFI.  Fair 
housing services include: fair housing counseling, fair housing complaint processing and 
testing in support of an individual complainant.  Additionally, part of the funds will be used 
for allowable program delivery costs such as marketing materials and office supplies.   
Furthermore, $15,000 from the Administration & Planning budget (below) will pay for 
training of up to 250 people plus advertisements targeting the service area. 

$28,451 

Public Service total (15 %): $134,451 
Administration and Planning (capped at 20 % of Total Allocation)  
5. Administration & Planning 
The funds allocated for administration will pay for the operating expenses associated with 
the grant including office supplies, training, contracted services, interpreting, fair housing 
activities, membership, Action Plan, annual report, reporting and other business related 
expenses.  Additionally, the funds will pay for a portion of the salaries for the CDBG Planners 
and the TNR Senior Engineer. These positions are responsible for project development, 
action plan and annual report development, monitoring, and reporting among others.  

$179,268 

Administration and Planning Total (20%): $179,268 

Total award by HUD: $896,341 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                       Introduction 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX      Page    |   10 

 

Past Performance  

 

The 2011 program year marked the seventh year Travis County has received CDBG funds. Funds from 

program years 2006-2011 are being spent concurrently.  As the projects are implemented, internal 

monitoring is taking place to assure grant compliance and project effectiveness.   

 

HUD monitored Travis County’s CDBG program in April 2010 with no findings and one concern  related 

to timely spending of funds.   

 

Timely Spending of Funds  

 

As part of the mandate from Congress to administer the CDBG program, HUD determines annually 

whether each CDBG entitlement is carrying out its activities “in a timely manner.” HUD conducts an 

analysis of each entitlement’s timeliness of spending 10 months into each grant year.  For Travis 

County, the timeliness test started in August 2008, and will continue to occur every August.  The 

threshold for compliance with timeliness is having no more than 1.5 times the current year’s allocation 

unspent.  Travis County’s met its timeliness ratio in August 2011 with a ratio of 1.44 for its August 2011 

timeliness test.  The County does not predict meeting a ratio of 1.5 in 2012 due to projects being 

implemented more slowly than anticipated.  All projects are anticipated to be started prior to the end 

of the program year which will ensure timely spending of funds next year. 

 

Alternate Project List for Program Year 2012 

 

In the event that the projects identified for this program year are delayed, canceled, or performed at a 

lower cost than the budgeted amount, the Travis County CDBG program plans to pursue one or more 

of the projects listed in the Alternate Project List (See Appendix A). Planning for such circumstances 

allows the CDBG program to direct the funds toward pre-identified alternate projects in a timely 

manner.  This also saves resources that would otherwise be used to add or delete projects through the 

customary Substantial Amendment process described in the Citizen Participation Plan.  The County 

amended its Citizen Participation Plan in July 2010 to include the parameters of the use and adequate 

review of Alternate Projects. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   11 

 

 
 

 

 

SECTION I: GENERAL QUESTIONS 

 
 

 
 

ACTIVITIES TO BE UNDERTAKEN 
 

Project # 1: Lake Oak Estates Substandard Road Improvement - $326,598 
 

Project Description: 
 

The Lake Oak Estates Neighborhood completed a primary survey in March 2011 and was identified as a 

low to moderate income area. The roads in the unincorporated areas of Lake Oak Estates do not meet 

Travis County standards; therefore, the substandard roads are not accepted into the Travis County 

road maintenance program.   

 

The street improvement scope of work may include, but is not limited to: 1) design services; 2) land 

surveying services; 3) geo-technical services; 4) drainage design services; 4) utility location and 

relocation coordination services; 5) environmental review and related regulatory permits; 6) 

acquisition of right of way and easements; and 6) construction. 

 

The project will be broken up into three phases and include the improvement to sections of Cavalier 

Canyon Drive, Bowling Lane, Covenant Canyon Trail, Holly Lane and related cross streets. The 

improvements impact 126 people, of which, 85.7% are considered low to moderate income based on 

the primary survey. The first phase, funded with PY 11 grant funds, included: 1) design services; 2) land 

surveying services; 3) geo-technical services; 4) drainage design services; 4) utility location and 

relocation coordination services; 5) environmental review and related regulatory permits.; and 6) 

project management time.  

 

For PY12, the second phase of the project, will fund construction of improvements for about half the 

roadways in the subdivision:  Cavalier Canyon, Bowling Lane and related cross streets (see Map of Lake 

Oak Phases below), and any related acquisition of easements needed to complete the entire project.  

Since the design phase is underway, it is possible that the phasing may change to include different 

streets in Phase 2 and 3, but by the end of the project in PY13, all streets will be completed.  The 

project includes funds for a TNR Senior Engineer to act as a project manager. Construction will be 

completed in the third phase of the project.  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   12 

 

Figure 3: Lake Oak Estates Project Location 

 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   13 

Figure 4: Project 1 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding: $326,598 

Leverage Funding:  Not Applicable 

Program Delivery:  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight: Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Expected Start/ Completion Date: 

Phase 1: January 2012 -October 2012, Design Phase completed 

Phase 2: January 2013-August 2013, Construction begins 

 Phase 3:  PY13, Construction completed 

Location: Lake Oak Estates, Precinct 3 

 

 

 
 

 

Figure 5: Project 1 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information (HUD –

prescribed) 

Priority Need Category: Infrastructure Project: Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity: 
Street 
Improvements 

Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category 
Suitable Living 
Environment 

Specific Objective 
Improve quality of public improvements 
for lower income persons 

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  126 individuals 

Eligibility LMA –Survey Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2011-2013 
Strategic Plan# 

High Travis County HTE #: HCUG01 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   14 

Figure 6: Lake Oak Estates Phases  

 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   15 

Figure 7: Lake Oak Estates Road Current Conditions  
 

      
 

 
 
 

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   16 

 

Project # 2: Home Rehabilitation - $256,024 

 

Project Description: 

 

This project will fund minor home repair services for low and moderate income homeowners in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of Webberville, to move homes towards Housing 

Quality Standards.  The program seeks to improve the energy efficiency, physical living conditions, and 

safety in owner-occupied homes. A 0% interest, forgivable 5-year loan up to $24,999 with no required 

annual or monthly payments is available.  The loan is forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% for each year of 

home ownership. Examples of potential improvements include, but are not limited to: connections of 

houses to long-term viable sources of water (not part of a stand-alone infrastructure project), 

complementing weatherization services of other funding sources, septic tank repairs, and electrical and 

plumbing repairs.  In the event that program income is created, it will be reinvested into the Home 

Rehabilitation project.  

 

These funds are targeted toward homeowners at or below 80% MFI in the CDBG service area. This 

project will be administered by a non-profit, designated as a sub-recipient, identified through a formal 

application.  Additionally, some of the allocation will partially fund a CDBG Planner position to 

complete environmental paperwork, final inspections and sign off and any other needed project 

delivery related costs. 
 

Figure 8: Project 2 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding: $256,024 

Leverage Funding:  To be determined 

Program Delivery:  
Designated sub-recipient or Travis County Health and Human Service and 
Veterans Service 

Program Oversight: Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Estimated Start/  

Completion Date: 
October 1, 2012-September 30, 2013 

Location: 
Homes in the unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of 
Webberville 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   17 

 

Figure 9: Project 2 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information (HUD –

prescribed) 

Priority Need Category: 
Owner Occupied 
Housing 

Project: Rehabilitation of existing units 

Eligible Activity: Rehabilitation Outcome Category Availability/ Accessibility 

Objective Category 
Suitable Living 
Environment 

Specific Objective 
Improve the quality of owner 
housing 

Citation 570.202 Accomplishment  10 Houses 

Eligibility LMH Matrix Code  
14A, Rehabilitation, Single Unit 
Residential 

Priority in the 2011-2013 
Strategic Plan# 

High Travis County HTE #: HCIG02 

 
 

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   18 

 

Project # 3: Family Support Services (FSS) Social Work Services Expansion Project - $106,000 
 

Project Description: 

 

This program is an internal Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service expansion of 

existing services.   In PY11, the program was redesigned to expand social work services by increasing 

the program to one and a half social workers. This resulted in additional capacity to provide case 

management, information and referral, non-clinical counseling, crisis intervention and outreach in all 

four precincts of the unincorporated areas.  The project is targeted to individuals who are at 80% MFI 

or below.  The project will fund the equivalent of 1.5 FTE social workers who work at a Travis County 

HHS&VS facility, however, to reduce transportation barriers; the social worker provides the majority of 

service provision through home visits.  Additionally, part of the funds will be used for operating 

expenses such as items necessary to provide home based services, mileage, and training, among 

others.   

 

 

 

Figure 10: Project 3 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding: $106,000 

Leverage Funding:  

Youth and Family Assessment Center (YFAC) Flex Funds – TBD 
TBRA—$120,000 
CEAP—$45,000 
General Fund Staff costs:  $40,000 

Program Delivery:  
Family Support Services (FSS) Division of the  
Travis County Health and Human Services & Veteran Services  

Program Oversight: Travis County Health and Human Services & Veteran Services 

Expected Start/ Completion Date: October 1, 2012  – September 30, 2013 

Location: 
Households in the unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of 
Webberville 

 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   19 

Figure 11: Project 3 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information (HUD –

prescribed) 

Priority Need Category: 
Public Services, 
Other 

Project: Social Work Services Program 

Eligible Activity: Public Services Outcome Category Availability/ Accessibility 

Objective Category 
Suitable Living 
Environment 

Specific Objective 
Improve the availability of services 
for low/moderate income persons  

Citation 570.201 (e) Accomplishment  400 Individuals 

Eligibility LMC Matrix Code  05, Public Services (General) 

Priority in the 2011-2013 
Strategic Plan#: 

High Travis County HTE #: HSOG03 

 

 

 

Project History 

 

There has been a steady increase in the number of clients served by the social work program since PY 

07 when the project began.  In PY 07, 72 clients were served in two quarters, compared to 201 clients 

in the first two quarters of the current program year.  As shown below, the social work expansion 

project has increased its geographic service area significantly.  During the first two quarters of PY10 the 

program reached clients in 8 zip codes in the unincorporated areas; current year-to-date data shows 

that the program has served clients in 18 zip codes throughout the unincorporated areas of the county.     

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                     Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX            Page    |   20 

 

 

Map 1:  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX     Page    |   21 

 

Project # 4: Fair Housing Counseling– $28,451 
 

Project Description: 

 

The funds are allocated for Fair Housing Counseling for residents of the unincorporated areas and the 

Village of Webberville. This program will expand existing fair housing services in the unincorporated 

areas of the County and the Village of Webberville, and proposes to serve approximately 35 people.   

Fair housing services include: fair housing counseling, fair housing complaint processing and testing in 

support of an individual complainant.  Additionally, part of the funds will be used for allowable 

program delivery costs such as marketing materials and office supplies.  At least 51% (18) of the 

recipients will be at or below 80% of the Median Family Income (MFI).  Because housing discrimination 

occurs at all income levels, the project will be allowed to service up to 17 households above 80% MFI.  

Furthermore, an additional $15,000 will be set aside in the administrative and planning budget to 

provide fair housing outreach and training which are not allowable fair housing activities under the 

public services cap.   

 

Austin Tenant’s Council, designated as a sub-recipient, will provide these services; however, should 

ATC decide not to move forward with the project, the County will make the funds available through a 

Request for Services process. 
 

Figure 12: Project 4 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding: $28,451 

Leverage Funding:  Not Applicable  

Program Delivery:  Austin Tenant’s Council or other designated sub-recipient 

Program Oversight: Travis County Health and Human Service & Veteran Services 

Expected Start/ Completion Date: October 1, 2012  – September 30, 2013 

Location: CDBG Service Area 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX     Page    |   22 

Figure 13: Project 4 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information (HUD –

prescribed) 

Priority Need Category:       Public Services, Other          Project: Fair Housing Counseling & Testing 

Eligible Activity:  Public Services Outcome Category Availability/Accessibility  

Objective Category Provide Decent Housing  Specific Objective  Improve the availability of services 
for low/moderate income persons 

Citation 570.201 (e) Accomplishment  35 People 

Eligibility LMC Matrix Code  05J, Fair Housing Activities 

Priority in the 2011-
2013 Strategic Plan#: 

High Travis County HTE #: HSOG04 

 

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX     Page    |   23 

Project # 5: Administrative & Planning Expenses – $179,268 
 

Project Description: 

 

The funds allocated for administration will pay for the operating expenses associated with the grant 

including office supplies, training, contracted services, interpreting, fair housing activities, membership, 

Action Plan, annual report, reporting and other business related expenses.  Additionally, the funds will 

pay for a portion (99% and 59%) of the salaries for the two CDBG Planners, and a portion (27%) of the 

salary of a TNR Senior Engineer.  These positions are responsible for project development, action plan 

and annual report development, monitoring, and reporting among others. 
  

Figure 14: Project 5 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding: $179,268 

Leverage Funding:  Travis County General Fund = estimated $177,135 

Program Delivery:  Travis County Health and Human Service & Veteran Services 

Program Oversight: Travis County Health and Human Service & Veteran Services 

Expected Start/ Completion Date: October 1, 2012  – September 30, 2013 

Location: Not Applicable 

 
 
 
 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX     Page    |   24 

 
 
 
 

Figure 15: Project 5 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information                    

(HUD –prescribed) 

Priority Need Category: Not Applicable Project: Program Administration 

Eligible Activity: 
Administration and 
Planning 

Outcome Category Not Applicable 

Objective Category Not Applicable Specific Objective Not Applicable 

Citation 570.206 Accomplishment  
Other,  
Effective administration of the grant  

Eligibility Not Applicable Matrix Code  
21A, General Program 
Administration 

Priority in the 2011-2013 
Strategic Plan#: 

Not Applicable Travis County HTE #: HAGG05 & HPWG06 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX     Page    |   25 

ALTERNATE PROJECTS 

 
In July 2010, the Travis County Commissioners Court approved an amendment to the Citizen 

Participation Plan to allow for a list of alternate projects to be provided in the Annual Action Plan.  This 

amendment provides the framework to allow the opportunity to have a list of projects that have the 

potential to be implemented quickly should a funded CDBG project experience cost savings, delays or 

barriers to completion.   

 

Alternate Projects will contain the same level of information that funded projects contain in the Annual 

Action Plan to ensure appropriate review by the public.  Approval by the Travis County Commissioners 

Court will be necessary to replace a funded project with an alternate or to fund an alternate with cost 

savings from a completed project regardless of whether or not the increase or decrease exceeds 25 

percent.  These actions will not require a substantial amendment since the alternate projects will have 

gone through a public review process saving 60 to 90 days prior to reallocate funds.  

 

In the event that the projects identified for this program year are delayed, canceled, or are performed 

at a lower cost than the budgeted amount, the Travis County CDBG program plans to pursue one or 

more of following projects: homebuyer assistance, homeowner rehabilitation, or Phase 1 of the Las 

Lomitas Water Distribution Project (Refer to Appendix A for details on each alternate project). 

 

 

Figure 16: Proposed Alternate Projects for Program Year 2012 

Project/Activities Amount 

Community Development 

Home Repair Up to $200,000 

Homebuyer Assistance Up to $300,000 

Las Lomitas Water Distribution Up to $480,000 

 
  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX     Page    |   26 

CDBG CARRY OVER CHART 
 

This chart represents the estimated total CDBG dollars available for use during PY12 including 

estimated carry over amounts from PY06 through PY11. The percentages of the areas of investments 

for public services and administration and planning were calculated to demonstrate that the amounts 

allocated in each area do not exceed the program caps of 15% for public service and 20% for 

administration and planning.   

 

Figure 17: CDBG Carry Over Chart 

CDBG Area of 
Investment 

CDBG Activity 
PY 2012 
Funds by 
Activity 

Carry Over 
From PY06-

PY11 
TOTAL 

Percent of 
Activity 

Investment 

Percent of 
CDBG Area 
Investment 

Community 
Development 

1. Street 
Improvements: 
Lake Oak 
Estates 

$326,598 $75,000 $401,598  

 

2. Street 
Improvements:  
Lava Lane  

N/A $0 $0  

3. Owner 
Occupied: 
Home 
Rehabilitation 

$256,024 $636,000 $892,024  

4. Production of 
owner housing: 
Land 
Acquisition 

N/A $2.86 $2.86  

5. Homebuyer 
Assistance 

N/A $750,000 $750,000  

Public Services 

6. Public Services, 
Other:  Social 
Work 
Expansion 

$106,000 $0 $106,000 
$134,451 

15% 
 

 
7. Fair Housing 

Counseling 
$28,451 N/A $28,451 

Administration 
& Planning 

8. Administration 
& Planning 

$179,268 $0 $179,268 $179,268 20% 

TOTAL  $896,341 $1,461,003 $2,357,344   

*The carry over numbers represent estimates of funds remaining at the end of the program year.  These numbers may 
increase or decrease depending upon the draw downs and progress achieved by September 30, 2012.  For the administration 
and Planning and Public Services categories, if the Program ends up with carry over balances at the end of the program 
year, the project savings will be allocated according to the Citizen Participation Plan.  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX     Page    |   27 

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS 
 

Approximately 821 people will benefit from the projects proposed in the PY 2012 Action Plan. The 

following figure presents each proposed project with the corresponding outcome objective and 

performance indicator as prescribed by HUD’s performance measurement framework. 

 

Figure 18: Performance Indicators for the Proposed PY 2012 Projects 

Specific 
Objectives 

Outcome Objectives 
Sources 

of 
Funds 

Performance 
Indicators 

Expected  Actual  
Percent 

Completed 

SL-1 Availability/Accessibility of Living Environment   

 
Public Services, 
Other 

Improve the access 
to a suitable living 
environment by 
increasing the 
availability of 
services to low/mod 
income persons 

CDBG 

 Number of people 
assisted with 
expanded access to 
a service 

400 To be determined 

DH-1 Availability/Accessibility of Decent Housing 

Fair Housing 
Counseling 

Improve access to 
decent housing  for 
protected groups 

CDBG 
 Number of people 

assisted 
35 To be determined 

SL-3 Sustainability of Living Environment   

Street 
Improvements 
Lake Oak 
Estates 

Improve the quality 
of public 
improvements for 
lower income 
persons by improving 
roads  

CDBG 
 Number of people 

who will benefit 
from improved road 

126 
 

To be determined 

Homeowner 
Rehabilitation 

Improve the quality 
of owner housing 

CDBG 
 Number of housing 

units improved 
10 To be determined 

Specific Objective Not Applicable  

Administration 
& Planning 

 
Not applicable 

CDBG 
 Other – effective 

grant administration 
N/A* To be determined 

*Note approximately 250 people will receive Fair Housing Training during FY12, to be paid from the Administration and Planning budget. 

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX     Page    |   28 

The coding system used in Figure 18 follows the numbering system established in the CDBG 

Community Planning and Development Outcome Performance Measurement System developed by 

HUD.  The outcome/objective numbers stand for the following: 

 

Figure 19: Numbering System for Outcome and Objective Coding 

Objective 
Outcome 

Availability/Accessibility Affordability Sustainability 

Decent Housing DH-1 DH-2 DH-3 

Suitable Living Environment SL-1 SL-2 SL-3 

Economic Opportunity EO-1 EO-2 EO-3 

 

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX     Page    |   29 

GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS 
 

The Travis County CDBG program does not have any designated target areas as projects are selected 

based on need and low to moderate income benefit, rather than geographic location.   

 

The road improvements project (Project 1) proposed for PY12 is located in the Lake Oak Estates 

neighborhood. This neighborhood is located in Precinct 3 in Western Travis County, in a Census Tract 

which required a primary survey to determine eligibility. The Home Rehabilitation, Public Services and 

Fair Housing Counseling projects will help households located throughout the CDBG service area.  

 

Figure 20: Geographic Distribution of Grant Activity for the Program Year 2012 

PY12 Projects Location in Travis County 

Project 1: Street Improvements Lake Oak Estates, Precinct 3 

Project 2:  
Homeowner  
Rehabilitation 

Households in the unincorporated areas of the county and in 
the Village of Webberville 

Project 3: 
Public Services, Other 

Households in the unincorporated areas of the county and in 
the Village of Webberville 

Project 4: 
Fair Housing Counseling 

Households in the unincorporated areas of the county and in 
the Village of Webberville 

Project 5:  
Administration & Planning 

Not Applicable 

 
Please refer to the following maps for:  the location of proposed projects for PY12; low to moderate 
income percentages by block group; racial and ethnic concentrations and distribution by block group.   

 

 
 
 
 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                    Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX                    Page    |   30 

 

  

Map 2: 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                    Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX                    Page    |   31 

 

Map 3: 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                    Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX                    Page    |   32 

  

Map 4: 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                    Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX                    Page    |   33 

  
 

Map 5: 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                    Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX                    Page    |   34 

 
 

 

Map 6: 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                    Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX                    Page    |   35 

 

Map 7: 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                    Section I   ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX                    Page    |   36 

 

Map 8: 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                   Section I    ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   37 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PROCESS 
 

Public engagement occurs throughout CDBG activities for four main purposes: needs gathering, 

approval of proposed actions, the substantial amendment process (if applicable), and the annual 

report (see chart below).  
 

Figure 21: Public Engagement Process 

 

SUMMARY OF PARTICIPATION PROCESS 
 

During the months of February and March 2012, the public had an opportunity to identify the needs of 

the unincorporated areas by; 

 

1) Attending one of five public hearings; 

2) Turning in a Participation Form; or  

3) Turning in a Project Proposal form.   

 

For full details of the Public Engagement Process including Results, refer to Appendix B. 

 

Public Hearings and Participation Forms 

 

The purpose of the hearings and participation forms was to obtain the public’s input on the community 

development, housing, and public service needs, as well as potential project ideas to address those 

needs. The first hearing, held at the Commissioner Courtroom, followed a traditional hearing format, 

while those held in each of the precincts had an information session followed by facilitated discussion.  

Timeline: 
February/March 

Public Engagement: 5 
public hearings (1 at 
Travis County 
Commissioners Court 
and 4 at each of the 
precincts 

Needs 
Gathering 
Process 

Timeline: June/July 

Public Engagement: 30 
day comment period 

2 public hearings at 
Travis County 
Commissioners Court 

Proposed 
Activities 
Process 

Timeline: Varies 

Public Engagement: 
30-day comment 
period 

1 public hearing at 
Travis County 
Commissioners Court 

Substantial 
Amendment 

Timeline: December 

Public Engagement: 
15-day comment 
period 

1 public hearing at 
Travis County 
Commissioners Court 

Annual 
Report 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                   Section I    ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   38 

The public that could not participate in public hearings had the choice of providing their input by filling 

out a Participation Form or a Project Proposal Form. These forms were provided to interested parties 

upon request and were available in both English and Spanish on the Travis County CDBG website. 

 

Technical Assistance to Neighborhoods 

 

Organized residents and non-profit agencies who identified CDBG eligible projects received technical 

assistance from CDBG staff in the form of site visits, guidance on project proposals and understanding 

CDBG eligible activities and eligible beneficiaries.  Specifically CDBG staff provided technical assistance 

to representatives of Cardinal Hills and Las Lomitas.  

 

Additionally, one primary survey was conducted during May 2012.  Las Lomitas, located in 

Southeastern Travis County, requested assistance with water connections in PY 2011.  However, it was 

determined that Census data would not support a project to benefit the neighborhood due to the size 

of the area of benefit within the Census Tract, however, the County and the neighborhood could work 

together to conduct a primary survey of the homes that would benefit from the improvements.   

Program staff trained neighborhood representatives on the survey methodology, and participated in 

one neighborhood meeting to explain the survey.   

 

The neighborhood turned in the survey to CDBG on June 1.  Program staff has provided technical 

assistance to help the neighborhood work towards completing the survey, and began analyzing the 

results in June.  Staff will continue to work with the neighborhood in the coming months to finalize the 

results.  Please note that all primary survey materials including announcements, surveys, and surveyors 

were available in both English and Spanish. 

 

Advertising  

 

The opportunity to participate was advertised on the Travis County website 

(www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG), the seven community centers and the television channel of Travis County. 

Advertisements also appeared in newspapers of general circulation including Hill Country News, The 

Oak Hill Gazette, The Villager, The Austin Chronicle and the Spanish language newspapers Ahora Si and 

El Mundo. In addition, notifications by mail and e-mail were sent to service providers, to county 

residents who had previously attended public hearings, to the community liaison departments of 

schools districts and to neighborhood associations, and were posted on the CDBG Facebook and 

Twitter pages.  The announcements were available in English and Spanish.   

 

Typically, the Program advertises in four additional newspapers – the Pflugerville Pflag, Lake Travis 

View, North Lake Travis Log, and Westlake Picayune. The North Lake Travis Log ceased publication and 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                   Section I    ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   39 

the advertisement was placed with the Lake Living Network News Website instead to reach a similar 

population geographically.  The other three newspapers are still in publication; however, due to an 

oversight, the advertisements were not published.  This being said, publishing in the Austin Chronicle 

and the Spanish Language newspaper meets the statutory requirements for HUD.  Additionally, as 

described below, the CDBG outreach plan requires a multi-pronged approach to ensure that 

newspapers are not the sole source of information.  Furthermore, based on the participation numbers 

for this Action Plan, the omission does not appear to have decreased participation levels.   

 

The following efforts were made to broaden public participation:  

 Public notices presented the option of requesting an American Sign Language or Spanish 

interpreter. 

 The CDBG website stayed current with documents and announcements of the different 

participation opportunities. 

 The public that could not attend the public hearings had the option to provide their input by 

filling out a Participation Form or Project Proposal Form.  

 To increase the access to information for Spanish-speakers, all the participation forms were 

available in Spanish, and selected sections of the website were translated into Spanish.  

 Notices of opportunities to participate were sent to all neighborhood associations in the 

unincorporated areas and to school district community liaison departments. 

 Notices of opportunities to participate were also distributed at all schools in the Del Valle 

Independent School District and Manor Independent School District. 

 Notices were sent via email for posting at Leander Independent School District and Marble Falls 

Independent School District. 

 Advertisements to attend community forums were also placed on the City of Manor website 

and the Lake Living Network News website to address the need for outreach that the Lake 

Travis Log used to address before it ceased publication. 

 OneVoice was added to the list of community agencies that emails were sent to regarding 

opportunities to participate in community forums. 
 

Summary of Public Participation 

 

 A total of 46 people attended the five public hearings 

 32 Participation Forms were submitted 

 One neighborhood was primary surveyed to determine whether or not they were eligible 

for a water connection project:  Las Lomitas. 

 Three project proposals were submitted by neighborhoods or agencies: Las Lomitas, 

Lipan/Mestena Trail and Cardinal Hills Estates. 

 One project proposal was submitted by an individual resident: Septic tank repair. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                   Section I    ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   40 

 Three proposals were submitted by Travis County Departments: One from the Family and 

Support Service (FSS) division of the Health and Human Service and Veteran Service 

Department (HHS&VS), one from the Transportation and Natural Resources Department 

(TNR), and one from The Transportation and Natural Resources Department (TNR) for the 

second phase of the Lake Oak Estates Road Improvement Project. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 

Every year during the development of the Annual Action Plan, a 30-day public comment period is held 

to receive comments on the proposed uses of CDBG funds. The comment period includes two public 

hearings held at the Travis County Commissioners Court.  For the development of the PY12 Action Plan 

the 30-day public comment period was held from June 18, 2012 to July 17, 2012 and the two public 

hearings occurred on June 26, 2012, and July 10, 2012.  

 

The public comment period was advertised on the County’s website and in newspapers of general 

circulation during the week of May 28th. In addition, notifications by mail and e-mail were sent to 

service providers, to citizens who attended public hearings in the past, to the community liaison 

departments of school districts and to neighborhood associations.  The announcements were available 

in English and Spanish. 

 

Summary of Public Comments Received for Draft of PY12 Action Plan 

 

 A total of 8 people presented testimony at the public hearing on June 26, 2012. 

 One individual made general comments about excessive taxation and governmental waste. 

 One individual made comments about a lack of responsiveness and waste within agencies not 

related to CDBG.  

 One individual asked for clarification about the amount of funds being dedicated to the home 

repair project, and for additional information on the Fair Housing Counseling project.  

 Four residents of the Las Lomitas community expressed thanks for the work being done around 

the neighborhood’s water connection issues, and for consideration as a CDBG alternate project. 

 One Las Lomitas resident requested that the TNR service station extend hours to accommodate 

people whose work schedules currently do not permit them to get water from the station.  

 No comments were received at the public hearing on July 10, 2012. 

 One written comment was received through U.S. mail from a neighborhood association located 

within the City of Austin requesting services.   

 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                   Section I    ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   41 

Responses to Comment Received and Comments Not Accepted 

 

During the public hearings, most of the questions were addressed at the time of the public hearing.  

Staff provided clarification on the funding for the home repair project and the fair housing activity, and 

Commissioner Gomez’s office indicated they would work with the neighborhood and TNR to discuss 

the extension of hours.  One person stated that the CDBG program was spending 40% of CDBG funds 

on administration, but that is not accurate.  The Program has planned to spend the allowable 20% on 

administration and planning activities as indicated throughout this Action Plan.   

 

The comments regarding governmental waste and travel to London were not associated with the CDBG 

program, and therefore, will not be accepted for this Plan.    

 

The neighborhood association was informed in a letter that the Travis County CDBG Program cannot 

use funds within incorporated areas, and referred to the City of Austin for assistance.   

 
 

 

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                   Section I    ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   42 

PROJECT SELECTION PROCESS 
 
Travis County CDBG staff considered and weighed all potential projects identified by the public.  First, 

the CDBG Office staff assessed whether potential projects met one of HUD’s national objectives, were 

eligible CDBG activities, and were feasible to complete in a timely manner.   

 

Second, CDBG staff further evaluated the projects according to the following criteria: 

 

 Addresses a high priority goal of the Strategic Plan: Projects addressing one of the three high 

priority categories identified in the Strategic (Consolidated) Plan will receive more favorable 

review. 

 

 Feasibility of project: Projects that have the ability to be implemented and completed within 12 

months will receive more favorable review. Project may be broken up into manageable 12-18 

month phases for those that are more costly or slower moving.   

 

 Impacts a significant number of households:  Project scope and the number of persons 

benefiting will be considered to determine the level of project impact. 

 

 Benefit to low/moderate-income persons: Projects that benefit low- and moderate-income 

households will receive a more favorable review. 

 

 Leverages/matches with funding from another source: Projects that utilize other funds (federal, 

state, local, private) and public/private joint efforts will receive more favorable review.  
 

Finally, a matrix was provided to the Travis County Commissioners Court on May 22, 2012 along with 

staff recommendations for projects to be funding in PY12.  The TCCC approved the projects to be 

included in the PY12 Action Plan on June 5, 2012. 

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                   Section I    ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   43 

MANAGING THE PROCESS AND INSTITUTIONAL STRUCTURE 
 

Effective implementation of the PY12 Action Plan will involve a variety of key stakeholders.  

Coordination and collaboration within the Travis County departments and between agencies will be 

instrumental in meeting community needs effectively.  The departments within Travis County 

anticipated to be involved in the implementation of projects are described below. 

 

Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department 

 

The HHS/VS Department is the lead county agency responsible for the administration of the County’s 

CDBG funding.  This Department has the primary responsibility of assessing community needs, 

developing the Consolidated Plan and annual Action Plans, managing project activities in conjunction 

with other county departments and community partners, administering the finances, and monitoring 

and reporting.  The CDBG office is located in the Office of the County Executive within HHS/VS.  The 

Department reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court for oversight authority. 

 

The CDBG office works with the Research and Planning Division (R&P) within HHS/VS in the areas of 

community planning, data collection, and resource development.  The CDBG office will continue to 

keep R&P informed about HUD funding streams and continue to work collaboratively identifying and 

sharing relevant data to ensure a consistent message on emerging issues such as changing housing 

needs and foreclosure.   

 

Additionally, the Family Support Services (FSS) Division of HHS/VS is the project manager for a CDBG 

public service project.  FSS also manages the seven Travis County Community Centers which provide a 

key access point for the public to access CDBG information. The CDBG office works closely with the 

Division to ensure the public’s access to CDBG documents and encourage outreach and public 

engagement through the Centers. 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court 

 

The Commissioners Court is made up of four elected commissioners, one to represent each county 

precinct, and the County Judge who serves as the presiding officer. As a group, the Commissioners and 

County Judge are the chief policy-making and governing body of the county government. The 

Commissioner’s Court makes all final decisions about CDBG fund allocations. 

 

Transportation and Natural Resources Department 

 

The Transportation and Natural Resources Department (TNR) and the CDBG office work closely to 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                   Section I    ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   44 

coordinate environmental review functions, project planning, project implementation and GIS 

mapping. Additionally, over the last year, TNR’s planning division and CDBG staff have begun to work 

more collaboratively to ensure consistent messaging regarding housing, transportation and community 

development.   TNR and CDBG employees have been trained in HUD environmental regulations.  This 

cross training of both departments allows for quality review and peer consultation.  Finally, the CDBG 

office and the CDBG funded Senior Engineer coordinate the preparation of project scopes, eligibility, 

cost estimates, and project design. The Senior Engineer also plays an active role in the implementation 

of CDBG & CDBG-R projects that are managed by TNR such as the street improvement projects for Lake 

Oak Estates and the Plain View Estates water connection project. 

 
County Attorney’s Office 
 
The County Attorney is an elected official and the County Attorney’s Office creates and reviews legal 

agreements as well as provides legal advice and consultation for the Department.  They have created 

templates to assist with CDBG procurement actions, related consultant services, construction 

documents, and templates for sub-recipient agreements.   

 

Purchasing Office 

 

The Purchasing Office manages the CDBG procurement processes for commodities, professional 

services and construction. Expertise in the area of federal standards has been created within the 

Office.  The Office ensures compliance with required labor standards and submits related reports to 

the CDBG office. The Purchasing Office reports to the Purchasing Board, which was established by the 

Travis County Commissioner’s Court.    

 

 Public Sector and Non-Profits 

 

During the implementation of the PY12 Action Plan, the Travis County CDBG office anticipates 

coordinating with a variety of local non-profits and governmental entities activities related to grant 

management and community planning. The following list provides some examples of the type of 

engagements the CDBG office has participated in or anticipates to build: 

 

 Travis County is a member of the Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO) whose 

mission is to identify specific strategies and oversee ongoing planning and implementation of a 

plan to end chronic homelessness in Austin and Travis County. 

 The Travis County CDBG Office and other representatives from Travis County are participating 

in the steering committee for a Regional Opportunity Mapping project that also includes the 

City of Austin, local nonprofits, and other public sector agencies. The maps will identify areas 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                   Section I    ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   45 

within the five county region of higher and lower opportunity, based on a variety of indicators 

such as housing, transportation and education. The maps will help guide regional decision 

making about where to locate future community development projects and investments.   

 Travis County participates in the Community Action Network (CAN) Housing Research Group.  

This group shares housing data and research, and is developing a set of indicators related to 

housing that can be updated annually to provide an accurate and timely snapshot of the 

housing conditions facing residents of the five county region.   

 Consultation with other entitlement counties and cities to exchange models for CDBG grant 

management and project implementation.  

 Partnerships with local Community Housing and Development Organizations (CHDOs), non-

profits, and other community development and housing providers to explore options for 

community development and public service projects and leverage other federal, state, local and 

private funding. 

 Coordination of planning efforts with the Travis County Housing Authority and Travis County 

Housing Finance Corporation for affordable housing programs in the unincorporated areas of 

the county. 

 

Monitoring 

 

As the lead agency for development and implementation of the CDBG Action Plan, the Travis County 

HHS/VS department implements standard policies and procedures for monitoring the implementation 

of CDBG activities. These monitoring activities ensure compliance with program regulations and 

compliance with financial requirements. Federal guidelines that must be followed include: OMB A-110, 

OMB A-122, 24 CFR Part 570.603 (CDBG Labor Standards), 570.901-906 (CDBG), the Davis Bacon Act 

and Contract Work Hours and the Safety Standards Act (CDBG). 

 

HHS/VS provides contract administration for community development activities in conjunction with the 

Transportation and Natural Resources Department, including but not limited to contract negotiations, 

compliance monitoring, and payment and contract closeout.  

 

Sub-Recipients 

 

Sub-recipient agreements will be used to conduct housing, community development and public service 

activities.  The sub-recipient agreement will be the foundation for programmatic monitoring.  Sub-

recipients will be monitored for programmatic compliance on-site or remotely in the following manner: 

1. All invoices and reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to final approval by financial 

services and the Auditor’s Office. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                   Section I    ::   General Questions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   46 

2. All new sub-recipients will be desk audited monthly and monitored at least semi-annually until 

no findings occur.  

3. For new sub-recipients, after four consecutive semi-annual monitoring reports with no findings, 

annual visits will occur. 

 

Financial monitoring will be completed as necessary and as directed by the sub-recipient fiscal 

performance and the external monitoring needs of the Travis County Auditor’s office. Programmatic 

and fiscal monitoring may not occur concurrently. 

 

Contractors 

 

Contractors may be used to provide some housing, community development and public services.  

Contractors submit periodic reimbursement requests that document and verify expenditures. The 

contract agreement will be used as the primary basis for monitoring. The following steps are an 

integral part of the monitoring process for each contract: 

1. On-site or remote reviews at an established periodic interval (prior to project commencement) 

will occur to ensure compliance with terms of the contract, HUD guidelines, state/local building 

and construction standards, and review of engineering plans and specifications. 

2. If a contractor is found to be out of compliance, a notice is sent stating their contractual 

obligation and required action. Failure to comply may result in loss of current and/or future 

contracts as well as a hold on any payments. 

3. All HHS invoices and HHS & TNR Contactor reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to 

final approval by financial services and the Auditor’s Office. 

 

Internal Travis County Departments 

 

Internal Travis County projects will be monitored through Travis County HHS/VS CDBG staff. 

Monitoring activities will include documentation and tracking mechanisms such as review of invoices 

prior to being paid, regular meetings with project management staff, and review of eligibility files, if 

applicable.    

 

Project Files 

 

Travis County HHS/VS staff will maintain files to document each project and meet its respective 

compliance with HUD and related regulations.

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   47 

SECTION II: HOUSING AND HOMELESS 
SERVICES  
 
 

 

OVERVIEW OF HOUSING CONDITIONS 
 

Over the last decade, Austin’s housing market has become increasingly expensive, as the price 

distribution of available housing stock has skewed towards higher-priced housing.  For example, in 

2001, 44% of the homes sold in Austin were priced below $140,000i; in 2011 only 27% of the homes 

sold were in this price range.  Conversely, in 2001, 12% of the homes sold in Austin were priced at 

$300,000 or more; in 2011, 24% of homes sold were in this range.  

 

 
                                                        
i “Housing Activity and Affordability,” The Real Estate Center at Texas A&M University, accessed April 11, 2012, 
recenter.tamu.edu/data/. 

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

Le
ss

 t
h

an
 $

39
,9

99

$4
0,

00
0-

$5
9,

99
9

$6
0,

00
0-

$7
9,

99
9

$8
0,

00
0-

$9
9,

99
9

$1
00

,0
00

-$
11

9,
99

9

$1
20

,0
00

-$
13

9,
99

9

$1
40

,0
00

-$
15

9,
99

9

$1
60

,0
00

-$
17

9,
99

9

$1
80

,0
00

-$
19

9,
99

9

$2
00

,0
00

-$
24

9,
99

9

$2
50

,0
00

-$
29

9,
99

9

$3
00

,0
00

-$
39

9,
99

9

$4
00

,0
00

-$
49

9,
99

9

$5
00

,0
00

 o
r 

m
o

re

Price Distribution of Homes Sold in Austin MLS, 2001-2011 

2001

2006

2011

Note: Residential data includes single-family, townhouses and condominiums. 
Created by: Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2012.     
Source data: The Real Estate Center at Texas A&M University, 2011. 

 

 

 

Figure 22: Price Distribution of Homes Sold in Austin MLS, 2001-2011 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   48 

Between 2005 and 2011, the Austin MLS median home price rose by 18%ii and the average home price 

rose by 20%iii, but median family income increased by only 11%.iv The following chart illustrates this 

prevailing gap between what the median family earns and what the median home costs: 

 

 

 

Rental Housing Market Conditions and Affordability 

 

In the Austin area rental market, fair market rents (the federal standard for what is considered 

affordable), displayed in the chart below, have shown a general upward trend since 2008, despite a 

brief dip in FY 2009 (coinciding with the recession).  For FY 2012, Austin’s fair market rents for 

efficiency, one-bedroom, two-bedroom and three-bedroom units are the highest, and four-bedroom 

units are the second-highest, of all Texas metropolitan areas.v   

                                                        
ii Ibid.  
iii Ibid.   
iv Ibid. 
v “FY2008-FY2012 Individual Area Final FMR Documentation,” HUD User, accessed April 12, 2012, 

http://www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/fmr.html. 

210,400 

229,900 
246,400 243,800 237,300 

246,900 251,600 

161,300 
172,200 

184,200 188,200 186,000 189,400 190,800 

67,300 69,600 69,300 69,100 73,300 73,800 74,900 

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

300000

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Selected Affordability Indicators for Austin MLS, 2005-2011 

Average Home Price Median Home Price Median Family Income

Note: Residential data includes single-family, townhouses and condominiums.  
Created by: Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2012.   
Source data:  Real Estate Center at Texas A&M University, 2011. 

 

 

 

Figure 23: Selected Affordability Indicators for Austin MLS, 2005-2011 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   49 

 

 

American Community Survey data confirm that actual rent costs in Travis County are rising. Between 

2006 and 2010, median contract rent rose 12%, from $677 to $761.vi  The Austin area also has high 

occupancy rate—at the end of 2011 they were 91% for Travis County.vii  These conditions create a tight 

rental market, especially for those seeking more affordable housing.  

 

Owners are in the slight majority in Travis County’s housing market (51% of occupied housing units are 

owner occupied, 49% are renter occupied).viii This owner-occupancy rate is lower than that of the state 

(64%) and that of the nation (65%). ix  Although owner costs skew higher than renter costs,x renter 

                                                        
vi U.S. Census Bureau, 2006 and 2010 American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates, Travis County, B25058. Median Contract Rent 
(dollars) - Universe:  Renter-Occupied Housing Units Paying Cash Rent, accessed November 29, 2011, http://factfinder2.gov. 
vii U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates, Travis County, B25002. Occupancy Status - Universe:  Housing 
Units, accessed November 29, 2011, http://factfinder2.census.gov/. 
viii 

U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates, Travis County, B25003. Tenure - Universe:  Occupied Housing 
Units, accessed November 29, 2011, http://factfinder2.census.gov/. 
ix Ibid. 
x U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates, Travis County, B25058. Median Contract Rent (dollars) - 

Universe:  Renter-Occupied Housing Units Paying Cash Rent, and B25088. Median Selected Monthly Owner Costs (dollars) by Mortgage 

Status - Universe:  Owner-Occupied Housing Units, accessed November 29, 2011, http://factfinder2.census.gov/.  

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

Efficiency One-Bedroom Two-Bedroom Three-Bedroom Four-Bedroom

Fair Market Rents, Austin-Round Rock MSA, FY 2008-2012 

FY 2008 FMR

FY 2009 FMR

FY 2010 FMR

FY 2011 FMR

FY 2012 FMR

Created by: Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2012 
Source data: HUD USER (U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Office of Policy Development and 
Research), 2011 

 

 

 

Figure 24: Fair Market Rents, Austin-Round Rock MSA, FY 2008-2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   50 

incomes tend to be lower than owner incomes.  The difference is striking: Travis County’s owner-

occupied median household income is $80,235, while the renter-occupied median household income is 

$32,134.xi  

 

A large percentage of both renters and owners in Travis County experience a housing cost burden, 

which is defined as spending 30% or more of household income on housing costs (spending 50% or 

more constitutes a severe cost burden).xii  However, the percentage of households that are cost 

burdened is much higher among renters than owners, as illustrated in the following chart: 54% of 

renter households in Travis County spend 30% or more of their income on rent, and 29% of them 

spend at least half of their income on rent.xiii  Comparatively, 29% of owner households spend 30% or 

more of their income on housing costs and 11% spend at least half.xiv   

 

                                                        
xi U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates, Travis County, B25119. Median Household Income the Past 12 
Months (in 2010 inflation-adjusted dollars) by Tenure - Universe:  Occupied Housing Units, accessed November 29, 2011, 
http://factfinder2.census.gov/. 
xii “Rental Housing Assistance - The Worsening Crisis: A Report to Congress on Worst Case Housing Needs,“ U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development, March 2000, accessed November 2009, http://www.huduser.org/publications/affhsg/worstcase00/app_b.html. 
xiii U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates, Travis County, B25070. Gross Rent as a Percentage of 

Household Income in the past 12 Months - Universe:  Renter-Occupied Housing Units, accessed November 29, 2011, 

http://factfinder2.census.gov/. 
xiv U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates, Travis County, B25091. Mortgage Status by Selected Monthly 
Owner Costs as a percentage of Household Income in the Past 12 Months - Universe:  Owner-Occupied Housing Units, accessed 
November 29, 2011, http://factfinder2.census.gov/. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://www.huduser.org/portal/publications/affhsg/worstcase00.html
http://www.huduser.org/publications/affhsg/worstcase00/app_b.html


PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   51 

 

 

In total, close to 166,000 of households in Travis County experience a housing cost burden; for 

approximately 80,000 of those households, it is a severe housing cost burden.xv 

 
Foreclosures 

 

Foreclosure trends have received increasing attention during the recent economic recession, as many 

owners face challenges paying their monthly mortgage costs.  Foreclosure trends are complex and 

cannot stand alone as an accurate proxy measure for housing affordability, but the trend does reflect a 

certain amount of risk in the community.  Foreclosure trends demonstrate an approximation of 

households on the threshold of losing their housing stability.  In Travis County, between 2007 and 

                                                        
xv U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates, Travis County, B25070. Gross Rent as a Percentage of 
Household Income in the Past 12 Months- Universe:  Renter-Occupied Housing Units, and B25091. Mortgage Status by Selected Monthly 
Costs as a Percentage of Household Income in the Past 12 Months - Universe:  Owner-Occupied Housing Units, accessed November 29, 
2011, http://factfinder2.census.gov/. 

 

 

 

Figure 25: Percent of Household Income Spent on Housing Costs (Travis County, 2010) 

Created by: Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2012. 
Source data: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   52 

2010, foreclosure postingsxvi  nearly doubled, increasing from 2,582 postings in 2007 to 5,121 postings 

in 2010.xvii  The population in Travis County grew at a much slower rate for this same period of time, 

only increasing by 53,789 (about 5.5%) over the three years.xviii  Data for 2011 shows that the total 

number of foreclosures in 2011 was lower than in either 2010 or 2009, although the annual number of 

foreclosures remains significantly higher than pre-recession totals.  
 

 

                                                        
xvi This number reflects properties posted for auction (posted for auction indicates pre-foreclosure status, and reflects a risk of 

foreclosure).  A foreclosure posting may or may not result in an actual foreclosure.  The same property may be included in the list for 

foreclosure auction multiple times over a series of months or even years.  Therefore some duplication does exist within these foreclosure 

postings annual totals; duplicate postings would indicate households finding themselves at risk of foreclosure multiple times. Due to this 

repetition in the data, duplicate listings within each year have been removed to provide a more accurate count of foreclosures within a 

given year. 
xvii Lyndon B. Johnson School of Public Affairs at the University of Texas at Austin, 2006-2008 foreclosure data set (original data source: 
Foreclosure Listing Service, Inc.);  Foreclosure Listing Service, Inc., 2009, 2010 and 2011 foreclosure data sets. 
xviii “Population,“ The Real Estate Center at Texas A&M University, accessed January 20, 2012, http://recenter.tamu.edu/data/ and  2010 
Data: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Decennial Census, Travis County, Total Population, accessed January 20, 2012, 
http://2010.census.gov/2010census. 

2,582 

3,289 

4,955 
5,121 

4,285 

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Number of Foreclosure Postings, Travis County 2007-2011 

Note: Annual totals reflect properties posted for auction (i.e. indicates pre-foreclosure status and a risk of foreclosure).  A 
foreclosure posting may or may not result in an actual foreclosure.  The same property may be posted multiple times over a series 
of months or years.  Therefore, with the intention of providing a more accurate depiction of foreclosure activity, duplicates have 
been ommitted for each year of data.  The foreclosure data reported in the  PY11-13 CDBG Consolidated Plan does include 
duplicated properties and therefore  the number appears higher than the data reported here, however the overall trends stay the 
same regardless of whether duplicate properties are included or not.  

 
Created by: Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2012 
Source data: Lyndon B. Johnson School of Public Affairs at the University of Texas at Austin, 2006-2008 foreclosure data set 
(original data source: Foreclosure Listing Service, Inc.); Foreclosure Listing Service, Inc., 2009-2011 foreclosure data set. 

 

 

 

Figure 26: Number of Foreclosure Postings, Travis County 2007-2011 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://recenter.tamu.edu/data/


PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   53 

CDBG HOUSING INVESTMENTS 
 

The Travis County CDBG program has supported projects that seek to preserve and expand the supply 

of decent affordable housing units.  As a part of the PY11 – PY13 Consolidated Plan, goals are set to 

address Homeowner and Renter goals, which direct annual investments.  The following figures outline 

the goals included in the three year Strategic Plan. 

 
 

Figure 27: Priority Housing Needs Summary Table, Owner Households 

  
  

 
Percent of 

Households 

 
Number of 
Households

xix 

Priority 
Need 

Goals 

Carryover 
from 

previous 
years 

PY  
2011 

 
PY  

2012 
 

PY 
 2013 

Very Low 
Income 
Household  

84% 1,782 High 10 3 3 3 

Low 
Income 
Household  

72% 1,618 High 27 3 3 3 

Moderate 
Income 
Household  

56% 2,451 Medium 52 1 6 1 

 
  

                                                        
xix The number of households with a housing need was calculated based on the total number of households with a housing problem.  

Because this number was only available for all of Travis County, in order to estimate the need for the unincorporated areas alone, the 

total number of owner households with a housing problem at each income level was multiplied by the approximate percentage of 

population in Travis County that lives in the unincorporated area (17 percent.)    

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   54 

 

Figure 28: Priority Housing Needs Summary Table, Renter Households 

 
 

 
Percent of 

Households 

 
Number of 
Households

xx 

Priority 
Need 

Goals 

Carryover 
from 

previous 
years 

PY 
2011 

PY 
2012 

PY 
2013 

Very Low 
Income 

Household 
85% 5,736 Medium 0 0 0 0 

Low 
Income 

Household 
86% 4,374 Medium 0 0 0 0 

Moderate 
Income 

Household 
40% 2,706 Low 0 0 0 0 

 
For PY12, CDBG is supporting the rehabilitation of single family homes, in addition to continuing to 

implement current projects from PY06-PY11 that are not yet complete. The following figures 

summarize the overall CDBG housing investments and impacts anticipated for PY12.   These annual 

goals align with the three year goals outlined in the figures above. 

 

Figure 29: Homebuyer Assistance Objectives* 

Specific Objective Source of Funds Performance Indicator 
Expected 
Number 
PY 2012 

Investment 

Increase the affordability of 
owner housing by providing 
homebuyer assistance to low 
to moderate income 
households. 

CDBG 
Number of Households 

to purchase homes. 
30* $785,000 

*Includes carryover funding from previous years. 
 
 
 

                                                        
xx The number of households with a housing need was calculated based on the total number of households with a housing problem.  

Because this number was only available for all of Travis County, in order to estimate the need for the unincorporated areas alone, the 

total number of renter households with a housing problem at each income level was multiplied by the approximate percentage of 

population in Travis County that lives in the unincorporated area (17 percent.)    

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   55 

Figure 30: Home Repair Objectives* 

Specific Objective Source of Funds Performance Indicator 
Expected 
Number 
PY 2012 

Investment 

Improve the quality of 
owner housing 
through home 
rehabilitation. 

CDBG 
Number of Households 

receiving repairs. 
39* $1,120,096 

*Includes carryover funding from previous years. 
 

Figure 31: New Owner Occupied Units Objectives* 

Specific Objective Source of Funds Performance Indicator 
Expected 
Number 
PY 2012 

Investment 

Improve the affordability of 
decent housing by supporting 
the creation of single family 
homes through land 
acquisition to low to 
moderate income 
households.  

CDBG 
Number of Housing 

Units Created 
2* 

$1,081,000 
(land acquired – 
31 houses to be 
built by 2016) 

*Includes carryover funding from previous years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   56 

OVERVIEW OF HOUSING SERVICES SUPPORTED BY TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

In addition to CDBG program administration, Travis County addresses the housing needs of its 

residents through diverse strategies that include the support of homeless and emergency shelters; 

transitional, public, assisted, and rental housing; first-time homebuyer programs and owner-occupied 

assistance programs.  These services are either directly delivered by county departments, affiliate 

entities or by contracted not-for-profit agencies. The following chart is a visual representation of the 

different departments/affiliate entities of the County working on a variety of housing services.  

 

 
 

Travis County HHS/VS Housing Services  
 
The Travis County Housing Services Division performs weatherization and home repairs on houses 

occupied by county residents to improve energy efficiency, the physical living conditions, and safety in 

these homes.  Funding for services comes from the Texas Department of Housing and Community 

Affairs, and the Travis County General Fund.   

 

Travis County HHS/VS Family Support Services Division 

 

The Family Support Services (FSS) Division provides rent and mortgage assistance for 30-day housing 

stabilization as well as utility assistance.  Funding for services comes from the Travis County General 

Fund, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), the Comprehensive Energy Assistance 

Figure 32: Travis County Departments Providing Housing Services 

Health and Human Services 
& Veteran Services 

Department  

Travis County  
Housing Finance 

Corporation  

Housing Authority of 
Travis County  

Community 
Services – 
Housing 
Division 

CDBG Program  Family 
Support 
Services  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   57 

Program and a variety of local electric and gas utility providers.  

 

Other Travis County HHS/VS Divisions 

 

Other HHS/VS Divisions provide emergency rent or utility assistance on a smaller scale than FSS.  These 

dollars are usually a part of a comprehensive case management program with strategic use of funds for 

families in need. 

 

Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 

 

Through the Travis County Housing Finance Corporation (TCHFC), Travis County is engaged in a number 

of efforts to foster and maintain affordable housing. The Corporation provides single-family home 

ownership (including down-payment assistance) opportunities to first-time homebuyers who meet 

certain income requirements. The Corporation also issues tax-exempt bonds to finance the 

construction or acquisition of multi-family apartments that must provide rental units to certain low and 

moderate-income families.  

 

The TCHFC continues to collaborate with FSS to implement a Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA) 

program funded through the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs to provide rental 

assistance and case management for up to 24 months for certain low income households.  

 

The Housing Authority of Travis County 

 

The Housing Authority of Travis County (HATC) manages three public housing sites, a Section 8 Housing 

Choice Voucher Program, three Shelter Plus Care Projects and a Lease-Purchase program.  

 

The three public housing sites have a total of 105 housing units and are located within the City of 

Austin.  Additionally, HATC manages 33 units of Senior Housing in Manor, and 16 duplex units in Del 

Valle.  The Housing Authority's affiliated entity, Strategic Housing Finance Corporation, is the general 

partner in  three tax credit multifamily properties, including 208 units of Senior Housing  in Pflugerville, 

70 units of  senior housing in Austin, and a 192 unit family property in Austin. 

 

The Shelter Plus Care projects provide rental assistance for homeless people with chronic disabilities in 

the Austin-Travis County area.  The program utilizes integrated rental housing and flexible and 

intensive support services to promote community tenure and independence.  

 

In the unincorporated areas, HATC administers the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program, 

assisting very low income, disabled and elderly families or individuals.  HATC also operates a Lease-

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   58 

Purchase program, to provide homeownership opportunities for prospective homebuyers who can 

afford monthly mortgage payments, but do not have funds for a down payment and/or closing costs or 

the credit standing to qualify for a loan.   

 

The CDBG program will continue to support HATC’s efforts to provide homeownership and affordable 

housing opportunities to low-income residents.  CDBG staff has worked with HATC staff to locate sites 

in the unincorporated areas that are appropriate for rehabilitation or development.  Though no sites 

have been identified yet, staff will continue to work collaboratively to find opportunities to work 

together.    

 

BARRIERS TO AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
 

In the PY11 – PY13 Consolidated Plan, eight barriers to affordable housing were outlined.  These 

barriers were identified through the needs assessment, housing market analysis, provider forum and 

surveys, consultations and public hearings contained within the Housing Market Analysis Section of the 

Consolidated Plan. 

 

Lack of Funding for Affordable Housing 

 

Funding for affordable housing requires many different products to achieve the desired affordability 

levels needed in a community.  Funding mechanisms including the HOME Investment Program, tax 

credits, CDBG, FHA loans, and down-payment assistance – just to name a few – are key to increasing 

the affordable housing stock.  Currently, Travis County does not receive a HOME formula allocation, 

which is a major funding source for many entitlement communities to develop affordable housing.  

Add to that shaky tax credit values, dwindling CDBG funds, and the tightened lending market, and one 

will find that developers of single family homes and multi-family housing have experienced difficulty 

maintaining previous development levels.  It is traditionally these types of mechanisms that created 

the opportunity for affordable units and long term affordability.    The reduction in access to funding 

along with a growing percentage of people with a cost burden and an ever widening gap of affordable 

rental units needed in the County, creates a significant barrier to affordable housing.   

 

Land Costs 

 

Land values in rural Travis County have steadily increased over the past decade.  Though this trend has 

slowed with the decline of the housing market, land values in western Travis County remain strong 

enough to discourage the development of much-needed affordable housing.  

 

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   59 

Tight Credit Market 

 

In the wake of the recession and collapse of the housing market, banks have significantly tightened 

credit requirements.  While these tighter requirements were put in place to correct sub-prime lending 

practices that contributed to the foreclosure crisis, they also make it more difficult for some qualified 

buyers—particularly lower income homebuyers—to purchase a home or refinance an existing loan.  

This credit market also impacts a developer’s ability to borrow funds to create rental housing.  The 

Housing Market Study in the PY11-13 Consolidated Plan highlights the marked reduction in permits in 

Travis County, and points to the difficulty that developers are experiencing to create new market rate 

rental housing – much less affordable units. 

 

Building Codes, Zoning Provisions, Growth Restrictions and Fees  

 

Currently, Travis County does not have any building codes, zoning provisions or growth restrictions in 

the unincorporated areas.  This is largely a function of state statutes that place significant limits on the 

authority of counties to regulate or restrict development.  While less restrictions, codes and provisions 

initially increase affordable development, it also increases the likelihood for substandard housing and 

other unsuitable living conditions throughout the unincorporated areas.    

 

Environmental Regulations  

 

Several state and federal regulations exist to protect the environment including the Endangered 

Species Act, the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System and the Wetland regulations. Texas 

state regulations exist for the installation of septic systems and for development over the Edwards 

Aquifer. These regulations may increase costs for development, affecting affordability especially in the 

Western parts of Travis County where endangered species habitat and the Edward Aquifer are located.   

 

Other factors affecting affordability 

 

Though housing affordability is traditionally evaluated by the percentage of income required for 

housing costs, policy makers and planners are increasingly considering the impact housing location has 

on the overall affordability for a household.  This is a particularly useful framework for considering 

affordability in the unincorporated areas of Travis County, where housing prices may be lower but 

other factors may be considerably more expensive.     

 

 Transportation  

 

Transportation costs are a major component of household expenditures.   Residents of the 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   60 

unincorporated areas generally must travel farther for work, school and shopping, and have less 

access to public transit options. As a result, it is likely that residents of the unincorporated areas 

have higher transportation costs than residents of more densely developed urban neighborhoods.  

 

 Infrastructure 

 

Many parts of the unincorporated areas lack existing water and wastewater infrastructure and/or 

maintained roads. The costs of installing necessary infrastructure would make a property 

unaffordable to an individual or an affordable housing nonprofit developer.    

 

 Utility Costs 

 

The cost of utilities in the unincorporated areas varies, depending on the provider of the service in 

a given area.  Based on input received through the social work program and public engagement, 

monthly utility bills often represent a burden to very low-income households.    

 

PY12 Actions to Address Barriers  

 

Over the next year, a mixture of investments, policy review and advocacy will occur to assist in 

reducing the barriers associated with affordable housing.  More specifically, the CDBG program will 

provide homebuyer assistance to reduce the impact of the tightened credits market, home 

rehabilitation to offset the lack of building codes to address substandard housing, and refer low to 

moderate income households to utility assistance programs to offset the high cost of utilities.  Planning 

efforts will include monitoring and/or participating in the CAMPO urban centers model which links 

transportation, housing and employment, working with other entities who are interested in developing 

affordable housing in the unincorporated areas  and  continuing to look for opportunities to invest in 

rental housing development and maximize grant funds.  Finally, staff will monitor local, state or federal 

laws or bills that impact any of the aforementioned barriers and advocate reducing any impact to 

affordable housing development. 

IMPEDIMENTS TO FAIR HOUSING CHOICE 
 

HUD has a commitment to eliminate racial and ethnic segregation, physical and other barriers to 

persons with disabilities, and other discriminatory practices in the provision of housing. HUD extends 

the responsibility of affirmatively furthering fair housing to local jurisdictions through a variety of 

regulations and program requirements.  

 

As an entitlement county receiving CDBG funds from HUD, Travis County must fulfill its fair housing 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   61 

responsibilities by developing an Analysis of Impediments (AI) to Fair Housing Choice and by taking 

actions to overcome the identified impediments. Given the County’s limited history administering the 

grant (since October 2006), the complexities of conducting a thorough analysis, and the limited staff 

resources, the CDBG office of Travis County developed a preliminary analysis to lay the foundation for 

a more comprehensive analysis to be conducted by a consultant.   

 

The City of Austin conducted an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice, published in February, 

2005.  Since much of the analysis conducted by the city used county level data, the impediments 

identified in this analysis can be expected to be true for other areas of the county, including the 

unincorporated areas. The identified impediments are the following: 

 

 Lack of accessible housing to meet the need of the disabled community throughout the county 

 Lack of affordable housing 

 Discrimination of minorities in housing rental and sales market 

 Misconception by property managers concerning family occupancy standards 

 Predatory lending practices 

 Disparity in lending practices 

 Failure of mortgage lenders to offer products and services to very low income and minority 

census tracts people  

 Insufficient financial literacy education 

 Insufficient income to afford housing 

 

In addition to the City of Austin’s study, 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan allowed the County to lay the 

foundation for a robust AI with the key issues identified in the unincorporated areas which include 

population shifts, foreclosures, and lack of housing for specific populations. 

 

Racial and Ethnic Concentrations  

 

Analysis of racial and ethnic concentrationsxxi using the most current Census data has begun to give a 

better picture of changes occurring in the county.  There has been a significant shift of African 

American populations from within the City of Austin to the Eastern suburbs since 2000.  There also 

appears to be an increase in the concentration of Hispanic population in unincorporated eastern Travis 

County.   A key goal of the new Analysis of Impediments will be to determine the factors that are 

contributing to these shifts and the implications for fair housing in the unincorporated areas.   

 

 

                                                        
xxi Disproportionate concentration is defined as the percentage of a population in a given area that is at least ten percentage points 

higher than the percentage for that population for the County as a whole.    

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   62 

Racial, Ethnic and Low to Moderate Income Concentration by Block Group 

 

The map below shows the areas of racial and ethnic concentration as well as qualified low and 

moderate income block groups.  The majority of the block groups with a concentration of racial and 

ethnic minorities also have a concentration of low to moderate income households; therefore, the new 

AI will also include analysis of how these factors interconnect with one another. 

 

 
 

Actions During the Program Year 

 

In May 2012, Travis County engaged the consulting firm Mullin & Lonergan to conduct an AI for the 

county.  The AI is anticipated to be completed in October 2012.   

 

In PY12, CDBG will fund Fair Housing Counseling for residents of the unincorporated areas and the 

village of Webberville.  Furthermore, training to HHS/VS employees who interact with clients will occur 

Map 9: 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   63 

to ensure that staff know how to identify possible fair housing violations and how to report them.  

Outreach and education efforts to people living in the CDBG service area will also by conducted 

through a variety of strategies.  

OVERVIEW OF HOMELESS CONDITIONS 
 

The primary causes of homelessness in the U.S. are poverty and the lack of affordable housing.  Some 

other major factors that can contribute to homelessness include: economic factors such as insufficient 

income or loss of employment, domestic violence, mental illness, and substance abuse.  Homelessness 

can be short-term or long-term, or even a chronic condition.xxii  

 

The 2011 Annual Homelessness Countxxiii provided a point-in-time snapshot of the Austin area 

homeless population, at a total of 2,342 homeless individuals, 57% of whom were sheltered (either 

emergency, transitional, or Safe Havenxxiv), and 43% of whom were unsheltered.  Over one-quarter 

(28%) of the homeless population is comprised of individuals in households with dependent children, 

while more than two-thirds (72%) are individuals in households without dependent children.  Less than 

1% of the homeless population consists of individuals in households with only children (that is, young 

people who are unaccompanied by guardians).xxv  The following chart provides additional detail by 

shelter and household type on the 2011 annual homelessness count. 

 

 

 

                                                        
xxii “What Causes Homelessness?” Austin/Travis County Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO), accessed November 28, 2011, 

http://austinecho.org/index.html. 
xxiii The Austin/Travis County homeless count was conducted on January 23, 2011.  The final count resulted in increases over the prior 

year in most of the categories counted in the survey.  The lower count reported in 2010 could have been due to a variety of factors 

including setting the rescheduled count date at the beginning of the month rather than the end, increased housing options in the 

community in 2010, and/or an undercount resulting from the lower number of volunteers available on the rescheduled date last year.  In 

2011, increases could have been due to increases in family size, more homeless individuals being entered into the Homeless 

Management Information System, and higher numbers of volunteers participating in the unsheltered count.  Certain decreases in 

households with unaccompanied youth could be attributed to the day of the week being Sunday therefore making it difficult to 

distinguish between the different homeless populations due to the many activities. 
xxiv

 Safe Haven is a HUD Supportive Housing Program that serves hard-to-reach homeless persons with severe mental illness and other 

debilitating behavioral conditions who are on the street and have been unable or unwilling to participate in housing or supportive 

services.  

For more information see: http://www.hud.gov/offices/cpd/homeless/library/shp/index.cfm. 
xxv“2011 ECHO Point In Time Homeless Count”, received from Sam Woollard, Principal at Knox-Woollard Professional Management, email 

message to Morgan Chee, December 1, 2011. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://www.hud.gov/offices/cpd/homeless/library/shp/index.cfm


PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   64 

 
 

The 2011 count also found that about one-fourth (539 or 23%) of the homeless population was 

chronically homeless.xxvi  For the chronically homeless, “homeless” is defined as: “A person sleeping in 

a place not meant for human habitation (e.g. living on the streets, for example) OR living in a homeless 

emergency shelterxxvii.” The following subpopulationsxxviii were also counted: chronic substance abusers 

(562 or 24%), veterans (351 or 15%), victims of domestic violence (328 or 14%), people with severe 

mental illness (281 or 12%), people with HIV/AIDS (23 or less than 1%), and unaccompanied youth (23 

or less than 1%).xxix  The coexistence of two or more of these issues for many homeless individuals is 

                                                        
xxvi The federal definition of chronic homelessness used by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development defines a chronically 

homeless person as: “Either (1) an unaccompanied homeless individual with a disabling condition who has been continuously homeless 

for a year or more, OR (2) an unaccompanied individual with a disabling condition who has had at least four episodes of homelessness in 

the past three years.” 
xxvii Defining Chronic Homelessness: A Technical Guide for HUD Programs, published September 2007 by the U.S. Department of Housing 

and Urban Development. 
xxviii Subpopulations refer only to adults and unaccompanied youth (not dependent children). 
xxix Ibid. 

Sheltered Emergency 
242 

Sheltered Emergency 
523 

Sheltered 
Transitional 

400 

Sheltered Transitional 
144 

5 unsheltered 

Unsheltered 
998 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

Individuals in Households with Dependent Children Individuals in Households without Dependent
Children

Homeless Population By Shelter Type and Household Type 
Austin/Travis County Point-In-Time Homelessness Count, 2011  

Created by: Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2012. 
Source Data: Ending Chronic Homelessness Coalition, 2011. 

16 Safe 
Haven 

*Not pictured are 14 individuals in 
households with only children 
(unacompanied youth.)  Thirteen individuals 
in this category were in emergency shelter 
and one was unsheltered. 

Figure 33: Homeless Population by Shelter Type and Household Type 
Austin/Travis County Point-In-Time Homelessness Count, 2011 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   65 

part of what makes homelessness a very complex issue to address, requiring a spectrum of services 

and interventions. 

 

It should also be noted that there are individuals without permanent housing who do not fall within 

traditional definitions of homelessness and who may not be included in the point-in-time count (for 

example, families who have lost their homes but are residing with friends or relatives).  Therefore the 

point-in-time number shows us a snapshot of the community, but may not demonstrate the full picture 

of its homelessness needs. 

 

Planning Efforts to End Homelessness (ECHO) 

 

Travis County is a member of the Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO) whose mission is 

to identify specific strategies and oversee ongoing planning and implementation of a plan to end 

chronic homelessness in Austin and Travis County.  ECHO’s The Plan to End Community Homelessness 

in Austin-Travis County, outlines a model of a homeless services continuum, intended to address the 

spectrum of needs that a person can experience from immediate risk of becoming homeless to being 

chronically homeless.    

 

Over the next year, CDBG staff will participate in ECHO committees to assist in selection of projects for 

the Continuum of Care grant, point-in-time count and other planning functions to advocate for 

homeless needs identified in the unincorporated areas of the county.  CDBG staff will also continue to 

provide support to ECHO committees in developing outreach and education strategies to address 

homelessness in the unincorporated areas. 

 

In addition to participating in ECHO’s planning efforts to end homelessness, the expansion of the FSS 

Social Work project has provided CDBG staff an opportunity to learn more about pockets of 

homelessness in the unincorporated areas of the county. CDBG staff has shared this knowledge with 

ECHO, forwarding them information on new areas for inclusion in the annual point-in-time count.   

 

HUD Continuum of CARE (CoC) Funding 

 

Continuum of Care is a funding mechanism by which HUD awards national competition grants for the 

Supportive Housing Program (SHP), Shelter Plus Care (S+C) and the Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation 

Single-Room Occupancy (SRO) Program to states, localities and non-profits organizations.  

 

The SHP program provides funding for the development of transitional housing for homeless 

individuals with disabilities. The S+C program provides rental assistance for homeless people with 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   66 

chronic disabilities (usually severe mental illness, HIV/AIDS, and chronic drug and/or alcohol 

dependency). All grantees are required to match their federal funding for rental assistance with equal 

funding for supportive services. The SRO program provides project-based rent subsidies for occupants 

of single-room occupancy facilities that have undergone moderate rehabilitation. 

 

The Austin/Travis County received approximately $4.2 million in HUD Continuum of Care (CoC) funding 

for 2012. Part of the funding will focus on projects that qualify as part of the SHP program while the 

other part will target projects under the S+C programs. Additionally, the CoC received a Samaritan 

bonus to increase funds for permanent supportive housing.   

 

Homeless Services   

 

During the 2012 program year, Travis County will not target the use of CDBG funds toward homeless 

efforts.  During calendar year 2012, Travis County is investing general fund dollars in contracts with 

social service providers that serve the homeless in conjunction with the Austin/Travis County ESG grant 

administration and the Austin/Travis County Plan to End Chronic Homelessness.  Staff will review the 

investments of general fund dollars in the homelessness issue area and advocate that investments 

increase or remain at the current level of funding.      

 

Homelessness Prevention 

 

A variety of homeless prevention efforts are made through the Travis County General Fund and other 

grant sources.  HHS/VS invests directly through its Family Support Services (FSS) division to address 

housing stability issues including rent, mortgage and utility assistance.  Annually, FSS provides 

homeless prevention services funded through the General Fund and grant assistance dollars.   For 

PY2012, purchased service investments with non-profits will continue as well as the County’s direct 

services.  

 

Discharge Coordination Policyxxx 

 

In 1994, the Federal Interagency Council on Homelessness identified inadequate discharge planning as 

a significant factor contributing to homelessness among persons with mental illnesses and/or 

substance use disorders.   

 

In 2004, the Ten Year Plan to End Chronic Homelessness was created, reaching across systems lines to 

                                                        
xxx This section is excerpted from the Austin Travis County Reentry Roundtable and ECHO Transition Planning Overview File. 
Accessible at http://www.reentryroundtable.net. 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                            Section II    ::   Housing and Homeless Services 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   67 

engage the criminal justice system because of a HUD requirement that a key component of the plan 

needed to include strategies around preventing homelessness and that included discharge planning 

from public institutions including jails/correctional settings.xxxi   

 

In 2010, ECHO developed a full community plan to end homelessness in our community and once again 

included in the plan working towards development of agreements with criminal justice systems to 

ensure that persons would not be released into homelessness.xxxii
 The Austin/Travis County Reentry 

Roundtable (A/TCRRT) and Ending Community Homeless Organization (ECHO) entered a partnership in 

the fall of 2011 to launch an initiative to examine the current transitional planning processes/practices 

for homeless persons leaving local correctional settings.  This initiative will engage cross-systems 

stakeholders from both correctional settings as well as local service providers to help identify 

recommendations for how these processes/practices can be enhanced to help prevent homelessness 

in the community. 

 

The initiative launched in December 2011 with initial engagement of key stakeholders. Final 

recommendations are projected to occur by June 2012 with a final summary report issued in July, 

2012. The goal of the project is to develop recommendations for enhancing transitional planning 

protocols for homeless persons leaving local correctional settings including the Travis County Jail and 

TDCJ-Travis Unit (Travis State Jail).   

 

HOME/AMERICAN DREAM DOWN PAYMENT INITIATIVE  
 

Travis County does not receive HOME or ADDI funds at this time.   

 

EMERGENCY SHELTER GRANT (ESG)  
 

Travis County does not receive Emergency Shelter Grant funds at this time. 

                                                        
xxxi Plan to End Chronic Homelessness in Austin/Travis County, December 2004; 
www.caction.org/homeless/ECHO/ChronicHomelessnessPlan.pdf  
xxxii ECHO, The Plan to End Chronic Homelessness in Austin/Travis County; 2010; www.austinecho.org/communityplan  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://www.caction.org/homeless/ECHO/ChronicHomelessnessPlan.pdf
http://www.austinecho.org/communityplan


PY 2012 Action Plan          Section III    ::   Non-Housing Community Development and Other Actions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   68 

 

SECTION III: NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

AND OTHER ACTIONS  
 

 

 

 

OVERVIEW OF NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
NEEDS 

 
Neighborhood Infrastructure  

 

Public Engagement efforts with residents of Travis County consistently reveal a high need for 

community infrastructure implementation or improvements.  

 

Water and Wastewater  

For low- and moderate-income residents of the unincorporated areas, paying for a water connection 

may be a significant financial burden. From 2006 through 2011, the Travis County CDBG office has 

received public requests for water infrastructure projects that taken together would cost $16,000,000 

to implement and requests for wastewater infrastructure projects that would cost a total of 

$8,000,000 to implement. A higher percentage of water/wastewater requests have come from 

neighborhoods on the eastern side of the county.  

 

Roads  

There are approximately 400 miles of roadway in unincorporated areas that are not on the County 

maintained system and of those about 100 miles have been requested for acceptance at some point in 

the past.  

 

From 2006 through 2011, 90% of the roadway improvement project requests submitted to the CDBG 

office were located in western Travis County, and predominantly in Precinct Three. The total estimated 

cost for all requests for roadway projects is approximately $18,000,000.  

 

Parks and Public Facilities  

 

The Travis County park system includes approximately 11,000 acres of land. A higher percentage of 

park land is located on the western side of the county. While eastern Travis County currently has less 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan          Section III    ::   Non-Housing Community Development and Other Actions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   69 

park acreage than western parts of the county, the need for additional recreational areas in the 

eastern parts of the county is likely to only grow.  

 

Hazard Mitigation  

 

Floods are the most likely significant natural hazard to occur in Travis County. The 100-Year Floodplain 

for Travis County encompasses 14.7% of land in the county.  

 

Transportation  

 

The Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Capital Metro) is the regional provider of transit 

services in Travis County. Non-urbanized areas of Travis County may be served by the Capital Area 

Rural Transportation System (CARTS). Most of the unincorporated areas of Travis County are low-

density, non-urban areas and are not served by Capital Metro, but are served by CARTS.  

 

Based on public input received throughout the life of the Travis County CDBG Program, lack of 

transportation is an ongoing concern for low-income residents of the unincorporated areas. As CDBG 

moves forward with the consideration of future housing development, the Centers Concept, developed 

by CAMPO, will be a factor in determining location. The Department also provides funding to expand 

transportation services for specific areas in the County such as Del Valle.  The Program will look to 

options to expand this type of targeted investment to assist with expansion of transportation.   

 

Public Services  

 

Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department (TCHHS/VS) annually invests 

in social services for residents of Travis County, both through direct service provision and through 

contracts with community based organizations. Less than 9% of the total funded services are being 

provided to the unincorporated areas of the county – a significant underrepresentation since the 

unincorporated areas of the county make up about 17% of the total population. 

 

OVERVIEW OF NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
ACTIVIES SUPPORTED BY TRAVIS COUNTY 
 
In addition to CDBG program administration, Travis County addresses the non-housing community 

development needs of its residents through diverse strategies that include the support of street 

improvements; maintenance of county roads; hazard mitigation; parks and facilities, and social service 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan          Section III    ::   Non-Housing Community Development and Other Actions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   70 

contract investments.  These services are either directly delivered by county departments, affiliate 

entities or by contracted not-for-profit agencies.  

 

Social Service Contract Investments 
 
HHS/VS contracts annually with over 40 non-profits in the form of social service contracts. During the 

2012 program year, approximately $8.6 will be invested through social service contracts.  In addition, 

during the 2012 program year HHS/VS will provide approximately $16.6 million in direct public 

services.  

 
Infrastructure Investments 
 
In addition to CDBG investments, the County’s infrastructure department, Transportation and Natural 

Resources, conducts community development activities in the form of public parks, bridge and 

drainage projects, storm water management, road maintenance, on-site sewage facilities, 

transportation planning, and various other projects, totaling approximately $50 million.  

 

NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENTS 
 

Public Engagement efforts with residents of Travis County revealed a high need for community 

infrastructure implementation or improvements. Over the past six years, residents of Precincts 1, 3, 

and 4 have consistently conveyed the need for water and wastewater systems in their communities. 

Particularly in economically disenfranchised areas, residents communicated that they lacked access to 

running water, had wells running dry, and were without infrastructure and/or funding to access the 

area water utility. In addition, comments made at public hearings expressed the need for road 

improvements and repairs, and utility infrastructure.  

 

Based on the recurring community needs focused on improved infrastructure and access to water, the 

Travis County CDBG program has supported projects that seek to improve and expand infrastructure 

and public services.  Non-Housing Community Development projects include infrastructure, public 

facilities and public service projects.  As a part of the PY11 – PY13 Consolidated Plan, goals were set to 

address Non-Housing Community Development goals which direct annual investments.  Figure 27 

outlines the goals included in the three-year Strategic Plan. 

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan          Section III    ::   Non-Housing Community Development and Other Actions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   71 

 

Figure 34: Non-Housing Community Development Goals 

  
  

 
Needs 

 
Gap 

Priority 
Need 

Goals 

PY 
2011 

PY 
2012 

PY  
2013 

Infrastructure $26,000,000 $26,000,000 High $145,000 $326,598 $380,000 

Community  
Services* 

$3,000,000 $3,000,000 High $118,500 $134,451 $118,500 

Public Buildings 
& Facilities 

$15,000,000 $15,000,000 Medium $0 $0 $0 

Business & Jobs $2,000,000 $2,000,000 Medium $0 $0 $0 

*Includes expanding service to Populations with Specialized Needs/Services 

 
 

For PY12, CDBG is supporting the improvement to sections of substandard roads in the Lake Oak 

Estates neighborhood and the expansion of social work and fair housing services in the unincorporated 

areas.  The figures below summarize the overall CDBG non-housing community development 

investments and impacts anticipated for PY12.   These annual goals align with the three year goals 

outlined in the figure above. 
 

Figure 35: Street Improvement Objectives 

Specific Objective Source of Funds Performance Indicator 
Expected 
Number 
PY 2012 

Investment 

Improve the quality of public 
improvements for lower 
income persons by 
environment by improving 
substandard roads. 

CDBG 
Number of people who 

will benefit from 
improved road. 

126 $326,598 

 
  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan          Section III    ::   Non-Housing Community Development and Other Actions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   72 

 

Figure 36: Social Services Expansion Objectives 

Specific Objective  Source of Funds Performance Indicator 
Expected 
Number 
PY 2012 

Investment 

Improve the availability of 
services to low/mod income 
persons through program 
expansion. 

CDBG 
Number of people 

assisted with expanded 
access to a service. 

400 $106,000 

 
 

Figure 37: Fair Housing Objectives 

Specific Objective  Source of Funds Performance Indicator 
Expected 
Number 
PY 2012 

Investment 

Improve access to decent housing  
for protected groups 

CDBG 
Number of people 
receiving services 

35 $28,451 

 

ANTI-POVERTY STRATEGY 
 
Overview of Community Conditionsxxxiii 
 

Travis County has experienced notable population growth over the past decade and a half. The overall 

population growth rate has increased 20% since 2000 and 70% since 1990.  The number of people in 

poverty has increased steadily from 1990, while the overall poverty rate fluctuated from 16% in 1990, 

went down to 13% in 2000, and returned to 15% in the 2005-2009 dataset. Children consistently have 

the highest poverty rate (21% in current data set) across sub-groups. xxxiv  

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                        
xxxiii This section is excerpted from the Travis County Health and Human Services, Research and Planning Division’s “Focus on Poverty in 

Travis County: Snapshot from the American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 2005-2009” Report. The full report is accessible at 

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_ACS.asp. 
xxxiv All data from the 2005-2009 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates unless otherwise noted. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/publications/acs/acs_focus_on_poverty_2011.pdf
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/publications/acs/acs_focus_on_poverty_2011.pdf


PY 2012 Action Plan          Section III    ::   Non-Housing Community Development and Other Actions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   73 

Who is most likely to live in poverty in Travis County?  

 

Exploring poverty status by sex, age, race and Hispanic origin, nativity, language spoken, household 

type, educational attainment, work experience, and employment status, the following groupsxxxv have 

a poverty rate greater than the Travis County poverty rate of 15%:  

 

 Female-headed households with children, no husband present (36%) 

 Young adults 18 to 24 years of age (34%) 

 Individuals who are unemployed (33%) 

 Female-headed households, no husband present (29%) 

 Individuals with less than a high school education (27%) 

 Foreign born non-citizens (25%) 

 Individuals who are not in the labor force (25%) 

 Individuals who did not work in the previous 12 months (25%) 

 Children under five years of age (24%) 

 Black/African Americans (23%) 

 Hispanic/Latinos (23%) 

 Spanish speakers (23%) 

 Individuals who worked part-time or part-year (22%) 

 Male-headed households with children, no wife present (21%) 

 Children 5 to 17 years of age (19%) 

 Non-family households, female householder (18%) 

 Females (17%) 

 

Hispanic/Latino children under age 18 make up a significant share of the Travis County population 

living in poverty. Hispanic/Latino and Black/African American children under five years of age have 

some of the highest poverty rates in Travis County, 37% and 44% respectively. 

 

Where is poverty prevalent in Travis County? 

 

Areas along the I-35 corridor and areas east of I-35 generally have higher percentages of individuals 

living in poverty. This distribution is similar to 2000, although the 2005-2009 data set suggests that the 

population in poverty is spreading out from the I-35 corridor.  

 

  

                                                        
xxxv Only single variables are included below; the report also considers some variables in combination. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan          Section III    ::   Non-Housing Community Development and Other Actions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   74 

Overview of Anti-Poverty Strategies Supported by Travis County  

 

Travis County’s lead agency for administering CDBG funds is the Health and Human Services & 

Veterans Service Department, whose mission is “to work in partnership with the community to 

promote full development of individual, family, neighborhood, and community potential.”  The vision 

of HHS/VS is “optimizing self-sufficiency for families and individuals in safe and healthy communities.”  

Both the mission and vision of HHS/VS are essentially aimed at preventing and ameliorating conditions 

of poverty in Travis County. 

 

Travis County operates a number of anti-poverty programs that assist individuals and families on 

multiple fronts in transitioning from crisis to self-sufficiency. The County carries out its anti-poverty 

programs both through the direct delivery of services managed by HHS/VS and by purchasing services 

from private and not-for-profit agencies in the community. In addition to the provision of direct 

services, Travis County continually assesses the poverty and basic needs of county residents, works 

with stakeholders in facilitating anti-poverty efforts, and supports public policy initiatives that prevent 

and ameliorate conditions of poverty. 

 

Furthermore, CDBG is funding a social work program to assist residents of the CDBG service area, 

which anticipates serving 400 people during PY12.  As identified in the needs assessment conducted in 

the PY11- 13 Consolidated Plan, of the current social service contract investments made by the 

Department, less than 9% of the services are being provided to persons living in the unincorporated 

areas, while 17% of the population lives in these areas. This program’s aim is to address the disparity of 

social service contract provision in the unincorporated areas.  

 

Finally, over the next year, CDBG staff intends to review investments and participate in planning efforts 

to address poverty to advocate for services in the unincorporated areas.   
  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan          Section III    ::   Non-Housing Community Development and Other Actions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   75 

POPULATIONS WITH SPECIALIZED NEEDS 

 

HUD identifies non-homeless populations with specialized needs as elderly, frail elderly, those with 

severe mental illness, the developmentally disabled, the physically disabled, persons with alcohol and 

other drug addictions, victims of domestic violence, and persons living with HIV/AIDS.  Over the three-

year strategic direction of the 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan, no specific goals for CDBG are targeted to 

address these populations.   

 

Travis County’s HHS/VS provides services to populations with specialized needs through direct services 

as well as social service contracts and inter-local agreements with other governmental organizations.  

Travis County HHS/VS invests in different programs to address public health, substance abuse, indigent 

health, and mental health needs. Additionally, CDBG funded programs will be marketed to populations 

with specialized needs and services to ensure inclusion and improve access. 

 

Services for Elderly & Frail Elderly 

 

Travis County funds services through social service contract investments. Services provided include in-

home care services, bill payer services, meals, and case management.  In-home services include 

assistance with personal hygiene tasks as well as housekeeping, while bill payer services include 

assistance with finances and money management.  Meals include hot meal delivery and 2nd meal 

assistance.   

 

Services for Persons with Physical Disabilities or Developmental Delays 

 

Travis County funds services for persons with physical disabilities and developmental delays through 

social service contract investments.  Services center around employment and job-readiness, case 

management, early childhood intervention, basic needs assistance, and social/recreational 

opportunities.    

 

Services for Victims of Domestic Violence 

 

Travis County funds services for persons experiencing abuse, neglect, domestic violence, and sexual 

assault through social service contract investments.  Services center around advocacy, crisis 

management, emergency shelter, transitional housing, and counseling.  

 

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan          Section III    ::   Non-Housing Community Development and Other Actions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   76 

Services for Persons Living with HIV/AIDS 

 

Travis County funds services for persons living with HIV/AIDS through social service contract 

investments.  Services center around advocacy, crisis management, emergency shelter, transitional 

housing, counseling, case management, primary medical care retention, client advocacy, medication 

adherence assistance, food bank assistance, nutritional counseling, home health, prevention, and 

support groups.    

 

Additionally, Travis County provides other services through health and public health inter-local 

agreements.   
 

LEAD-BASED PAINT 
 
According to Census data, 161,762 or 39% of the housing units in Travis County were built prior to 

1980, and therefore at risk of containing lead based paint.xxxvi  Most of these older housing units in 

Travis County are located within city or town limits.  The highest concentrations of housing stock built 

before 1980 are located in City of Austin with the exception of a few block groups in southern Travis 

County.  

 

Figure 38: Travis County Housing Units, by Year Structure Built 

Year Built Number of Units 

Built 2005 or later 24,812 

Built 2000 to 2004 62,183 

Built 1990 to 1999 78,206 

Built 1980 to 1989 89,079 

Built 1970 to 1979 79,427 

Built 1960 to 1969 36,260 

Built 1950 to 1959 23,167 

Built 1940 to 1949 12,032 

Built 1939 or earlier 10,876 

Total 416,042 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2005-2009 American Community Survey 

 

Activities supported with Travis County CDBG funds must be in full compliance with the Lead Safe 
                                                        
xxxvi U.S. Census Bureau, B25034, 2005-2009 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates, http://factfinder.census.gov/ (accessed 

March 22, 2011).   

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan          Section III    ::   Non-Housing Community Development and Other Actions 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX        Page    |   77 

Housing Rule (24 CFR Part 35) of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  The 

CDBG program has created guidelines to ensure that the necessary steps for notification, identification 

and treatment of Lead Based Paint are followed, for owner occupied rehabilitation projects, 

homebuyer assistance projects and other projects as appropriate.    

 

Additionally HHS/VS Housing Services Division, which receives funds through State grant funds and the 

Travis County General Fund, provides limited lead-based paint remediation on houses built before 

1978 where small holes in the wall or similar acts that could cause additional possible lead exposure 

are made.   
 

SPECIFIC HOPWA OBJECTIVES 
 

Travis County does not receive HOPWA funds at this time.   
 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A: 
 

ALTERNATE 

PROJECTS 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                 Appendix  A  ::   Alternate Projects 

 

 

Travis County, TX           
            Page    |   78 

ALTERNATE PROJECTS FOR PY12 

Alternate Project #1: Homebuyer Assistance – up to $300,000 

Project Description: 

 

In an effort to make housing affordable to “first-time home purchasing” families whose annual 

household income is at or below 80 percent of the Area Median Income (AMI), the Travis County 

Affordable Housing Ownership Program will make Shared Appreciation Gap Financing and Down 

payment Assistance loans available.  The project will be administered by a designated sub-recipient. All 

program income will be reinvested into the Homebuyers Assistance program. 

 

Shared Appreciation Gap Financing:  

Households earning 80% or less of the area median income may obtain funds (up to $30,000) to reduce 

the sales price to an amount affordable to the household. Actual assistance amount will be calculated 

based on actual family need. The loan is a 0 % interest, 30-year note with no required annual or 

monthly payments. Upon resale, refinancing, lease or other transfer of title, the loan must be repaid in 

full plus a percentage of the house’s appreciation value. 

 

Down Payment Assistance: 

Households earning 80% or less of the area Median Family Income (MFI) may obtain funds ($8,000) to 

cover half of the required down payment and reasonable closing costs. The loan is a 0 % interest, 5 

year-note with no required annual or monthly payments. The loan is forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% 

for each year of homeownership. The loan is fully forgiven at the end of 5 years.  A minimum house 

hold investment of $500 is required.   

 

All households who are interested in assistance are required to participate in a minimum of eight (8) 

hours of HUD-certified housing counseling.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                 Appendix  A  ::   Alternate Projects 

 

 

Travis County, TX           
            Page    |   79 

Figure 1: Alternate Project 1  - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding: Up to $300,000 

Leverage Funding:  To be determined 

Program Delivery:  Designated sub-recipient  

Program Oversight: Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Estimated Start/  

Completion Date: 
To be determined 

Location: 
Homes in the unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of 
Webberville 

 

Figure 2: Alternate Project 1- Priority and Performance Measurement Information 

(HUD –prescribed) 

Priority Need Category: Homeownership Project: Homebuyer Assistance 

Eligible Activity: 
Direct 
Homeownership 
Assistance  

Outcome Category Availability/ Accessibility 

Objective Category Decent Housing Specific Objective 
Increase the affordability of 
owner housing 

Citation 24 CFR 570.201 (n) Accomplishment  10 Households 

Eligibility LMH Matrix Code  
13,  Direct Home Ownership 
Assistance 

Priority in the 2011-2013 
Strategic Plan# 

High Travis County HTE #: HCBG07 

 
 

 

 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                 Appendix  A  ::   Alternate Projects 

 

 

Travis County, TX           
            Page    |   80 

Alternate Project # 2: Home Rehabilitation – up to $200,000 

 

Project Description 

 

This project will fund minor home repair services for low and moderate income homeowners in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of Webberville, to move homes towards Housing 

Quality Standards.  The program seeks to improve the energy efficiency, physical living conditions, and 

safety in owner-occupied homes. A 0% interest, forgivable 5-year loan up to $24,999 with no required 

annual or monthly payments is available.  The loan is forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% for each year of 

home ownership. Examples of potential improvements include connections of houses to long-term 

viable sources of water (not part of a stand-alone infrastructure project), complementing 

weatherization services of other funding sources, septic tank repairs, and electrical and plumbing 

repairs.  In the event that program income is created, it will be reinvested into the Home Rehabilitation 

project.  

 

These funds are targeted to homeowners at or below 80% MFI in the CDBG service area. This project 

will be administered by a non-profit, designated as a sub-recipient, identified through a formal 

application.   
 

Figure 3: Alternate Project 2  - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding: Up to $200,000 

Leverage Funding:  To be determined 

Program Delivery:  
Designated sub-recipient or Travis County Health and Human Service and 
Veterans Service 

Program Oversight: Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Estimated Start/  

Completion Date: 
To be determined 

Location: 
Homes in the unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of 
Webberville 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                 Appendix  A  ::   Alternate Projects 

 

 

Travis County, TX           
            Page    |   81 

Figure 4: Alternate Project 2- Priority and Performance Measurement Information 

(HUD –prescribed) 

Priority Need Category: 
Owner Occupied 
Housing 

Project: Rehabilitation of existing units 

Eligible Activity: Rehabilitation Outcome Category Availability/ Accessibility 

Objective Category 
Suitable Living 
Environment 

Specific Objective 
Improve the quality of owner 
housing 

Citation 570.202 Accomplishment  8 Households 

Eligibility LMH Matrix Code  
14A, Rehabilitation, Single Unit 
Residential 

Priority in the 2011-2013 
Strategic Plan# 

High Travis County HTE #: HCIG08 

 

Alternate Project # 3: Las Lomitas Water Distribution – up to $480,000 
 

Project Description 
 

The Las Lomitas neighborhood is located in southeastern Travis County, in Precinct 4.  The 

neighborhood lacks water lines and connections and water is currently being transported in by home 

owners and stored in tanks.  The proposed project would fund the design, environmental clearance 

and construction of water lines for the benefit of the neighborhood.  Additionally, households living at 

or below 80% of MFI will be eligible to receive service line connections as well as septic tank repair or 

installation.     

 

The project would be broken up into multiple phases. The first phase would include: 1) environmental 

review and related regulatory permits; 2) design services; 3) land surveying services; 4) geo-technical 

services; 5) utility location and relocation coordination services.  Subsequent phases may include, but 

are not limited to: 1) identification of issues relating to septic tanks and resulting repairs; 2) acquisition 

of right of way and easements; and 6) construction. 

 

Currently, the neighborhood is conducting a primary survey to determine if it is eligible.  This survey is 

anticipated to be complete in June.  At present, there are 30 households at Las Lomitas, but the survey 

will provide additional information on the exact impact of the project as well as whether it is a 

low/mod neighborhood.    

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                 Appendix  A  ::   Alternate Projects 

 

 

Travis County, TX           
            Page    |   82 

 

Figure 5: Las Lomitas Project Location  
 

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                 Appendix  A  ::   Alternate Projects 

 

 

Travis County, TX           
            Page    |   83 

Figure 6: Alternate Project 3 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding:  Up to $480,000 

Leverage Funding:  Not Applicable 

Program Delivery:  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight: Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Expected Start/ Completion Date: To  Be Determined 

Location: Las Lomitas Neighborhood, Precinct 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Figure 7: Alternate Project 3 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information 

(HUD –prescribed) 

Priority Need Category: Infrastructure Project: Water Connections 

Eligible Activity: Water Connections Outcome Category: Sustainability 

Objective Category 
Suitable Living 
Environment 

Specific Objective 
Improve quality of public improvements 
for lower income persons 

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  30 Households 

Eligibility LMA –Survey Matrix Code  03J Water/Sewer Improvements 

Priority in the 2011-2013 
Strategic Plan# 

High Travis County HTE #: HCWG09 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                                                 Appendix  A  ::   Alternate Projects 

 

 

Travis County, TX           
            Page    |   84 

Figure 8: Las Lomitas Current Conditions 
 

 
                     Water Being Transported to a Residence in the Las Lomitas Neighborhood 
 
 

 
         Water Storage and Pipe Connecting it to Structure 
 
 
 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

 

           
             

 
 

 
 

 

 

APPENDIX B: PUBLIC 

PARTICIPATION AND 

COMMUNITY NEEDS 

IDENTIFIED FOR 

PROGRAM YEAR 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Summary of  Action Plan Participation Process 

Participation Forms 

Detailled Results of Participation Process 

Testimonies received during Public Hearing at Commissioners Court 

Public Comment Results 

Public Participation Advertisements 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   85 

ATTACHMENT A: ACTION PLAN PARTICIPATION PROCESS 
 
Public engagement occurs throughout CDBG activities for four main purposes: needs gathering, 

approval of proposed actions, the substantial amendment process (if applicable), and the annual 

report (see Figure 1 below).  

 

Figure 1: Public Engagement Process 

 
 

SUMMARY OF PARTICIPATION PROCESS 
 

During the months of February and March 2012, the public had an opportunity to identify the needs of 

the unincorporated areas by; 

 

1) Attending one of five public hearings; 

2) Turning in a Participation Form; or  

3) Turning in a Project Proposal form.   

 

It is important to note that the Program Year 2012 Action Plan marks the second year of the second 

Consolidated Plan.   

 

Public Hearings and Participation Forms 

 

The purpose of the hearings and participation forms was to obtain the public’s input on the community 

development, housing, and public service needs, as well as potential project ideas to address those 

needs. The first hearing, held at the Commissioner Courtroom, followed a traditional hearing format, 

Timeline: 
February/March 

Public Engagement: 5 
public hearings (1 at 
Travis County 
Commissioners Court 
and 4 at each of the 
precincts 

Needs 
Gathering 
Process 

Timeline: June/July 

Public Engagement: 30 
day comment period 

2 public hearings at 
Travis County 
Commissioners Court 

Proposed 
Activities 
Process 

Timeline: Varies 

Public Engagement: 
30-day comment 
period 

1 public hearing at 
Travis County 
Commissioners Court 

Substantial 
Amendment 

Timeline: December 

Public Engagement: 
15-day comment 
period 

1 public hearing at 
Travis County 
Commissioners Court 

Annual 
Report 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   86 

while those held in each of the precincts had an information session followed by facilitated discussion.  

The hearings were held according to the following schedule:  

 

Figure 2: Locations and Dates of Public Hearings Held to Collect Information for the PY 

2012 Action Plan  

Locations of Hearings Dates/Times of Public hearings 

Community-Wide Hearing  
Travis County Commissioners Court, 
Granger Building  

Tuesday, February 21, 2012 9:00am  

Precinct 1  Eastside Service Center  Wednesday, February 22, 2012 6:30pm  

Precinct 2  Steiner Ranch Community Center Saturday, February 25, 2012 9:00am  

Precinct 3  
West Rural Community Center, 
Oakhill  

Monday, February 27, 2012 6:30pm  

Precinct 4  
South Rural Community Center,  
Del Valle  

Thursday, February 23, 2012 6:30pm  

 

The public that could not participate in public hearings had the choice of providing their input by filling 

out a Participation Form or a Project Proposal Form. These forms were provided to interested parties 

upon request and were available in both English and Spanish on the Travis County CDBG website. 

 

Technical Assistance to Neighborhoods 

 

Organized residents and non-profit agencies who identified CDBG eligible projects received technical 

assistance from CDBG staff in the form of site visits, guidance on project proposals and understanding 

CDBG eligible activities and eligible beneficiaries.  Specifically CDBG staff provided technical assistance 

to representatives of Cardinal Hills and Las Lomitas.  

 

Additionally, one primary survey was conducted during May 2012.  Las Lomitas, located in 

Southeastern Travis County, requested assistance with water connections in PY 2011.  However, it was 

determined that Census data would not support a project to benefit the neighborhood due to the size 

of the area of benefit within the Census Tract, however, the County and the neighborhood could work 

together to conduct a primary survey of the homes that would benefit from the improvements.   

Program staff trained neighborhood representatives on the survey methodology, and participated in 

one neighborhood meeting to explain the survey.  The neighborhood continues to work toward the 

completion of the survey by the end of May 2012.  Program staff will provide technical assistance to 

help the neighborhood complete the survey, and will analyze the results in June.  Please note that all 

primary survey materials including announcements, surveys, and surveyors were available in both 

English and Spanish. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   87 

Advertising  
 

The opportunity to participate was advertised on the Travis County website 

(www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG), the seven community centers and the television channel of Travis County. 

Advertisements also appeared in newspapers of general circulation including Hill Country News, The 

Oak Hill Gazette, The Villager, The Austin Chronicle and the Spanish language newspapers Ahora Si and 

El Mundo. In addition, notifications by mail and e-mail were sent to service providers, to county 

residents who had previously attended public hearings, to the community liaison departments of 

schools districts and to neighborhood associations, and were posted on the CDBG Facebook and 

Twitter pages.  The announcements were available in English and Spanish (see Attachment F.)  

 

Typically, the Program advertises in four additional newspapers – the Pflugerville Pflag, Lake Travis 

View, North Lake Travis Log, and Westlake Picayune. The North Lake Travis Log ceased publication and 

the advertisement was placed with the Lake Living Network News Website instead to reach a similar 

population geographically.  The other three newspapers are still in publication; however, due to an 

oversight, the advertisements were not published.  This being said, publishing in the Austin Chronicle 

and the Spanish Language newspaper meets the statutory requirements for HUD.  Additionally, as 

described below, the CDBG outreach plan requires a multi-pronged approach to ensure that 

newspapers are not the sole source of information.  Furthermore, based on the participation numbers 

for this Action Plan, the omission does not appear to have decreased participation levels.   

 

The following efforts were made to broaden public participation:  

 Public notices presented the option of requesting an American Sign Language or Spanish 

interpreter. 

 The CDBG website stayed current with documents and announcements of the different 

participation opportunities. 

 The public that could not attend the public hearings had the option to provide their input by 

filling out a Participation Form or Project Proposal Form.  

 To increase the access to information for Spanish-speakers, all the participation forms were 

available in Spanish, and selected sections of the website were translated into Spanish.  

 Notices of opportunities to participate were sent to all neighborhood associations in the 

unincorporated areas and to school district community liaison departments. 

 Notices of opportunities to participate were also distributed at all schools in the Del Valle 

Independent School District and Manor Independent School District. 

 Notices were sent via email for posting at Leander Independent School District and Marble Falls 

Independent School District. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   88 

 Advertisements to attend community forums were also placed on the City of Manor website 

and the Lake Living Network News website to address the need for outreach that the North 

Lake Travis Log used to address before it ceased publication. 

 OneVoice was added to the list of community agencies that emails were sent to regarding 

opportunities to participate in community forums. 

 
Summary of Public Participation 

 

 A total of 46 people attended the five public hearings 

 32 Participation Forms were submitted 

 One neighborhood was primary surveyed to determine whether or not they were eligible 

for a water connection project:  Las Lomitas.  This survey remains underway. 

 Three project proposals were submitted by neighborhoods or agencies: Las Lomitas, 

Lipan/Mestena Trail and Cardinal Hills Estates. 

 One project proposal was submitted by an individual resident: Septic tank repair. 

 Three proposals were submitted by Travis County Departments: One from the Family and 

Support Service (FSS) division of the Health and Human Service and Veteran Service 

Department (HHS&VS), one from the Transportation and Natural Resources Department 

(TNR), and one from The Transportation and Natural Resources Department (TNR) for the 

second phase of the Lake Oak Estates Road Improvement Project. 

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   89 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 

Every year during the development of the Annual Action Plan, a 30-day public comment period is held 

to receive comments on the proposed uses of CDBG funds. The comment period includes two public 

hearings held at the Travis County Commissioners Court.  For the development of the PY12 Action Plan, 

the 30-day public comment period is proposed to be held from June 18, 2012 to July 17, 2012 and the 

two public hearings are proposed to be held on June 26, 2012, and July 10, 2012.  

 

The public comment period was advertised on the County’s website and in newspapers of general 

circulation. In addition, notifications by mail and e-mail were sent to service providers, to citizens who 

had previously attended public hearings, to the community liaison departments of schools districts and 

to neighborhood associations.  The announcements were available in English and Spanish. 

 

Summary of Public Comments Received for Draft of PY12 Action Plan 

 

Public Hearing: June 26, 2012 

 A total of 8 people presented testimony at the public hearing on June 26, 2012. 

 One individual made general comments about excessive taxation and governmental waste. 

 One individual made comments about a lack of responsiveness and waste within agencies not 

related to CDBG.  

 One individual asked for clarification about the amount of funds being dedicated to the home 

repair project, and for additional information on the Fair Housing Counseling project.  

 Four residents of the Las Lomitas community expressed thanks for the work being done around 

the neighborhood’s water connection issues, and for consideration as a CDBG alternate project. 

 One Las Lomitas resident requested that the TNR service station extend hours to accommodate 

people whose work schedules currently do not permit them to get water from the station.  

 

Public Hearing July 10, 2012 

 No comments were received at the public hearing on July 10, 2012.  
 

Other Comments Received 

 One written comment was received through U.S. mail from a neighborhood association located 

within the City of Austin requesting services.   
 

 

 

 

Responses to Comment Received and Comments Not Accepted 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   90 

 

During the public hearings, most of the questions were addressed at the time of the public hearing.  

Staff provided clarification on the funding for the home repair project and the fair housing activity, and 

Commissioner Gomez’s office indicated they would work with the neighborhood and TNR to discuss 

the extension of hours.  One person stated that the CDBG Program was spending 40% of CDBG funds 

on administration, but that is not accurate.  The Program has planned to spend the allowable 20% on 

administration and planning activities as indicated throughout this Action Plan.   

 

The comments regarding governmental waste and travel to London were not associated with the CDBG 

program, and therefore, will not be accepted for this Plan.    

 
The neighborhood association was informed in a letter that the Travis County CDBG Program cannot 

use funds within incorporated areas, and referred to the City of Austin for assistance.   

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   91 

PROJECT SELECTION PROCESS 
 

Travis County CDBG staff considered and weighed all potential projects identified by the public.  First, 
the CDBG Office staff assessed whether potential projects met one of HUD’s national objectives, were 
eligible CDBG activities, and were feasible to complete in a timely manner.   
 
Second, CDBG staff further evaluated the projects according to the following criteria: 

 
 Addresses a high priority goal of the Strategic Plan: Projects addressing one of the three high 

priority categories identified in the Strategic (Consolidated) Plan will receive more favorable 
review. 

 
 Feasibility of project: Projects that have the ability to be implemented and completed within 12 

months will receive more favorable review. Project may be broken up into manageable 12-18 
month phases for those that are more costly or slower moving.   

 
 Impacts a significant number of households:  Project scope and the number of persons 

benefiting will be considered to determine the level of project impact. 
 
 Benefit to low/moderate-income persons: Projects that benefit low- and moderate-income 

households will receive a more favorable review. 
 
 Leverages/matches with funding from another source: Projects that utilize other funds (federal, 

state, local, private) and public/private joint efforts will receive more favorable review.  
 
Finally, a matrix was provided to the Travis County Commissioners Court on May 22, 2012 along with 
staff recommendations for projects to be funding in PY12.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   92 

ATTACHMENT B: PARTICIPATION FORMS 

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   93 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   94 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   95 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   96 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   97 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   98 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   99 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   100 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   101 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   102 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   103 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   104 

ATTACHMENT C: DETAILED RESULTS OF PARTICIPATION PROCESS 
 

Community Needs  

 

As part of the PY12 public engagement process, the CDBG office sought public input on priority 

community needs.  In PY11, during the consolidated planning public engagement process, the 

following areas were identified as high or medium priorities for the PY11-PY13 period:  
 

 

The public were given the opportunity to assess these priorities and suggest project ideas for PY12 

through a variety of channels, including public hearings, submission of participation forms and 

testimony at Commissioner’s Court.    

 

Public hearings were held in each of the four precincts and consisted of an informational section and 

two interactive exercises. As a part of the hearings, CDBG staff provided the list of the six CDBG 

priorities on large pieces of paper on the wall. Participants were asked to rank the priorities by 

assigning dots with numerical values next to the ones they consider most significant for investment of 

the upcoming year. They were specifically asked to: 

 

 1) Assign 5 points, to the priority that represents to them the most urgent need or most urgent area of 

investment, 

 2) Assign three points, to a priority that represents to them an urgent need, but not necessarily the 

most urgent need, and  

3) Assign 1 point, to the priority that represents to them an important need, but not as urgent need.  

 

Participants could choose to assign all their points to one priority, or distribute the points between 

multiple priorities. Additionally, if a participant only wanted to assign points for one priority level (i.e. 

Figure 3: Ranking of CDBG Priorities by the Public, PY 2011 to PY 2013 

Priorities for the 2011-2013 Period Priority Level 

Infrastructure High 

Housing High 

Community Services High 

Populations with Specialized Needs/Services Medium 

Business and Jobs Medium 

Public Facilities Medium 

Source: PY 2011-PY 2013 Consolidation Plan, Travis County CDBG Survey, April 2011 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   105 

Most Urgent or Important) they were not required to use all of their points.   

 

Residents that were unable to attend one of the public hearings could provide their input by 

completing a participation form (see Attachment B.)  All information presented at the public hearings 

was accessible via the participation form and a power point presentation, available online and at each 

of the seven community centers. The form allowed people to similarly rank priorities, and suggest 

project ideas.  

 

The results gathered at the public hearing and the participation forms were combined and are 

summarized in the figure below: 
 

Figure 4: Ranking of CDBG Priorities by the Public, Spring 2012 

Priorities for Investment 
Most Urgent 
(5-point dots) 

Urgent 
(3- point 

dots) 

Important 
(1-point 

dots) 
Total Points 

Infrastructure 41 37 34 350 

Housing 16 3 2 91 

Community Services 5 7 12 58 

Populations with Specialized Needs 2 9 11 48 

Business and Jobs 5 6 4 47 

Public Buildings and Youth Facilities 1 5 4 24 

 
Source: PY 2012 Action Plan, Travis County CDBG Public Hearings and Citizen Participation Form, February-March 2012 

 
 
  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   106 

The needs that were ranked by the community for PY 12 as high priorities are consistent with the high 
priority needs gathered in PY11 and are as follows: 
 

Project Recommendations 

 

The public could provide recommendations for projects at the public hearings, on the participation 

forms, or by turning in a detailed project proposal for consideration.  Travis County received a total of 7 

project proposals by the March 31, 2012 deadline for consideration for PY 2012 funding.  The majority 

of the proposals (5) suggested projects dealing with infrastructure improvements throughout the 

county.  

 

Project ideas mentioned by residents who attended public hearings aligned with the high priority 

needs identified, and included water connections for Las Lomitas, youth services in Del Valle, job 

training and housing for at-risk youth throughout the county. Project ideas submitted via a 

participation form included home repair assistance, affordable housing, and special needs living 

accommodations projects throughout the county.   

 

A summary of the all specific needs/projects identified during the PY12 public engagement process are 

compiled below. 
 

Figure 6: Needs/Projects identified by the Public, Spring 2012 

High Priority Needs/Projects Identified Precinct 

Street/Road Improvements 
 

 Street improvements  in Cardinal Hills, Stormy Dr., Ullman Dr., and Pyramid Dr. 
(Subdivision Units 13, 14, & 15) 

3 

 Street improvements on Lipan Trail and Mestena Trail 3 

Figure 5: Ranking of CDBG Priorities by the Public, PY 2012 

Priorities for the PY 2012 Period Priority Level 

Infrastructure High 

Housing High 

Community Services High 

Source: PY 2012 Action Plan, Travis County CDBG Public Hearings and Citizen Participation Form, February-March 2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   107 

 Street Improvements on Susan Drive and Sophie Drive 3 

Water/Sewer Improvements  

 Wastewater needs in Las Lomitas neighborhood 4 

 Water and wastewater infrastructure needed in Cardinal Hills 3 

 Improvements to existing well and distribution system in Hazy Hills Subdivision 3 

 Repair to septic system in Jonestown 3 

Housing Needs  

 Housing for at-risk youth 4 

 Dense housing projects for low-income families All 

 Affordable housing All 

 Affordable housing for women 1 & 4 

 Affordable housing linked with economic opportunities All 

 Low-income home repair 1 

 Home repair All 

 Mixed income developments All 

 Home repair for elderly and disabled households 1 

 Down payment assistance and more opportunities for homeownership All 

 Independent living / scattered-site housing for homeless youth and youth at risk of 
homelessness, particularly LGBTQ youth. 

2 

Source: PY 2012 Action Plan, Travis County CDBG Public Hearings, Citizen Participation Form, Commissioners Court Testimonies and 

Project Proposals, February-March 2012 

 
 
 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   108 

Figure 7: Other Issues Raised  

Projects Identified Precinct 

Recreational Centers, Social Services, Community Centers, Parks, Library 

 After school programming for working families 
1 

  Supportive services for special needs populations All 

 Services for disabled and elderly All 

Access to Food 

 Mobile Food Pantry 
All 

Transportation 

 Bicycle Paths 
 All1 

 Daily bus route to support commuting to jobs from Austin’s Colony and Forest Bluff 
neighborhoods 

1 

Youth Services 

 Youth services and job training 
4 

Source: PY 2012 Action Plan, Travis County CDBG Public Hearings, Citizen Participation Form, Commissioners Court Testimonies and 
Project Proposals, February-March 2012 

 

 
  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   109 

ATTACHMENT D: TESTIMONIES RECEIVED DURING PUBLIC HEARINGS 
AT COMMISSIONERS COURT 
 

Eight people testified at the February 21, 2012 public hearing held to gather needs for the PY 12 Action 

Plan.  Among those who testified during the public hearing, common themes were the need for home 

repair and mitigation of the effects of gentrification, linking economic development with construction 

of affordable homes and the creation of more opportunities for home ownership.  The full 

transcription of testimony received at Commissioners Court follows:   
 

DETAILED TESTIMONIES RECEIVED DURING PUBLIC HEARINGS AT 
TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT ON 02/21/12 
 

Stewart Hirsch: Honorable judge annual members of the commission.  My name is Stewart Hirsch and I 
rent. 
 
I would like to discuss three needs of the poorest. In unincorporated Travis County and the city limits 
of Austin, many of the poorest still cling to homeownership.  In order to continue to have housing that 
is not only affordable to them but is also safe and sanitary, these low-income homeowners need the 
following assistance. 
 
One, expanding resources for home repair.  We understand that's an eligible activity under the 
community development block grant program.  Two, connection to safe and sanitary water and sewer 
systems for those homeowners and renters who do not have that current. 
 
And third, which doesn't deal directly with the federal funding but can impact the ability of people to 
remain in their neighborhood inside the city limits, cooperation between the city and the county to 
implement the homestead preservation district created by the Texas legislature and sponsored by 
state representative Eddie Rodriguez. 
 
Expansion of homeowner repair and infrastructure improvements requires the strategic use of federal 
funds.  Mitigating gentrification in a designated homestead preservation district established by the 
legislature does not require use of any federal funds, merely an agreement for the use of local dollars 
that works both for the county and for the city.  As you go through the action plan process, I ask that 
you recognize these needs, particularly the needs of low-income homeowners who are struggling to 
continue to remain in the homes that many of them own for decades as you consider all of the budget 
decisions that you will make this year.  Thank you for your attention and for your service. 
 
Commissioners: Thank you. 
 
Stewart Hirsch: Thank you. 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   110 

Commissioner Davis: Let me -- let me -- I don't want you to run off.  Wsumme have really tried to 
make a desperate attempt for single-family homeownership.  I don't have the numbers in front of me 
today, but I would like maybe if staff would maybe hit on this because I don't want you to think that we 
are not headed in the direction that you have suggested.  Especially in the first one as far as 
homeownership for low income, an example of that is the gilbert lane subdivision project where we did 
looking at that area, but if staff, if you would just briefly just tell this gentleman what we have done as 
far as some of the first time situations for low-income single-family homeownership in the gilbert lane 
project, can anyone just maybe touch on that just a little bit? 
 
Christy Moffett: So we funded a little over a million dollars for land acquisition across the street from 
an elementary school in the Del Valle ISD off of FM 969.  So that opportunity is providing 17 potential 
homeowners who are 25 to 50% of median family income, homeownership through Austin habitat for 
humanity. The remaining 14 lots can go for families up to 80% of MFI.  So that was our first for ay into 
presenting affordable housing opportunity.  Additionally we have funded home repair which will go out 
again this year. 
 
Stewart Hirsch:  Thank you for that information. 
 
Commissioner Davis: Thank you.  You are quite welcome. Quite glad take share it would you and thank 
you for your comments. 
 

 
Richard Franklin:  I guess one of the issues I'm having right now is especially we're talking about 
building low-income homes again.  That brings up another issue.  As I was looking at the economic 
development situations in our community, we are -- and being on the school board, I know how it 
affects us directly.  We have a lot of low-income homes with low-income rooftops sending kids to 
school, but we have no businesses in our area that are absorbing some of that or at least increasing the 
tax base for us.  So having more homes out in the area is actually a burden for us until we actually get 
some economic development.  We need to really look at that. 
 
But I got a couple questions.  How do I get a list of the types of projects that have already been 
approved so before we get started asking for certain things to know what kind of things that the 
county has already approved so I can look at that maybe.  Would that be available? 
 
Christy Moffett:  We can provide you a list. 
 
Richard Franklin: Okay, and what type of entities -- I'm sorry -- would you have to be?  Do you have to 
be a municipality or an organization or an individual to actually receive these funds? 
 
Christy Moffett:  Traditionally what we need to do is to provide the dollars to a municipality or to a 
nonprofit organization, some kind of formed organization that has, you know, financial regulations and 
structure and that kind of thing.  We accept project proposals from neighborhoods, but then the 
county actually implements those projects.  So if they needed a street improvement, we don't actually 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   111 

require that neighborhood to be organized and we won't give them the money, but we will do the 
project on their behalf.  So traditionally if somebody is going to request funds, it needs to be an 
organized entity that we can provide the dollars to that can demonstrate that they are going to be able 
to manage the dollars if they are tied to different kinds of regulations. 
 
Richard Franklin:  The reason I ask that there is a strip off 969 that is about 20 acres that's already 
there.  I wanted to know if it would be outside the purview of the court to purchase land just like that, 
purchase that strip to allow us to create an economic development zone in the 969 corridor going 
toward the Webberville, Austin's colony, in that Hornsby Bend area.  That is one of the things I would 
like to project on to the court right now.  Additionally I would like to also talk about an education and 
entertainment technology studio that would create some jobs, be like a Disney world situation that 
would draw other people into the community and using the talents and skills of the people that 
already exist.  Kind of a Disney world kind of concept is what I'm looking at.  I will flesh that out on 
paper for you.  I want to thank the court. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Commissioners:  Thank you. 
 
Commissioner Davis:  Let me say this to you also, and especially when it comes to Del Valle ISD.  Let 
me tell what you this court just recently did.  In fact, it was a big ceremony that we held out there at 
the Webberville solar power completion.  Of course, we had a big ribbon cutting situation and this 
particular project will actually end up dealing and providing energy for 5,000 homes in this particular 
area using solar power.  Of course, Travis County got involved with this along with the city of Austin 
and others as far as offering rebate-type situations for this to happen to do what you just suggested, 
get increased economic development possibilities.  With that particular incentive, it actually spins off 
and provides money, rebate, tax incentive rebates to the same area that's been -- been not ignored, 
but the point is it hasn't happened the way it should have happened, in my opinion, and, of course, it 
will provide money, tax moneys to Del Valle ISD, City of Austin, Travis County and just several other 
ESDs, ESD 12s, ACC.  That money will be used to end up helping you and the taxpayers. 
 
As you said, you are a representative of Del Valle ISD where you got some money coming to you in that 
particular regard as far as economic development.  And there will be several other projects going on in 
an area already going on that will also assist a lot of things you just suggested.  So anyway, we're 
working on that and thank you for your comments. 
 
Commissioner Eckhart:  The enterprise zone, I believe under the state program that area is already 
designated census tract so we've been in discussion about targeting businesses in that area, so we 
could use your help on that. 
 
Richard Franklin: There are other moneys tied to that? 
 
Commissioner Eckhart:  It's a state program for eligible businesses that are looking to expand and hire 
individuals either living in enterprise zones or fitting the definition of economically disadvantaged.  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   112 

There are sales tax rebates available from the state program.  So that would be something to explore 
that's separate from CDBG.  It’s an addition to. 
 
Richard Franklin:  Who would have that information because I would like to take that honey back to 
the hive, as it were.  Anything we can get right now, we would appreciate.  If I could just find out where 
that is. 
 
Commissioner Eckhart:  That's in the planning and budget office.  It's a tax incentive-type program, but 
we can make sure you get that information. 
 
Richard Franklin: Thank you. 
 
Commissioner Eckhart:  Right.  Just as far as the conduit, probably planning and budget is the best to 
get that information from. 
 
Richard Franklin:  Thank you. 
 

 
David Freeman:  Good morning, my name is David Freeman.  I want to thank you for taking the time to 
hear us today at Commissioners court.  And I know that traditionally when you are looking at this sort 
of grant money and these kinds of programs, you look at areas that are, I guess you would call it 
traditionally economically disadvantaged areas.  And I've got a proposal that I've submitted to Miss 
Moffett that also involves, of course, low-income, moderate-income housing, but it's actually in 
western Travis County as opposed to some of the eastern and southern areas that we probably 
normally serve with these sorts of programs. It's out in an area of Kuernavaca near the village west 
trailer park area which is typically a pretty low-income area.  And this project is designed to serve the 
improvements of access into that area in order to provide ultimately more very low-income howling 
for specifically the Eanes School District is where this is located--in western Travis County. 
 
And I think that's one area that is very much underserved as far as public assistance goes.  You don't 
often hear Eanes doing anything for the -- you know, for the disadvantaged folks that are within the 
system there, and this is something that I've lived out in that area for a little over 20 years.  I see a lot 
of that going on.  I've been in the real estate business out there and I believe in that area and I've done 
a lot to improve it over the years myself personally and helped other people, you know, achieve the 
dream of homeownership that wouldn't have been able to before using the FHA programs and so 
forth.  I look at this as an opportunity to really get some people in there who are, you know, intent on 
improving the lives of their children by recognizing that this school district is exemplary and if they 
bring their kids here that this is an opportunity they might not otherwise have. 
 
So I very much would like for you guys to take a look at the proposal when we get before the council.  I 
think Christy is going to help with this.  Seems to fit within the parameters of the block development 
grant program and love your support and helping us bring this to the community.  Thank you very 
much. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   113 

 
Commissioner Eckhart:  Thank you for bringing it to us.  We do need affordable opportunities 
throughout the county, appreciate that. 
 

 
Charles Cloutman: I'm Charles Cloutman, Meals on Wheels in Austin, and I currently serve as chair of 
the Austin housing repair coalition.  It's a group of service providers serving the housing needs of Travis 
County including the Austin Area Urban league, Austin Habitat for Humanity, Austin Interfaith, Hands 
on Housing, American Youth Works, Meals on Wheels and more.  The city of Austin's neighborhood 
housing, Travis County's housing, community action network, Austin groups for the elderly, Austin 
energy and many others.  So sorry about the long laundry list.  I just wanted you to know who we were. 
 
I'm here today to discuss the need for home repair in the unincorporated areas of Travis County.  As 
you already know about 26% of our children and 8% of our elderly live below the poverty level.  That's 
almost 6,000 elderly people.  Our property numbers have more than doubled within the last ten years 
and now stand above 194,000 people living below poverty.  As that relates to homeowners, almost 
60,000 houses, 60,000 families are cost burden, spend more than 30% of their income on house or 
29% of homeowners.  I ask in short to create funding for sub-recipients to perform home repair 
modeled after the success in the city of Austin.  They tried it years ago and we found a system that 
works and is presently serving hundreds of houses every year.  The additional ask of that is dedicate at 
least a million dollars per year for this purpose.  We would dedicate -- we would love to have $3 million 
a year, but we realize the budget restraints, we realize that this is a pilot program and obviously you 
are not willing to dive in that deep. 
 
Dedicate CDBG funding, pass bond election for affordable housing, join the homestead preservation 
program, set up dedicated housing trust fund.  I know these are big asks and you are probably blinking 
several times on these but you must dream to get this job done.  60,000 people need help.  Set up a 
task force to come up with a program to present this to the commission by June for the HUD CAPER 
that will need to be out in August. 
 
This working group needs to include representatives of the Austin housing repair coalition, the doers of 
the work, the Travis County housing services, obviously Miss Fleming's group, Austin energy and 
anyone else that you feel needs to be in this working group to make this thing work.  We at Meals on 
Wheels and more serve thousands of clients in the Austin County outside the city limits of Austin and 
we're constantly -- I can't tell you how frustrated it is -- with our inability to help these people with 
housing needs because there's no funding available.  We have gone after state funding for 
architectural barrier removal, but we cannot do the health and safety repairs necessary.  There's a hole 
in the floor, if there's a roof leak, we cannot address it.  We can fix their bathrooms but they can't live 
in their house because their floor has a hole in it, their roof has a hole in it.  We can build a ramp to a 
house that is inhabitable.  This is crazy.  We've gone after Texas veterans funds to help that end of 
home repair but obviously they have to be veterans or dependent upon them.  Our vision is grandma 
has and you safe house, she trips in her un-level floor, she breaks her hip, has to go to a nursing facility 
which costs about 33,000, the most conservative estimate, 33,000 a year in Medicaid because she's 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   114 

low-income and can't afford it.  If we spend $10,000 in that house, we're saving 23,000 the first year, 
33,000 every year thereafter, and she stays home, she stays in her house, she's able to age in place.  
Meals on Wheels will feed her but we need the county to help keep her in her house.  We can't 
identity by ourselves.  Again, $1 million a year for homeowner repair that will repair at least 100 
houses of poor, elderly, disabled Travis County citizens.  They need your help.  They need our help and 
we can't turn away from them.  Thank you for your time. 
 
Judge Biscoe:  Thank you.  Anybody else to give comments during this public hearing?  Final 
opportunity.  We've got three more seats.  If you are here to give comments on item number 1, please 
come forward at this time. 
 

 
Gus Pena:  I want to echo what the prior speakers have mentioned, specifically Mr. Hirsch and also the 
speaker Mr. Charles from affordable housing is needed everywhere, not just the city of Austin.  And 
we're having a lot of people double, triple families in one housing unit and it causes a health care 
problem.  It is a disgrace in our United States of America to have this type of situation occur and it is 
occurring daily.  We're losing a lot of people to the homeless ranks also and there are -- like I said, 
coupling together in one home.  The repairs that he mentioned are very well needed but also look at 
the MFI definition. 
 
I've been saying for many years we need to redefine -- I've spoke to HUD, Washington, Secretary of 
Affairs Office, anybody that would listen, we need a redefinition of the MFI quotient.  It's just needed, 
and I don't laugh to be disrespectful, I laugh at the frustration that we have here throughout the nation 
and in the system.  So anyway, I just wanted to echo the words that other people have said. 
 
Mr. Hirsch, I've known him for many years and meals on wheels provides services for needy and 
seniors and we need to fund these quality of life issues.  Thank you. 
 
Judge Biscoe:  Thank you. 
 
 

 
Randy Pimplier:  Good morning, thank you for hearing me.  I called earlier today, I wanted to speak 
specifically on item 23 and I think you had commented that you might pull it off the consent agenda.  
So I wanted to let you know I did make it but also have general comments. 
 
Judge Biscoe:  Do you have general comments about item number 1, HUD funding in. 
 
Randy Pimplier:  No, this is just citizens –  
 
Judge Biscoe:  You have to wait. 
 
Randy Pimplier:  Okay. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   115 

 
Judge Biscoe:  Are you under citizens communication or item 23? 
 
Randy Pimplier:  I thought this of the citizens communication portion. 
 
Judge Biscoe:  No, sir, it's just number 1, HUD funding. 
 
Randy Pimplier:  No, sir, I don't have anything to say on that. 
 

 
Ronnie Reeferseed:  Just briefly about the home repair in unincorporated areas.  I happen to be a 
person who very much -- that I fit in there.  Like my home in Spicewood I've got years of leaks and 
critters and I wanted to ask about that and make note what phone number I need to do call to check 
on the details of what they can or cannot help with.  And just in passing meals on wheels is a fine 
organization and I can testify.  My family is on the giving end on that in North Carolina and I'm not far 
myself from being on the giving or taking end on that particular program, but then again, we neat need 
to laugh to keep from crying and the headline the recovery isn't here yet.  We're still hurting.  We're 
hurting real bad across this country.  Wake up.  Ignore the media. The recovery isn't here yet.  I just 
wanted to throw that out there.  Thanks. 
 
Judge Biscoe:  Thank you, Mr. Reeferseed.  Anybody else to give comments on item number 1 related 
to HUD funding? 
 

 
Dr. Kim: Sunday morning Austin Statesman -- Austin Statesman Newspaper reported on veteran 
almost half of the body is gone and here's a veteran from Afghanistan American forces.  I read a 
newspaper, I contacted Jeremy Schwartz Austin statesman newspaper and they didn't respond to me.  
The reason I'd like to provide some funding to him across Austin, across the state and across the nation 
because his body is gone. 
 
Half of the body and I saw the picture and I really wanted to do.  And I called to the Korean community 
people in the state, he suggested we do something because he is not in Austin.  The money coming 
from federal government so Austin statesman newspaper reported it so we read it.  But we would like 
to provide even one cent, even one cent.  How much we don't know we need and I like to contact 
across the program people Austin, state, nation. 
 
And then I'd like to provide as much as possible money to him and his wife.  So do you have any idea to 
provide some funding to over there?  I'm going to drive to San Antonio.  I meet with a couple of people 
in Austin community and Korean people. 
 
Judge Biscoe:  I don't think that's a legitimate use of HUD dollars, Dr. Kim.  Thank you for your input 
though. 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   116 

Dr. Kim:  Thank you, sir. 
 
Judge Biscoe:  Anybody else?  Court members?  Commissioners? 
 
Commissioner Davis:  Yes, there's been several things brought up and we don't want the public going 
out with the misunderstanding as far as what Travis County is doing. Some of the things brought up 
today are really not under HUD purview per se as far as what we're doing.  Kind of mixing apples and 
oranges to some degree. 
 
Some of the things that were brought up in example under HHS with our program, we are doing and 
we're spending significant dollars on some of the repairs that have said that we've been neglecting.  
And I just think staff ought to let us know at this point how much money have we spent, is spending on 
some of the things that's been requested here today that is -- if you don't mind telling us so the public 
won’t be misled. 
 
Sherri Fleming:  Thank you, Commissioner.  Travis County at the close of its contract with the state at 
the end of this month will have spent over $7 million on home repair from the federal government as 
part of President Obama's stimulus package.  Those funds were allocated by the federal government, 
passed through to Texas through the Texas department of housing and community affairs.  Our initial 
allocation was around $4.3 million. 
 
We have been offered two amendments to that contract during the 18 to 4 months, by the time it's all 
said and done period of time, and you know, the numbers are still coming in.  We're finishing up 
projects, but we will have spent over $7 million in this community in addition to that amount or more 
that was also spent by the city of Austin. 
 
Commissioner Davis:  Thank you for those comments and secondly, there was some comments made 
about water, and, of course, we're doing what we can to extend water services to those particular 
areas that are impoverished to give you a good example, the folks near the Austin colony area, right 
adjacent to Austin colony. Of course, this is something that have been scrutinized by assessment by 
this the county and there was a lot of back and forth from persons coming to this Commissioners court 
to see what the court could do to assist them obtaining water.  They were on well water at one 
particular time.  With the court's blessing we approved money to be spent to put not only a waterline 
but hookups in the area from the water supply corporation.  Of course, that's been done and as of 
today we have several homes, I think 39 homes and whatever the numbers are have elected to be 
served by that area and we're about to close on that situation now.  This, again, is a situation where 
HUD now can probably come in and [indiscernible] but HHS and others came out to take care of water 
issues as far as expanding water to an area that's outside in the unincorporated area. 
 
I just didn't want folks to get misled or misunderstood about what the role of county government is as 
far as what we're doing.  We've done a lot of these things that people are coming here requesting that 
is just to suggest that this Commissioners court is not doing those things, we are.  We have a lot of 
hard challenges ahead of us and hopefully this money that's coming before us today, this $896,000, 
will also further enhance the capability using another arm of the county which is the cdbg funding 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   117 

along with our department that's been here forever, health and human services.  Combine those two 
to make it happen.  So this is what this public hearing is all about per se, but I'm really glad to hear your 
comments and I hope that this has cleared up a lot of misunderstanding as far as what the role of what 
we're doing with these particular entities.  Thank you. 
 
Judge Biscoe:  Court members any other comments?  I move the public hearing be closed. 
 

ATTACHMENT E: PUBLIC COMMENT RESULTS  
 

After presentation to Travis County Commissioners Court, the draft PY12 Action Plan was posted for 

written comment for thirty days prior to the final approval by the Travis County Commissioners Court. 

Comments on the PY 12 Action Plan were received in writing via email or regular mail to the Travis 

County Health and Human Services and Veterans’ Service CDBG staff. The Draft Plan was posted on the 

Travis County website and copies were located at the seven Travis County Community Centers for 

public review.  

 

The public comment period occurred from June 18, 2012 and ended on July 17, 2012. The public 

hearings were held at the Travis County Commissioners Courtroom at 9 am on Tuesday, June 26, 2012 

and Tuesday, July 10, 2012.  

 

DETAILED TESTIMONIES RECEIVED DURING PUBLIC HEARINGS AT 
TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT ON 06/26/12 
 

Jim Dillon: All this H.U.D. money that started out as our money goes to Washington, D.C. in the form of 

excessive taxation which, by the way, is the reason that we started killing British people over 200 years 

ago and ran them out of our country. Excessive taxation and other acts of oppression always returns 

after a large portion of it is sliced right off the top and put in the hands of congressman John Carter, for 

example, and people like that, returns to local areas with strings attached. Unwelcome strings attached 

to this funding. The well put together and probably very expensive brochure explaining where all this 

taxpayer money is going to go or not explaining it, depending on your perspective, shows on page 8 

that 40% of the funding, by their own admission, is allocated towards administration, planning, 

overhead, staffing, per diem for the fire marshal to travel to England for a couple weeks, activities like 

that at the taxpayer expense. And I hear a lot of whining and crying about the social services and the 

programs that are going to be imposed on the people whether they want them or not. And I can say 

that if housing costs are unfair or there is inequality in wages, which there is, I think a later agenda 

item involves a pay increase for all of you all when the typical working people in this area have gotten. 

Judge Biscoe:  Let's stick to this item. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   118 

Jim Dillon:  Yes, sir. I would say that if the county cares about housing equality and income equality 

and fairness, then they should consider not bribing companies like Apple with tens of millions of dollars 

and pay their employees admittedly $11 an hour so that those employees who have a full-time job and 

actually perform work could afford to buy a home or rent a home on their own initiative without 

government interference. We are sick and tired of government interference. And as I mentioned 

before, we had a revolution over that very item and it can happen again. I'm only warning you because 

I care about you. I don't want to see blood in the streets in this country. But when the people are 

pushed, working people who pay for all your very nice programs, which would be great if we could 

afford them, but we're in the middle of a great depression and you want to send people from the 

County on an all expenses paid vacation to england and create affordable housing while giving Apple 

billions so that they can pay the people in this community to work for -- for slave wages and not be 

able to afford housing, that's getting very old. 

Judge Biscoe:  Thank you. 

Jim Dillon:   Yes, sir. 

 

 

Ronnie Reeferseed: I would like to echo everything Mr. Dillon had to say and I wish I could be so 

articulate about it, but about those, he was getting to the point about the money. And we need to just 

you, you, all of you need to just stop these consulting fees paid on these slimy tax deals like F1 and… 

Judge Biscoe:   Mr. Reeferseed, this is Community Development Block Grant funds program. Your 

testimony has to be relevant to this item. Mr. Dillon, we need your chair. 

Jim Dillon:   Oh, yes, sir. 

Judge Biscoe:   For the other residents who have come to testify on this item. Mr. Reeferseed, if it's not 

relative to item number 1. 

Ronnie Reeferseed: I do have on this what presentation was just so wisely given by that wonderful -- 

we have great people working for you guys, but my question was on page 11, they've got fixing the 

houses for -- I think she said 400,000, but the figures here add up to -- if the two -- if you add the two 

columns together, that adds up to, you know, almost 500,000. 

Christy Moffett: I said a little more than 400. I was doing the addition very quickly. 

Ronnie Reeferseed:  I know. Just a tiny thing. But you said a couple things down there, the 28,000, who 

allocates that? You know, the -- it's kind of a -- rather whimsical. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   119 

Christy Moffett:  It's not whimsical. I'm just trying to be brief in my comments. Its intention is to do 

what's called fair housing counseling. There are people -- so there's -- people can either go to tenants 

counsel or they have an 800 number or a local number and essentially that if it's determined that 

someone may have experienced discrimination in access to housing, that they will help move them 

through that process. Up to including doing what's called testing with they try to re-create that 

discriminatory event by having people go in. But it's -- I apologize if it sounded a little flip. It's not. It's a 

very particular type of assistance that will help to ensure that people can gain access to housing no 

matter their skin color, race, religious belief, sexual orientation, any of that. 

Ronnie Reeferseed:  Great. We can all agree on that and I want to thank you. I didn't mean to put out 

the spot there. But that's really just what I was looking for, the kind of information. And just briefly, 

you said on page 12, the -- I think at this time 48 -- 485 that is divided into 31 households? 

Am I right about that? 

Christy Moffett:  It's not a total cost. I don't know how many people. We are still moving through that 

survey, but it's 31 households and it's to do design and looking at the septic tank. It's a similar-type 

project we typically do at CDBG. It's not out of our normal scope. 

Ronnie Reeferseed:  Okay, great. Sounds really wonderful. I want to say thank you for heading this up 

and also I'm totally in favor of the repair of houses and this is one of those things we should be doing. 

So thanks for the project and you are doing a great job as usual. 

Judge Biscoe:    Thank you, Mr. Reeferseed. 

 

Abraham Avila Martinez:  My name is Abraham Avila Martinez. I'm from Las Lomitas. I came here to 

say, like, really nice for other people to help us on the project of the water. It's really kind for the 

people that are helping us and -- and thank you. 

 Judge Biscoe:    Thank you very much. 

 

Carlos Yescas:  I'd like to thank the Commissioners for all the help that you've given us here. I know 

you have probably gone out more than you normally should do and that's something we appreciate a 

lot especially living in the community where we don't have water and we have to look for different 

ways to find that water. But we appreciate it. There's trying to think of better words to say, but the 

only word that really comes out is thank you for everything that you are doing. 

Judge Biscoe:    Thank you. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   120 

Morris Priest: Thank you, Judge, Commissioners, Morris Priest speaking on my own behalf. I just want 

to say that I do think that this is a tremendously large amount of money in one respect when you look 

at it, but in another respect it's really a very small amount of money. And when you look at all the staff 

services and support and the administrative, just basically layering of governments. And I know, Judge, 

you had mentioned this in one previous hearing, I believe it was about handing out calendars and 

toiletries to veterans and many veterans think that's a waste of money. There is a lot of waste in these 

programs and, you know, the veterans really don't need a pocket calendar or shampoo or soap. 

They actually need other things such as when they call the Veterans Administration here in Travis 

County, now, I'm not talking about the V.A. Administration, but when they call these folks just to get a 

number, Ollie or any of these people, sometimes that's people don't know some of the most basic 

things that could help people. You know, we've had this resolution last week and this week and there's 

really not a connecting services. Sometimes an organization like this, CDBG, could just if nothing else 

point and direct people to services that are already doing, but I do think it's -- when you look at the 

overall program, I too believe that it's -- you know, we have a lot of duplications. We see this in this 

Travis County Community Development Block Grant Program and we see a lot of duplications in the 

Veterans Administration. And those duplications translate, you know, just in this bigger and bigger 

government that's with this excessive spending. When we see what we actually get in the end, it's very 

little and serves very few people and it's usually just the ilk of the controlling political party at the time. 

But I did want to say that I do find it appalling that they print the literature in Spanish and English, and 

it is pertinent, but that we can't get information from CAMPO. And I'd like the Board to -- the Court to 

address those type things when we have these things --  

Judge Biscoe:    Thank you, Mr. Priest. 

Morris Priest: Would like to know where there's such a disparity in information when it comes to 

things like this. 

Judge Biscoe:    Thank you very much. 

 

Morris Priest: Yes. 

 

Iliana Riojas: Hi, good morning, Commissioners, Iliana and I'm a volunteer with Las Lomitas. Most of 

you remember it was because Commissioners were considered closing the water outlet by 183 in 

southeast Austin. So thank you for leaving it open not just to them but to the many out there that are 

still going out there and filling up their tanks for water. Due to that last meeting we were here, we 

have -- I want to thank everyone that has reached out to las comitas and the media and other 

organizations such as U.T. Has reached out to us and pointed news the direction of CDBG.  So thank 

you all for all your support. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   121 

Judge Biscoe:     Thank you very much. 

 

 

Jeanettte Parker:  My name is Jeanette Parker. I was here with Iliana. As far as duplication, we're just 

glad you all put us in here and are helping us out. People have been coming out to our land and talking 

with us and meeting with us and trying to help us get water and we're going to be one of the alternate 

projects, I believe, in the future, and I don't mind the money you all are going to spend on us, I don't 

mind it at all. I just want to say thank you. 

Judge Biscoe:     Thank you. 

 

Maria Avila:  [speaking in Spanish, translated by Alba Serrano ] A year ago I was here asking to help -- 

for help to have water at (my) spot. I remember that a year ago we were very desperate because we 

did not have any response on what would happen with the water. I want to thank you for continuing to 

keep that waterline open and I do want to remind you that in terms of the hours that's available, there 

are people who are still having difficulties. Many people work and so the hours are not responsive to 

that need of being available outside of those work hours. Many people are still without water because 

of those hours of availability. So I know that our project is on track, but I would like to ask for your help 

with the availability on those hours so that people who work can have access to water right now.  And I 

wanted to thank everybody, all the organizations and individuals who are helping us with this water 

project and just remind that right now there is a need around those hours and thank you. 

Judge Biscoe:     Thank you very much. 

 

Commissioner Gomez: And I think that what we need to do, Judge, is probably my staff needs to get 
together with the T.N.R. staff so we can talk about those hours.  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   122 

ATTACHMENT F: PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ADVERTISEMENTS 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   123 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   124 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan              Appendix B   ::   Public Participation 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   125 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

 

           
             

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

APPENDIX C: LAKE 

OAK ESTATES 

PRIMARY SURVEY 

RESULTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                       Appendix C   ::   Lake Oak Estates Primary Survey 

 

 

Page | 126  

Travis County, TX 

 

 

 

APPENDIX C: LAKE OAK ESTATES PRIMARY SURVEY RESULTS 
 

 
 

Summary of Primary Survey Results and Low/Moderate Income Percentages 
 

1. 
Enter the Estimated total number of families in the service area: 

 
43 

2. 
Enter the total number of families interviewed: 

 
39 

3. Enter the total number of persons in the families interviewed: 
 

 
126 

4. Enter the total number of persons in the families interviewed who 
are low and moderate income persons: 

 
108 

5. 
Divide Line 4 by Line 3: 

 
.857 

6. 
Multiply Line 5 by 100. This is the percentage of LMI persons in the 

service area.   

 
85.7 

 
 
 
 

Comparison of Distribution of Family Size by Family Income 

Number of 

Persons in Family 

 

Low/Moderate Income 
Above Low/Moderate Income 

Number Percentage Number Percentage 

1 7 21.9% 1 14.3% 

2 5 15.6% 1 14.3% 

3 5 15.6% 5 71.4% 

4 6 18.8% 0 0.0% 

5 4 12.5% 0 0.0% 

6 3 9.4% 0 0.0% 

7 2 6.3% 0 0.0% 

8 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 

9 or more 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 

Total 32 100.0% 7 100.0% 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                       Appendix C   ::   Lake Oak Estates Primary Survey 

 

 

Page | 127  

Travis County, TX 

 
 

 

Summary of Primary Survey Results Race and Ethnicity 
 

 

Race 
 

 

Ethnicity 
 

Race Category Choices Total Number Number of Non-Hispanic Number of Hispanic 

White 29 25 4 

Black/African American 0 0 0 

Asian 0 0 0 

American Indian/Alaskan 
Native 0 0 0 

 

Native Hawaiian/Other 
Pacific Islander 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Other or Multi-racial 97 13 84 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

 

           
             

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX D: 
CERTIFICATIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                              Appendix D   ::   Certifications 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   128 

APPENDIX D: NON-STATE GOVERNMENT CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
 

 

In accordance with the applicable statutes and the regulations governing the 

consolidated plan regulations, the jurisdiction certifies that: 

 

Affirmatively Further Fair Housing -- The jurisdiction will affirmatively further fair housing, which 

means it will conduct an analysis of impediments to fair housing choice within the jurisdiction, take 

appropriate actions to overcome the effects of any impediments identified through that analysis, and 

maintain records reflecting that analysis and actions in this regard. 

 

Anti-displacement and Relocation Plan -- It will comply with the acquisition and relocation 

requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 

as amended, and implementing regulations at 49 CFR 24; and it has in effect and is following a 

residential antidisplacement and relocation assistance plan required under section 104(d) of the 

Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, in connection with any activity 

assisted with funding under the CDBG or HOME programs.   

 

Drug Free Workplace -- It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:  

1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 

dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace 

and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition; 

2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about –  

o The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;  

o The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;  

o Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and  

o The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the 

workplace;  

3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be 

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph 1;  

4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph 1 that, as a condition of 

employment under the grant, the employee will –  

o Abide by the terms of the statement; and  

o Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute 

occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                              Appendix D   ::   Certifications 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   129 

5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph 

4(b) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.  Employers of 

convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant officer or other 

designee on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency 

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices.  Notice shall include the identification 

number(s) of each affected grant;  

6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph 

4(b), with respect to any employee who is so convicted –  

o Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including 

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; 

or  

o Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation 

program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or 

other appropriate agency;  

7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation 

of paragraphs 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6. 

 

Anti-Lobbying -- To the best of the jurisdiction's knowledge and belief:  

8. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of it, to any  

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member  

of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress  

in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the 

making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension,  

continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or  

cooperative agreement;  

9. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any  

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member 

of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 

connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, it will complete and 

submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with  

its instructions; and  

10. It will require that the language of paragraph 1 and 2 of this anti-lobbying certification be  

included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants,  

and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all  

subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.   

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                              Appendix D   ::   Certifications 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   130 

Authority of Jurisdiction -- The consolidated plan is authorized under State and local law (as 

applicable) and the jurisdiction possesses the legal authority to carry out the programs for which it is 

seeking funding, in accordance with applicable HUD regulations. 

 

Consistency with plan -- The housing activities to be undertaken with CDBG, HOME, ESG, and HOPWA 

funds are consistent with the strategic plan. 

 

Section 3 -- It will comply with section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, and 

implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 135. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Signature/Authorized Official     Date 
 

 
 

Name 
 
 

Title 
 
 

Address 
 
 

City/State/Zip 
 
 

Telephone Number   
 

  

08/07/2012 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

County Judge 

P.O. Box 1748 

Austin, Texas  78767 

512/854-9555 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                              Appendix D   ::   Certifications 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   131 

SPECIFIC CDBG CERTIFICATIONS 
 

The Entitlement Community certifies that: 

 

Citizen Participation -- It is in full compliance and following a detailed citizen participation plan that 

satisfies the requirements of 24 CFR 91.105. 

 

Community Development Plan -- Its consolidated housing and community development plan identifies 

community development and housing needs and specifies both short-term and long-term community 

development objectives that provide decent housing, expand economic opportunities primarily for 

persons of low and moderate income. (See CFR 24 570.2 and CFR 24 part 570) 

 

Following a Plan -- It is following a current consolidated plan (or Comprehensive Housing Affordability 

Strategy) that has been approved by HUD.  

 
Use of Funds -- It has complied with the following criteria: 

 

11. Maximum Feasible Priority - With respect to activities expected to be assisted with CDBG funds, it 

certifies that it has developed its Action Plan so as to give maximum feasible priority to activities 

which benefit low and moderate income families or aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or 

blight. The Action Plan may also include activities which the grantee certifies are designed to meet 

other community development needs having a particular urgency because existing conditions pose 

a serious and immediate threat to the health or welfare of the community, and other financial 

resources are not available);  

 

12. Overall Benefit - The aggregate use of CDBG funds including section 108 guaranteed loans during 

program year(s) 2011(a period specified by the grantee consisting of one, two, or three specific 

consecutive program years), shall principally benefit persons of low and moderate income in a 

manner that ensures that at least 70 percent of the amount is expended for activities that benefit 

such persons during the designated period; 

 

13. Special Assessments - It will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public improvements 

assisted with CDBG funds including Section 108 loan guaranteed funds by assessing any amount 

against properties owned and occupied by persons of low and moderate income, including any fee 

charged or assessment made as a condition of obtaining access to such public improvements. 

 

However, if CDBG funds are used to pay the proportion of a fee or assessment that relates to the 

capital costs of public improvements (assisted in part with CDBG funds) financed from other 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                              Appendix D   ::   Certifications 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   132 

revenue sources, an assessment or charge may be made against the property with respect to the 

public improvements financed by a source other than CDBG funds. 

 

The jurisdiction will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public improvements assisted with 

CDBG funds, including Section 108, unless CDBG funds are used to pay the proportion of fee or 

assessment attributable to the capital costs of public improvements financed from other revenue 

sources. In this case, an assessment or charge may be made against the property with respect to 

the public improvements financed by a source other than CDBG funds. Also, in the case of 

properties owned and occupied by moderate-income (not low income) families, an assessment or 

charge may be made against the property for public improvements financed by a source other than 

CDBG funds if the jurisdiction certifies that it lacks CDBG funds to cover the assessment. 

 

Excessive Force -- It has adopted and is enforcing: 

 

14. A policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction 

against any individuals engaged in non-violent civil rights demonstrations; and 

 

15. A policy of enforcing applicable State and local laws against physically barring entrance to or exit 

from a facility or location which is the subject of such non-violent civil rights demonstrations within 

its jurisdiction; 

 

Compliance With Anti-discrimination laws -- The grant will be conducted and administered in 

conformity with title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000d), the Fair Housing Act (42 USC 

3601-3619), and implementing regulations. 

 

Lead-Based Paint -- Its activities concerning lead-based paint will comply with the requirements of 

part 35, subparts A, B, J, K and R, of title 24; 

 

Compliance with Laws -- It will comply with applicable laws. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                              Appendix D   ::   Certifications 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   133 

 

 
 
______________________________________ 
Signature/Authorized Official     Date 
 

 
 

Name 
 
 

Title 
 
 

Address 
 
 

City/State/Zip 
 
 

Telephone Number 
 
  

08/07/2012 
 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

County Judge 

P.O. Box 1748 

Austin, TX 78767 

512/854-9555 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                              Appendix D   ::   Certifications 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   134 

APPENDIX TO CERTIFICATIONS 
 
Instructions Concerning Lobbying and Drug-Free Workplace Requirements 

 

Lobbying Certification  

 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 

transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or 

entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file 

the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than 

$100,000 for each such failure. 

 

Drug-Free Workplace Certification 

 

1. By signing and/or submitting this application or grant agreement, the grantee is providing the 

certification.  

2. The certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency 

awards the grant.  If it is later determined that the grantee knowingly rendered a false certification, 

or otherwise violates the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act, HUD, in addition to any 

other remedies available to the Federal Government, may take action authorized under the Drug-

Free Workplace Act.  

3. Workplaces under grants, for grantees other than individuals, need not be identified on the 

certification. If known, they may be identified in the grant application. If the grantee does not 

identify the workplaces at the time of application, or upon award, if there is no application, the 

grantee must keep the identity of the workplace(s) on file in its office and make the information 

available for Federal inspection.  Failure to identify all known workplaces constitutes a violation of 

the grantee's drug-free workplace requirements.  

4. Workplace identifications must include the actual address of buildings (or parts of buildings) or 

other sites where work under the grant takes place. Categorical descriptions may be used (e.g., all 

vehicles of a mass transit authority or State highway department while in operation, State 

employees in each local unemployment office, performers in concert halls or radio stations). 

5. If the workplace identified to the agency changes during the performance of the grant, the grantee 

shall inform the agency of the change(s), if it previously identified the workplaces in question (see 

paragraph three).  

The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in 

connection with the specific grant: Place of Performance (Street address, city, county, state, zip 

code)  Check if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here. The certification with 

regard to the drug-free workplace is required by 24 CFR part 21. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                              Appendix D   ::   Certifications 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   135 

Place Name Street City County State Zip 

Palm Square Building 100 N. IH 35 Austin Travis TX 78701 

Granger Building 314 W. 11th Austin Travis TX 78701 

700 Lavaca 700 Lavaca Austin Travis TX 78701 

Executive Office 

Building 
411 W. 13th Austin Travis TX 78701 

Highland Mall Office 
502 E. Highland 

Mall Blvd. 
Austin Travis TX 78752 

Northwest Rural 

Community Center 

18649 FM 

1431, Suite 6A 
Jonestown Travis TX 78645 

West Rural Community 

Center 

8656-A Hwy 

71W, Suite A 
Oak Hill Travis TX 78735 

Travis County 

Community Center 

15822 Foothill 

Farms Loop, 

Bldg D 

Pflugerville Travis TX 78660 

East Rural Community 

Center 

600 W. Carrie 

Manor 
Manor Travis TX 78653 

South Rural Community 

Center 
3518 FM 973 Del Valle Travis TX 78617 

 

6. Definitions of terms in the Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment common rule and Drug-

Free Workplace common rule apply to this certification. Grantees' attention is called, in particular, 

to the following definitions from these rules: "Controlled substance" means a controlled substance 

in Schedules I through V of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. 812) and as further defined by 

regulation (21 CFR 1308.11 through 1308.15); "Conviction" means a finding of guilt (including a 

plea of nolo contendere) or imposition of sentence, or both, by any judicial body charged with the 

responsibility to determine violations of the Federal or State criminal drug statutes; "Criminal drug 

statute" means a Federal or non-Federal criminal statute involving the manufacture, distribution, 

dispensing, use, or possession of any controlled substance; "Employee" means the employee of a 

grantee directly engaged in the performance of work under a grant, including:  

 

o All "direct charge" employees;  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                                              Appendix D   ::   Certifications 

 

 

 

Travis County, TX      Page    |   136 

o all "indirect charge" employees unless their impact or involvement is insignificant to the 

performance of the grant; and  

o temporary personnel and consultants who are directly engaged in the performance of work 

under the grant and who are on the grantee's payroll.  This definition does not include workers 

not on the payroll of the grantee (e.g., volunteers, even if used to meet a matching 

requirement; consultants or independent contractors not on the grantee's payroll; or 

employees of subrecipients or subcontractors in covered workplaces). 

 

Note that by signing these certifications, certain documents must completed, in use, and on file for 

verification.  These documents include: 

 

1. Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing 

2. Citizen Participation Plan 

3. Anti-displacement and Relocation Plan 

 

 
 
 
 
Signature/Authorized Official     Date 
 

 
 

Name 
 
 

Title 
 
 

Address 
 
 

City/State/Zip 
 
 

Telephone Number 

08/07/2012 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

County Judge 

P.O. Box 1748 

Austin, TX  78767 

512/854-9555 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

 

PY 2012 

TRAVIS COUNTY CDBG  

SUBSTANTIAL 

AMENDMENTS 

TO THE PY2011-2013 

CONSOLIDATED PLAN AND THE 

PY06 THROUGH PY10 ACTION 

PLANS 

APPROVED BY TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT AUGUST 7, 2012 
 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Prepared by: 
Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service 

CDBG Office 
 
 

 
County Executive 
Sherri E. Fleming 
 
CDBG Staff 
Christy Copeland Moffett 
Martha Brown 
Morgan Chee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Questions or Comments?  
 
For questions or for more information, please contact the CDBG Office at cdbg@co.travis.tx.us.

TRAVIS COUNTY, TX  

SUBSTANTIAL 

AMENDMENTS  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

 

 
 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TX 
COMMISSIONERS COURT 

 
Samuel T. Biscoe 

Travis County Judge 

 

Sarah Eckhardt 
County Commissioner, 

Precinct Two 
 

Ron Davis 
County Commissioner, 

Precinct One 
 

Margaret Gomez 
County Commissioner, 

Precinct Four 

Karen Huber 
County Commissioner, 

Precinct Three 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                       Substantial Amendments 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX         Page    |   2 

 
 

 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) initiative is a federal grant program administered by 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The program provides annual grants 
to cities and counties to carry out a variety of community development activities aimed at revitalizing 
neighborhoods, improving affordable housing options, and providing improved community facilities 
and services. Since 2006, Travis County has received CDBG funds from HUD on an annual basis.  
 
The administration of the CDBG program follows a cycle that includes the drafting of a Consolidated 
Plan, an Action Plan, and an annual evaluation. The Consolidated Plan identifies the County’s 
community and housing needs and outlines the strategies to address those needs over a five year 
period. The Action Plan defines the specific activities and projects to be undertaken during each 
program year. The annual evaluation assesses yearly accomplishments.   
 
Over the last five years, several projects have had cost savings and those funds need to be allocated for 
another purpose.  Due to changes in projects, CDBG staff must analyze whether or not a substantial 
amendment needs to occur.  According to Travis County’s Citizen Participation Plan as required by HUD 
rules, a substantial amendment is required if any of the changes represent 1) a change in the location 
or beneficiaries of a project proposed under the Consolidated Plan or Action Plan; 2) a change in the 
scope of the project by more than 25%; or 3) a change in the funding of a new project that was not 
originally subject. 
 
This year Travis County is proposing to substantially amend project years PY06, PY08, PY09, and PY10, 

to allow for cost savings are proposed to be reallocated to Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation.  

Additionally, Program staff recommends the PY09 Action Plan be amended to delete the Youth and 

Family Assessment Center Flex Fund Expansion Project.  The funds are proposed to be reallocated to 

Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation.  

 
Additionally, every three years, urban counties receiving CDBG funds must re-affirm their urban county 
entitlement status. In PY10, Travis County renewed its status for 2012-2014.  As part of the 
qualification process, Travis County invited non-entitlement cities and villages to participate in the 
Travis County CDBG program.  The Village of Webberville elected to join the Urban County, and a 
Cooperative Agreement was approved by TCCC in July, 2011. Beginning in PY2012 the Village of 
Webberville will be part of the CDBG Program service area. The Consolidated Plan is therefore being 
amended to reflect this. 
 
 
 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                       Substantial Amendments 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX         Page    |   3 

 

AMENDMENT TO PY06, PY08, PY09 and PY10 
ACTION PLANS 
 

 
 

 

Project Savings 

The chart below summarizes the project savings and reallocations.  Project savings is defined as funds 
available after a project’s completion.   
 

Figure 1: Project Savings  

Original Project Project Savings 

PY06 Lava Lane  $423.86 

PY10 Lava Lane $129,685.02 

PY09 Administration and Planning $1,106.23 

PY10 Administration and Planning $28,593.65 

PY10 Social Work Expansion $3,920.52 

PY08 Land Acquisition – Phase 2 $2,355.68 

PY09 Land Acquisition – Phase 2 $29,751.00 

PY09 YFAC Flex Fund  $32,100.00 

TOTAL $227,935.96 

 

Amendment to PY09 Action Plan: Deletion of Youth and Family Assessment Center (YFAC) Flex Fund 

Expansion Project 

 

The YFAC program is an internal Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service that 

assists high-risk children by improving their school performance and preventing them from falling in 

the juvenile justice system through traditional services such as therapy and nontraditional services like 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                       Substantial Amendments 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX         Page    |   4 

parent coaching.  In the PY09 Action Plan, an expansion of the program was approved as a CDBG 

project with $32,100 in funds.  To date this project has not yet been implemented. Given the relatively 

small amount of funding for this project, other CDBG projects with larger funding amounts have been 

given higher priority to ensure for timely spending of funds.  Additionally, this project represents an 

expansion of an existing program that is funded through General Funds, so clients are currently able to 

access these services and deletion of the CDBG funds would not impact service provision. Because 

other projects better meet the strategic goals for the CDBG program at this time, this project will be 

deleted from PY09 Action Plan and the funds reprogrammed. 

 

Reallocation of Funds 

 
Staff recommends the project savings in the PY06-PY10 Action Plans and the funds from the deletion of 

the above mentioned public service project reallocated to Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation.   
 

Project # 2: Home Rehabilitation - $227,935.96 

 

Project Description: 

 

This project will fund minor home repair services for low and moderate income homeowners in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of Webberville, to move homes towards Housing 

Quality Standards.  The program seeks to improve the energy efficiency, physical living conditions, and 

safety in owner-occupied homes. A 0% interest, forgivable 5-year loan up to $24,999 with no required 

annual or monthly payments is available.  The loan is forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% for each year of 

home ownership. Examples of potential improvements include, but are not limited to: connections of 

houses to long-term viable sources of water (not part of a stand-alone infrastructure project), 

complementing weatherization services of other funding sources, septic tank repairs, and electrical and 

plumbing repairs.  In the event that program income is created, it will be reinvested into the Home 

Rehabilitation project.  

 

These funds are targeted toward homeowners at or below 80% MFI in the CDBG service area. This 

project will be administered by a non-profit, designated as a sub-recipient, identified through a formal 

application.  Additionally, some of the allocation will partially fund a CDBG Planner position to 

complete environmental paperwork, final inspections and sign off and any other needed project 

delivery related costs. 
 

 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                       Substantial Amendments 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX         Page    |   5 

Figure 2: Project 2 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding: $227,935.96 

Leverage Funding:  To be determined 

Program Delivery:  
Designated sub-recipient or Travis County Health and Human Service and 
Veterans Service 

Program Oversight: Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Estimated Start/  

Completion Date: 
October 1, 2012-September 30, 2013 

Location: 
Homes in the unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of 
Webberville 

 

 

Figure 3: Project 2 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information (HUD –

prescribed) 

Priority Need Category: 
Owner Occupied 
Housing 

Project: Rehabilitation of existing units 

Eligible Activity: Rehabilitation Outcome Category Availability/ Accessibility 

Objective Category 
Suitable Living 
Environment 

Specific Objective 
Improve the quality of owner 
housing 

Citation 570.202 Accomplishment  9 Houses 

Eligibility LMH Matrix Code  
14A, Rehabilitation, Single Unit 
Residential 

Priority in the 2011-2013 
Strategic Plan# 

High Travis County HTE #: HCIG09 

 
 
 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                       Substantial Amendments 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX         Page    |   6 

 

 
 
 

AMENDMENT TO 2011-2013 CONSOLIDATED 
PLAN 
 
 

 
 

 

Every three years, urban counties receiving CDBG funds must re-affirm their urban county entitlement 
status. In PY10, Travis County renewed its status for 2012-2014.  As part of the qualification process, 
Travis County chose to invite non-entitlement cities and villages to participate in the Travis County 
CDBG program.  The Village of Webberville elected to join the Urban County, and a Cooperative 
Agreement was approved by TCCC in July, 2011. Beginning in PY2012 the Village of Webberville will be 
part of the CDBG Program service area. 
 
The addition of the Village of Webberville does not change the analysis of community needs or the 
identification of strategic directions for PY2011-2013.  This amendment acknowledges the inclusion of 
the Village of Webberville and the eligibility of projects to be located there.  The following sections of 
the Consolidated Plan will not be otherwise amended: 
 

I. Introduction 
II. Public Engagement 
III. Community Needs 
IV. Strategic Plan 
V. Annual Action Plan 

 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                                      Substantial Amendments 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                       Page    |   7 

 

Map 1 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                       Substantial Amendments 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX         Page    |   8 

The Village of Webberville is located on the eastern edge of Travis County. According to the 2010 
Census, the village has 392 residents.  Approximately half the residents (48.9%) are Hispanic, a higher 
percentage than the county as a whole (33.5%).   
 

Figure 4: Village of Webberville, Demographics  

Population Number 
Percent Village 
of Webberville 

Percent 
Travis 

County 

Total Population 392 100% N/A 

African American or Black 32 8.1% 8.5% 

American Indian and Alaska Native 1 0.3% 0.8% 

Asian 1 0.3% 5.8% 

Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 0 0% 0.1% 

White 336 85.7% 69.3% 

Some Other Race 20 5.1% 12.2% 

Two or More Races 2 0.5% 3.3% 

Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 192 48.9% 33.5% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Census  
 
The majority (81.2%) of housing units in the Village of Webberville are owner occupied.  Only 18.8% of 
units are renter occupied, a much lower percentage than for the county as a whole (48.1%).  
 

Figure 5: Village of Webberville, Housing   

 Number 
Percent Village 
of Webberville 

Percent 
Travis 

County 

Total Occupied Housing Units 117 100% N/A 

Owner Occupied Housing Units 95 81.2% 51.9% 

Renter Occupied 22 18.8% 48.1% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Census  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                       Substantial Amendments 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX         Page    |   9 

 
 

 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Advertisement 
 
During the week of May 28, 2012, Travis County published announcements inviting the public to 
comment on the substantial amendments. Advertisements were posted on the County’s website and 
published in newspapers of general circulation. In addition, notifications by mail and e-mail will be sent 
to service providers, to citizens who had previously attended public hearings, to the community liaison 
departments of Travis County schools districts and to neighborhood associations. Refer to attachments 
A and B for a copy of the public notice in both English and Spanish. 

 
Public Comment Period 
 
The draft amendments were available to the public for review and to provide written comment from 
June 18, 2012 through July 17, 2012 at the seven Travis County community centers as well as the 
County’s website http://www.co.travis.tx.us/. Two public hearings were held at the Travis County 
Commissioners Court on June 26 and July 10, 2012. 

    
Summary of Public Comments Received  

 

 A total of 8 people presented testimony at the public hearing on June 26, 2012. 

 One individual made general comments about excessive taxation and governmental waste. 

 One individual made comments about a lack of responsiveness and waste within agencies not 

related to CDBG.  

 One individual asked for clarification about the amount of funds being dedicated to the home 

repair project, and for additional information on the Fair Housing Counseling project.  

 Four residents of the Las Lomitas community expressed thanks for the work being done around 

the neighborhood’s water connection issues, and for consideration as a CDBG alternate project. 

 One Las Lomitas resident requested that the TNR service station extend hours to accommodate 

people whose work schedules currently do not permit them to get water from the station.  

 No comments were received at the public hearing on July 10, 2012. 

 One written comment was received through U.S. mail from a neighborhood association located 

within the City of Austin requesting services.   

 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/


PY 2012 Action Plan                       Substantial Amendments 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX         Page    |   10 

Responses to Comment Received and Comments Not Accepted 

 

During the public hearings, most of the questions were addressed at the time of the public hearing.  

Staff provided clarification on the funding for the home repair project and the fair housing activity, and 

Commissioner Gomez’s office indicated they would work with the neighborhood and TNR to discuss 

the extension of hours.  One person stated that the CDBG Program was spending 40% of CDBG funds 

on administration, but that is not accurate.  The Program has planned to spend the allowable 20% on 

administration and planning activities as indicated throughout this Action Plan.   

 

The comments regarding governmental waste and travel to London were not associated with the CDBG 

program, and therefore, will not be accepted for this Plan.    

 
The neighborhood association was informed in a letter that the Travis County CDBG Program cannot 

use funds within incorporated areas, and referred to the City of Austin for assistance.   

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                       Substantial Amendments 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX         Page    |   11 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



PY 2012 Action Plan                       Substantial Amendments 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX         Page    |   12 

ATTACHMENT B 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 21



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 22



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 23



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Elizabeth Montgomery, 854-3124 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David Escamilla, County Attorney 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action regarding 
proposed changes to Chapter One of the Travis County Code, 
Commissioners Court Rules of Procedures and Citizens Communication. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: N/A 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: N/A 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
John Hille, County Attorney, 854-9513 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 24



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Steven Broberg, Director of RMCR {, ~ 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Admin Ops Subcommittee - Judge Samuel T. Biscoe and 

Commissioner Margaret Gomez 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

A. Consider and take appropriate action on the Law Library's request to make permanent the 
consolidation of its Granger and Courthouse operations. 

B. Receive briefing and take appropriate action on Law Library's 2012 Operational Report and FY13 
budget presentation 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

Please see attached documentation titled: 

A. "Brief Report: Consolidation of Granger Law Library and Courthouse Self-Help Center." 

B. "Travis County Law Library 2012 Operational Report" 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

A. Staff recommends that the Law Library consolidation be made permanent. 

B. Staff recommends that the briefing on 2012 Operational Report and FY13 budget presentation 
be received. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

Please see attached documentation titled: 

A. "Brief Report: Consolidation of Granger Law Library and Courthouse Self-Help Center." 

B. "Travis County Law Library 2012 Operational Report" 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

Please see attached documentation titled: 

A. "Brief Report: Consolidation of Granger Law Library and Courthouse Self-Help Center." 

B. "Travis County Law Library 2012 Operational Report" 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Admin Ops Subcommittee 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 25



Brief Report: Consolidation of the Law Library and Courthouse Self-Help Center 

Follow-Up to: Tuesday, November 22, 2011 Court Session, Item #30 

Background/Summary  
In December 2011 the Law Library initiated a six-month test of consolidating its two locations.  The self-
represented litigant services were moved from the smaller Courthouse Self-Help Center (SHC) and 
merged with the Granger Law Library. 

The Law Library requested the consolidation for the following reasons and achieved these results: 

Reasons for Consolidation Results After Consolidation 

At 525 square feet, room 118 was over-crowded. At 3,650 square feet there is more room for the 
patrons to work in the Granger Law Library. 

There was not enough room to fully serve the 
patrons.  

Rather than leaving immediately with forms, 
patrons fill out their forms at the tables, giving 
librarians more opportunities to help them. 

It was difficult to staff two locations.  The Law 
Library used Granger staff, temporary staff, and 
Information Booth staff to compensate. Staff 
suffered stress related to the number of patrons, 
the hurried nature of serving the patrons in such a 
limited space, and the noise.  

Scheduling staffing for the full business hours is 
easier now though the workload has not declined.  
Staff provides more assistance to each patron 
because patrons now remain in the library to work 
at the tables and computers. Staff still suffers from 
workload-related stress.  

Staff Recommendations: 
The Law Library would like to keep its operations consolidated in the Granger Building.  Staff 
recommends that the consolidation of the Courthouse Self-Help Center with the Granger Law Library be 
made permanent. 

Issues and Opportunities: 
Consolidating the Self-Help Center into the Granger Law Library was successful in that we have more 
room in Granger for self-represented litigant patrons to fill out their paperwork prior to filing in court.  
Co-locating the staff means that the librarians can give them more assistance.   

However, two new issues have emerged:  

1. Self-represented litigant patrons who once would have visited the courthouse Self-Help Center to 
just pick up forms and leave, now remain in Granger to fill out the forms.  The patrons work at the 
tables or use the automated forms applications on the public access computers.  This is positive 
since it means the patrons can get more help from the librarians – one of the goals of the 
consolidation. The downside is that the Granger Law Library becomes crowded and noisy during 
parts of the day. 

2. The second issue is that the attorneys who visited the Granger Law Library before the consolidation 
are not coming as often nor staying as long, possibly because it is noisier and the work tables are 
frequently occupied.  The Law Library would like to find a way to bring the attorney patrons back 
and believes that creating an attorney-client meeting and mediation room in one of the offices that 
will be vacated by Media Services in August could help.  Noise could be reduced if we could create a 
waiting area for the children and family members of self-represented litigant patrons.  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



After discussion of space needs with Facilities Management, their recommendation was that the Library 
expand into the space vacated by Records Management and Media Services. The Law Library agreed 
that this would be a good solution to the Library’s space constraints.   

By expanding into the vacated space, the Law Library will be able to provide waiting areas for the 
families, more table space for patrons, and mediation rooms for attorneys. The vacated space is enough 
to meet the Law Library’s needs through 2018 per the Facilities Management master space plan.  

Fiscal Impact 
The consolidation should save $6,500 per year as the duplicate materials in the Self-Help Center will no 
longer be needed. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



0 

 

 

 

  

Travis County 

Law Library 
Operational Report 
2012 
With Projections for the Next Five Years 

7/30/2012 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



1 

 

Law Library Operational Report 2012 

 

 

What the Law Library Does ............................................................................... 2 
Law Library Services .......................................................................................... 3 
Program History ................................................................................................ 8 
Revenue & Expenditure History ...................................................................... 10 
Law Library Structure ...................................................................................... 12 
State of the Law Library: Issues and Opportunities ......................................... 13 
State of the Law Library: Challenges ............................................................... 14 
Conclusion ...................................................................................................... 16 
Data Sources ................................................................................................... 17 
 

 
 
  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



2 

Forms = Access to the Courts 

Forms are mentioned throughout this report because forms are be among the most important tools 
provided by the Law Library. 

Without forms, the litigant has little chance of presenting his or her civil case to the judge. Because so 
few reliable, substantively correct legal forms are drafted and sold specifically for self-represented 
litigant use, the Law Library reference attorneys created the forms needed for the Self-Help Services 
program.  Over the past 10 years, these forms have become very important to litigants and county law 
libraries in Texas.    

With the help of a grant in 2005-2006, the forms were expanded from just name change and divorce 
forms to occupational license and modification of child support forms and more. The Law Library 
publishes the forms on www.TexasLawHelp.org, a website maintained by Texas Legal Services Center 
(TLSC).  TLSC reports that 62 % of the SRLs who download the forms earn less than $26,000 per year. 

In 2011 the forms were adopted as the model for the Supreme Court of Texas’ standardized forms 
initiative.   

 

Introduction – What the Law Library Does 

The Travis County Law Library provides legal information to the courts, the legal community, and to the 
litigants of Travis County.  

A legal community that has access to the legal research and tools can more effectively provide the 
information to the courts. This is particularly important in indigent defense cases in which the appointed 
attorney may only have access to legal research databases because of the Law Library. 

Some litigants, called “Self-Represented Litigants” (SRLs) interact with the courts without the help of an 
attorney.  When they do, it is the job of the Law Library’s Reference Division to ensure that the have 
equal access to the forms, statutes and case law they need.   

The Technical Services division, responsible for centralized budgeting, databases contracts, and book 
processing,  ensures that judges receives their law books and can access online legal research databases 
they need.  The division also supervises the Information Booth in the Heman Marion Sweatt Civil 
Courthouse.    

The Library is often the self-represented litigant’s first point of contact with the courts. Informed, 
prepared litigants benefit courthouse efficiency and improve access to justice. In its ten-year history the 
Self-Help Services  program has helped 30,000 litigants to complete their case through an uncontested 
process – saving court time that might otherwise been spent correcting errors, holding unneeded 
hearings, and clearing up confusion. 

Lastly, the Law Library is a connector in the community.  The Law Library connects its patrons to services 
(not just legal aid services) and to the courts.  

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://www.texaslawhelp.org/


3 

Law Library Services 

Reference 

The Law Library reference staff members assist library visitors by 
listening carefully to their questions and then providing information 
about their legal issues in print or online. 

When attorneys need librarian help, it is most often with searching the 
legal research databases or with particularly difficult research questions. 
Librarians email cases and statutes to attorneys upon request. 

Non-attorney litigants are called “self-represented litigants” (SRLs). 
Librarians help self-represented litigant (SRL) patrons understand in 
general terms how their issues are handled by the court.  Often SRLs 
need both information and legal advice.  Librarians refer SRLs to local 
bar lawyer referral service and to the legal aid clinics for legal advice. 

“Helping patrons understand general legal procedure 
often helps them understand their legal issues.  If patrons 
leave the library without resolving their issue, they still 
leave better informed about their issue, the courts, and 
what attorneys can do.” 

- Judy Helms, Reference Supervisor 

Projection: Reference Services in 2018 

In another five years Law Library will still be the source of legal 
information and forms, and its role as referral source to community 
resources will have expanded.   

The reference librarians will continue to inform patrons about the court 
system but will do so with more tools.  Patrons will receive information 
via video, in-person workshops, social media such as chat, etc. The Law 
Library will work to expand its information kits to include housing and 
consumer law and civil procedure for self-represented litigants.  
Reference librarians will still give patrons paper forms if they want them 
but will steer these patrons toward online legal forms automation 
programs on the patron access computers. The programs will ask 
patrons question and generate legal forms based on their answers. 

For attorneys, the Law Library will continue to serve as a source of books 
but will increase access to electronic resources.  Attorneys will be able 
to reserve mediation and conference rooms. Solo practitioners will refer 
their limited scope clients to the Law library to retrieve forms that the 
attorney will then review.  

Library staff will need to develop new skill sets.  A survey of other 
county law libraries showed that the Travis County Law Library could 
improve on some services, particularly those that require 
communication by chat or social media.    

Our reference staff have 
73 years of experience 

 

Josie Arjona – 24 years 
 

 

Geri Krohn – 24 Years 
 

 

Judy Helms – 12 Years 
 

 

Delores Harris – 12 Years 

 

 

Sindy Torres – 1 Year 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



4 

Law Library Services -- continued 

Technical Services & the Information Booth 

The major duties of the Technical Services staff are to:  

 maintain the public access computers, 

 help patrons to use the computers, 

 keep the library and judges’ print collections current, 

 manage the online database access for the library and 
the courts, 

 order and pay for print and online materials for the 
library and the court, 

 maintain the library’s web page, and 

 provide back-up to the reference desk. 

Courthouse Information Booth 

The Technical Services supervisor, Melinda 
Ledesma, also supervises the Information Booth in 
the Heman Marion Sweatt Civil Courthouse. The 
Information Booth provides notary services and 
accurate directional information to visitors and 
callers. 

The Information Booth function was transferred to 
the Library on October 1, 2006.  The library 
developed reference aids and directional and 
information guides to give faster responses to 
routine visitor questions.   

Staff salaries, except for the supervisor, are funded 
from the General Fund, not the Law Library fund.  

Projection: Technical Services in 2018 

Over the last few years the Law Library reduced the print collection to mostly statutes and forms books.  
The Library supplemented the collection with robust online legal research databases.  The content of the 
collection is unlikely to change except for the possible addition more online federal materials.  If the Law 
Library is relocated to a new civil court house built next to the new federal courthouse, the Library will 
be the closest library to the federal courts. 

The Law Library’s patron access computers are used daily for legal research and other applications. The 
Law Library will expand patron access to technology by adding scanners and additional computers. 

Over the next few years, patrons will use the public access computers to complete automated forms, 
watch how-to videos, and eFile court documents. Technical Services will provide patrons instruction on 
how to eFile. (EFiling is mandatory for attorneys in most civil cases but self-represented litigants can 
complete forms by hand on paper.  At some point, SRLs will be required to eFile also.) 

Technical Services publishes the Library webpage and the family law forms content on 
www.TexasLawHelp.org.  The staff will automate the most frequently requested forms so that patrons 
can complete the forms online using a question-and-answer format that includes audio and video help.  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://www.texaslawhelp.org/


5 

Law Library Services -- continued 

Self-Help Services 

The Law Library’s Self-Help Services began with a major goal: to help 
unrepresented litigants get enforceable court orders.  

Child support orders demonstrate why correct, enforceable court 
orders are important.  When a support order is drafted correctly, the 
judge spends less time reviewing the order. The employer receives 
the correct documentation needed to withhold support from the 
paying parent’s income.  The agencies that enforce child support 
orders can do so.  The children are more likely to receive support.  
The litigant does not need to return to court for corrections. This 
results in a significant time savings for all parties.   

It starts with a reference interview –  
The reference attorneys created instruction kits that include forms to 
address the most common requests.  When a SRL contacts the Self-
Help Center -- either in person or by phone -- a law librarian conducts 
a reference interview to determine the SRL‘s issue. If the issue is one 
for which we have prepared kits, the law librarian then provides the 
forms and instructions.  Otherwise the librarian refers the patron to 
legal aid, lawyer referral or other social service; or helps the SRLs 
conduct their own legal research using the Library’s collection.   

Reference Attorney Appointments 
If the SRL has an uncontested family law case, either agreed or 
default, a librarian schedules an appointment for the SRL with an on-
staff reference attorney. Before the appointment, each SRL must 
complete and sign an intake form.  By signing the intake form the SRL 
acknowledges that the reference attorney cannot give legal advice 
and no attorney client relationship is created. 

At the appointment, the reference attorney helps the SRL complete 
family law forms and explains the steps to complete the case.  If the 
SRL needs legal advice or representation, the reference attorney 
refers them to a lawyer referral service or legal aid office. The 
reference attorney refers the SRL if it is determined that the case is 
contested or if the SRL has resources or issues that complicate the 
case beyond our ability to assist.  For example, divorcing SRLs who 
need real estate documents drafted or need to divide retirement 
plans are referred to a lawyer referral service. 

Reference attorney appointments, available in both English and 
Spanish, last between 20 and 60 minutes, depending upon if children 
are involved in the case.  There is generally a month wait for an 
appointment. The Library decreased the wait to 8 days this summer 
by hiring a temp reference attorney to work 10 hours a week.   

 

29,9502  =  
Patrons helped directly by 

the reference attorneys since 
2002. 

29 % in appointments 
71 % at Uncontested Docket 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



6 

Reference Attorney at Uncontested Docket 

In addition to appointments, a reference attorney attends the 
Civil District Courts’ twice daily uncontested docket.  At docket, 
the reference attorney reviews the court file, pleadings, and 
proposed orders of all self-represented family law litigants.  

If the SRL is ready to present their case to the judge, the 
reference attorney attaches a checklist to the paperwork so the 
judge can quickly see that all procedural requirements have 
been met.  The reference attorney also make notes at the 
bottom of the checklist regarding the substance of the 
proposed orders such as who is being awarded custody, type of 
visitation, the amount of child support and who’s ordered to 
provide health insurance.  The judge then looks at the 
checklist, the SRL reads the testimony provided by the 
reference attorney and the judge signs the orders.   

It usually takes the judge only about 2-3 few minutes to 
complete each case.  If the Reference attorney were not at 
docket, the judge would spend 10 minutes or more to 
complete each case. 

SRLs do not approach the bench unless the reference attorneys 
determine that they are ready.  If the SRL is not ready because 
they need legal advice and/or representation, the reference 
attorney refers the SRL to legal aid or the local lawyer referral 
service.  If the SRL has not completed all procedural steps, the 
reference attorney explains what procedural steps still need to 
be completed and how to complete them.  If the SRL simply 
needs help completing additional paperwork, the attorney 
helps the SRL complete the paperwork right then in court, time 
permitting, or asks the SRL to make an appointment with the 
reference attorney to finish filling out the paper work.  

Language Access 

The Law Library began providing bilingual reference attorney 
appointments and forms in 2006. It has become increasingly 
difficult to meet the demand for bilingual services.  In addition, 
there is generally a months-long delay between an update of 
an English form and the translation of that form into Spanish.   

To address these gaps, the Law Library converted half of a 
supervisory position into a half-time bilingual paralegal/ 
interpreter position in 2011.  However, due to demand for 
bilingual reference services, the paralegal was assigned to the 
reference desk. For the FY13 budget, the Law Library is 
requesting a full-time bilingual librarian.  
  

NATIONAL Influences 

Due Process for Self-Represented Litigants 
Addressed by SCOTUS 

United States Supreme Court issued an opinion 
about due process for the self-represented 
litigants on June 20, 2011 and, for the first time 
in 25 years, addressed what courts must do to 
ensure that SRLs are given access to justice.  

The implications for Turner v. Rogers are being 
studied nation-wide but the Nation Center for 
State Courts’ publication Future Trend 2012 
emphasized two important points: 

1. “The Supreme Court explicitly approved – 
indeed in some cases required the use of 
forms in self-represented litigant cases, 
thereby putting to final rest any claim of 
their inappropriateness.” 

2. “The Court reached out to endorse the 
concept of neutral court staff providing 
assistance to litigants.” 

Source: “Turner v. Rogers: Improving Due Process for the 
Self-Represented” Future Trends in State Courts 2012, 
National Center for State Courts. 

DOJ Issues Guidance Letter Regarding 
State Court’s Obligation to Provide 
Language Access. 

On August 17, 2010, the Justice Department 
clarified the obligations of courts to provide 
interpretation and translation services to those 
with Limited English Proficiency (LEP).   

The letter explains require courts receiving 
federal financial assistance to provide 
meaningful access to all civil, criminal or 
administrative hearings, at no charge to LEP 
individuals. 

The Travis County Civil Court’s LEP plan became 
the model recommended by the Office of Court 
Administration.  

Source: Department of Justice Office of Public Affairs, 
August 17, 2010. www.justice.gov/opa/pr/2010/August/10-
crt-930.html 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



7 

Affidavit of 
Indigency , 

25% 

Divorce , 
47% 

Occupational 
License 6% 

Name 
Change , 10% Other, 12% 

 
Smart Phones + Smart Codes = Video 
Answers to Legal Information Questions 

Some 55% of Americans access the 
Internet on their cell phones.  Pew 
Research reports that low-income 
Americans are more likely to access the 
Internet through cell phones than on 
personal computers. 

The Law Library partnered with Media 
Services to create short informational 
videos about getting an Occupational 
Driver’s License and changing a name.   

SRLs can see both videos by clicking on 
the printed smart codes at the 
Information Booth or Reference Desk or 
at www.TravisCountyLawLibrary.org  

Law Library Services -- continued 
Projection: Self-Help Services in 2018  

Over the last few budgets, the Law Library shifted the application of its 
resources away from an attorney-centric books and online collection to 
SRL-centric services and forms development.  This shift in resources and 
continued transition towards self-help will continue. 

The Law Library’s self-help program covers self-represented litigant 
information needs well if the issue is uncontested (agreed) and family 
law. But if the issue is contested or something other than family law 
(such as eviction), there are fewer information kits to help them.  The 
Library plans to expand its how-to information kits to include more 
about housing issues and videos on civil procedures in contested cases.  

The number of self-represented litigants is expected to increase 
dramatically.  The American Bar Association (ABA) released a July 2012 
report on the delivery of legal services.  In it, the ABA stressed that self-
represented interactions with the courts is now a nation-wide 
phenomenon.   

The report, entitled “ABA Standing Committee on Delivery of Legal Services Report to the House of 
Delegates,” stated that, nationwide, between 60 and 90 percent of family law cases involved at least 
one self-represented party.  Some states reported SRLs in as many as 97 percent of eviction cases.  The 
Law Library understands that this trend is still developing in Travis County.  

Though the Law Library is dedicated to providing legal information to self-represented litigants, we 
know that patrons would benefit most from legal advice – which the library cannot give. Other county 
law libraries have reported success with having volunteer “attorneys for the day” in the library to give 
advice on contested matters. 

The ABA recommends limited scope representation by attorneys as a means to representation to 
litigants of modest means.  Attorneys who used the limited scope business model charge an hourly rate 
or a flat fee for a specific service (such as review forms or a consultation) instead of collecting a retainer 
to work on the entire case. “When lawyers provide a limited scope representation, or ‘unbundle’ their 
services, they facilitate greater access to competent legal services.”   

It will be helpful for the Law Library to partner with the local bar association to facilitate the limited 
scope business model. By doing so, we may serve both the attorneys and the self-represented litigants – 
and the courts will receive more attorney-reviewed orders in contested maters.  

 
  Technical Services staff will have responsibility for 

automating the Law Library’s forms, starting with 
the most frequently requested forms.  (See pie 
chart at left.) 

Instead of filling forms out by hand – and crossing 
out unneeded sentences – patrons answer 
questions and the software generates the form 
based on the answers.  Patrons who have used a 
popular tax form preparation software will 
understand quickly how the legal forms automation 
software can help them. 

Figure 1 Most Requested Information Kits 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://www.traviscountylawlibrary.org/


8 

 

Program History 

1983 – 1998  
The Travis County Law Library was established 
in 1983 to provide legal information to the 
residents of Travis County.  Funding for the 
Library came from a mix of the County Law 
Library filing fee and the General Fund. The Law 
Library consisted of a Courthouse branch used 
primarily by the public and a Granger Building 
branch used primarily by the county and district 
attorneys and the judges who officed in 
Granger. Between 1983 and 1995 the Law 
Library was part of the General Services 
Department.  After a re-organization in 
administrative departments, it became part of 
the Records Management and Communication 
Resources Department (RMCR) in 1995. 

1998-1999 
For the first 15 years, almost all of the Library’s 
patrons were attorneys or judges. Few patrons 
were non-attorneys representing themselves in 
court.  In the late 1990s self-represented 
litigants began asking the Law Library for forms 
and procedural information. As SRL patrons 
began to make up a greater percentage of the 
Law Library’s patronage, the Law Library began 
searching for ways to provide legal information 
in the formats non-attorney patrons needed. 

At the same time, an increasing number of SRLs 
began appearing at the court’s daily 
uncontested dockets.  This caused considerable 
delay and frustration for Travis County’s civil 
district judges.  The judges were concerned 
about the enforceability of orders presented by 
SRLs. 

2000 
To address the issues of enforceability of SRL 
child support orders and the inefficiencies 
uninformed litigants added to the court 
process, the civil district judges created a Pro Se 
Committee in 2000.  The committee developed 
a plan to create plain-language family law forms 
for SRLs that the Law Library could give to 
patrons.  

The committee later developed a plan to have a 
reference attorney in the Law Library and at the 
courts daily uncontested dockets.  

2001 
In fall of 2001, the Travis County Commissioners 
Court approved the law library staff addition of 
a half-time reference attorney and a half-time 
temporary reference attorney. The reference 
attorneys were authorized to help SRLs fill out 
forms in uncontested family law cases. The 
reference attorneys assisted patrons on a first-
come-first served basis in the courthouse. 

2002-2004 
The Granger 4th floor library moved to the first 
floor in 2002. 

In the courthouse library, so many patrons 
waited for hours to meet with the reference 
attorneys that the appointment system was 
created.  On March 2, 2002, the reference 
attorney program was formalized and, in 
addition to facilitating at docket and creating 
forms, reference attorneys began meeting with 
SRLS in appointments in the Granger Law 
Library.  The Law Library considers this to be the 
beginning of the “Self-Help Program.”   

The legal forms created by the reference 
attorneys were published on the web.  Other 
county law libraries began referring their 
patrons to the Travis County forms.   In 2004 
the Law Library was asked to join the forms 
committee of Texas Supreme Courts Access to 
Justice Commission.  The Law Library continues 
to serve on various Access to Justice 
committees. 

2005 
In 2005 the Law Library was awarded a 
$316,114 grant to create bilingual, easy-to-read 
forms for self-represented litigants for use that 
could be used state-wide.  The forms were 
published to www.TexasLawHelp.org, a website 
managed by the Texas Legal Services Center.  
The Law Library continues to update these 
forms. The forms are used all over Texas.  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://www.texaslawhelp.org/


9 

 33,391  
 37,042   35,463  37942 39951 41341 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Patrons Visits to Self-Help Center  
2006-2011 = 225,130  

Also in 2005, the large courthouse fourth floor 
library was closed. Its collection was added to 
that of the Granger Law Library, which was 
expanded.  A small library branch in room 118 
of the courthouse was created.  

The new courthouse branch was too small to 
serve as a library and was converted into a Self-
Help Center.  The reference attorneys began 
meeting appointments in the Self-Help Center.  
Librarians provided information, forms, and 
access to computers and copiers. Attorneys 
used the Self-Help Center during trial as a 
business center but went to the Granger Law 
Library for research. 

2006 - 2011 
The Information Booth function was transferred 
to the Law Library on October 1, 2006. 

The Law Library added free mediation services 
for family law patrons through a partnership 
with the Alternative Dispute Resolution Center. 

The Self-Help Center remained in room 118 on 
the first floor of the Courthouse for five years.  
During this time, over 250,000 patrons visited 
the Self-Help Center.  Space in room 118 
became too small to hold the patrons or 
enough staff to serve them.  In December 2011, 
the Self-Help Center program and staff were 
relocated back to the Granger Law Library. 

In 2011 the Texas Supreme Court selected the 
Law Library to serve on its Task Force for state-
wide uniform legal forms.  The Travis County 
Law Library’s forms served as the model for the 
proposed uniform forms. 

In January 2012 the family section of the Texas 
Bar Association asked the Supreme Court of 
Texas (SCOT) to disband the Task Force on 
Uniform Forms and to discontinue trying to 
promulgate standard forms for self-represented 
litigants.  The SCOT refused and the work of the 
Task Force continues. 

2012 

Until the consolidation of the Self-Help Center 
into the Granger Law Library, the Granger 
branch was a quiet library used primarily by 
attorneys doing legal research and as a location 
to office the administrative side of the library.   

After the Self-Help Center was moved back to 
the Granger, the Library became busier, louder, 
and crowded. SRL patrons often need to take 
time off work to visit the library and so stay at 
the library to take care of as much of their issue 
as they can.  They bring their families, including 
children. Some attorneys, mostly solo 
practitioners, stopped coming to the Granger 
Law Library, probably because of the noise and 
crowd. 

After we informed them of our space needs, 
Facilities Management recommended that the 
Library expand into the space vacated by 
Records Management and Media Services. The 
Law Library agreed that this would be a good 
solution to the Library’s space constraints.   

By expanding into the vacated space, the Law 
Library will be able to provide waiting areas for 
the families, more table space for patrons, and 
mediation rooms for attorneys.  
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



10 

 

 $25,360  

 $16,708  

 $3,691  
 $6,000  

 $18,075  

 $7,092  

 $13,818  

FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12

Temp Salary Expenditures 

Revenue & Expenditure History 

FY83 – FY99 
The Travis County Law Library was established in 
1983 to provide legal information to the 
residents of Travis County.  Funding for the 
Library came from a mix of the County Law 
Library filing fee and the General Fund.  

FY00 – FY05 
The filing fee collected on behalf of the Law 
Library increased from $15 to $35 in FY00.  The 
Law Library no longer needed supplemental 
revenue from the General Fund.  The Law Library 
continued to order books and electronic access 
to legal materials for all the courts and 
departments but paid for these out of the Law 
Library fund. 

In the fall of 2001, the Travis County 
Commissioners Court approved the staff addition 
of a half-time reference attorney and a half-time 
temporary reference attorney. To ensure that a 
reference attorney attended every uncontested 
docket, the Law Library hired temp attorneys to 
supplement the 1 reference attorney FTE. 

FY06-FY07 

In FY06 the Law Library completed a $316,114 
grant to develop bilingual legal information and 
forms for the TexasLawHelp.org website.  

The Technical Services supervisor position was 
added in FY06.  A .5 bilingual reference attorney 
was added in FY07, increasing the number of 
reference attorneys to 1.5 FTEs. 

FY08-FY10 
The Law Library began hiring temp librarians to 
assist staff to handle the increasing number of 
SRL patrons.  When the wait for a reference 
attorney appointment reaches a month, the Law 
Library brings in temp reference attorneys to 
meet with appointments.  

FY11-FY12 
A drop in filing fee revenue, combined with 
increasing prices for legal materials, put financial 
pressure on the Law Library fund. The Law 
Library requested that departments pay for their 
own books and online access to databases in 
FY12.  

Though the Law Library continued to order 
books for the courts, the General Fund paid for 
book purchases for the courts in FY12. The Law 
Library fund pays for the courts’ online access to 
legal research databases. 

FY13 – Budget Request 
In the FY13 budget, the Law Library requested 
that the General Fund pay for law books and 
online access for courts, and for additional 
librarian FTEs. Requested FTEs include a 
librarian, a part-time supervisor, and 10 hours of 
reference attorney time. 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



11 

 

$1,328,125 $1,456,338 $1,401,788 
$1,256,529 $1,071,717 

$984,212 
$814,532 

$926,299 $904,449 $1,032,316 $1,047,711 
$915,337 

FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11

Budget / Expenditures Adopted Budget Expenditures

$892,154 

$876,016 
$883,534 

$876,881 

$907,761 

$876,507 
$866,550 

FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 (3rd est.)

Revenue   

The Law Library is funded by a $35 civil filing fee.  The Law Library also charges for notary services and for print outs and copies.  

As the top chart shows, revenue from filing fees has decreased. The Law Library successfully trimmed expenditures in FY11 and 
FY12 however increased need for services and inflation in book prices will continue to put pressure on the Law Library fund.  In 
FY12 the Law Library requested that it be allowed to discontinue purchasing materials for courts and departments out of the Law 
Library fund and that the General Fund support these purchases instead.  PBO concurred with the exception of online charges for 
the civil and criminal courts.  

The same request was made in FY13.  PBO concurred with the request with the exception of online charges for the criminal courts. 
The Law Library will ask in its budget hearing for General Fund support for services that it provides to the courts,  including legal 
materials, supervision of the Information Booth, and the .5 docket attorney FTE. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



12 

 

Law Library Subdivisions 

Law Library Structure 

Records Management and Communications Resources (RMCR) has six divisions that support its mission 
to provide support services, public information, and production.  The Law Library is one of RMCR‘ s six 
divisions. It straddles two the RMCR’ s mission areas:  

1. Public Information – The Law Library provides legal information to the residents and legal 
community of Travis County.  The Law Library’s Information Booth subdivision provides information 
and notary assistance to visitors and directory/information assistance to callers to the county.  

2. Support Services – The Law Library’s technical services subdivision coordinates the contracting for 
online legal services for the courts and county departments.  It coordinates budgeting, ordering, and 
distribution of law books to the courts.  

RMCR Divisions 
 

  

Law Library
 

Reference Services
 (Reference, Collection 

Development)

 Information Booth
 (directions, notaries, 

phone operator)

Technical Services
 (book processing, contract 

mgmt.)

Self-Help Services
(Reference Attorney) 

 

Law Library Fund $ 

General 

Fund $ Archives
 Records preservation

Public Information

Records Management
Records Consulting

Records Destruction

Offsite Records Storage

Media Services
Video Production

TCTV

Public Announcements 

Support Services
 Print Shop

Mail Services
Copier Fleet Mgmt.

Printer/Fax Fleet Mgmt. 

Law Library
Information Booth

Granger Law Library 

Imaging Division
 Digital Imaging Conversions

Records Preservation

Microfilm

Pu
bl

ic
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n

S
upport S

ervices

Production

Director of RMCR
 

General  

Fund $ 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



13 

 

State of the Law Library: Issues and Opportunities 

Changing Expectations for County Law Libraries 

Law libraries have long served a variety of constituencies, and are well-positioned to 
assume a broader role, with a particular focus on those historically excluded from access to 
justice. Put another way Law libraries have great potential to play an important role in 
making the judicial system more user-friendly and accessible for people without lawyers.  

--  The Sustainable 21st Century Law Library: Vision, Deployment and Assessment for Access 
to Justice, by Richard Zorza. April 2012. 

Space 
Knowing of our need for more space, Facilities Management approached the Law Library in 2012 about 
expanding into the adjacent suite vacated by Records Management and Media Services.   The new 
footprint would meet library growth needs as projected by Broadus and confirmed by the Law Library 
and Facilities. The increased space would also allow the Law Library to take advantage of volunteer 
attorneys and law students.  The Law Library recommends approval of this space plan. 

Volunteers 
The Law Library and the University School of Law Pro Bono program piloted a new project during the 
spring 2012 semester. Under supervision of a reference attorney, a law student volunteer helped 
patrons complete their paper work prior to the meeting with the reference attorney.  The result was 
time saving for the reference attorney and for the patron. The reference attorney could assist more 
patrons. The patron’s appointment was more productive.  The student learned about family law and 
assisting the public.  

The UT Law Pro Bono Program asked the Law Library to accept five student volunteers for fall 2012 
semester if Commissioners Court agrees. The Law Library cannot accept all five because there is not 
enough reference attorney time to supervise that many. At present, the Granger Law Library does not 
have room for that many volunteers.  

Collaboration 
The UT Law School is the newest of the Library’s partners. The Law Library has worked closely with the 
Texas Legal Services Center (TLSC) for six years to develop content on the legal information website 
TexasLawHelp.org.  The website became an online self-help center for Texans. The Travis County 
librarians and every other public reference law librarian in the state refer patrons to the site for forms, 
legal aid contact information, etc.  

The Law Library also collaborates with the Texas RioGrande Legal Aid (TRLA), the Lawyer Referral 
Service, the Austin Dispute Resolution Center, and Volunteer Legal Services.  The Law Library refers 
patrons to these and other community service agencies. The agencies provide the Library with 
informational materials and training, but also refer their customers to the Library when appropriate. 

Collaboration with local bar associations could help us improve our services. For all of our services to SRL 
patrons, the Law Library knows that the SRLs would benefit most from legal advice – which the library 
cannot give. Other county law libraries have reported success with having volunteer “attorneys for the 
day” in the library to give advice on contested matters. The Law Library will work toward this 
collaboration.  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



14 

35976 

51259 

63052 64974 
73088 

FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11

Patron interactions with the Library 
Interactions include in-person visits and calls. 

State of the Law Library: Challenges 

The largest challenge faced by the Travis County Law Library is serving the increased number patrons. 

Over 73,000 patrons interacted with the Law Library last year. This represented an 11.5 percent increase 
over FY10.  Growth in the number of patrons who visit or call the Library brings the challenges 
adequately staffing to meet patron needs.  

Growth in Self-Represented Litigant Patrons 
Self-represented litigants began coming to the 
Courthouse Self-Help Center in the tens of 
thousands in 2008. Perhaps not 
coincidentally, 2008 was the beginning of 
the financial crisis known as the Great 
Recession.  

Currently, at least 70 percent of the 
Library’s patrons are self-represented 
litigants.  The District Clerk’s Office 
estimates that 45 percent of divorce filings 
have at least one self-represented litigant 
and the courts expect the number of SRL to 
“go through the roof” over the next few 
years. The Law Library projects that the proportion of self-represent litigant patrons to attorney patrons 
will increase to 80 percent over the next five years.  

Two factors may accelerate this.  One is even further cuts to legal aid programs. Legal Aid has more 
applicants for its services than it can help now. Reduction in federal funding for legal aid services 
increases the number of litigants interacting with the courts without attorney representation.   

The second factor is the threat of defunding for the Texas State Law Library. Texas State Law Library was 
defunded in 2011 Legislative session but was saved at the last minute.  If the State Law Library is 
defunded in 2013, the Travis County Law Library customer base will expand to include state agencies 
and appellate courts located in Austin, plus the State Law Library’s walk-in patrons. 

Problems caused by insufficient staffing  

The last FTE added by the Law Library was a .5 bilingual reference attorney in 
2008. Since then, patron interactions with the Law Library grew by over 21,800 
without an increase in staff.   

SRL patrons need more assistance than do attorney patrons. Attorneys can be 
directed to the books or the computers, and with minimal instruction, perform 
their own legal research. But reference interviews can take 3 to 30 minutes per 
patron if the patron is a self-represented litigant.  The current staffing level is 
inadequate to meet the workload demand of serving the SRL patrons.   

The Law Library has struggled under the strain.  During the last year, the reference 
librarians have expressed that they are exhausted.  They speak so much to patrons during the day that 
they are hoarse in the evening.  They worry that the afternoon patrons do not get as good service 
because, by 2 p.m., the reference librarians are “brain numb.”  It bothers the librarians that patrons take 
off work to come to the library and they may be losing income as they wait long periods. 

Library FTEs 

FY06 6.35 

FY07 7.35 

FY08 7.85 

FY09 7.85 

FY10 7.85 

F11 7.75 

FY12 7.75 
FY13 
(request) 9.5 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



15 

FY13 Budget Request 

10 hours a week reference attorney  time            =    $19,110 

    (Increase .25 FTE to existing slot) 

Law Librarian = 1 FTE, pay grade 17, new slot          =    $56,035 

Library supervisor = .5 FTE, pay grade 20, new slot  =    $37,597 

1.75 FTE    Total:     = $ 112,742 

Patrons are affected by inadequate staffing in the form of wait time for reference help, delays in getting 
reference attorney appointments, and lags in translation of English forms into Spanish. The wait for a 
reference attorney appointment can be four to six weeks.  If an SRL patron cannot get an appointment 
within a reasonable time, he or she is likely to file or attend court with incomplete paperwork.  This 
wastes the courts’ time and is counter-productive to the original goal of the Self-Help Services program.   

There is also a gap between the level of service provided in English and in Spanish.  Many SRL patrons 
either can only speak Spanish or are more comfortable processing the information they receive if it is 
delivered in Spanish. Often there is no staff on the reference desk who can help Spanish-speaking 
patrons. Forms that have been updated in English are left outdated in Spanish due to lack of staff time 
to translate. 

There are new services the Law Library should explore but cannot do so without additional staff.  For 
example, the University of Texas Pro Bono Program asked the Library to accept five volunteer law 
students for the fall 2012 semester. The students would help SRLs complete forms before meeting with 
the reference attorneys and assist the reference attorney in docket.  The Library does not have the 
reference attorney time to train and supervise five students and so can only accept two or three.  

The Law Library has taken several steps to mitigate the problem of inadequate staffing: 

1. Our most successful mitigation step was to hire temp staff. Reductions in expenditures over the last 
two years enabled the Law Library to hire a temp reference attorney to work ten hours a week this 
summer.  The wait for a reference attorney appointment dropped from four weeks to eight days.  
The Library also hired a bilingual temp librarian to work 20 hours a week. The temp librarian has 
been a tremendous help, both by helping the Spanish-speaking patrons and by relieving some of the 
stress on the reference librarians.  

2. December 11, 2011 the Law Library consolidated the Courthouse Self-Help Center into the Granger 
branch. Consolidating the Courthouse Self-Help Center into the Granger Law Library helped, but 
wait times for librarian assistance can still be long, reference attorney appointments are booked 
four weeks in advance, and services and forms for Spanish-speaking patrons still lag behind those 
provided to English speaking patrons.  

3. The Law Library publishes its information kits on the web. For frequently asked reference questions 
that have involved answers, we are working with RMCR to create short informational videos.  The 
first two videos are online. 

4. We take advantage of volunteers, such as attorney reviewers of forms and the University of Texas 
Pro Bono Program. 

Solution 

Although these mitigation efforts helped, the most 
effective solution is to increase staff.  The Library 
requested additional staff in the FY13 budget.  At the 
August budget hearing we will request 10 hours of 
reference attorney time ($19,110), a part-time 
supervisor ($37,597), and a bilingual librarian 
($56,035) be added to the staff.  The total for the additional 1.75 staffing would be $112,742 

In planning for the downtown campus, consultants estimated a need for a total of 23 FTE now and 31 in 
2015.  This is far from where the Law Library is now but does show that need for additional staff has 
been recognized and that the need will grow.   

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



16 

Conclusion 

When the customers change, everything changes -- 

In 2007 the Travis County Law Library was a quiet little library used primarily by attorneys. Five years 
later it is a noisier, busier law library used primarily by non-attorney members of the public.  The Law 
Library is still playing catch-up to the needs of the community. 

What will the Law Library be like in another five years? 

The year 2018 will mark the Law Library’s 35th anniversary.  The Law Library will be preparing to move to 
the Civil Courthouse.  Its Self-Help Services program will be mature and include workshops and 
classroom instruction. Technical Services will have developed automated forms so workshop 
participants can leave the class with forms they have customized themselves to meet their needs.  

Reference librarians will be familiar with more community services and can connect the patrons with 
those services. They will communicate to patrons in person, by phone, and via chat. 

Public access technology will have expanded to include more computers, video instruction, automated 
forms, and scanners.  

Attorney patrons will reserve conference and mediation rooms online.  They will come to the Law 
Library’s business center between hearings and on breaks to prepare further for trial. 

The Law Library’s hours may have expanded to include weeknight and Saturday access.  

In short, the Law Library will be the same but better. There will be more access to more legal 
information.  We will have caught up with the needs of our community. 

 

 

 
 

  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



17 

Data Sources for Projections 

This document used census data organized by the Travis County Health and Human Services in its report 
The Travis County Trend Profile and the United States Census Bureau’s online FactFinder tool.  By taking 
the Travis County demographic growth numbers, the Law Library was able to compare its services to law 
libraries in the counties that are currently the size that Travis County will be in 2018. 

The law libraries used for comparison include Contra Costa and Sacramento county law libraries in 
California and Hennepin Law Library in Minneapolis, Minnesota.  The King County (Washington) Law 
Library was also studied though Seattle has a larger population than Austin.  

The Law Library interviewed attorneys, judges, staff members, and other members of the community for 
their predictions and ideas about the future of the courts and the Law Library. 

The article The Sustainable 21st Century Law Library: Vision, Deployment and Assessment for Access to 
Justice,” by Richard Zorza, April 2012, was particularly helpful.   

Also helpful was the National Center for State Courts annual publications of Future Trends in State 
Courts. 

ABA Standing Committee on Delivery of Legal Services Report to the House of Delegates, July 2012, 
American Bar Association provided statistics on the national trends in self-representation and 
recommendations for limited scope representation. 

 The Pew Internet & American Life Project contributed the statistics related to video usage on cell 
phones, and smart phone adoption rates. Of particular help was the report “Cell Internet Use 2012” 
published June 26, 2012 at http://www.pewinternet.org/Reports/2012/Cell-Internet-Use-2012.aspx  

“Self-Represented Litigants and the Bar,” January 24,2012, a post by former Office of Court 
Administrator Carl Reynolds on his blog CourTex is the source for Travis County data on SRL filing in 
divorce and on  the usage of the TexasLawHelp forms. http://courtex.blogspot.com/  

 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http://www.pewinternet.org/Reports/2012/Cell-Internet-Use-2012.aspx
http://courtex.blogspot.com/


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:    Tuesday, August 7, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Deece Eckstein, 854-9754 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Deece Eckstein, 854-9754 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Biscoe 
 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON TRAVIS COUNTY 
APPOINTMENT TO THE AUSTIN TRAVIS COUNTY INTEGRAL CARE 
(ATCIC) BOARD OF TRUSTEES: 

A. ADOPT PROCEDURE AND TIMETABLE FOR APPOINTMENT 
PROCESS; AND, 

B. APPROVE APPLICATION PACKET FOR DISTRIBUTION TO 
INTERESTED PARTIES.  

 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  
Backup materials to follow.   
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Backup materials to follow.   
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  Backup materials to follow.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  Backup materials to 
follow.   
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  None.   
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us
akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 26



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

NAMES, PHONE NUMBERS AND EMAIL ADDRESSES OF PERSONS 
WHO MIGHT BE AFFECTED BY OR BE INVOLVED WITH THIS 
REQUEST:   
 
Sherri Fleming 
County Executive, Health and Human Services & Veterans Services 
Phone:  854-4581 
Email: Sherri.Fleming@co.travis.tx.us  
 
    
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Sherri.Fleming@co.travis.tx.us


 
1 

MEMO 
 

 For Your 
Information 

 Action 
Required 

  
 TO: Travis County Commissioners Court 

 FROM: Deece Eckstein, Coordinator, IGR 

 DATE: Tuesday, August 7, 2012 

 RE: ATCIC Board of Directors appointments 

 
Summary and IGR Recommendation 
 
The term of Richard Hopkins, one of three Travis County appointees to the 
Austin Travis County Integral Care Board of Trustees, expires on 
September 30, 2012. Under the Uniform Appointments Process adopted by 
the Court on March 6, 2012, the Court issued a Call for Applications at its 
last meeting. This week, IGR asks the Court to formally approve an 
applications process and packet for the appointment. IGR also asks the 
Court to schedule a work session for Thursday, September 27, 2012, so that 
it may interview candidates if it so chooses.   
 
Background 
 
Founded in 1967, Austin Travis County Integral Care provides community-
based behavioral health and developmental disabilities services in Travis 
County, administering an annual budget of $57 million of local, state and 
federal funding at 44 physical facilities. In the last year, Integral Care 
served more than 22,000 individuals and families, offering numerous 
services and programs year-round. 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 
2 

Integral Care was known as the Austin Travis County Mental Health 
Mental Retardation Center until September 2009, when its name was 
changed to reflect evolving attitudes and terminology and to honor the 
dignity of people who seek our services.  
 
The Travis County Commissioners Court makes three appointments to the 
ATCIC Board. The term of one of them, Richard Hopkins, expires at the 
end of September. Mr. Hopkins has expressed interest in being reappointed 
to the board.  
 
Qualifications of a Board Member 
Members of the ATCIC Board of Trustees:  
1. Are qualified voters in Travis County, Texas;  
2. Possess skills, experience and abilities in one or more of the following 

areas: 
 Commitment to improve the lives of people affected by behavioral 

health and developmental and/or intellectual challenges; 
 Ability to learn, understand and comply with rules and standards 

governing the conduct of public business, including open 
government laws, governmental contracting and grant-making 
procedures, and accountability standards and measures; 

 Extensive involvement in leadership roles on community boards or 
projects; 

 Experience recruiting, hiring, and management senior management 
personnel; 

 Demonstrated ability in understanding finance, comprehending and 
managing large budgets; 

 Knowledge of, or commitment to learn about, applicable state and 
federal regulatory requirements; 

 Knowledge of, or commitment to learning about, funding sources 
and mechanisms including their political and equity implications; 

 Availability to commit to full participation as a board member;  
3. Are reflective of the ethnic and geographic diversity of the local service 

area served by ATCIC; and,  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 
3 

4. Are able to comply with the Board of Trustees’ performance standards 
and conflict of interest policy.  

 
Appointment Process 
Attachment A is a proposed outline and timetable for making the 
appointment.   It broadly tracks the process adopted by the Court in 
previous appointments, including the CTRMA, CentralHealth, and the 
CapMetro Board of Trustees.   
 
Application Packet 
Attachment B is a proposed application packet, including: 
• the call for applications  
• a list of desired qualifications and skills 
• an application form 
 
These documents were developed with reference to the application form 
and process used for other Commissioners Court appointments, including 
the CTRMA, CentralHealth, and CapMetro boards.   
 
 
Attachments 
1. Outline of proposed process and timetable for ATCIC appointment. 

(“Attachment A”) 
2. Proposed Application Packet for ATCIC appointment(s). (“Attachment 

B”) 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



ATTACHMENT A 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AUSTIN TRAVIS COUNTY INTEGRAL CARE (ATCIC) 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES APPOINTMENT 
Proposed Process and Timetable 

 
August 7 Commissioners Court adopts selection process for ATCIC 

Board of Trustees appointment and reiterates call for 
applications 

 
September 7 Deadline for submission of applications 
 
September 10 - Commissioners Court members reviews all applications,  
September 17 narrows down list of candidates to interview 
 
September 25 Commissioners Court decides whether to interview a 

short list of finalists and, if so, identifies them 
 
September 27 Commissioners Court work session interviews with 

finalists (if necessary) 
• 40-minute interviews with each candidate 
• Prepared list of questions to be asked of each 

candidate 
• Open, but untelevised, session 

  
September 30 Current term of Travis County appointee expires 
 
October 2 Commissioners Court selects Travis County appointee to 

ATCIC Board of Trustees for a term running until 
September 30, 2014.  

 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



ATTACHMENT B 
 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY  
COMMISSIONERS COURT 

 
 

Appointment to the 
 

AUSTIN TRAVIS COUNTY  
INTEGRAL CARE 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
 
 

Proposed Applications Documents 
Thursday, August 2, 2012 

For Court Consideration and Action on 
Tuesday, August 7, 2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Travis County 
Commissioners Court 

 
 

APPLICATION PACKET  
 

for 
Appointment to the 

Austin-Travis County 
Integral Care  

(A-TCIC) 
Board of Trustees 

 
August 1, 2012 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 
 
 
 
 
 
August 1, 2012 
 
 
TO:  Potential Applicants 
 
FROM:  Travis County Commissioners Court 
 
SUBJECT: A-TCIC Application Process, Timeline and Application 
 
Attached is the Austin-Travis County Integral Care (A-TCIC) Application 
Packet.  Included in the packet are: 

1. a description of the history and mission of A-TCIC;  
2. a summary of the qualifications the County is seeking in its 

appointees; and 
3. an application form. 

 
The deadline for receipt of completed applications is  

4:00 p.m. on Friday, September 7, 2012. 
 
Applications may be submitted to:  

   Travis County Commissioners Court 
Attn: Intergovernmental Relations Office 
700 Lavaca, Suite 360 
Austin, Texas  78701 

 
Applications may also be submitted electronically in PDF format to: 

IGR@co.travis.tx.us 
  
 
Electronic copies of this packet can be requested by calling Deece Eckstein 
at (512) 854-9754 or emailing Deece.Eckstein@co.travis.tx.us.  Also, paper 
copies of the application packet can be picked up at the IGR Office address 
noted above.   

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

mailto:IGR@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Deece.Eckstein@co.travis.tx.us


Call for Applications to the 
Austin Travis County Integral Care (ATCIC) Board of Trustees  

Representing Travis County  
 
 
The Travis County Commissioners Court is seeking applications from qualified 
individuals to serve on the Board of Trustees of the Austin Travis County Integral 
Care (ATCIC).  The Commissioners Court makes three appointments to the Board 
of Trustees, as do the City of Austin and Central Health. One appointment 
becomes available on October 1, 2012.   
 
Founded in 1967, ATCIC provides community-based behavioral health and 
developmental disabilities services in Travis County, administering an annual 
budget of $57 million of local, state and federal funding at 44 physical facilities. In 
the last year, Integral Care served more than 22,000 individuals and families, 
offering numerous services and programs year-round.  
 
The Commissioners Court is looking for individuals who:  
1. Are qualified voters in Travis County, Texas;  
2. Possess skills, experience and abilities in one or more of the following areas: 
 Commitment to improve the lives of people affected by behavioral health 

and developmental and/or intellectual challenges; 
 Ability to learn, understand and comply with rules and standards governing 

the conduct of public business, including open government laws, 
governmental contracting and grant-making procedures, and accountability 
standards and measures; 

 Extensive involvement in leadership roles on community boards or projects; 
 Experience recruiting, hiring, and management senior management 

personnel; 
 Demonstrated ability in understanding finance, comprehending and 

managing large budgets; 
 Knowledge of, or commitment to learn about, applicable state and federal 

regulatory requirements; 
 Knowledge of, or commitment to learning about, funding sources and 

mechanisms including their political and equity implications; 
 Availability to commit to full participation as a board member;  

3. Are reflective of the ethnic and geographic diversity of the local service area 
served by ATCIC; and,  

4. Are able to comply with the Board of Trustees’ performance standards and 
conflict of interest policy, as set forth on the following pages.  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

02.03 BOARD OF TRUSTEES POLICY 

Title: Board of Trustees Administration and Operation  

Section: Board of Trustees 

Cross Reference: N/A 

 

BACKGROUND  

The Board has established performance standards for its membership.  

Meetings of the Board and its committees are planned, organized and conducted 
according to Board Policy, applicable statutes and other appropriate regulations.  

PURPOSE 

It is the purpose of this policy to document the Board's practices regarding its 
administration and operations which are not included in the Restated Articles of 
Organization (the "Charter"), the Board's Bylaws or other Board Policies.  

POLICY 

1. Attendance  
Board members are expected to attend all Board and Committee meetings. In 
accordance with the Austin Travis County Mental Health Mental Retardation 
Center Charter, an absence from three consecutive regularly scheduled meetings 
of the Board within a twelve month period, or four regularly scheduled meetings 
of the Board within a twelve month period, shall be deemed a dereliction of duty 
unless poor health is the cause of the absence or absences. 
The Board shall annually review and report the attendance of its members to all 
sponsoring agencies.  

2. Minutes  
The Board and all Board Committees shall keep minutes of their proceedings 
which note all actions taken by the Board. Once approved, the minutes of the full 
Board meetings shall be distributed to DSHS and DADS, the sponsoring agencies, 
advisory committees, Center staff and made available to the public.  

3. Background Materials for Board and Advisory Committee Members  
Materials for Board and Committee consideration, including advisory committees, 
shall be distributed seven calendar days prior to regular meetings, provided, 
however, that this section shall not affect the validity of any Board action on such 
materials.  

4. Agendas  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



The Executive Director shall develop and implement systematic procedures 
governing the preparation and distribution of Board and Board Committee, 
including Advisory Committee, agendas and related materials. The Board 
Chairperson has final authority for approving the Board agenda. Committee 
Chairpersons will retain final authority for approval of Committee agendas. All 
meetings shall be posted in accordance with the Open Meetings Law.  

5. Diversity  
In order to promote the appointment of members reflective of the ethnic and 
geographic diversity of the local service area and to ensure compliance with the 
statute, the Chair, as vacancies occur, shall provide written communication to the 
appropriate appointing agency describing the Board of Trustee's current 
geographic and ethnic composition, as well as a copy of all relevant statutes.  

6. Proxy Voting  
All votes on Board and Committee issues shall be made in person; telephone 
voting and voting via proxy shall not be permitted.  

7. Compensation of Board Members  
Board members are entitled to reimbursement for local and out-of-town travel 
expenses incurred in conducting Center business. Board members shall be subject 
to the same guidelines for reimbursement that apply to Center staff.  

 

Effective Date: January 25, 1990 

Revised Date:  July 31, 2008  

Approved: Toni Inglis  

Signature:____________________________ 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

To All Members of the Board of Trustees:  

The Center respects the rights of its trustees in their activities outside their positions of 
trust with the Center which are private in nature and which in no way conflict with or 
reflect upon the Center. The trustees have been carefully selected and their integrity and 
judgment are valued and trusted. This document is a safeguard for Board members so as 
to avoid any misunderstandings which might unintentionally involve a conflict of 
interest. To avoid any misunderstandings, the following statements of policy are made:  

1. A conflict of interest is broadly defined as a conflict between the private interests and 
the official responsibilities of a person in a position of trust. Trustees are in positions of 
trust. The private interests of a trustee cannot conflict with his/her official duties as a 
representative of ATCIC nor with the interests of ATCIC.  

2. Each trustee must avoid incurring any kind of financial or personal obligation which 
might affect his/her judgment in dealing for the Center with outside organizations, firms 
or individuals. Each person must examine his/her own activities and those of his/her 
family to be sure that no condition exists which creates an embarrassing situation in 
respect to transactions of the Center.  

3. Where there is any question about a conflict of interest, even though it may not exist in 
actuality, the particular situation should be disclosed in writing. For a trustee, the 
disclosure should be filed with the Chief Executive Officer or his/her designee. This 
action of disclosure is a protection for both the Center and the trustee. In most cases, the 
activity disclosed does not represent a conflict of interest which would require corrective 
action by either the Center or the trustee. The mere documentation via disclosure 
indicates good faith and rarely would additional action be required. It is the responsibility 
of the Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees to determine whether conflicts of 
interest do occur, and to take such steps as deemed appropriate to protect the Center.  

4. Below is a list of areas about which care should be exercised by the trustee as potential 
conflicts of interest.  

a. Holding a financial interest of over 1% (including stockholder, partner, joint venture, 
creditor, guarantor or director) in a firm which provides services or supplies, materials or 
equipment to the Center; or with a firm to which the Center provides services or makes 
loans; or engaging in such activities with the Center as an individual.  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Conflict of Interest and Disclosure Statement 
(Board of Trustees) 
Page 2 
 
 
b. Speculating or dealing in equipment, supplies, materials or property purchased by the 
Center, or speculating or dealing for his/her own account in services provided by the 
Center.  
c. Borrowing money from suppliers, persons receiving services from the Center or from 
individuals or firms with whom the Center does business. This does not include routine 
banking services and transactions between a bank, savings and loan or other similar 
institution and trustee.  
d. Accepting gifts or favors for himself/herself or for any family member, or 
entertainment or other personal obligation from an outside organization or individual 
which are substantial enough to influence his selection of goods and services for the 
Center. This does not apply to acceptance of perishable or consumable gifts of a nominal 
value, nor reasonable personal entertainment, but care must be exercised to be sure that 
continuation of such matters does not gradually build up into an embarrassing obligation. 
In the case of gifts that are of a substantial nature, these should be returned to the donor 
with the explanation that Center policy will not permit the acceptance of the gift. The 
Center will take care of the expense of returning such gifts.  
e. Acquisition by purchase or lease of real estate in which it is known the Center has an 
interest, or which may improve in value because of the Center's interest in adjoining 
property.  
f. The misuse of information to which the trustee has access by reason of his position, 
such as the disclosure of confidential information to competitors or others outside the 
business.  
g. Be employed in a situation or accept compensation which might reasonably be 
expected to impair independence of judgment in the performance of ATCIC official 
duties.  
h. Trustees in the role in private business or professional activities shall not:  

• Use the Center office or return address on their business or professional 
stationary;  

• Utilize Center employees for personal work or any private business or 
professional activity during regular working hours;  

• Utilize Center equipment, supplies or facilities for their private business or 
professional activities;  

• Provide privately the same services to Center clients which Center clients are 
currently receiving from the Center; or  

• Solicit clients for their private business or professional activities from persons 
being served by the Center.  

5. The foregoing is to be understood to refer not only to the Center, but also to any of the 
Center's pension, retirement, savings or similar plans. The holding of any security, not 
including one of the securities in question of a publicly owned corporation (i.e., one stock 
is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission), will not be deemed a 
violation of this policy.  

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



Conflict of Interest and Disclosure Statement 
(Board of Trustees) 
Page 3 
 
 
Copies of this policy statement are sent to each trustee once a year, with the request that 
they sign one copy and return it to the Chief Executive Officer. Any possible conflict of 
interest on the part of any of the following that is known to the Trustee should be 
disclosed at the end of this letter:  

1. Trustees or their families (which would include spouse, parents, brothers, sisters, 
children, nieces, nephews and spouses of brothers, sisters and children).  
2. Any organization of which they or members of their families are an officer, director or 
either directly or indirectly, a stockholder or partner.  
3. Any trust or estate in which they or members of their families have a beneficial interest 
or for which they act in a fiduciary capacity.  

Remember that this is a disclosure for the protection of both you and the Center. This 
documentation discloses your good faith that no action or interest on your part or that of 
your family is intentionally in conflict with the interests of ATCIC.  

If a situation of this type described above should develop during the year, a statement 
outlining the details should be filed with either the Chief Executive Officer or his/her 
designee.  

I have read and understand this policy and will make every effort to observe it carefully.  

 

Signature: _______________________________________ 

Date:         _______________________________________ 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



ATCIC Appointment Application_080112 1 

TRAVIS COUNTY 
AUSTIN TRAVIS COUNTY INTEGRAL CARE 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 APPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

 
 

(Applications must be submitted in this format.  Please do not retype or reformat.) 
 
Name:        
Spouse’s Name:        
 
Home Telephone # 
      

Work Telephone # 
      

Fax # 
      

Email Address 
      

Cellular # (Optional) 
      

Present Job title & job description: 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Profession:        
 
Home Address  
(STREET/P.O. BOX, CITY, STATE, ZIP)                  
      
 
 
 
 
 
County:        

Employer and Employer’s Address 
      

 
 
EDUCATION/TRAINING: 
 
 
High School or equivalent (G.E.D.)        
 
Undergraduate School:        
 

Year Graduated:       

 
Graduate School:        
 

 
Year Graduated:       
 

Licenses/Certifications:       
 

Year Obtained:       

 
Exhibit B 

 
 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



ATCIC Appointment Application_080112 2 

 
Name:        
 
 
EMPLOYMENT AND CAREER HISTORY( include administrative and finance experience): 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CURRENT PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS: 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC SERVICE (include participation in local, state, and federal governmental processes): 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



ATCIC Appointment Application_080112 3 

 
 
Name:        
 
 
CIVIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP ROLES: 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH OR PUBLIC HEALTH EXPERIENCE AND/OR KNOWLEDGE: 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTE:  PLEASE ATTACH A RESUME. 
 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



ATCIC Appointment Application_080112 4 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY 
AUSTIN TRAVIS COUNTY INTEGRAL CARE 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
APPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

 
 
 

Name:        
 
Date of Birth 
      

Driver’s License # or DPS I.D. # 
      

Are you a U.S. Citizen   Yes      No 

Ethnicity: (Optional)  White  African-American  Hispanic  Asian Other:       
 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF APPLICANT 
 
 

  I hereby certify that the foregoing and any attached statements are true, 
accurate and complete.  I agree that any misstatement, misrepresentation, or omission 
of a fact may result in my disqualification for appointment.  I assign and hereby give 
Travis County full authority to conduct background investigations pertinent to this 
application.   

 
 
 
 
  
 Printed Name 
 
 

 

 Applicant’s Signature 
  
  
 Date 

 
 

 
  
  

 
 
 

Return completed application and attachments via mail to: 
Travis County Commissioners Court 

Attention:  Intergovernmental Relations Office 
700 Lavaca Street, Suite 360 

Austin, Texas  78701 
 

Or via email to IGR@co.travis.tx.us. 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

mailto:IGR@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
single pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 
p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: August 7, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Susan Bell/49587 and Denise Bell/43997 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir/Travis County Clerk 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, August 21, 2012 to receive comments on 
the annual written plans for the 0108 (028) Records Management Preservation Fund 
and 0129 (057) County Clerk's Records Archival Fund and publish the appropriate 
notice as required by 118.025 of the Local Government Code. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
See attached 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
Fiscal Impact and Source of Funding can be entered or summarized here or in an 
attached memorandum 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
John Hille, County Attorney  49415 
 
For information purposes: 
Alan Miller, Planning and Budget  49726 
Steven Broberg, RMCR   49575  
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item C3



 

Travis County Clerk Dana DeBeauvoir 
(512) 854-9188 
P.O. Box 149325, Austin, TX  78714-9325 
www.traviscountyclerk.org 

 

 
 
 

FY13 Plan for Use of the County Clerk’s 
Records Management and Preservation Fund and Records Archive Fund 

 
The Records Management and Preservation Fund, outlined in Section 118.0216 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, is for, “the records management and preservation services performed by the county clerk 
after the filing and recording of a document in the records of the office of the clerk.”  This section also states, 
“the county clerk shall prepare an annual written plan for funding the automation projects and records 
management and preservation services performed by the clerk.”  
 
The County Clerk’s Records Archive Fund, outlined in 118.025 of the Local Government Code, states that the 
fee for "Records Archive" under Section 118.011(f) is for, “the preservation and restoration services performed 
by the county clerk in connection with maintaining a county clerk's records archive.”  This section states, “the 
county clerk shall prepare an annual written plan for funding the preservation and restoration of the county 
clerk’s records archive.” 
 
This document serves as the written plan for both of these funds. 

Long Term Plan for the Use of these Funds 

The Travis County Clerk’s library of permanent real property records dates prior to 1836 and contains over 
30,000,000 pages of documents.  There are three important categories of these documents: 
 

April 1999 – present Documents are electronically imaged and have a computerized index. 
1987 – 1999 Documents are microfilmed and have a computerized index. 
1836 – 1987 Documents are microfilmed and have microfilmed copies of handwritten indexes. 

 
Our primary goals are to use these funds to: 
 

 Provide computerized indexes for all real property records filed prior to 1990 
Computerizing indexes is a priority since index records prior to 1987 exist as microfilmed copies of 
handwritten indexes.  In addition to the indexes being inefficient to research, handwriting styles and 
poor microfilm images can sometimes make reading the indexes difficult.  New technology now allows 
inexpensive, highly accurate creation of indexes.  Previously, this task was tedious, expensive, and 
often contracted overseas with risks of transport. 

 Make certain that appropriate disaster recovery and business resumption systems are in place 
Ensuring that a detailed structure is in place to prevent loss of these records in the event of a disaster 
is directly associated with protecting the archive and therefore, related to the primary intent of this 
legislation. 

 Digitize County Clerk records and redact personal identifiers 
Digitizing records increases protection of documents from disaster, dramatically increases the ability to 
track and locate documents, provides a clearer more readable image of documents, and greatly 
improves efficiency for the retrieval of documents by the public.  To help reduce the risk of identity 
theft, personal identifiers are being removed from images before they are presented for public view 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

on the Internet.  Additional redaction measures may need to be taken depending on actions from the 
legislature and Attorney General. 

 Ensure that appropriate electronic storage and retrieval systems are in place to protect the records 
Maintaining these millions of images will require a large-scale electronic storage system.  A system for 
maintaining a replicated copy of this database is needed to minimize risk.  It will also help to ensure 
that Internet access to the records will not be occurring on the same system as the storage/main 
production database.  

 Implement a system for securing, inventorying, tracking, and retrieving paper records filed with the 
Clerk 
This project is particularly important for protecting and tracking the location of court documents filed 
with the County Clerk’s Office.  This automated inventory check-in/check-out process allows these 
documents to be viewed by the necessary parties while minimizing the risk of being lost or stolen.  It 
also coordinates the inventories of onsite and offsite records storage areas.  

 Apply special preservation methods to documents of significant historic value 
Modern preservation techniques should be applied to paper documents that merit special 
consideration, such as Sam Houston’s will.   

 
 

FY13 PLAN FOR THE USE OF THE 028 RECORDS MANAGEMENT FUND 
 
Personnel $695,900 

Changes include an increase in personnel costs due to market salary survey result 
($13,151); increase in benefit changes ($6,743). 

 

Office Equipment and Supplies $55,000 
 

Maintenance Agreements $195,000 
 

Training and Seminars $15,000 
 

Computer Equipment Purchases $127,000 
This includes upgrade for backup system server ($6,000), replacement for servers 
primarily associated with the real property indexing and imaging system ($106,000), 
and software purchase and upgrades ($15,000). 

 

Estimated Reserves $439,791 
 Any unused funds will be classified as allocated reserves. These funds may be used for 

items such as additional temporary personnel resources, equipment, or professional 
services necessary for records management projects; replacement computer 
equipment; or a supplement to salaries following actions such as performance based 
pay increases, reclassifications, or pay adjustments. 

 

  TOTAL $1,527,691 

 
 

FY13 PLAN FOR THE USE OF THE 057 RECORDS ARCHIVE FUND 
 
Personnel  $295,518 

Changes include an increase in personnel costs due to market salary survey result 
($1,740); increase in benefit changes ($3,771), and a reduction because of a transfer 
of Slot 139; Customer Support Analyst I, to the General Fund ($63,389). 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



 

Contribution to the Office of Travis County Records Management and $230,268 
Communication 

These costs cover expenses related to off site storage and the salary of an imaging 
production technician. 

 

Digitizing and Indexing Permanent Library of Real Property Records $660,000  
and Criminal Minutes 

This is the continuation of the project to convert microfilm to digital images and create 
computer indexes for each image for all real property documents recorded between 
1836 and 1987.  This project has expanded to include the redaction of personal 
identifiers from internet images.  We are also working to digitize microfilm copies of 
criminal minutes to increase retrieval capabilities and improve expunction procedures. 

 

Ongoing Transfer to General Fund for Personnel Costs $7,702 
 

Estimated Reserves $189,241 
 Any unused funds will be classified as allocated reserves. These funds may be used for 

items such as additional temporary personnel resources, equipment, or professional 
services necessary for records management projects; replacement computer 
equipment; or a supplement to salaries following actions such as performance based 
pay increases, reclassifications, or pay adjustments. 

 

  TOTAL $1,382,729 
 
 
 

For more information, please contact the Travis County Clerk’s Office at (512) 854-9188. 

 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
single pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 
p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
Meeting Date: August 7, 2012  
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Michelle Brinkman (854-6404) 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: 

Amalia Rodriguez-Mendoza (854-9737) 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge  

 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Approve Setting of Public Hearing on Tuesday, August 21st to receive comments 
regarding the Fiscal Year 2013 Travis County District Clerk’s Records Management 
Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
The District Court Records Archive Fee and District Court Records Technology Fund 
are authorized in Texas Government Code 51.305(b) and 51.305(c), respectively.   
Section 51.305(d) requires the authorized fee to be used for “the preservation and 
restoration services of the district court records archive.”  This section states, “The 
district clerk shall prepare an annual written plan for funding the preservation and 
restoration of the district court’s records archive.  The district clerk is to prepare an 
annual written plan for use of this fund.  The Commissioners Court is required to hold a 
public hearing on this plan and to publish notice of such hearing in a newspaper no later 
than 15 days prior to the hearing. Noticed will be published on August 3rd for an August 
21st hearing date. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
To approve setting the public hearing. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
N/A 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Hon. Lora Livingston (854-9309), Susan Spataro (854-9125), Katie Peterson (854-4718) 
and Steven Broberg (854-9064) 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item C4



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: August 7,2012 

Prepared By: Stacey Scheffel, Permit Program Manager Phone #: 854-7565 

Division Director/Manager: Anna Bo lin, Division Director of Development 

Services 


Department Head: Steve M. Manil a, ' .E., County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Davis, Precinct One 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, August 21, 

2012 to receive comments regarding fee increase proposals for use of the 

MyPermitNow web based permitting application. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

TNR's Permit customers have requested the ability to apply for permits online. They 

also want to be able to track permit progress, request inspections, and view permit 

records online. TNR's existing permitting software is not capable of this. 


MyPermitNow is a web-based permitting application that was developed by 

Louisiana's South Central Planning and Development Commission (SCPDC) in 

response to the higher levels of plan review and permit tracking that became 

mandatory in the wake of Hurricane Katrina. In corporation with SCPDC, the Capital 

Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG) is offering MyPermitNow to local 

governments within its ten county region. MyPermitNow allows customers to apply 

for permits online and receive automatic phone and/or e-mail alerts at permit and 

inspection milestones. It would allow County staff to do digital plan review and 

mobile field inspections. It allows multiple users to review documents 

simultaneously. The system features real time back-up of records in multiple states. 

In addition to making the permitting process customer friendly, it has the potential to 

streamline every aspect of the County's permitting, enforcement, and platting 

processes from intake to inspection to record keeping. On July 3, 2012 (Item 15), 

Commissioners Court approved the interlocal agreement with SCPDC for the use of 

MyPermitNow for TNR and the Fire Marshal's office. 


MyPermitNow has little to no up front costs. The fee for the service is a flat monthly 

fee based on yearly permit volume. In an average year, the fee for Travis County 

would be $3,166.67 per month or $38,000 per year. TNR proposes to pass the cost 

on to permit customers by increasing fees by $10 an application. In an average 

year, the County could expect $65,000 in revenue to pay for the service and 

equipment upgrades for staff. 


Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http:3,166.67
akerc
Typewritten Text
Item C5



STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

TNR staff recommends increasing land development related review fees by $10 per 

application in order to recoupe the cost for the use of the MyPermitNow web-based 

permitting system. TNR proposes that the fee increase go into effect November 1, 

2012 to coincide with the expected launch of MyPermitNow for Travis County. 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

TNR's Permit customers have requested the ability to apply for permits online. They 

also want to be able to track permit progress, request inspections, and view permit 

records online. TNR's existing permitting software is not capable of this. TNR staff 

has unoffically polled permit applicants and most are willing to pay a small increase 

in land development related fees for a customer friendly web-based permitting 

system. 


FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

MyPermitNow has little to no up front costs. The fee for the service is a flat monthly 

fee based on yearly permit volume. In an average year, the fee for Travis County 

would be $3,166.67 per month or $38,000 per year. TNR purposes to pass the cost 

on to permit customers by increasing fees by $10 per application. In an average 

year, the County could expect $65,000 in revenue to pay for the service and 

equipment upgrades for staff. 


ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 

Proposed Fee Schedule 


REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 


Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin Division Director Dev. TNR 854-7561 

Srvs. 

cc: 

Isabelle Lopez Financial Anyalist TNR 854-7675 
Julie Joe Assit. Cty. Attny. Cty. Attny. 854-4835 
Stacey Scheffel Permit Program TNR 854-7565 

Manger 

SM:AB:ss 
1101 - Development Services - 11051170511505 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.

http:3,166.67


TRANSPORTAnON AND NATURAL RESOURCES 


PROPOSED FEE SCHEDULE 


SUBDIVISION FEES 
Long Form Plat Applications 
y Preliminarv Plan Review 

y Procesiiiijl!; Feefot'lPlatil,i'IO actt)s or.less (ALL ZONES) 
y Desired Development Zone, no RSMP 
y Desired Development Zone, with RSMP 
y Drinking Water Protection Zone, no RSMP 
y Drinking Water Protection Zone, with RSMP 
y Non City ofAustin ETJ 

Proposed 

$310 per plat (minimum fee) 
$46 per acre 
$33 per acre 
$30 per acre 
$17 per acre 
$38 per acre 

y Residential Lot Review 
y Desired Development Zone. no RSMP 
y Desired Development Zone, with RSMP 
y Drinking Water Protection Zone, no RSMP 
y Drinking Water Protection Zone, with RSMP 
y Non City ofAustin ETJ 

y Construction Inspection - Non City of Austin ETJ onlv 

$300 Ptl:~:PI~~£m.inimum fee) 
$46 per acre 
$33 per acre 
$30 per acre 
$17 per aere 
$38 per aere 

$66 per lot 

$47 per lot 

$40 per lot 

$22 per lot 

$54 per lot 


$1.25 per linear foot 
$1 

$66 per lot 

$47 per lot 

$40 per lot 

$22 per lot 

$54 per lot 


$1.25 per linear foot 

Page 1 of3 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

PROPOSED FEE SCHEDULE 


FEES (continued) 

;;. 

D l~:~::~u~t;r);,:;,:, ;;iH 

Existing 

$40 per acre + $52 per lot 
$22 per acre + $29 per lot 
$40 per acre + $52 per lot 
$22 per acre + $29 per lot 
$38 per acre + $54 per lot 

$150 per platt? 
$150 per plat + 
$150 perpIat+ 
$150 per plat + 

$2,820 
$144 

$72 
$72 
$54 

'$t830 per plat 
$144 per plat 

$72 per plat 
$72 per plat 
$54 per plat 

Lon!!. Form Plat Applications (continued) 
;;. Construction Review 

;;. Desired Development Zone, no RSMP 
;;. Desired Development Zone, with RSMP 
;;. Drinking Water Protection Zone, no RSMP 
;;. Drinking Water Protection Zone, with RSMP 
;;. Non City of Austin ETJ 

Short Form Plat Applications -Non City of Austin ETJ 

;;. Floodplain Onsite or on Adiacent Boundary Street 
;;. Density Greater than Surrounding Area 
;;. Land Use Different than Surrounding Area 
;;. Variance Require 

Plat Revision Applications 
;;. Amendments 

Remediation Fees (New fee 12119106) 
;;. Remove and Reinstall Curb Ramp 
;;. Remove and Reinstall Driveway 
;;. Remove and Install 4' Wide Sidewalk 

;;. Modify Sidewalk 

;;. Modify Crosswalk 


Page2of3 

$3,000 each 
$\0,000 each 

$50 per linear foot 
$200 each 

each 

$40 per acre + $52 per lot 
$22 per acre + $29 per lot 
$40 per acre + $52 per lot 
$22 per acre + $29 per lot 
$38 per acre + $54 per lot 

$3,000 each 
$10,000 each 

$50 per linear foot 
$200 each 

$5,000 each 

Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
PROPOSED FEE SCHEDULE 

Public Notice Fee 

R~d 

UtO 
.trtiI: 

$4 per lot 

* Fee does not apply ifname change is needed to eliminate duplication and/or 

ON-SITE SEWAC-E FACII.TTTF.S 
+State (TCEO Seotic Fee) 

Maintenance Contract 
~t·Anb.il)\i Fee ~ 
Re-Inspection Fee 
Septic;SHb2Review 
Permit Renewal 

1Uld} 

Page 3 of 3 


Updated 8/2/12, 3:32 p.m.


	Item 02
	Item 03
	Item 04
	Item 05
	Item 06
	Item 07
	Item 08
	Item 09
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16
	Item 17
	Item 18
	Item 19
	Item 20
	Item 21
	Item 22
	Item 23
	Item 24
	Item 25
	Item 26
	Item C3
	Item C4
	Item C5



